SOUTH
KESTEVEN
DISTRICT
COUNCIL

AGENDA

DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
to be held on

TUESDAY, 5 FEBRUARY 2019

at

10.00 AM
in the

BALLROOM, GUILDHALL ARTS CENTRE, ST. PETER'S HILL,
GRANTHAM. NG31 6PZ

Aidan Rave, Chief Executive

Chairman

Councillor Martin Wilkins
Councillor Ashley Baxter Councillor Mrs Judy Smith
Councillor Phil Dilks Councillor Judy Stevens
Councillor Mike Exton Councillor Adam Stokes
Councillor Mrs Rosemary Kaberry-Brown Councillor lan Stokes (Vice-Chairman)
Councillor Michael King Councillor Brian Sumner
Councillor Robert Reid Councillor Mrs Brenda Sumner
Councillor Jacky Smith Councillor Paul Wood

Committee Support Jo Toomey Tel: 01476 40 60 80 (Ext. 6152)
Officer: E-mail: democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk

Members of the Committee are invited to attend the above meeting to consider
the items of business listed below.

1 MEMBERSHIP

The Chief Executive to notify the Committee of any substitute
members

2 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
3 DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS

Members are asked to disclose any interests in matters for
consideration at the meeting

4 MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 15 JANUARY 2019 (Pages 5 - 13)




5 PLANNING MATTERS

To consider applications received for the grant of planning
permission — reports prepared by the Case Officer.

The anticipated order of consideration is as shown on the
agenda, but this may be subject to change, at the discretion of
the Chairman of the Committee.

(a) Application S17/2155 (Pages 15 - 173)

Proposal: Outline planning permission for the erection
of a Designer Outlet Centre of up to 20,479 sqm (GEA)
of floorspace comprising retail units (A1), restaurants
and cafes (A3), and storage. Additional large goods
retail (5,574 sqm GEA), garden centre (5,521 sqm GEA)
and external display area for garden centre (1,393 sqm),
tourist information and visitor centre, training academy,
leisure unit and offices including high-tech hub/start-up
offices. Demolition of existing garden centre and sales
area and existing warehouse. Improvements to existing
Downtown Grantham store elevations. Reconfigured car
parking and provision of new multi-storey car park.
Increased coach parking. Access improvements,
drainage works, hard and soft landscaping and all
ancillary works. All matters reserved with the exception
of access

Location: Downtown Garden Centre, Old Great North
Road, Great Gonerby, Lincolnshire, NG32 2AB

Case Officer: Justin Johnson

Recommendation: That the application is approved
subject to the completion of a Section 106 planning
obligation and providing that the Secretary of State does
not call the application in for determination.

Adjournment

Following consideration of agenda item 5a, the meeting will adjourn until 13:30.
(b) Application $18/2171 (Pages 175 - 184)

Proposal: Installation of statue, plinth and paved
surround

Location: Land at St. Peter’s Hill, Grantham, NG31 6PZ
Case Officer: Phil Jordan

Recommendation: Approved conditionally

(c) Application $18/1979 (Pages 185 - 203)

Proposal: Conversion of existing barn to single
dwelling, erection of new hay barn and stable block and
paddocks

Location: Brandon Barn, Hall Road, Brandon,
Lincolnshire, NG32 2AT

Case Officer: Shelly Delderfield

Recommendation: Approved conditionally



(d)

(e)

Application $18/1561

Proposal: Erection of a single storey convenience store
Location: Land at Hanbury Avenue, Grantham, NG31
7GQ

Case Officer: Phil Jordan

Recommendation: Approved conditionally

Application S18/2265

Proposal: Single storey glazed link extension, including
conversion of attached outbuildings and addition of roof
lights

Location: White Farm Cottage, 16 Pond Street,
Harlaxton, NG32 1HW

Case Officer: Miranda Beavers

Recommendation: Approved conditionally

ANY OTHER BUSINESS, WHICH THE CHAIRMAN, BY
REASON OF SPECIAL CIRCUMSTANCES, DECIDES IS
URGENT

(Pages 205 - 217)

(Pages 219 - 226)



PUBLIC SPEAKING

Anyone who would like to speak at the meeting should notify the Committee
administrator one working day before the time of the meeting. The deadline by which
you must notify us for the 2018/19 meetings are:

Meeting Date Notification Deadline
Tuesday 5 February 2019, 1pm Monday 4 February 2019, 10am
Tuesday 5 March 2019, 1pm Monday 4 March 2019, 1pm
Tuesday 2 April 2019, 1pm Monday 1 April 2019, 1pm
Tuesday 23 April 2019, 1pm Thursday 18 April 2019, 1pm

If you would like to include photographs or other information as part of your
presentation to the Committee, please send the information in an electronic format
(e-mail with attachments, memory stick or disc) to the relevant case officer at least
one working day before the meeting. If you are submitting hard copy information,
please send it to the relevant case officer at least two working days before the
meeting.

All speakers are at the Committee Chairman’s (or Vice-Chairman’s) discretion. Each
person is allowed to speak for 3 minutes. Members of the Council are allowed to
speak for 5 minutes in accordance with Council Procedure Rules.

Only one speaker for the applicant or the town and parish council will be allowed to
speak. If there are several supporters or objectors to an application, they are
encouraged to appoint a representative to present a joint case.

Committee members may only ask questions of the applicant, the applicant’s agent
or technical experts speaking for or against an application.

The Chairman and Vice-Chairman of the Committee may ask questions of members
of the public but only to verify the source of any material facts stated by a public
speaker.

ORDER OF PROCEEDINGS

1. Short introductory presentation by the case officer
2. Speakers (Committee members will ask questions after each speaker)
a. District Councillors who are not Committee members
b. Representative from town/parish council
c. Objectors to an application
d. Supporters of an application
e. The applicant or agent for the applicant
3. Debate — Councillors will discuss the application and make proposals
4. Vote — the Committee will vote to agree its decision




Agenda ltem 4

SOUTH
KESTEVEN
DISTRICT
COUNCIL

MINUTES

DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT
COMMITTEE
TUESDAY, 15 JANUARY 2019

COMMITTEE MEMBERS PRESENT

Councillor Ashley Baxter Councillor Adam Stokes

Councillor Phil Dilks Councillor lan Stokes (Vice-Chairman)
Councillor Mike Exton Councillor Brian Sumner

Councillor Mrs Rosemary Kaberry-Brown Councillor Rosemary Trollope-Bellew
Councillor Michael King Councillor Martin Wilkins (Chairman)
Councillor Jacky Smith Councillor Paul Wood

Councillor Judy Stevens
OFFICERS

Head of Development Management (Sylvia Bland)
Principal Planning Officer (Phil Moore)

Assistant Planning Officer (Craig Dickinson)

Legal Adviser (Colin Meadowcroft)

Principal Democracy Officer (Jo Toomey)

47. MEMBERSHIP
The Committee was notified that under Regulation 13 of the Local
Government (Committees and Political Groups) Regulations 1990, notice had
been received appointing: Councillor Trollope-Bellew for Councillor Brenda
Sumner.
48. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Reid and Judy Smith.
49. DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS
No interests were disclosed.

50. MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 11 DECEMBER 2018

The minutes of the meeting held on 11 December 2018 were agreed as a
correct record subject to the following addition.



51.

(a)

One Member asked when the Committee would receive an update on a
planning application that was submitted in respect of Easton Cold Store.
Members were advised that the Committee would not receive an update
because the matter had been determined.

PLANNING MATTERS

Application ref: S18/0937

Description: Reserved matters application for 174 dwellings and associated
infrastructure pursuant to SK94/0125/12

Location: Elsea Park - Zone 9, Land east of A151, Raymond Mays Way,
Bourne

Decision:
To grant the application subject to conditions.

As the application was part-heard and Councillors Jacky Smith and Wilkins
had not been present when it had been considered previously, they did not
participate in discussion or vote on the application.

Noting:

e Reasons for refusal submitted by those Members who voted to support

the Committee’s decision that it was minded to refuse the application

with officer comment thereon

Comments from the Environment Agency

No objection from Cadent Gas Limited

Comments from the SKDC Affordable Housing Officer

Comments from the Welland and Deeping Internal Drainage Board

including additional comments relating to the ongoing maintenance of

the watercourse to the south of Harvey Close

No comments from Natural England

Comments from SKDC Street Scene

Concerns raised by the Elsea Park Community Trust

An objection and concerns raised by Bourne Town Council

No objection from Lincolnshire County Council Highways and SUDS

Support

e 9 representations received as a result of public consultation together
with additional letters submitted by residents of Harvey Close and
officer comment thereon

e Provisions within the National Planning Policy Framework and the
South Kesteven Core Strategy and supplementary planning documents

¢ A meeting held between planning officers, local Councillors and local
residents, which was held in Bourne on Friday 11 January 2019

e Site visit observations

e Comments made by Members at the meeting



e The additional information report from the meetings held on 13
November and 11 December 2018

e Comments made during the public speaking session on 13 November
2018

e Comments made by Members on 13 November and 11 December
2018 when the application was previously considered

e Additional information received on surface water drainage following
consideration by Committee on 13 November 2018

e Proposed changes to the scheme to address the Committee’s concerns
regarding design

After the meeting of the Committee on 11 December 2018 at which members
decided that they were minded to refuse the application, they were required to
submit, within five working days, their reasons for refusal to the Head of
Growth. These were listed in the case officer’s report together with officer
comment thereon. Officers did not consider the reasons that were put forward
were sufficient to warrant refusal. The officer recommendation remained to
approve the application.

It was proposed and seconded that the application be approved for the
reasons listed in the case officer’s report and subject to the conditions and
notes on pages 23 to 27 of the case officer’s report (as amended by the
additional items paper issued in respect of the Committee held on 11
December 2018.

As, at the previous meeting, the Committee had been minded to refuse the
application, the Council’s Constitution required that any vote at the
subsequent meeting at which the application was considered should be a
recorded vote:

For: Councillors Exton, King, A Stokes, | Stokes and Trollope-Bellew
Against: Councillors Baxter and Wood
Abstain: Councillors Dilks, Kaberry-Brown, Stevens and Brian Sumner

With five votes to two and four abstentions, the proposition was carried and
the application was approved subject to the following conditions:

Approved Plans

1 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the

following list of approved plans:

i. Site Location Plan Drawing No. APP206-04 received 27 September 2018

ii. Planning Layout Drawing No. APP206-01 Rev E received 22 November 2018

iii. Materials Dispersion Layout Drawing No. APP206-07 Rev C received 22
November 2018

iv. Residential landscaping details Drawing Nos. 18-017-03 Rev C, 18-017-04
Rev C,18-017-05 Rev C received 6 December 2018



Vi.

Vii.

viii.

Xi.

Xii.

Xiii.

Pond landscaping details Drawing Nos. 18-017-10 and 18-017-11 received 23
October 2018

Tree Survey and Constraints Plan Drawing Nos. 18-017-02 received 27th
September 2018 and 18-017-12, 18-017-13 received 23rd October 2018
Proposed Finished Floor Levels Drawing No. E3714/600 Rev B received 22
November 2018

Vehicle Access for Fire Appliances Drawing No. APP206-42 Rev C received
22 November 2018

ix. Refuse Collection Plan Drawing No. APP206-06 Rev C received 22

November 2018

Proposed Surface Finishes Plan Drawing No. E3714/770 Rev E received 6
December 2018

Drainage Strategy Plan - Sheet 1 Drawing No. E3714/510 Rev B received 22
November 2018

Drainage Strategy Plan - Sheet 2 Drawing No. E3714/511 Rev B received 22
November 2018

Floor and elevations plans Drawing Nos: 1906/Z9/PL.1, D1906/Z9/PL.6,
NB51/Z9/PL.1, NB51/Z9/PL.2, NB51/Z9/PL.3, PT43/Z29/PL.1, PT43/Z9/PL.5,
ND43/Z9/PL.1, ND43/Z9/PL.2, ND43/Z9/PL.3, PD49/Z9/PL.1, PD49/Z9/PL.2,
PD49/Z9/PL.3, PD49/Z9/PL.4, PT42/Z9/PL.1, PT42/Z9/PL.5, PA44/Z9/PL .1,
PA44/29/PL.2, PA44/Z9/PL.2.5, PA44/Z9/PL.3, PA44/Z9/PL.4, PB33-
G/Z9/PL.1, PB33-G/Z9/PL.2, PB33-G/Z9/PL.4, PA34/Z9/PL.1, PA34/Z9/PL.2,
PA34/Z9/PL.4, AA43/Z9/PL.1, AA43/Z9/PL.2, AA31/Z29/PL.1, AA31/Z9/PL.2,
AA23/Z9/PL.1 and AA23/Z9/PL.2 received 22 November 2018

Unless otherwise required by another condition of this permission.

Before the Development is Commenced

2

Before the development hereby permitted is commenced, all existing trees
shown to be retained on the following drawings shall have been fenced off to the
limit of their branch spread in accordance with BS 5837:

- Drawing No. 18-017-02 received 27 September 2018
- Drawing No. 18-017-012 received 23 October 2018
- Drawing No. 18-017-013 received 23 October 2018

No works including:

i.
ii.
iii.
iv.

removal of earth,

storage of materials,
vehicular movements or
siting of temporary buildings

shall be permitted within these protected areas.

During Building Works

3

No development consisting of construction of the highways proposed for

adoption, as well as any shared private roads/drives and foot/ cycle paths shall
be commenced until full engineering, drainage, street lighting and construction
details of these works have been submitted to and approved in writing by the
local planning authority. The development shall be constructed in accordance
with the approved details



Following the implementation of the surface water attenuation ponds, all soft
landscape works shall have been carried out before the end of the first
planting/seeding season in accordance with the approved soft landscaping
details as shown on the following:

i. Drawing No. 18-017-10 received 23 October 2018
ii. Drawing No. 18-017-11 received 23 October 2018

The development hereby approved shall be carried out in accordance with the
following approved surface and foul water drainage details:

- Drainage Strategy Technical Note 1 ref: E3714/TN1/tjiw/21112018 received 22
November 2018

- Drainage Strategy Plan sheet 1 of 2 ref: E3714/510/B received 22 November
2018

- Drainage Strategy Plan sheet 2 of 2 ref: E3714/511/B received 22 November
2018

The development hereby approved shall be carried out in accordance with the
recommendations contained within the following reports:

- Badger mitigation report ref: 17-1039.02 received 27th September 2018

- Preliminary Ecological Appraisal and Confidential Badger Survey Report
received 27th September 2018

- Preliminary Ecological Appraisal ref: 17-1039.03 received 23rd October 2018

The development hereby approved shall be carried out in accordance with the
recommendations contained within the following reports:

- Phase | Site Appraisal ref: GRM/P8211/DS.1 Rev C received 22 November
2018
- Phase Il Site Appraisal ref: GRM/P8211/F.1 received 22 November 2018

Before the works to provide the drainage ponds hereby permitted are
commenced, a plan indicating the heights, positions, design, materials and type
of any safety fencing around the ponds and any boundary treatment to the north
of the pond area shall have been submitted to and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority.

Before the Development is Occupied

9

10

No dwelling shall be occupied until details of the timetable for and any phasing of
the implementation for the drainage scheme have been submitted and approved
by the Local Planning Authority. The drainage scheme shall be implemented in
strict accordance with any such details as may be approved.

Before each dwelling hereby approved is occupied, all hard landscape works
associated with the dwelling or its access shall be carried out in accordance with
the approved hard landscaping details as shown on Drawing No. APP206-01
Rev E received 22 November 2018.



11

12

13

14

15

16

17

Before each dwelling hereby approved is occupied, the external elevations of
that dwelling shall have been completed using only the materials stated on
Drawing No. APP206-07 Rev C received 22 November 2018.

Prior to the occupation of each dwelling the works to provide the boundary
treatments for that dwelling shall have been completed in accordance with the
details as shown on Drawing No. APP206-01 Rev E received 22 November
2018.

Before any dwelling hereby permitted is occupied, the finished floor levels for that
building shall have been constructed in accordance with the approved details
shown on Drawing No. E3714/600 Rev B received 22 November 2018.

Before any part of the drainage ponds hereby permitted are brought into use, any
works to provide the safety fencing around the ponds and any boundary
treatment to the north of the pond area shall have been completed in accordance
with the approved details.

The foot/ cycle paths as shown on the following plans shall be completed in
accordance with the details approved by condition 3 of this permission before
occupation of the 50th dwelling:

i. Drawing No. 18-017-10 received 23 October 2018
ii. Drawing No. 18-017-04 Rev C received 6 December 2018
iii. Drawing No. 18-017-05 Rev C received 6 December 2018

No dwelling shall be occupied until details of the proposed arrangements for
future management and maintenance of the proposed streets and foot/ cycle
paths within the development have been submitted to and approved by the Local
Planning Authority. The streets shall be maintained in accordance with the
agreed details.

Before each dwelling (or other development as specified) is occupied the roads
and/or footways providing access to that dwelling, for the whole of its frontage,
from an existing public highway, shall be constructed in accordance with the
approved details, less the carriageway and footway surface courses.

The carriageway and footway surface courses shall be completed within three
months from the date upon which the erection is commenced of the penultimate
dwelling.

Ongoing Conditions

18

19

Within a period of five years from the first occupation of the final dwelling/unit of
the development hereby permitted, any trees or plants provided as part of the
approved soft landscaping scheme, die or become, in the opinion of the Local
Planning Authority, seriously damaged or defective, shall be replaced in the first
planting season following any such loss with a specimen of the same size and
species as was approved in condition above unless otherwise agreed by the
Local Planning Authority.

Following the occupation of the last dwelling, all soft landscape works shall have
been carried out before the end of the first planting/seeding season in

10



(b)

accordance with the approved soft landscaping details as shown on the
following:

i Drawing No. 18-017-03 Rev C received 6 December 2018
ii. Drawing No. 18-017-04 Rev C received 6 December 2018
iii.  Drawing No. 18-017-05 Rev C received 6 December 2018

13:40 — Councillor lan Stokes left the meeting and did not return

Application ref: S18/2003

Description: Erection of single storey side and rear extensions and detached
garage

Location: 21 Village Street, Frognall, Lincolnshire, PE6 8RS

Decision:

To grant the application subject to conditions.

Noting comments made during the public speaking session by:
Against Julie Farley

Together with:

e An objection from Deeping St. James Parish Council

e No objection from Lincolnshire County Council Highways and SUDS
Support

e 5 representations received as a result of public consultation

e Provisions within the National Planning Policy Framework and the
South Kesteven Core Strategy and supplementary planning documents

e Site visit observations

e Comments made by members at the meeting

It was proposed, seconded and agreed that the application be approved for
the summary of reasons set out in the case officer’s report and subject also to
the following conditions:

Time Limit for Commencement

1 The development hereby permitted shall be commenced before the
expiration of three years from the date of this permission.

Approved Plans

2 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with
the following list of approved plans:

i. Proposed elevations - dwg no. SW/11/A - received 08/10/18
ii. Proposed ground floor plan - dwg no. SW/10A - 08/10/18

11



Unless otherwise required by another condition of this permission.
Before the Development is Occupied

3 The storage container located in the front garden shall cease to be used
and be removed within 1 calendar month following the substantial
completion of the approved detached garage.

4 Before any part of the development hereby permitted is occupied/brought
into use, the external elevations shall have been completed using only the
materials stated in the planning application forms unless otherwise agreed
in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

5 Before any construction work above ground is commenced, details of the
new boundary hedge planting shall have been submitted to and approved
in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Details shall include:

i. planting plans;
ii. written specifications (including cultivation and other operations
associated with hedge establishment);
iii. schedules of plants, noting species, plant sizes and proposed
numbers/densities where appropriate;
Ongoing Conditions
6 The new section of boundary hedge shall be planted in the first planting
season following the substantial completion of the approved garage, and
shall be allowed to grow to a height of at least 2m. The hedge shall be
retained as such thereafter unless the garage is removed.
Application ref: S17/1900
Description: Residential development of up to 35 dwellings, associated
estate roads, open space and Sustainable Drainage System (outline)
Location: Old Langtoft Gravel Pit, land to the south of Stowe Road, Langtoft
Decision:

To grant the application subject to conditions and completion of a
Section 106 Agreement.

Noting comments made during the public speaking session by:
Applicant’s Agent Robbie Doughty
Together with:

e Comments from Heritage Lincolnshire

12



52.

e Comments from the SKDC Arboricultural Consultant

e A request for a Section 106 contribution from Lincolnshire County
Council Education and Cultural Services

e No objection subject to conditions from the Environment Agency

e Comments and a request for conditions from Lincolnshire Wildlife Trust

Affordable housing provision of 35% as set out by the SKDC Affordable

Housing Officer

A request for a Section 106 contribution from NHS England

Comments and a requested condition from Anglian Water Services

No comments from Natural England

Comments from the Welland and Deeping Internal Drainage Board

Objection and comments from Langtoft Parish Council

No objection subject to conditions from Lincolnshire County Council

Highways and SUDS Support

A requested condition from SKDC’s Environmental Protection Services

¢ No mineral safeguarding objection from Lincolnshire County Council
Minerals and Waste Planning

e Comments from Lincolnshire Fire and Rescue

e Confirmation from the applicant that it is intended that the estate roads
will be adopted by Lincolnshire County Council

e 13 representations received as a result of public consultation

¢ Provisions within the National Planning Policy Framework and the
South Kesteven Core Strategy and supplementary planning documents

e Site visit observations

e Comments made by members at the meeting

It was proposed, seconded and agreed that the application be approved for
the reasons set out in the case officer’s report and subject to the conditions
set out on pages 51 to 55 of the case officer’s report subject to the omission of
Condition 16 and the addition of a Condition relating to the provision of a fire
hydrant and subject also to prior completion of a Section 106 agreement to
secure the requirements specified in the additional items paper, which was
issued on Friday 11 January 2019. Provided that if the Section 106
Agreement has not been completed within 6 weeks of the date of this meeting
and the Head of Development Management, after consultation with the
Chairman or Vice Chairman of the Development Management Committee,
considers there are no extenuating circumstances which would justify an
extension (or further extension) of time, the Head of Development
Management be authorised to refuse the application on the basis that the
necessary infrastructure or community contributions essential to make the
development acceptable have not been forthcoming.

CLOSE OF MEETING

The meeting was closed at 14:56.

13



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 5a

JJ S17/2155 Target Decision Date: 22nd February 2018
Committee Date: 5 February 2019

Applicant Oldrid & Co. Ltd Oldrid & Co. Ltd 11 Strait Bargate Boston
Lincolnshire PE21 6UF

Agent Ms Angela Smedley Fisher German LLP The Estates Office
Norman Court Ashby De La Zouch LE65 2UZ

Proposal Outline planning permission for the erection of a Designer Outlet

Centre of up to 20,479 sqm (GEA) of floorspace comprising retail
units (A1), restaurants and cafes (A3), and storage. Additional
large goods retail (5,574 sqm GEA), garden centre (5,521 sqm
GEA) and external display area for garden centre (1,393 sqm),
tourist information and visitor centre, training academy, leisure unit
and offices including high-tech hub/start-up offices. Demolition of
existing garden centre and sales area and existing warehouse.
Improvements to existing Downtown Grantham store elevations.
Reconfigured car parking and provision of new multi-storey car
park. Increased coach parking. Access improvements, drainage
works, hard and soft landscaping and all ancillary works. All
matters reserved with the exception of access.

Location Downtown Garden Centre Old Great North Road Great Gonerby
Lincolnshire NG32 2AB

Application Type Outline Planning Permission with EIA

Parish(es) Great Gonerby Parish Council

Allington Parish Council
Sedgebrook Parish Council
Barrowby Parish Council

Foston Parish Council

Marston Parish Council

Belton & Manthorpe Parish Council

Reason for Referral to | This application is for a major retail development and includes a
Committee S106 planning obligation

Recommendation That the application is:- Recommended for approval subject to the
completion of a Section 106 planning obligation and providing that
the Secretary of State does not call the application in for
determination

Report Author Justin Johnson - Planning Operations Lead

01476 406080 Ext: 6392

j.johnson@southkesteven.gov.uk

Report Reviewed By Sylvia Bland — Head of Development Management

01476 406080 Ext: 6388

S.Bland@southkesteven.gov.uk

Key Issues

Principle of Development

Loss of Employment Land

Retail Impact

Socio Economic Considerations
Visual Impact

Highway Safety Historic Environment
Residential Amenity

Ecology

Design

15


mailto:j.johnson@southkesteven.gov.uk
mailto:S.Bland@southkesteven.gov.uk

Crime Prevention
Fire Safety

Noise

Air and Water Quality
S106 Contributions

Technical Documents Submitted with the Application

Environmental Statement and Appendices
Non-Technical Summary of the Environmental Statement
Supporting Plans

Transport Assessment

Travel Plan

Design and Access Statement

Draft Heads of Terms

Employment Land Statement

Planning Statement

Retail Impact Assessment
Socio-economic Impact Statement
Statement of Community Involvement
Sustainability Statement

16



K eF
tc
nd
QA=)
Gl Lo
m
Hunt nthan Noftk
o
Pasgfure Fj
Gone by
0 Ry i
&l
senypir
Shaduwo
WindqTurbifie 4

LT

MP,

“wonerby Moor

MP,

ok Cl

ication)

Key

7

Y Application
\\ Boundary




EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

This is a complex major application that proposes the creation of a Designer Outlet Centre,
with an amount of associated retail and leisure focused development including additional
car parking, on brownfield land at the existing Downtown retail site which is located off the
Old Great North Road at Great Gonerby. The application is in outline and because of its
scale and complexity it is also accompanied by an associated EIA.

The applicants propose that the Designer Outlet Centre (DOC) would be a Tier 1 premium
operation that would seek to attract upscale brands to the location and they are suggesting
conditions and obligations which are intended to ensure that the DOC is of the intended
quality. Because of the specialized nature of the material planning considerations the
Council, acting in respect of its role as the Local Planning Authority, has retained expert
retail and legal advisors to support its consideration and determination of this application.

Planning permission was granted in April 2018 for a Tier 1 Designer Outlet Village by Rioja
Developments on land to the south of Grantham and that permission is a material
consideration in the determination of this current proposal.

A considerable number of representations, both in support of and objecting to the
proposals, have been received including a number of objections from nearby local
authorities and retail operators. Neither Highways England or Lincolnshire Highways have
objected.

The key planning considerations are:

Potential retail impact on vitality and viability of nearby town and city centres
Cumulative retail impact with the Rioja DOC

Loss of employment land

Socio-economic considerations

Landscape and visual impact

Transport and access

Ecology, drainage and other considerations

Mitigation measures via planning condition or s106 obligation

Taking into account all of the conclusions arrived at regarding the material planning
considerations, the planning balance concludes that whilst the development would not be
in accordance with the development plan taken as a whole and there are some identified
issues regarding the anticipated impact of the proposal; the proposal would deliver
significant benefits to the wider area, to Grantham and its economy. Therefore on that basis
it is considered that the application can be supported.

The application is recommended for approval subject to the Secretary of State, upon

referral, not calling in the application for determination and subject to the completion of a
related S106 Planning Obligation Agreement.

18



1.0

1.1

1.2

1.2.1

1.2.2

1.2.3

1.2.4

1.2.5

1.2.6

1.2.7

1.2.8

Description of proposal

The application is a major outline planning application accompanied by an Environmental
Statement for the development of a Designer Outlet Shopping Centre (DOC), large goods
retail unit, replacement garden centre, tourist information centre, training academy, leisure
unit, offices, multi storey car park and associated development on the existing Downtown
site at Occupation Lane, Gonerby Moor, Grantham.

The proposed development includes the following elements:

Retention and Demolition

e The existing Downtown Grantham / Boundary Mill retail store and café, totalling
18,580sgm will remain and its floorspace is excluded from the application site.
Improvements to the south, south-eastern and south-western elevations are however
proposed as part of the application. The application redline site boundary is set back
into the fabric of the building allowing for the proposed upgrades to be included within
this application.

¢ The existing distribution warehouse and garden centre will be demolished. (The garden
centre will be replaced with a small unit as detailed below)

Designer Outlet Centre (discounted goods)

e The erection of a Designer Outlet Centre comprising of up to 20,479 square metres of
gross external area (GEA) / 17,704 square metres gross internal area (GIA) of
floorspace across 107 units comprising:

o 15,305sgm (GIA) of retail (Class A1) floorspace
o 1,252sgm (GIA) of Café/restaurant (Class A3) floorspace
o 1,147sgm (GIA) of storage

Large Goods Retail (full price goods)
. A new Large goods ‘Downtown@Home’ flagship store comprising:
o 5,574sqm (GEA) over two storeys

Garden Centre (full price goods)
e The existing garden centre will be demolished and replaced with a new, smaller, garden
centre consisting of:
o 5,521sqm floorspace over two storeys
o 1,393sqm outdoor display area

Tourist Information and Visitor Centre
¢ A Tourist Information and Visitor Centre will provide information to visitors to the site and
encourage them to visit Grantham and surrounding attractions:
o 62sgm floorspace

Training Academy
e A training academy facility will be provided to help deliver learning and development
programmes in association with local educational establishments and businesses. The
developer is working with Grantham College to assist in the delivery of skills training at
the proposed venue. The unit will comprise:
o 439sgm floorspace

Leisure
e An indoor leisure unit (Class D2) to complement the retail offer on-site providing visitors
the opportunity to combine shopping and leisure in a single destination.
o 2,096sgm floorspace

High Tech Hub / Incubator Start-up Offices
e A range of small office units (Class B1) are proposed above the large goods retail unit.
These would be start-up offices for new and small businesses.
o 2,455sgm floorspace

19



1.2.9

1.2.10

1.2.11

1.3

1.4

1.5

1.6

1.7

Offices
e Additional offices will also be provided above the garden centre unit.
o 2,796sgm floorspace

Access
e The proposed development will use the existing vehicular access points to the site.
However the access strategy for the proposed development includes:

o The realignment of the existing eastern access off Occupation Lane, so that
priority is given to vehicles entering/exiting the site with the southern Occupation
Lane arm giving-way.

o Access will also be available from the northern entrance, which takes the form of
a roundabout junction. This provides access to the site from the A1 southbound
on-slip and Allington Lane East.

o The main access point for deliveries to the proposed garden centre and retail
units will be via the existing service road off Palmer Road located to the south of
the site.

o The service yards for the retail units towards the north of the site will be accessed
via the roundabout to the north of the site.

Parking

e The proposed masterplan indicates a total of 1,979 parking spaces on site comprising:
959 surface car parking spaces

1,020 multi —storey car parking spaces (provided across four levels).

11 coach parking spaces

Cycle spaces

New bus stop to facilitate an enhanced bus service

Electric vehicle charging spaces will also be provided

O 0O O O oo

All matters are reserved for subsequent approval apart from access, however, parameter
plans have been submitted showing the indicative scale and heights for the proposed
buildings. Building heights will vary across the site up to a maximum of 20 metres.

On a day to day basis the proposed Designer Outlet Centre would trade as per the following:

Monday 9:30am — 7pm
Tuesday 9:30am — 7pm
Wednesday 9:30am — 7pm
Thursday 9:30am — 9pm
Friday 9:30am — 7pm
Saturday 9:00am — 6pm
Sunday 10:00am — 4pm

It is also proposed that the A1 units would be able to trade until 10pm on up to 12 occasions
in a calendar year. This would normally be in association with seasonal activities (such as
Christmas and Halloween etc.)

The applicants have indicated that the proposed Designer Outlet Centre (DOC) would be
provided by a partnership between Oldrids and Freeport Retail. The term DOC refers to a
managed, purpose-built shopping centre development where a range of quality brands
operate selling products and merchandise at discounts to regular prices. Often this may
incorporate excess stock, discontinued lines, end-of-season products and imperfect / factory
seconds. The applicants have indicated that they are seeking to develop a premium Tier 1
DOC which would seek to attract upscale brands to the site. The development could
therefore potentially attract visitors from beyond Grantham and its immediate hinterland.

The DOC would sit alongside the existing Downtown Store, replacement garden centre and
the proposed large goods retail unit which will sell goods at full prices. Whilst the existing
Downtown store includes the sale of discounted goods within the Boundary Mills section of
the store the only restriction on the use of the building for retail purposes is that it can only
be used for the sale of non-food products

20



1.8

2.0

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6

Some of the plans and supporting information submitted with the application refer to an
aspirational ‘Northern Gateway’ to Grantham which include a potential Downtown Grantham
Railway Station and a Park & Ride area. However it is important to note that these
aspirations do not form part of the development being considered under this application and
should not be afforded any weight in the determination of the application.

Description of site

The site is located on a brownfield site within an existing well-established retail and
employment area at Gonerby Moor approximately 3 miles north-west of Grantham and 1.3
mile north of Great Gonerby. The site which was considered as part of the Environmental
Statement measures 10.26 hectares. This differs slightly from the planning application site
which specifically excludes the Downton Grantham Superstore and measures 9.24
hectares. The application site comprises the area of land around the existing Downtown
Grantham retail superstore as well as the adjacent garden centre and distribution
warehouse, associated hardstanding and parking areas.

The site is currently designated as part of a wider employment allocation, Policy SAP5 / ExE
LSC1, which comprises a triangle of land south/west of the Great North Road (B1174), west
of the railway line and east of the A1. The site covered by the allocation is occupied by
various companies including a Travelodge and petrol filling station, the Downtown /
Boundary Mill Superstore and garden centre, some warehousing as well as some vacant
land, which is yet to be developed. There are also three residential properties within close
proximity of the site.

Planning permission was granted in September 2017 for the erection of two units for the
manufacturing of pre-cast concrete and pre-fabricated products and associated offices
(Ref:S17/0158) on the allocated employment land located to the east of the application site
adjacent to the B1174 Great North Road. The permission has not yet been implemented.

To the south east lies a small component plastic manufacturer, a door supplier and
manufacturer, and a furniture store. To the south lies Brakes PLC, with Northgate Vehicle
Hire and Treasure Transport beyond. To the east of the site on Occupation Road is
Tegometall and Lincolnshire County Council’'s waste Transfer site, beyond which there is a
railway line, approximately 200 metres from the sites boundary.

There are multiple points of access to the site including:
a) Occupation Lane, via the B1174 Great North Road/Newark Hill;

b) Access slip road from the A1 South slip road via Gonerby Moor roundabout;

c) Separate access is provided to the site via the B1174 with links to the Moto Service
Station and Travelodge hotel; and

d) Service access for the garden centre is taken from Palmer Road.

There are a number of public footpaths and a bridleway in close proximity to the site. Great
Gonerby Public Footpath No.2 runs parallel to the site’s southern boundary adjacent to
Palmer Road. There is also a Public Bridleway which runs along the western side of the A1.

21



3.0 Relevant History

Reference

S17/1626

S$16/1909

S15/1498

S15/0064

S13/1722

S$13/1043

S$13/0241

S13/0196

S$11/0678

S09/1871

S09/1870

S07/1187

S02/1682

S01/0866

S01/0542

S01/0212

Proposal

EIA Scoping Opinion for a Designer
Outlet Centre

Siting of Ice Rink and chillers

Use of land for car washing and erection
of canopy and portable building

Demolition of brick building with display
conservatories attached

Erection of 4 internally illuminated fascia
signs

Non material amendments to S13/0196
(Amendments to steel and wall cladding
details and removal of old plant screen on
the roof)

New signs to proposed new cladding on
walls stating name of stores and erection
of flag

Re-building of entrances and re-cladding
roof and walls including cladding parapet
wall

External alterations to allow sub-division
into two units

Formation of farmshop/coffee tea room
and erection of orangery and formation of
doorway

Variation of Condition 2 of Planning
Permission S99/0560 to allow storage
and sales of caravans, motor homes and
associated products

Variation of condition 2 (sale of garden
related products only) on p/p S99/0560

Conservatory display area
Change of use of part of 15t floor coffee
shop to travel consultancy bureau

Extension of open display area to garden
centre

Extension to garden centre building
22

Decision

Opinion
Issued

Approved
Conditionally

Approved
Conditionally

Details  Not
Required

Approved
Conditionally

Approved

Approved
Conditionally

Approved
Conditionally

Approved
Conditionally
Approved
Conditionally

Approved
Conditionally

Refused
Approved
Conditionally

Approved
Conditionally

Approved

Approved
Conditionally

Date

28/09/2017

07/10/2016

04/09/2015

05/02/2015

05/09/2013

17/05/2013

18/03/2013

14/03/2013

02/06/2011

01/06/2010

05/01/2010

15/10/2007

12/02/2003

20/08/2001

18/06/2001

02/04/2001



S01/0026 Extension to existing garden centre Approved 13/02/2001

Conditionally

S00/0833 Fascia sign advertisements Approved 26/09/2000

S00/0832 Customer entrance/exit building Approved 26/09/2000
Conditionally

S00/0101 Creation of car park and access Approved 21/09/2000
Conditionally

S00/0488 Alterations to form exit to garden centre Approved 12/06/2000
building Conditionally

S99/0560 Erection of garden centre Approved 28/07/1999
Conditionally

SK.98/0190 Garden Centre Approved 26/10/1998
Conditionally

SK.97/1193 Erection of warehouse Approved 27/01/1998
Conditionally

SK.97/1192 Alterations to south elevation of retail Approved 27/01/1998
premises Conditionally

SK.97/0708 Industrial development (warehousing) Approved 16/09/1997
Conditionally

SK.97/0197 llluminated site signs Approved 22/04/1997

SK.95/798(18890) Change of use of land to car/coach Approved 24/10/1995
parking Conditionally

SK.95/982(18884)  Replacement signage Approved 24/10/1995
Conditionally

SK.95/797(18888)  New entrance canopies to shop (x2) Approved 03/10/1995
Conditionally

SK.95/816(18883)  Additional signage to retail unit Refused 03/10/1995

SK.94/1364 Change of use of part of 1t floor Approved 24/01/1995

stockroom to retail and additional new Conditionally
store entrance

SK.94/0349 Fascia sign advertisements Approved 10/05/1994

SK.93/1201 Advertisements (fascia signs) Approved 04/01/1994

SK.93/1149 Site access road, drainage system and Approved 04/01/1994
lagoons for surface water Conditionally

SK.93/0829 Non-illuminated advertisements Refused 05/10/1993

SK.92/0619 Amendment to condition 2 from previous Approved 04/08/1992

approval (37/1076/91 — Trading hours for Conditionally
Sunday Market)

SK.1076/91(18669) Change of use of superstore rear car park Approved 10/12/1991

23



SK.947/90(18671)

SK.916/90(18670)

SK.515/90(18442)

SK.480/89(18443)

SK.2181/88(18673)

SK.2266/88(18441)

SK.1380/87(18444)

to Sunday Market

Access, estate road, infrastructure and
landscaping for industrial warehouse park

Change of use of part of furniture retail
area to Café, Downtown Furniture
Superstore

Advertisement

Non-illuminated flat surface mounted
signs

Industrial and warehousing development

Externally illuminated fascia and non-
illuminated sign

Erection of furniture retail warehouse

Conditionally

Approved
Conditionally

Approved
Conditionally
Approved
Conditionally

Approved
Conditionally

Approved

Conditionally
Refused

Approved

06/11/1990

07/08/1990

26/06/1990

06/06/1989

27/02/1989

14/02/1989

27/05/1988

3.1

4.0

4.1

4.2

4.3

Conditionally

Planning permission was granted on 6™ April 2018 for a similar proposal on land off
Tollemache Road North, Spittlegate, Grantham for a Design Outlet Village (application
reference 17/1262). This application is a material consideration in the determination of this
current proposal.

Policy Considerations

Section 38 (6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires that proposals
are determined in accordance with the development plan unless material considerations
indicate otherwise. Other material considerations to be taken into account include the
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and associated Planning Policy Guidance.

Paragraph 11 of the NPPF states plans and decisions should apply a presumption in favour
of sustainable development. For decision-taking this means:

e approving development proposals that accord with an up-to-date development plan
without delay; or

e where there are no relevant development plan policies, or the policies which are
most important for determining the application are out-of-date, granting permission
unless:

i. the application of policies in this Framework that protect areas or assets of
particular importance provides a clear reason for refusing the development
proposed or

ii. anyadverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh
the benefits, when assessed against the policies in this Framework taken as a
whole.

National Planning Policy Framework — July 2018 (NPPF)
Section 2 — Achieving sustainable development

Section 4 — Decision-making

Section 6 - Building a strong, competitive economy

Section 7 - Ensuring the vitality of town centres

Section 9 - Promoting sustainable transport

Section 11- Making effective use of land

24



4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

Section 12 — Achieving well-designed places

Section 14 - Meeting the challenge of climate change, flooding and coastal change
Section 15 - Enhancing the natural environment

Section 16 — Conserving and enhancing the historic environment

Section 17 - Facilitating the sustainable use of minerals

The Development Plan comprises the South Kesteven Core Strategy 2010 (CS), South
Kesteven Site Allocation and Policies Development Plan Document 2014 (SAP), saved
Local Plan Policies 1995 and Lincolnshire Minerals and Waste Core Strategy 2016.
Significant weight can be attributed to policies contained in the Core Strategy, SAP and the
Lincolnshire Minerals and Waste Core Strategy which comply with the NPPF. 14 policies in
the 1995 Local Plan were saved in 2007 and are read alongside the Core Strategy. The
1995 Local Plan is largely out of date; however, appropriate weight should be given to those
saved policies which are considered to be consistent with the NPPF.

South Kesteven is in the process of preparing a new Local Plan to replace the adopted Core
Strategy. The emerging Local Plan has recently been submitted for examination. It is
relevant to note at this point that the applicants have objected to policy E3 of the emerging
Local Plan which relates to the protection of the existing employment site at Gonerby Moor
and includes the application site. Limited weight has been attached to the emerging Local
Plan policies as the plan preparation is not sufficiently advanced and there are sitill
outstanding objections to the relevant policies.

Submission Draft Local Plan

Policy SD1: Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development
Policy SD2: The Principles of Sustainable Development in South Kesteven
Policy SP1: Spatial Strategy

Policy SP2: Settlement Hierarchy

Policy E3: Protection of Existing Employment Sites

Policy E4: Expansion of Existing Businesses

Policy E5: Loss of Employment Land and Buildings to Non-Employment Uses
Policy E7: Other Employment Proposals

Policy E8: Visitor Economy

Policy EN1: Landscape Character

Policy EN2: Protecting Biodiversity and Geodiversity

Policy EN4: Pollution Control

Policy EN5: Reducing the Risk of Flooding

Policy EN6: The Historic Environment

Policy DE1: Promoting Good Quality Design

Policy SB1: Sustainable Building

Policy GR2: Sustainable Transport in Grantham

Policy GR4: Grantham Town Centre Policy

Policy ID1: Infrastructure for Growth

Policy ID2: Transport and Strategic Transport Infrastructure

South Kesteven District Council Core Strategy (2010)
Policy SP1 - Spatial Strategy

Policy SP3 - Sustainable Integrated Transport

Policy SP4 - Developer Contributions

Policy EN1 - Protection and Enhancement

Policy EN2 - Reduce the Risk of Flooding

Policy EN4 - Sustainable Construction and Design

Policy E1 - Employment Development

Policy E2 - Retail Development

Site Allocation and Policies Development Plan Document (2014)

Policy SD1 - Sustainable development

Policy SAP5 - Locally important employment site — EXE LSC1 Gonerby Moor, Grantham
Policy SAP8 — Town Centre Opportunity Areas

25



4.9 South Kesteven Local Plan (1995)
Policy E1 — Employment Allocation (Grantham)
Policy S1 — Town Centre Shopping Areas (Grantham)
Policy S2 — New Shopping Development in and Around Town Centres (Grantham)

410 Lincolnshire Minerals and Waste Local Plan
MWS8 - Safeguarding Waste Management Sites
SL3 — Waste Site and Area Allocations

411 Planning Obligations Supplementary Planning Document (SPD)

This document provides the framework for the consideration of potential planning

obligations.

5.0 SKDC Corporate Priorities

Growth - a growing population and a growing economy creates jobs, secures infrastructure

and attracts investment

6.0 Representations Received

North  Kesteven District
Council

Newark & Sherwood District
Council

Melton Borough Council

Nottinghamshire County
Council

Peterborough City Council

No objections to the proposed development.

Raise strong objections to the proposed development at
Downtown Garden Centre raising concerns that cumulatively
the Downtown proposal with that of the recently approved
Designer Outlet Village (DOV) at the King 31 site could have
significant adverse impacts on the retail vitality of the Newark
District Centre

Newark and Sherwood District Council formally request
attendance by both an Officer and elected Member to speak at
South Kesteven District Council's Planning Committee to set
out the reasons Newark and Sherwood District Council are
objecting to the scheme (due to the retail impact on Newark
town centre as per advice set out by Carter Jonas as retail
consultant to Newark and Sherwood District Council). (See
Appendix A for a full copy of the comments)

No objections.

NCC have reviewed the TA attached to this application. The
impacts in Nottinghamshire will be principally be on the A52
and the A1, both of which are trunk roads and managed and
operated by Highways England, NCC trust that any matters
arising on the SRN will have been satisfactorily addressed by
Highways England. There is not likely to be any discernible
impact on the local highway network in Nottinghamshire given
the distance involved and the multiple routes available for
traffic to gain access to the trunk road network when travelling
to and from the Downton site.

NCC has no additional comments to make on the amended
plans.

Peterborough City Council object to this proposal, as it would
have an impact on the viability Peterborough City Centre, and
could have an impact on future proposals for the City Centre
redevelopment allocated in the Local Plan. (See Appendix B

26



Anglian Water Services

Historic England

Heritage Trust
Lincolnshire

of

City Of Lincoln Council

Crime Prevention
Advisor

Design

for a full copy of the comments)

Anglian Water has advised that the development will lead to an
unacceptable risk of flooding downstream. A drainage strategy
will need to be prepared in consultation with Anglian Water to
determine mitigation measures. Anglian Water has therefore
requested a condition requiring the drainage strategy covering
the issues to be agreed.

The surface water strategy/flood risk assessment submitted
with the planning application relevant to Anglian Water is
unacceptable. Anglian Water therefore recommend that the
applicant needs to consult with them and the Environment
Agency.

They have however indicated that these issues can be suitably
controlled by way of conditions being imposed on any grant of
planning permission.

Do not wish to offer any comments.

Advise that there is a low potential for archaeological remains
to be encountered during the development. Archaeological
investigation work is not required.

Have concerns that the development could be harmful to retail
trading in Lincoln. They argue that it would not be appropriate
for either of the proposed developments (this proposal or the
application for the Designer Outlet Village on the King 31 site)
to go ahead, and that it would certainly be unsustainable for
both proposals to go ahead together. Moreover, the
establishment of both proposals would significantly undermine
retailing in Grantham and would be to the detriment of
sustainable development and the wider growth of other centres
in the County of Lincolnshire.

They suggest that SKDC consider the cumulative impact of
both schemes upon the basis that they are both granted
permission. Similarly, they strongly advised SKDC to liaise with
the Planning Casework Service to establish whether the
Secretary of State would need to call-in the applications for
determination.

City Of Lincoln Council advise that if SKDC is minded to grant
planning permission for one of the proposals, they suggest that
it should be for amended proposals for Downtown. This stems
from the fact that those proposals would be in connection with
similar development and would be more sustainable in general
terms than the development to the south of Grantham. (See
Appendix C for a full copy of the comments)

Lincolnshire Police do not have any objections to this
development but make general recommendations in relation to
the safety and security of this development which applies to all
or any phases subject to amendments or variations.

27



Environmental Protection
Services (SKDC)

Cadent Gas Limited

Western Power Distribution

Highways England

Upper Witham Internal
Drainage Board

Welland & Deeping Internal
Drainage Board

Historic Buildings Advisor
(SKDC)

Environmental Protection has reviewed the documents in
respect of the application and has no further comments to
make

The apparatus that has been identified as being in the vicinity
of the proposed development is:

Low or Medium pressure (below 2 bar) gas pipes and
associated equipment. (As a result it is highly likely that there
are gas services and associated apparatus in the vicinity)

Above ground gas sites and equipment
No objections have been raised to the development.

Western Power Distribution have rights to retain electricity
cables over this land and their easement prevents the building
or altering of ground levels. Any alterations would therefore
require an application to Western Power Distribution.

Highways England has no objections to the amended
proposals subject to conditions being attached to any planning
permission that may be granted

The Board has no objection to the proposed development
provided it is constructed in accordance with the principles of
the Drainage Strategy.

No development should be commenced until the Local
Planning Authority, in consultation with the Lead Local Flood
Authority has approved a scheme for the provision,
implementation and future maintenance of a surface water
drainage system.

The site falls outside of both the Board's area and extended
area.

As part of the environmental statement a study area of 5km of
the site has been adopted. Belvoir Castle (Grade I) and its
registered park and gardens lie beyond this distance, but are
the only heritage assets beyond this threshold which are
affected by the proposed development in my opinion. This is
due to having a significance which is partly contributed to by
the landscape setting of the Belvoir Vale, with views from the
site towards the Castle and gardens and vice versa being
particularly important.

On the whole the Council’s Historic Building Advisor is in
agreement with the assessment submitted for the heritage
effects table, with all of the designated heritage assets having
a neutral effect rating. Where there are effects, these relate to
views mainly from the designated heritage asset towards the
site, where it forms part of the Belvoir Vale, e.g. views from
Allington Conservation Area or views from Barrowby

28



Lincolnshire County Council
- Footpaths Officers

Minerals And Waste
Planning (LCC)

Lincolnshire Fire & Rescue
Services

Natural England

Conservation Area. The views form part of a much wider
setting and the development blends in with the existing
development along this part of the A1 triangle and are
therefore of negligible concern in heritage terms.

However, for Belvoir Castle the Historic Buildings Advisor has
recommended that Melton District Council should be
consulted.

The proposed development layout affects Great Gonerby
Public Footpath No. 2.

In the absence of any further information, it is expected that the
definitive line and customary width of the path will not be
affected by any proposed development.

During any works allowed by this proposal, users of the Public
Right of Way should not be inconvenienced or exposed to
hazards by any such works.

The proposed development is located in close proximity to an
existing waste site (Grantham Waste Transfer Station - south
of Occupation Road) which is safeguarded by Policy W8
(Safeguarding Waste Management Sites) of the Lincolnshire
Minerals and Waste Local Plan: Core Strategy and
Development Management Policies, adopted June 2016.

This safeguarded waste site also sits within a larger area of
land allocated as a waste site in Policy SL3 of the Lincolnshire
Minerals and Waste Local Plan: Site Locations document,
adopted December 2017 (allocation reference WS17-SK
Vantage Park, Gonerby Moor). The Minerals and Waste
Planning Policy Team have therefore requested that
appropriate consideration is given to the need to safeguard
these existing and allocated waste sites in line with the
requirements of Policy W8.

Following the submission of additional information by the
applicant the Minerals and Waste Planning Policy Team has
confirmed that subject to the proposed acoustic glazing being
included in the design of the proposed training centre they
have no waste site safeguarding objections to the proposed
development.

Confirm that Lincolnshire Fire and Rescue Service has no
objections to the planning application. They have confirmed
that there is adequate water supplies with two hydrants in close
proximity to the premises (which should remain unaffected by
building works) as well as sufficient access for appliances. The
Fire and Rescue Service have also highlighted the need for the
development to comply will the relevant Building Regulations.

Based on the plans submitted, Natural England considers that

the proposed development will not have significant adverse
impacts on designated sites and has no objection.

29



Network  Rail -
Engineering

Allington Parish Council

Civil

Natural England's advice on other natural environment issues
is set out below:

Allington Meadows SSSI Site of Special Scientific Interest

Based on the plans submitted, Natural England considers that
the proposed development will not damage or destroy the
interest features for which the site has been notified and has
no objection for the following reasons:

- The Construction Environment Management Plan (CEMP)
proposed in the Environment Statement (P129) will prevent
adverse effects relating to contamination of the water
environment during the construction phase.

- The run-off from the Sustainable Drainage System (SuDS)
will be discharged into a beck as shown in Appendix 3 of the
Sustainable Drainage Statement (which is appendix 10.2 of the
Environmental Statement). This beck is not part of the
catchment for Allington Meadows and so the SSSI will not be
impacted by changes to water volume.

Network Rail notes from the Transport Assessment that
enhancements to links between the site and Grantham
Railway Station are proposed. Grantham Station is operated
and maintained by Virgin Trains East Coast who should also
be contacted in relation to this consultation in order that they
may provide comment
(niall.melvin@yvirgintrainseastcoast.com). It may be that
station enhancements (e.g. bus shelters, cycle storage etc.)
are appropriate to accommodate this aspect of the proposals.

The Parish Council has concerns that this development would
create high traffic levels, with the accompanying noise and
pollution that this would bring.

The highest predicted increase in traffic on any one link is 84%
on Allington Road East (Gonerby Lane).

Parish Councillors comment that providing appropriate
signage to guide traffic down the A52 and then down the A1 is
unlikely to make much impact. A lot of road users using sat-
nav devices, travelling to and from the A52, will undoubtedly
travel though Allington village regardless of advisory signage.

With an increase in traffic the condition of the roads in the area
would deteriorate even more. There is also a highway safety
issue as Allington with Sedgebrook Primary School is in very
close proximity to Gonerby Lane and at school times the roads
become single file due to parking.

The County Council’s publication "The 4th Long Term Vision
for Transport in Lincolnshire" comments upon "a well-managed
and safe road network to maximise the reliability of journeys
and reduce the impacts on communities”. It is questionable
whether this application fulfils this objective.

The Parish Council concludes that should this application be

30



Belton and  Manthorpe
Parish Council

Foston Parish

Great  Gonerby  Parish
Council

Sedgebrook Parish Council

approved it strongly requests restrictive ftraffic calming
measures for all roads which would be a route to the
development.

All the Councillors are concerned and worried about the
entry/exit, to/from the site from the east. People travelling from
the east will have to use A607 through Belton and Manthorpe,
and Belton Lane, Great Gonerby.

Belton Lane is quite unsuitable for the anticipated increase in
traffic flow, and will make this location a real road safety risk.
A607 junction with Belton Lane is an identified collision site,
and an increase in the traffic flow will heighten the risk at this
location.

Belton Lane in its present state is not suitable for any increase
[in] traffic flow. If traffic flow does increase it increases the risk
on this road in general and the junction (Belton Lane / A607) in
particular.

There is also concern that placing traffic lights at the junction
of Belton Lane/Newark Hill, Great Gonerby is creating an
unnecessary risk to motorists as the approach to this junction,
from the north will be blind and is on a national speed limit road.

Regarding the B1174/Belton Lane Junction, Tables 12,13 and
14 of the amended Transport Assessment states that this
junction is running at near capacity and is likely to fail in the
near future even without increased traffic from their
development. They propose a mitigation scheme in the form
of a three-arm signalled junction to alleviate the build-up of
traffic on Belton Lane, all this will do in our opinion is spread
the queues and hold ups over three lanes and cause a back
log of southbound traffic from the Occupation Lane roundabout
to the B1174/Belton Lane junction which is ludicrous and
please bear in mind that their Transport Assessment doesn’t
include Larkfleets development.

Foston Parish Council supports the application.

No objections with the development but Council has concerns
over the long term capacity of the B1174/ Belton Lane junction.
This junction is already overwhelmed and with this plan, the
linking of the Pennine Way and the proposed Manthorpe
development, this junction requires a complete redesign. This
needs to be considered alongside these other applications.

There are also concerns about traffic levels through the village,
traffic could be directed onto the A1.

With regard to this planning application the Parish Council is
grateful for opportunity to make further comment on the
additional revised proposals.

The Parish made a full response to this application in
November 2017 when it highlighted a number of concerns of

31



which the potential additional traffic using Allington Road was
the major one along with the inadequacies of the applicant's
Transport Assessment. In its summary the Parish concluded
that initial consultation response with the following: -

"The Parish Council would suggest that given the above and
the overall vagueness of the current document it is clear that
the applicant needs to carry out a far more encompassing
Transport Assessment and give careful consideration as to
how it might mitigate the issues that are likely to be caused by
an increased patronage to the site. If the applicant is unwilling
to do this or the Local Planning Authority unable to support the
Parish Council's suggestion, the Parish Council would wish to
record its objection to the proposal based on the likely highway
impacts both within the village itself as well as the adjoining
highway network.'

It is noted that the applicant has indeed updated their
Transport Assessment but unfortunately only to take account
of the now committed development related to the retail park
being promoted by the Buckminster Group. Whilst the
Transport Assessment makes a small mention of Allington
Road and 'robust' signing to direct visitors to the proposed
development via the A52 and A1 along with a note of having
met with local residents at Allington to reassure them of the
applicant’s abilities and desire to prevent additional traffic
using the road, it is noted that the application and supporting
documents make no attempt to model the likely traffic flows on
Allington Road and the potential impacts that these would have
in relation to overall traffic levels particularly at the junction of
Allington Road with the A52 at Sedgebrook. To highlight again
the Parish Council would again draw attention to the fact that
Allington Road has been subject to a recent comprehensive
traffic survey carried out by Lincolnshire Highways which has
shown that the road is already used by over 2000 vehicles a
day.

Whilst the Parish is supportive of the local opportunities that
the development may give rise to, given that the applicant has
failed in his latest amended submission to address the serious
concerns related to traffic that the Parish Council outlined in its
initial consultation response, the view of the Council is that it
formally objects to the proposals on the basis that the applicant
has failed to fully and satisfactorily demonstrate either the
potential impact of additional traffic that the development will
generate on all the local road network that will be impacted or
formally detailed any mitigation measures that would be
included in the planning application either via the relevant
planning condition or Section 278 Agreement.

Sedgebrook Parish Council have also commented on the
additional information received in relation to the planning
application. The comments raise concerns with the additional
transport information. And the final paragraph of the letter
states:

“In relation to the points made by the applicant it should be
noted that in Section 3.3.2. above there is reference to the
assignment presented in the TA to support the planning
application indicating that the level of ftraffic that would
potentially route through Allington is minimal. The Parish

32



LCC Highways & SuDS
Support

Environment Agency

7.0

7.1

7.2

would highlight that whilst the base data is accurate in that it
has identified present traffic movements the subsequent
modelling has assumed that vehicular traffic associate and
generated as a direct result of the development will follow the
A1/A52 and vice versa routes possibly assuming that the also
aforementioned signing scheme will be successful. The
modelling fails to take account of the attraction to drivers of the
‘short cut’ through Allington and Sedgebrook and the
increasing reliance upon satnav systems which will direct
vehicles through these villages as the shortest route.
Unfortunately, whilst capacity improvements at the A52/A1
junctions, signing schemes and routing instructions will be
welcomed they will not affect satnav operation and in the case
of signing strategies and routing instructions these are legally
unenforceable unless the signing strategy is backed up with
relevant highway prohibitions of access or similar Traffic
Regulation Orders. In view of the above the Parish formally
objects to the applicant’s proposals.”

The local highway authority has raised no objections to the
proposed development but has requested that the developer
enter into a planning obligation to secure improvements to the
existing Bus Services between the site and Grantham town
centre.

The highway authority have also requested that a planning
condition is also attached to any consent to secure the junction
improvements at Belton Lane and Newark Hill

The highway authority has also reviewed the objections made
by Rioja and confirm that they have no objections to the
proposal. Rioja raised concerns with the level of parking
proposed, however, the highway authority are of the view that
the level of parking is appropriate for the mix of uses proposed
and that there can be cross use of spaces (ie retail customers
will park in office spaces at the weekends).

No objections to the proposed development.

Representations as a Result of Publicity

This application has been advertised in accordance with the Council's Statement of

Community Involvement and a total of 272 representations have been received.

43 letters of representation raising concern/seeking further information have been received.

The points raised can be summarised as follows:

1.

2.

Concerns about increase in traffic that will be generated between the A52 and the
proposed development.
If the development is approved signage should be installed on the A52 directing traffic
away from the villages of Sedgebrook and Allington.
introduced in the villages to ensure that the route from the A52 to Downtown as a 'rat
run' would be rendered undesirable.
Whilst not objecting to the development itself and welcoming the improvements to retail
services | am extremely concerned about the how this development will adversely
impact on my family's life, namely through increase traffic, noise and air pollution.
Concerns about increase in traffic through Allington.

33

Traffic calming should be



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.
24.

25.

26.

As local residents we are already faced with roads covered in pot holes, the incredibly
poor condition of Gonerby Lane and the already dangerous narrowing hair pin bridge
along it, we already face damage to our cars because of these issues. Imagine how
much worse their condition will be if even more people use these roads or even cause
accidents? School buses use these roads on a twice daily basis and we cannot have
them in a worse condition.

Robust and enforceable measures must be used to protect the quality of life of Allington
residents and ensure traffic through the village is controlled. Examples would include
fixed penalty cameras.

The site is next to the A1 but there are no key East/West road connections close to the
development meaning there will be issues in managing traffic travelling from those
directions. The Traffic Assessment (TA) focuses on the immediate proximity of the site
but traffic issues exist slightly further away.

Eastbound traffic must travel through the busy A607/Belton Lane junction or through the
already congested Grantham town centre.

From the West (including Nottingham and Leicester) traffic will take the short route from
the A52 using unclassified country lanes through Sedgebrook & Allington which are
unable to absorb an increase in traffic.

The unclassified Allington lanes are narrow roads meant only for local traffic & are prone
to standing water & icing, there are also documented issues of speeding. The lanes are
used by cyclists, horses & by farm machinery & parking by parents leaving/collecting
children at Allington school creates single file traffic at peak times.

The TA compares the Bicester Designer (BDO) village in terms of volumes but local
press & Bicester Traffic Action Group information reveals the severe problems
experienced there because of the unsuitable road network.

Given the above the application does not appear to fulfil the objective set out in the 4th
Long Term Vision For Transport In Lincolnshire; a well-managed & safe road network
to maximise the reliability of journeys & reduce the impact on communities.

This application will have a massive impact on a struggling Grantham town centre
causing a further depletion of the already run-down, empty, shopping areas.

The development will increase traffic from all directions impacting severely on the road
networks in the area.

Road signage directing traffic away from Sedgebrook and Allington will not be effective
as people will use satellite navigation to find the quickest journey.

Traffic measures will simply slow traffic and not reduce the volume. Pollution will be
increased.

Downtown Designer Village will be on a similar theme to Bicester Village, in Oxfordshire,
there are details that can be viewed on line of the devastation caused to the local
communities.

Downtown will naturally advertise their presence and welcome the traffic increase (from
all over the country) as they will want a return on their huge investment.

Grantham High Street and the George centre are already significantly underused with
a predominance of empty shops. This will further drain Grantham's retail business
trade.

The North-South traffic flows will put a real strain on the A1 which is only dual
carriageway, and already carrying a high density of traffic.

Bottom Street should be made into a one-way street, being closed to traffic coming from
Sedgebrook.

Fundamental repair is needed on Bottom Street from Sedgebrook Road turn, and
Gonerby Lane through to Gonerby Moor A1 junction. It would be better to build a loop
road connecting Sedgebrook Road to Gonerby Lane to take traffic entirely away from
the village; or to close Gonerby Lane to through traffic at some point near the nook.
Another traffic count should be done as the last one was 8 years ago.

There is a local primary school situated on School Lane. Any extra traffic in this area
would increase road safety issues for the school.

The present Downtown store is brightly lit at night and the lights can be seen quite
clearly from the village (Allington). Additional lighting due to a larger complex wouldn't
be welcome especially in this day and age of environmental issues.

The current road infrastructure from Sedgebrook through Allington to Gonerby Moor is
incapable of supporting any extra traffic.

34



27.

28.

29.

30.
31.

32.
33.

34.

35.

36.

37.

38.

39.

40.

41.

42.

43.

44.

45.

46.

47.

48.

49.
50.

The road from Sedgebrook to Allington is not gritted at present which regularly results
in vehicles in the ditches at the side of the road.

The bridge height markings at Sedgebrook are too late for high sided vehicles resulting
in pandemonium as they try to reverse back.

The condition of Bottom Street in Allington is in a terrible state with the road surface
breaking up and with numerous potholes that reappear every year.

Bottom Street in Allington is subject to regular flooding due to damaged drains.

The school is accessed around a blind bend without suitable crossings for young
children and parental parking makes the situation worse.

Residential access along Bottom Street would suffer to any increase in traffic.
Gonerby Lane already suffers from significant, i.e. dangerous, subsidence from the
current level of traffic.

Access in and out of Peach Lane to the Park Homes is already difficult at peak times
and would suffer greatly if the traffic levels increased.

Signage on the A52 and at Downtown indicating access and egress to the A52 via the
A1 might mitigate this.

Traffic calming measures in the form of road narrowing into and out of Allington as well
as on Bottom Street might help alleviate the situation and reduce speed thus increasing
safety aspects for pedestrians along Bottom Street and to/from the school.

Roads leading to and from Allington are unsuitable to high volumes of traffic, being
largely unmarked, with soft verges, and with a significant narrowing of the route on
Gonerby Lane at the water gauging station over Foston Beck. Verges are already in a
very bad state because of horsebox traffic accessing Arena UL, and HGV traffic
accessing the Kestrel Distribution centre near Arena UK.

There is already too much rubbish along the verges in the area and the development
will add to this pollution problem.

Downtown products on sale are at a similar level to those sold in Grantham town centre
and are therefore in direct competition and will cause more shop closures in the town
centre.

The proposed outlet village on the site is unlikely to attract designer labels as the store
so far has not managed to do this.

The environmental statement does not mention the issues of traffic coming from the A52
and through Allington.

More traffic will lead to an inevitable increase in anti-social behaviour such as littering,
noise, theft and general environmental damage.

There will be increased traffic flow through Grantham, Gonerby and Allington as staff
commute to work due to the lack of adjacent housing. This will continue to drive
business from Grantham.

The proposals come at a time when Grantham High Street, and the George centre are
already significantly underused with a predominance of empty shops. My experience of
other such developments (such as that at Bicester in Oxfordshire) is that these
proposals will do nothing to help this situation and is highly likely to further drain
Grantham's retail businesses of trade. | do understand that the proposals would bring a
number of new jobs to the area - this | think is the biggest positive of the scheme as this
would no doubt bring a slight element of stimulus to the local economy but if the jobs
drive people out of the town centre then we will further lose the heart of the town. | would
be far more positive about any proposal (including radical rebuilding) that sought to
stimulate the town centre into an attractive place to live and work.

Out of town centres have surely had their day. Such a design as this must surely have
a very large carbon footprint and yet offer no advantage to Grantham as all of the
amenities it offers could be housed in the town itself.

Better things to spend money on.

One supporter of the scheme also raised concerns that there are several properties
already lying empty in the town centre.

If approved this scheme will adversely impact on the sales from the Buckminster
designer outlet development.

Buckminster may pull out of there proposed development if this application is approved.
A full retail assessment must be carried out before this development is considered. lItis
unclear how the original store got permission in 1989 for retail development outside of
the town centre.

35



7.3

229 representations in support making the following comments:

1.

PN

10.
11.
12.
13.
14.
15.
16.
17.
18.
19.

20.
21.

22.

23.

24.

25.

26.

27.

28.

29.

| fully support this application as long as traffic is kept to main roads. It would bring
about many jobs to the area for young people. This could be a good opportunity to
enforce Arena UK's planning rule that their traffic should use the A1 too (which a lot
doesn't)

Will be a real asset to nearby towns.

Site is well positioned with great link roads.

| would be more likely to visit Grantham if this development is allowed as it would make
the journey worthwhile and Grantham would overall be a more appealing destination.
Having been to similar centres it will be great not to have travel and to have one in
Grantham.

Environmentally it makes sense given the infrastructure is already practically there and
employability wise even better.

Anything that can create jobs on that scale and more importantly save jobs on that scale
can only be a huge plus for the future.

Surely it is better to back an application with a proven retail history and infrastructure in
place with good access to the A1.

The fact that there are possibilities to open a rail link and then the possibility of park and
ride into the historic centre of Grantham is another reason to support the application.
The new retail outlet will keep the people of Grantham spending within our town and not
having to go further afield.

The alternative scheme, being on a green field site, with no sufficient existing road
infrastructure would surely be better suited to housing.

To refuse planning permission would endanger existing jobs.

The development would draw customers from across the country to Grantham.

The Downtown site already has a good bus link to Grantham and has everything in
place to support this development.

This is a real opportunity to develop local businesses and create jobs.

The proposed railway link will be a major benefit.

The development will bring much needed investment to the area.

Like the idea of adding a new training academy, office space and tourist information
centre to promote the many other attractions in the area.

The Downtown scheme is superior to the competing scheme, as the Downtown proposal
will create more jobs, further investment, and improve transport links.

Makes use of an existing 'brownfield' site

The development would be a catalyst for much needed redevelopment of the existing
service station.

Local businesses which supply Downtown will hopefully see demand increase in the
future as a result of the development.

The proposal is well thought out and addresses aspects of access and tasteful design
sympathetic to the identity of Grantham as a key regional destination for investment,
shopping, hospitality and tourism.

What good sense to increase the size/facilities of an existing unit where there is already
good road access from the A1?

Oldrids are a major local employer and have operated in Grantham for many years and
shown a commitment to local people and the economy which would only be enhanced
if the development went ahead.

Concerned that if the development does not go ahead 700 people could be out of work.
Can the Council accommodate 700 people if they cannot pay the mortgage or council
tax?

The development will make Grantham a place to come and visit to spend time and
money.

Would add additional retail units to a site which is already commercially viable with
existing infrastructure.

Development and additional passing trade would help to support existing car wash
business.

36



7.4

7.4

742

7.4.3

7.5

7.5.1

7.5.2

7.6

7.6.1

7.6.2

7.7

7.71

30. Grantham Museum submitted a representation supporting the proposals especially the
development of a visitor and tourism centre.

31. Buckminster have sent out letters implying that local residents support their application.
This is not the case. Several residents supporting the proposed development have
suggested that they consider this to be an underhand tactic by Buckminster to promote
their own scheme.

Objection from Lichfields:

Lichfields have objected to the proposed developments on behalf of their client, intu
Properties Plc (intu), Intu owns and manages 17 prime regional shopping centres in the UK,
including intu Victoria Centre and intu Broadmarsh in Nottingham city centre and intu Derby
in Derby city centre.

Lichfields have raised concerns that the Retail Impact Assessment does not consider the
impact on existing committed planned investment in Nottingham City centre (i.e. the intu
Broadmarsh redevelopment and extension and the intu Victoria Centre extension).

They have also suggested that the Council should impose suitably worded conditions to
ensure the development is implemented in accordance with that described in the application,
and to ensure that development does not adversely impact on the vitality and viability of
Nottingham or Derby city centres or other centres. (See Appendix D for a full copy of the
comments)

Centrebus:

Has advised that they fully support the proposed development. Centrebus currently provide
the 14 and 24 services to the Downtown site, which run regularly from Newark, through the
villages, on to Downtown and into Grantham town centre and Grantham bus station, via
Great Gonerby.

They have advised that the increase in visitors to the Downtown site would increase
occupancy on existing routes and that they envisage a real potential to increase the
frequency and extend the existing 14 and 24 services in future.

East Midlands Trains:

East Midlands Trains (EMT) is the incumbent franchised passenger operator on the
Nottingham-Grantham-Skegness route. Its franchise is currently contracted to 3rd March
2019. Therefore, EMT does not consider that this proposal will have an impact on its current
operations. EMT has recommended that Oldrids & Downtown engage with the Department
for Transport (DfT) and prospective bidders for the next East Midlands Franchise, for which
the procurement process is anticipated to be commencing in spring 2018.

EMT have advised that it is vital that Oldrids & Downtown work closely with Network Rail
and the future East Midlands Franchise operator to ensure that any future aspirational
scheme for a new station delivers a station at which stops can be accommodated in the
timetable.

Pyle Own (Commercial property advisers to the freeholder of the moto Grantham
north service stations)

"The site is adjacent to the MOTO A1/ Gonerby Moor services. As landowners of the MOTO
site, we fully support these development proposals. Given the complimentary nature of
sites, together we can provide a more comprehensive development option. We have also
reviewed the recently approved Grantham Designer Outlet Village at Spittlegate (LPA Ref:
S17/1262) and feel the Downtown application represents a more comprehensive DOV and
mixed use development. Together with the Gonerby Moor site it will provide a northern
gateway into Grantham as well as a welcome facility for users of the A1.

37



7.8

7.8.1

7.8.2

7.8.3

7.9

7.91

7.9.2

8.0

8.1

8.1.1

There is significant opportunity for the regeneration of this site to assist in establishing a
gateway, including the opportunity to upgrade our own site. We believe granting planning
permission for the designer outlet will act as an important catalyst to the wider upgrade of
facilities at this strategic location, which we would fully embrace."

Grantham College:

Grantham College has indicated that they fully support Downtown's planning application.
The college has been in ongoing discussions with Downtown over the last year regarding
the proposed development and in particular the proposed establishment of a Training
Academy at the site.

They have agreed the principle of working in partnership with the applicants to plan, deliver
and operate a Training Academy at the site.

The college has indicated that the Training Academy would become a centre of excellence
for training and apprenticeships and would also give them scope to significantly extend their
educational programmes.

Buckminster and Rioja Developments:

Buckminster and Rioja have objected to the proposed developments and a full copy of their
submissions is provided at Appendix E. Buckminster's comments included correspondence
from a transport consultant and William Hicks QC in support of their objection. The
comments for Rioja also took into account the advice of both FSP and CACI (retail research
advisors).

The objections from both Buckminster and Rioja include concerns about the following points:

1. The threat that the development will pose to Grantham Town Centre.

Given the very limited nature of the restrictions offered by the applicant in the Oldrid
application together with the five year limit on those restrictions it is clear that they will
be ineffectual in achieving the objective of protecting the Town Centre.

3. The scheme cannot be considered the same or similar to the Rioja and Buckminster
development.

4. The full retail impact of the development has not been assessed by the applicant or the
Local Planning Authority.

5. The proposed development will not achieve the critical mass required for a tier 1
operation.

6. There are concerns about the accuracy of the information contained in the Transport
Assessment and that not enough car parking has been provided, that there is insufficient
space for manoeuvring of delivery vehicles.

7. Concern has also been raised that data and information has been copied from the Rioja
and Buckminster application.

8. Grantham already has an approved Tier 1 Outlet Village Scheme

9. The Grantham Designer Outlet Village (Rioja Development) would be a Tier 1 Outlet;
the Downtown scheme could never become a Tier 1 Outlet.

10. The planning assessment of the two different schemes by SKDC needs to be different.

11. Granting permission to the Downtown scheme would at best result in Grantham not
securing the benefits of a Tier 1 Outlet Village on either side and at worst, if the
Downtown scheme hybrid ‘non-Tier 1° scheme was built, the town centre, already
struggling, would be severely impacted.

12. Questions Freeport Retail’s role and function in the development

Officer Evaluation

Principle of the use

Government policy seeks to promote the efficient use of land by locating developments,
wherever possible, on previously developed land in sustainable locations. The council’s

38



8.1.2

8.2

8.2.1

8.2.2

8.2.3

adopted Core Strategy (CS) sets out the authority’s overarching framework for development
within the District, providing the locational strategy to be adopted when allocating land for
development, and when considering specific development proposals. The Council’s spatial
strategy for development is set out in CS Policy SP1 which indicates that the majority of all
new development should be focused upon Grantham in order to support and strengthen its
role as a Sub-Regional Centre. The policy specifically adds that “New development
proposals shall be considered on appropriate sustainable and deliverable brownfield sites
and appropriate greenfield sites (including urban extensions), sufficient to ensure the
achievement of growth targets.”

When the Core Strategy was published in 2010 it was envisaged that detailed policies would
be set out in two further development plan documents, the Site Allocations and Policies DPD
(SAP) covering the whole district (with the exception of Grantham) and the Grantham Area
Action Plan (GAAP) covering the town of Grantham only. Whilst the SAP was adopted in
2014 the GAAP did not progress beyond draft stage. Work has now ceased on the GAAP
and future allocations in Grantham will be considered as part of a new district wide Local
Plan.

Policy SP1 states that “In all cases planning permission will only be granted on a less
sustainable site where it has been proven that there are no other more sustainable options
available or there are other overriding material considerations.”

In terms of the principle of development the proposal relates to retail development on a site
which is identified as a locally important existing employment site. Nonetheless, there has
been a retail presence on the site since the early 90’s. In order to assess the principle of
development relevant retail and employment policies will be considered, the loss of
employment land assessed and consideration given to whether the site selection meets the
sequential test set out in paragraphs 86 and 87 of the NPPF. The impact of the proposal on
the vitality and viability of nearby town centres and the retail provision within them will be
assessed along with the socio-economic benefits of developing a DOC on this site. The
conclusion will then draw these elements together to form a balanced judgement on the
planning merits of the scheme taking into account all relevant material considerations.

Loss of Employment Land

CS Policy E1 Employment Development seeks to focus employment land in the first instance
in Grantham and then in the three market towns of Bourne, Stamford and the Deepings and
along the A1 corridor. Policy E1 states that the Council will seek to retain and enhance
existing areas of employment use in Grantham, Bourne, Stamford, the Deepings and
villages unless it can be demonstrated that:

e The site is vacant and no longer appropriate or viable as an employment
allocation; and

¢ Redevelopment will deliver wider regeneration benefits; or

¢ An alternative use would not be detrimental to the overall supply and quality of
employment land within the district; or

e An alternative use would resolve existing conflicts between land uses.

Policy E1 goes on to indicate that locally important existing employment areas which are
suitable, sustainable and attractive to the market and which can continue to meet modern
employment needs will be identified within the Site Specific Allocations and Policies DPD.

Paragraph 6.1.6 of the CS indicates that the allocation of employment land in Policy E1
encompasses all types of employment generating development, other than retail which is
the focus of Policy E2. The policy, therefore, covers development within the B Use Classes
as well as public and community uses and other town centre uses including: leisure,
entertainment and intensive sport and recreation facilities, arts, cultural and tourism
development which provide employment opportunities.

39



8.24

8.2.5

8.2.6

8.2.7

8.2.8

8.2.9

8.2.10

8.2.11

In addition to the above part of the application site is located within an area identified by
saved Policy E1 of the Saved Policies from the South Kesteven Local Plan 1995 for industrial
and business development. Although policy E1 of the 1995 local plan is a saved policy the
area of land allocated under policy E1.1 of the 1995 local plan has been deleted and
superseded in relation to the application site by the publication of the South Kesteven Site
Allocation and Policies DPD (SAP). The Site Allocations and Policies Plans show that
employment allocation E1.1 of the 1995 Local Plan was deleted when the South Kesteven
Site Allocations and Policies DPD was adopted in 2014. At that time it was replaced with
Policy SAP5 (ExE LSC1) which identify the application site as part of a wider locally
important existing employment site. Saved policy E1 of the 1995 Local Plan cannot be
therefore viewed as in any sense up to date.

Policy SAPS indicates that non-employment generating proposals within the allocated areas
will only be considered acceptable if it is clearly demonstrated that alternative uses will not
have an adverse effect on the primary employment uses of the area; will not reduce the
overall supply and quality of employment land and premises with the area; will deliver
economic regeneration benefits to the site and/or area; and resolve existing conflicts
between land uses. In addition Policy SAP5 states that retail and town centre uses on these
areas will also be subject to the requirements of Policy E2 of the Core Strategy.

The site is identified for employment development and should the site be developed for retail
purposes this would necessarily result in a reduction in the amount of land available for
employment development. It is therefore necessary to assess the employment land
availability for the district to assess whether the loss of this site for employment purposes
would undermine CS Policy E1 and Policy SAP5 of the Site Allocations and Polices DPD
relating to the provision of employment land across the district. As already explained above
Saved Policy E1.1 of the 1995 local plan is considered to be out of date.

The most up-to-date picture of employment land supply is set out in the South Kesteven
Employment Land Study October 2015 (ELS), which was prepared to inform the emerging
Local Plan. The survey identified 57 employment clusters totalling 547 hectares of allocated
or potential employment land in the district. Of this 93 hectares is vacant land within
employment clusters. However, this does include unimplemented planning permissions
such as the 32 hectare KING 31 site. There are also a number of greenfield sites which are
either allocated or with potential for employment, totalling 119 hectares.

The applicants have submitted an Employment Land Statement in support of the application.
The statement considers whether the loss of the site would have an adverse impact on the
provision of employment land within the district. The applicants have referred to the
Council’'s Employment Land Study 2015 which identifies three scenarios for land
requirements: a low scenario of 46.7ha, a central scenario of 62.1ha and a high scenario of
79.1ha.

The applicants have indicated in their supporting Employment Land Statement that the
supply of potential employment land (93 hectares) is approximately 50% greater than the
‘central scenario’ requirement for land for industrial and distribution uses identified in the
ELS (62.1 hectares). The ELS assessment of the supply of employment land includes
Gonerby Moor (including the application site). The ‘vacant developable land’ part of the
Gonerby Moor site, EMP R3, extends to 9.1 hectares. The wider, existing employment land
in this location covers approximately 46 hectares.

Given that the application site comprises previously developed land, it cannot be considered
as part of the 9.1 hectares of vacant developable land. This is further confirmed by the
Employment Land plans contained in Appendix A of the ELS 2015 which clearly show the
application site within an area of land identified as existing employment land.

Notwithstanding the above, it is acknowledged that the proposed development would result
in the loss of land protected for employment generating uses within a wider employment
allocation (Site Allocation and Policies DPD SAP5 EXE LSC1). This allocation measures
approximately 46 hectares, of which 9.24 hectares includes the application site. Therefore

40



8.2.12

8.2.13

8.3

8.3.1

8.3.2

8.3.3

8.4

approximately 20% of the total employment allocation would be lost as a result of the
proposed development. The maijority of the site is, however, in retail use presently and the
proposed development would not therefore result in any significant loss of employment land.
Thus whilst the criteria of the policy might not have all been passed, the underlying
objectives of the policy are not undermined (ie to protect employment uses which are
important to retain in employment use) and on balance it is considered to conform with the
objectives of the policy as a matter of judgment, even if there is some limited tension with
its criteria.  Moreover, the proposed development includes an element of office
accommodation and training academy floor space which further reduces the employment
land impact.

It is also necessary to consider the cumulative impact of the loss of the employment land
from this site together with the recently approved King 31 Designer Outlet Village located on
a site off Tollemache Road North (S17/1262). When the Council considered application
S17/1262, the applicant Rioja Developments, identified 93.1ha of vacant developable land
for employment within the district in their Employment Land Statement. This exceeds all
scenarios including the low and central industrial/distribution land scenario identified in the
Council’s Employment Land Study 2015. It was noted at the time that if the King31 Designer
Outlet Village site was removed from the employment land supply then 79.4ha of vacant
developable land within the district would remain. This exceeded the central scenario by
c17.3ha and exceeded the requirements under the high scenario by 0.3ha. It was therefore
found to be acceptable.

Given that the site which is the subject of this application is not land identified as being
vacant developable land in the Employment Land Study and the fact that the majority of the
site is already in retail use; it is considered that this proposal will not result in any significant
cumulative adverse impact on the future supply of employment land in the district.

Conclusion on the Loss of Employment Land

In conclusion, the site is no longer considered to be allocated under Policy E1.1 of the Saved
Policies of the 1995 Local Plan as this allocation was deleted and replaced by Policy SAP5
(ExE LSC1) when the Site Allocations and Policies DPD was adopted in 2014. The site is
allocated for employment land but the majority of the site has been used for retail purposes
for the last 20 years. Taking the proposed development into consideration, along with the
development of the Grantham Designer Outlet Village approved under application S17/1262
on the King 31 site it is considered that there would still be adequate available employment
land to meet the Council’s identified needs. The existing site is not vacant and it has not
been demonstrated that the site is no longer appropriate or viable as an employment
allocation. The proposed development would therefore be contrary to the requirements of
policy E1 of the Core Strategy. The development would also result in a reduction in the
overall supply of employment land within the area contrary to the requirements of Policy
SAPS5. It is however considered that the reduction in employment land resulting from this
proposed development would not undermine the Council’s overall aims and objectives to
ensure that there is an adequate supply and quality of employment land within the district.
The proposed development will also deliver wider regeneration benefits which outweighs
the small loss of employment land. The socio-economic benefits are discussed in detail
later on in this report.

In terms of the emerging local plan Policy E3 seeks to protect the site for employment use
and Policy E5 relates to the loss of employment land and buildings to non-employment uses.
The emerging local plan has been submitted for examination. There are however objections
to these policies and it is therefore considered that they should only be given limited weight.

This proposal needs to be appropriately assessed against a complex set of policy
considerations. If the council wishes to support the proposed development it will amount to
a departure from the Development Plan that would need to be the subject to a referral to the
Secretary of State.

Sequential Test for Main Town Centre Uses

41



8.4.1

8.4.2

8.4.3

8.44

8.4.5

8.4.6

8.4.7

8.4.8

8.5

Paragraph 86 of the NPPF states that local planning authorities should apply a sequential
test to planning applications for main town centre uses which are neither in an existing centre
nor in accordance with an up-to-date Local Plan. Main town centre uses should be located
in town centres, then in edge of centre locations; and only if suitable sites are not available
(or expected to become available within a reasonable period) should out of centre sites be
considered.

Paragraph 87 states when considering edge of centre and out of centre proposals,
preference should be given to accessible sites which are well connected to the town centre.
Applicants and local planning authorities should demonstrate flexibility on issues such as
format and scale, so that opportunities to utilise suitable town centre or edge of centre sites
are fully explored.

The National Planning Practice Guide (PPG) advises that it is for the applicant to
demonstrate compliance with the sequential test and that the test should be proportionate
and appropriate for the given proposal. The PPG states that the following considerations
should be taken into account in determining whether a proposal complies with the sequential
test:

¢ with due regard to the requirement to demonstrate flexibility, has the suitability of more
central sites to accommodate the proposal been considered? Where the proposal would
be located in an edge of centre or out of centre location, preference should be given to
accessible sites that are well connected to the town centre. Any associated reasoning
should be set out clearly.

¢ s there scope for flexibility in the format and/or scale of the proposal? It is not necessary
to demonstrate that a potential town centre or edge of centre site can accommodate
precisely the scale and form of development being proposed, but rather to consider what
contribution more central sites are able to make individually to accommodate the
proposal.

¢ if there are no suitable sequentially preferable locations, the sequential test is passed.

The PPG also recognises that certain main town centre uses have particular market and
locational requirements which mean that they may only be accommodated in specific
locations. The PPG advises that robust justification must be provided where this is the case.

Policy E2 of the Core Strategy states that the town centres of Grantham, Stamford, Bourne
and the Deepings will be strengthened and regenerated and uses and activities which
sustain and improve their vitality and viability will be supported. The scale of development
should be appropriate to the role and function of the centre where it is to be located, having
regard to Policy SP1. Large scale developments should be located in Grantham and all
proposals should support and enhance the town’s status as a sub-regional centre and
growth point.

Policy E2 goes on to state that town centre developments should be focused in identified
town centres. Where developments cannot be identified within defined town centres a
sequential approach will be followed with preference first to sites on the edge of the defined
town centre prior to consideration of out-of-centre sites.

Saved Policy S1 of the 1995 Local Plan states that retail development will normally be
concentrated within or adjacent to adjoining town centre shopping areas. At the time the
local plan was being prepared it was not anticipated that a designer outlet centre would be
provided within the plan period and no allocation was made for such land uses.

For the purposes of the sequential test the application site is considered to be situated in an
out-of-centre location. It is therefore necessary to consider if there are any other more
preferable site within existing town centres, edge-of-centre locations and other out-of-centre
site, which are more accessible and well connected to the town centre.

Expert Evaluation of the Sequential Test

42



8.5.1

8.5.2

8.5.3

8.5.4

8.5.5

8.5.6

The applicant has submitted a Retail Impact Assessment (RIA) in support of the application,
as part of this they undertook a sequential assessment. The Council engaged a specialist
retail consultant, Peter Brett Associates (PBA), to assess the submission. The consultant’s
initial assessment was received and following this the applicant submitted an Addendum to
the Retail Impact Assessment (Addendum RIA). The submitted RIA and Addendum RIA
consider the retail impacts of the development.

In order to undertake an assessment, a catchment area covering a drive time of
approximately 60 minutes was considered. For the purposes of the sequential approach
and assessing the impacts of the proposed development on existing centres, the catchment
area was separated into the Primary Catchment Area (PCA) and the Secondary Catchment
Area (SCA) as follows:

e PCA based on 30 minute drive time
e SCA based on 30 to 60 minute drive time

The RIA indicates that the proposed development is based on the DOC business model and
requires a level of ‘critical mass’ to draw trade from a wide area. It goes on to state that any
alternative sites should be capable of serving substantially the same catchment area, and
that locating the development on the edges of the identified 60-minute drive time catchment
area would exclude large parts of the scheme’s catchment area ‘because it would involve
substantially longer drive times’. As such, the applicant’'s sequential assessment only
considers alternative sites within the proposed primary catchment area (PCA), which is
defined by a 30-minute drive time from the application site. This includes Bingham, Bourne,
Grantham, Melton Mowbray, Newark-on-Trent, Oakham, Sleaford and Stamford. The
Council’s retail consultant has indicated that this is an appropriate area of search and that
locations within the secondary catchment area are unlikely to serve substantially the same
catchment area as the application site.

The applicant’'s RIA sets parameters for the assessment of sequentially preferable sites,
having regard to the requirements of paragraph 24 of the NPPF (2012) (now covered in
paragraphs 86 and 87 of the recently published NPPF - July 2018) and the need to
demonstrate that a flexible approach to issues such as format and scale has been taken.
The applicants have considered the potential to reduce the footprint of proposed buildings
using mezzanine floorspace, reducing the size of the proposed replacement garden centre
(approximately 34% smaller than the existing garden centre), making use of first floor trading
within the garden centre and @Home store and providing a multi storey car park. The
applicants have therefore sought to ensure the most efficient use of land, and reduce the
overall footprint of the development. Taking this into account the application site extends to
9.24 hectares comprising 39,517sgm of new floorspace. In undertaking the sequential
assessment the applicants considered that reducing the minimum site area to around 45%
of the application site (4 hectares) was a reasonable approach. However in order to
demonstrate further flexibility and robustness they considered sites as small as 2 hectares
within existing centres.

The Council’s retail consultant agrees that the parameters set out within the RIA represent
a significant degree of flexibility and a reasonable basis on which to assess the suitability of
sequentially preferable sites. They did however suggest that the applicant should provide
clearer explanation of the relationship between the DOC and the expansion of other retail
uses that form part of the application scheme, which the RIA describe as ‘essential’ and
‘complementary’. In particular, further detail was requested in terms of the relationship
between the DOC, existing retail floorspace and the proposed @Home unit, and the
requirements for co-location. This is important in terms of confirming that reasonable
flexibility has been applied and that sequentially preferable sites have been considered on
an appropriate basis.

In response to this the applicants in their Addendum RIA refer to the existing outlet and full

price retail offer at the site, comprising Boundary Mill stores and the Downtown Superstore,
and states that a ‘substantial proportion’ of the comparison retail turnover of these existing

43



8.5.7

8.6

8.6.1

8.6.2

8.6.3

8.6.4

8.7

8.7.1

stores is derived from residents within the secondary catchment area that has been identified
for the proposed development (i.e. within a 30 to 60 minute drive time of the application site).
The applicant considers that this underlines opportunities for future linked trips between the
existing and proposed outlet and full-price shopping offer.

The Addendum RIA goes on to confirm that the applicant is seeking to deliver a premium
‘Tier 1" DOC at the site and that this will ‘future-proof the Downtown business against the
challenges of online retailing and make it fit for the 21st Century’. The proposed new
Downtown@Home store is also expected to fit into this wider strategy seeking to provide a
better showroom for Downtown’s bulky goods and creating a ‘more experiential retail
environment to satisfy the desires of today’s consumer and the requirements of the retail
brands themselves’. The Addendum RIA concludes that ‘this is a site-specific proposal and
no other site would satisfy this commercial requirement’.

Representation on the Sequential Test

Newark and Sherwood District Council (NSDC) raised an objection to the proposed
development (see appendix A). NSDC appointed their own retail consultants Carter Jonas
(CJ) to review the application. In its advice to NSDC, CJ contends that the application
scheme is capable of being considered as separate elements for the purposes of the
sequential test. Whilst the applicant has adopted a threshold of 2 ha for the consideration of
sequentially preferable sites, CJ considers that elements such as the large-format retail
units, proposed leisure unit and proposed offices could be accommodated on smaller sites
if disaggregated from the wider application scheme.

The applicant has sought to provide further clarification in respect of the functional
relationship between the proposed full-price and DOC retail floorspace, describing this as
an extension or evolution of the current retail offer at the application site which already
includes elements of bulky, non-bulky and ‘outlet’ comparison goods. Whilst the applicant
could have provided further justification and a more detailed explanation, the Council’s retail
consultants PBA consider that, on balance, this is a reasonable proposition.

Carter Jonas highlighted particular issues with the proposed leisure (Class D2) unit and the
proposed office floorspace. In terms of the former, PBA agreed that the Class D2 unit should
have a functional relationship with the proposed DOC but that, subject to the imposition of
appropriate conditions (which restrict the type of D2 uses and the hours of operation to
ensure the D2 use is complementary to the wider development, and limit the size of the
building to 2,096 sq.m of gross external floor space) it should not be necessary to consider
this separately as part of the sequential assessment. Insofar as the proposed offices are
concerned, PBA agreed with Carter Jonas that there is no clear functional relationship
between this element and the wider application scheme, especially given the size of the
proposed office floorspace (5,250 sq. m). However, the application site is currently allocated
for employment uses and, the proposed offices would accord with the provisions of the
adopted Core Strategy and would not therefore be subject to the sequential test under the
terms of paragraph 86 of the NPPF.

Overall the Council’s retail specialists consider that, “on balance, a significant degree of
flexibility has already been adopted in identifying sequentially preferable sites. We also
consider that it is unlikely that it would be commercially viable for the applicant to deliver the
proposed development as separate elements, and that it should not, therefore, be necessary
for the applicant to consider smaller sites as part of its sequential assessment.” The
application is therefore considered to have complied with the requirements of the sequential
test as set out in the NPPF.

Consideration of Other Candidate Sites

With regard to the search for sequentially preferable sites the applicant’s RIA identified
seven alternative candidate sites within the PCA. The applicant considered two
sequentially preferable sites in South Kesteven. These were the Bourne Core Area within
Bourne Town Centre and the King31 site to the South of Grantham. The King31 site

44



8.7.2

8.7.3

8.7.4

8.7.5

8.7.6

8.7.7

8.7.8

8.7.9

8.7.10

benefits from planning permission for the development of a large designer outlet village
(application reference S17/1262).

The Council’s Site Allocations and Policies DPD identifies the area to the west of Bourne
Town Centre’s Primary Shopping Area as the ‘Bourne Core Area’. Policy SAP9 of the DPD
states that planning permission will be granted for comprehensive mixed-use
redevelopment of the area. The policy indicates that any redevelopment should include
retail, leisure, business, office and cultural facilities. The policy goes on to say that any
such development should provide a range of floor sizes to reflect the historic urban
character of Bourne, noting that the site is located within and adjacent to the Bourne
Conservation Area.

The RIA discounts this site as unavailable (due to it containing multiple land ownerships in
a range of actives uses) and unsuitable, on the grounds that at 2 ha it is not large enough
to accommodate the proposed development.

In terms of the King31 site, the RIA notes that the site is currently allocated for employment
uses and that its development is dependent on strategic road improvements, the delivery
of which is uncertain. As such, the applicant queries the suitability and availability of this
site.

Planning permission has, however, recently been granted for the development of the
King31 site as a designer outlet village. As such, the Council’s retail consultants and
Officers do not agree that this site can be considered unsuitable or unavailable.

Notwithstanding this, the RIA goes on to state that, unlike the King31 site, the application
site is an established retail destination with existing public transport connections to
Grantham Town Centre and surrounding areas. As such, it is argued that ‘any reasonable
judgement in terms of ‘preference’ between the two sites clearly favours the application
site’. Officers do not agree with this assessment either and do not consider the application
site to be sequentially preferable to the King31 site.

When considering application S17/1262 officers considered whether or not the King31 site
was more sequentially preferable to the Downtown site and concluded that “The Downtown
application is further from the town centre and travel distance by all means of transport are
longer and take more time, however, given the distances involved, the two applications are
viewed as similar in terms of the sequential tests set out in the NPPF”. It is therefore
considered that both sites would have similar status in sequential terms. The King31 site
should not therefore be considered sequentially preferable to the application site at Old
Great North Road.

In terms of settlements in neighbouring districts the RIA identified five candidate sites, two
in Newark-on-Trent and three in Sleaford. Newark-on-Trent is located approximately 25
miles to the north of Grantham. The RIA considers two alternative sites in Newark at
Jessop Way and the site of the NSK factory on Northern Road.

The RIA notes that the NSK site is an out-of-centre site that is allocated for mixed use
development including ‘around 4,000 square metres (net)’ of comparison retail floorspace.
Policy NUA/MU/3 of the Newark and Sherwood Allocations and Development DPD states
that future redevelopment of the site is dependent on the preparation of a masterplan and
the relocation of the current industrial occupier (NSK) to a new location within the Newark
Urban Area. Any retail development is expected to come forward in the post-2019 period.
The council’s retail consultants note that in January 2017 the Newark and Sherwood
District Council published a paper on its preferred approach to Town Centre and Retail
issues for public consultation which proposed changes to Policy NUA/MU/3. This included
setting back the anticipated date for any retail development at the NSK site to post-2031.

The RIA states that the local planning authority’s aspirations for the NSK site are not in

accordance with the type and amount of retail development proposed by the application
scheme. It goes on to say that the site is also unsuitable due to its lack of accessibility

45



8.7.11

8.7.12

8.7.13

8.7.14

8.7.15

8.7.16

from the strategic road network, and that redevelopment is subject to the existing occupier
relocating to an alternative site. Given that the site is not being actively marketed, the RIA
concludes that this site is not available. It is therefore considered that this site is unlikely to
be available within reasonable timescales.

The RIA indicates that the site at Jessop Way, Newark, is an out-of-centre site and that it
is currently being marketed for Class B2 and B8 uses in accordance with an existing
planning permission and the site’s allocation as employment land. Whilst available (albeit
for alternative uses) the applicant discounts this site on the basis of its ‘unsatisfactory
access from the strategic highway network’. Carter Jonas in their assessment for NSDC
also conclude that the site does not appear to be sequentially preferable for retail use, by
virtue of its out-of-centre status. The Carter Jonas assessment did however indicate that
it may be able to accommodate the office element of the proposed development. The
council’s retail consultants have confirmed that they have previously found that there would
be difficulty accessing this site from the A1 and therefore agree with the applicant’s
assessment that the site at Jessop Way is unlikely to provide a suitable alternative to the
application site.

Sleaford is the main centre within North Kesteven, located around 14 miles to the north
east of Grantham. The RIA has considered three sites at Sleaford; the Bass Maltings and
Advanta Seeds sites to the south of the town centre; and a site at East Road to the north
of the town.

The RIA considers the Advanta Seeds site to be an edge-of-centre site and notes that it is
allocated within the Central Lincolnshire Local Plan for mixed retail, leisure, office and
residential uses (Policy LP45). Planning permission has previously been granted for the
development of a Tesco foodstore at the site but the permission was not implemented. The
Advanta Seeds site extends to 4.64 ha which the RIA states is not large enough for the
proposed development, despite being above the 4 ha search criterion. Notwithstanding
this, the applicant goes on to argue that the site would be unsuitable due to its limited
connections to the strategic road network. The council’s retail consultant has advised that
there may be various issues with access to this site (including a level crossing on the
B1517) and, that on balance, this site is likely to be unsuitable for the proposed
development.

The applicant has also identified another site to the south of the town centre at Bass
Maltings. The former Maltings buildings provide over 50,000 sq. m of floorspace and are
Grade II* listed. Planning permission was granted in 2011 for the change of use, alteration
and extension of the Maltings to provide over 200 residential units, together with offices,
healthcare and community facilities and just under 1,400 sq. m of retail and restaurant
floorspace. The planning permission has not yet been implemented, although the
developer has sought to lift restrictions on implementation that relate to the delivery of a
new link road which was expected to be part funded by the Tesco development at the
Advanta Seeds site (this application 16/0323VARCON is understood to be pending
determination).

The RIA states that the type and amount of development proposed is not in accordance
with North Kesteven District Council’s ‘policy aspirations’ for the Bass Maltings site and
that it is considered to be unsuitable and unavailable. The listed Maltings would pose a
significant constraint on the proposed development and that the existing structures are
unlikely to be suitable for the proposed development. It is also unlikely to be feasible to
amalgamate the site with the Advanta Seeds site as the two are separated by a railway
line.

In terms of the site at East Road, Sleaford, the RIA states that this site is allocated as an
employment area within the Central Lincolnshire Local Plan and that available plots would
provide only 3.34 ha of land. It goes on to say that the site has poor accessibility from the
strategic highway network. Although it is considered that the East Road site has better
access to the strategic highway network than is indicated by the applicant’s RIA (given its

46



8.7.17

8.7.18

8.8

8.8.1

8.8.2

8.9

8.9.1

8.9.2

8.9.3

proximity to the A17), it is considered that the site is likely to be too small to accommodate
the proposed development, even allowing for a reasonable degree of flexibility.

Following advice from the Council’s specialist retail consultants the applicants were asked
to check that there are no other sequentially preferable sites available in the search area.
The applicants confirmed that they had checked with the Council and that there were no
further sequentially preferable sites available in the District. Notwithstanding this as the
Primary Catchment Area (PCA) extends beyond the boundaries of the district, the Council’s
consultants undertook their own updated, high-level search focussing on Newark, Melton
Mowbray, Oakham and Stamford. The only other site identified was the ‘Future Point’ site
at Fernwood, Newark, which has outline planning permission for over 185,000 sq. m of
Class B floorspace. However, this site would also be out-of-centre and cannot be
considered sequentially preferable to the application site.

The Carter Jonas assessment prepared on behalf of Newark and Sherwood noted that the
applicant had not considered the former highways depot at Great North Road or land at
Northgate. PBA have advised that the former is no longer on the market, would provide
less than 2ha and is currently compromised by proposals to dual the A46 which would
require a portion of the site for junction improvements. In terms of land at Northgate, the
availability of this site is not certain and, would require the significant disaggregation of the
proposals, it is not therefore considered to be a suitable alternative due to its size. Given
the uncertainty of the availability of the site it is considered that this site would not meet the
sequential test requirement set out in paragraph 86 of the NPPF which requires alternative
sites to be available or expected to become available within a reasonable period.

Conclusions on the Sequential Test for Main Town Centre Uses

The RIA and Addendum RIA have been fully assessed and scrutinised in detail by the
Council’s specialist Retail Consultant and Officers and it is concluded that there are no
suitable sites occupying a sequentially preferable location to the application site. It is
considered that the applicant has adopted an appropriate search area for the development
and has demonstrated flexibility in the scale and format of the proposals.

Taking all of this into account it is considered that the sequential test set out in paragraphs
86 and 87 of the NPPF and required by Policy E2 of the South Kesteven Core Strategy
has been passed. The proposal is not in conflict with Policy S1 of the 1995 Local Plan.
Although the site does not occupy a town centre location the policy does not specifically
preclude non-town centre retail development. In any case greater weight is given to CS
Policy E2 than to the Policy S1 of the 1995 Local Plan as Policy S1 is considered to be out
of date, making no reference to the sequential test.

Impact Assessment

Paragraph 89 of the NPPF states when assessing applications for retail and leisure
development outside town centres, which are not in accordance with an up-to-date plan,
local planning authorities should require an impact assessment if the development is over
a proportionate, locally set floorspace threshold (if there is no locally set threshold, the
default threshold is 2,500m Sgm of gross floorspace). This should include assessment of:

The impact of the proposal on existing, committed and planed public and private
investment in a centre or centres in the catchment area of the proposal; and

The impact of the proposal on town centre vitality and viability, including local consumer
choice and trade in the town centre and wider retail catchment (as applicable to the scale
and nature of the scheme)

The proposed retail floorspace within the application would exceed the locally set threshold
of 1,000sgm, as well as the default threshold, and is located in an out-of-centre location.

Policy E2 of the Core Strategy states that the town centres of Grantham, Stamford, Bourne
and the Deepings will be strengthened and regenerated and uses and activities which

47



8.9.4

8.9.5

8.9.6

8.9.7

8.10

8.10.1

8.10.2

sustain and improve their vitality and viability will be supported. Policy E2 indicates that
large scale developments should be located in Grantham and all proposals should support
and enhance the town’s status as a sub-regional centre and growth point.

The submitted Retail Impact Assessment (RIA) and subsequent Addendum RIA assessed
the impact of the proposed development on the vitality and viability of existing retail
provisions. This process includes an assessment of the catchment area of the study to
ensure it is appropriate, the current performance of retail centres within the study area
together with existing shopping patterns and expenditure. This establishes the baseline
against which the impact of the proposals is assessed. The turnover of the proposal and
where trade may be drawn from to the proposal are then considered in order to form a
conclusion on whether the proposed retail element of the development would have an
acceptable impact on the vitality and viability of existing retail offerings. In line with
paragraph 8.6.3 the controls on the leisure element of the development and its functional
relationship with the proposed DOC mean that it is considered that there would not be a
significant impact on the town centre leisure economy.

The submitted RIA adopts a base year of 2017, which is when the household survey of
existing shopping patterns within the proposed catchment area was undertaken. The
proposed development is expected to be completed as a single phase and to be trading
by the end of 2020. The adopted design year for the assessment of impacts is 2022 (two
years after opening at which point trading patterns are expected to have become
established). The Addendum to the RIA extended the design year for impact testing to
2025. These timeframes are consistent with the requirements of the NPPF and advice
contained within the Planning Practice Guidance.

The primary catchment area (PCA) for the development is based on a 30 minute drive time
and the secondary catchment area (SCA) is based on a 30 to 60 minute drive time. The
RIA explains that the identified catchment area is the same as that adopted for the King31
planning application (S17/1262). The Council’s retail consultants have confirmed that the
catchment area is extensive and reflects their understanding of the wide trade draw of
large-scale DOCs. They have, however, noted that they anticipate that the proposed bulky
goods floorspace will predominantly draw trade from a smaller catchment area, but will
benefit from linked trips with the DOC. The catchment area is therefore considered to be
appropriate.

The RIA addresses future population and retail expenditure within the catchment area. The
population of the catchment area is estimated to be 3.53 million in 2017 increasing to 3.65
million in 2022. These figures are similar to the population data presented as part of the
King31 development and are considered to be robust figures for the purposes of the
assessment.

Expert Consideration of Impact

The RIA calculates that the total available comparison goods expenditure for the whole of
the catchment area would be £11,548 million in 2017, rising to £13,761 million in 2022.
This is an expected increase of approximately £2.2bn (about 19.2%) over the period 2017
to 2022. Following receipt of the additional information contained within the Addendum
RIA the Council’s retail consultant confirmed they are content that the expenditure growth
figures utilised in the applicant’'s assessment are broadly in line with those from other
published sources and are therefore acceptable.

The RIA also contains an assessment of the health of the town centres within the
catchment area. The Council’s retail consultants have made the following comments
having regard to the applicant’s RIA and the assessment they undertook as part of the
review of the King31 application:

o “We remain of the view that Grantham Town Centre is performing relatively weakly
when compared to other centres within the PCA. Sleaford is another more vulnerable

48



8.10.3

8.10.4

8.10.5

8.10.6

8.10.7

town centre and whilst we note that investment in the Riverside Shopping Centre is
now complete, we understand that the vacancy rate remains relatively high.

o Other town centres within the PCA are generally performing well, especially
Stamford, Newark and Oakham.

o Within the SCA, the main city centres are generally performing strongly. We consider
that Derby still faces some challenges in terms of the regeneration of its city centre
but note that it is located on the peripheries of the proposed development’s
catchment area.

o Elsewhere within the SCA, the performance of smaller town centres varies quite
considerably. Whilst we note that there are a number of strong town centres within
the SCA, there are also centres that face a number of challenges, including Corby
and Mansfield.”

In order to estimate the impacts of the proposed development on retailing within the
specified catchment area the applicant commissioned NEMS Market Research to
undertake a telephone household survey. This included 2,000 interviews, with a minimum
of 100 interviews being undertaken in each of the 20 survey zones. The Council’s retail
consultant has confirmed that NEMS is the UK market leader in undertaking this type of
survey and that they have a high degree of confidence in the results provided.

The RIA shows comparison market shares for the main destinations within the catchment
area (excluding special forms of trading (SFT) such as non-store based expenditure such
as internet sales, mail order and temporary market stalls). Across the entire catchment
area, Grantham is estimated to have a comparison retail market share of 1.6 per cent,
ahead of Stamford (1.3 per cent) and Newark (1.3 per cent). No other centre within the
PCA has an overall market share of more than 1 per cent. Of the centres within the SCA
Nottingham City Centre holds the highest overall market share (12.3 per cent), followed by
Leicester City Centre (9.8 per cent) and Derby City Centre (6.8 per cent). Peterborough
City Centre and Lincoln City Centre held market shares of 5.4 per cent and 5.2 per cent
respectively.

The RIA shows that Grantham Town Centre draws a turnover of approximately £188 million
from the PCA and just under £200 million from the entire catchment area. Stamford Town
Centre has the second highest turnover of any centre within the PCA, drawing
approximately £93 million from the PCA and a total of £160 million across the entire
catchment area. The dominant centre within the SCA is Nottingham City Centre with an
estimated comparison retail turnover of £1,392 million, of which only £86 million is drawn
from the PCA. In comparison Lincoln City Centre has an estimated turnover of £689 million
from the entire catchment area of which a significant £333 million is drawn from residents
of the PCA. There is also significant comparison retail expenditure ‘leakage’ from the PCA
to Peterborough City Centre (£75 million) and Leicester City Centre (£34 million). It should
be noted that the turnover figures represent trade drawn from the catchment area of the
proposed development and do not necessarily reflect the total comparison retail turnover
of these destinations, especially those located on the edges of the catchment area of the
proposed development and whose own catchment area may extend beyond the catchment
area used for this assessment.

The RIA sets out the estimate turnovers of existing destinations within the catchment area
in the ‘no development’ scenario. The ‘no development’ scenario is the future baseline
position in which the turnover of existing centres and destinations is estimated on the basis
of population and expenditure growth within the catchment area and excluding the impacts
of new retail floorspace development over the assessment period. The RIA estimates the
comparison retail turnover of Grantham Town Centre would grow to £237.9 million in 2022.

The proposed DOC retail turnover is based on a total gross internal floorspace of
15,305sgm which is expected to equate to a net sales area of 11,479sgm. This assumes
a net/gross floorspace ratio of 75 per cent. The net sales floorspace within the DOC is
expected to trade at a sales density of £5,814 per sqm in 2017 (this is based on the figure
of £5,700 in 2016 adopted by the King31 planning application and grown at a rate of 2 per
cent per annum). This sales density figure is considered to be consistent with other

49



8.10.8

8.10.9

8.10.10

8.10.11

8.10.12

8.10.13

designer outlet centres within the UK. Based on this the RIA shows that the proposed
DOC is expected to generate turnover of £66.74 million in 2017 rising to £73.68 million in
2022 (which is again based on a sales density growth rate of 2 per cent per annum).

The proposed Downtown@Home unit is expected to provide a gross internal area of
4,819sgm. The RIA applies a net/gross ratio of 80 per cent to calculate an estimated net
sales area of 3,855sqm. The council’s retail consultants have confirmed that this is an
appropriate approach based on the fact that the unit will be used for the sale of bulky goods.
A sales density of £2,734 per sqm has been applied to the net sales area. This figure is
based on the average sales density for ‘Grantham Out of Centre Floorspace’ identified by
the Council’s Retail Study. The Council’s retail consultants have indicated that the sales
of bulky goods from this unit would need to be controlled by way of a planning condition.

The Downtown@Home unit is expected to generate total comparison retail turnover of
£10.54 million in 2017 rising to £11.64 million in 2022. The combined turnover of the
proposed retail floorspace is therefore expected to be £77.28 million in 2017, rising to
£85.32 million in 2022. As such, the proposed Downtown@Home unit will account for
approximately 14 per cent of total turnover in 2022, with the proposed DOC accounting for
the remaining 86 per cent. The council’s retail consultants have confirmed that the
assumptions applied in calculating these figures are robust and that the estimated turnover
figures are realistic.

The RIA states that the future turnover from the proposed redeveloped Downtown Garden
Centre facility has been excluded from the quantitative assessment of retail impacts. This
is on the basis that the replacement Garden Centre will be approximately 34 per cent
(2,882sgm GEA) smaller than the existing facility and is expected to offer a similar range
of goods. As such, the RIA states that ‘at best, we expect it will trade at ‘equilibrium’ with
impact thus within existing levels’. The Addendum RIA provides further justification for
excluding the Garden Centre from the impact assessment and the Council’s retail
consultant has concluded that so long as the sales floorspace to be provided as part of the
new Garden Centre is not used for the sale of a significant range of non-bulky goods, such
as clothing and giftware, the Garden Centres does not need to be included as part of the
quantitative assessment of retail impacts.

The RIA estimates that the proposed development will draw 37.5 per cent of its total
comparison retail turnover from residents within a 30 minute drive time from the application
site (the PCA), 55 per cent from residents within a 30 minute to 60 minute drive time (the
SCA), and 7.5 per cent from outside the catchment area. These assumptions are the same
as applied within the retail impact assessment prepared to support the King31 planning
application.

The Council’s retail consultant has queried these assumptions and considers it likely that
a higher proportion of the proposed development’s turnover would be drawn from the PCA
(42.5 per cent from the PCA and 50 per cent from the SCA). The Council’s consultant has
advised that this is based on the fact that the proposed DOC would be smaller than the
scheme allowed at the King31 site under planning application $S17/1262, that it included
new comparison retail floorspace for both full price and outlet goods, and that, in their
opinion, the proposed DOC would be more likely to attract mid-market operators whose
offer may more clearly overlap with that of nearby town centres. These concerns were
also shared by Carter Jonas in the advice they prepared for Newark and Sherwood District
Council.

The applicants responded to these comments in the addendum RIA and state that they are
committed to the delivery of a ‘Tier 1° DOC targeted at premium retailers and brands, that
it will provide sufficient ‘critical mass’ of retail floorspace to attract such operators, and that
the existing full price/outlet retail facilities at the application site also draw trade from a wide
catchment area. The addendum to the RIA indicates that the existing Downtown and
Boundary Mills stores draw 72 per cent of their turnover from the PCA and 28 per cent from
the SCA.

50



8.10.14 The Council’s retail consultant has noted the applicant’'s commitment that the proposed

DOC will operate as a premium retail destination and confirmed that if the development is
approved it will be necessary to apply appropriate controls to ensure that future trading
from the development reflects the assumptions contained within the applicant’s
submissions which form the basis on which the application has been assessed.

8.10.15 The Council’s retail consultant, however, remain of the view that the application scheme is

8.11

8.11.1

8.11.2

8.11.3

likely to draw a higher proportion of its future turnover from residents within the PCA (42.5
per cent) and consequently a smaller proportion from the SCA (50 per cent). They agreed
with the applicant’s assumptions that there would be a 7.5 per cent ‘inflow’ from outside of
the catchment area given the location of the site close to the A1. The Council’s retail
consultants have taken this into account when they considered the applicant’s revised
assessment of trading impacts.

Summary of Cumulative Retail Impacts

The Addendum to the RIA provides an updated quantitative assessment of the impacts of
the development. This takes into account the King31 Designer Outlet Centre that was
approved under application S17/1262. The assessment adopts four scenarios for
cumulative trade impacts which, in summary, cover aggregate trading impacts (the highest
cumulative retail impact — assuming no trading interactions between the two DOCs) and
three other scenarios whereby each of the DOCs trades at lower sales densities due to
competition between the two destinations. These reduced sales densities have been set at
50 per cent, 70 per cent and 75 per cent of the assumed benchmark sales densities. The
assessment period has also been extended to 2025 to account for the future implementation
of the second phase of the King31 development.

The table below sets out a summary of the estimated trade impacts on key defined centres
under the four scenarios. This indicates that under the ‘worst case’ scenario trade impact
on Grantham Town Centre would total 4.7 per cent, this reduces under the other scenarios.
The highest cumulative impact would fall on Newark-on-Trent Town Centre with a ‘worst
case’ figure of 6.5 per cent.

The other centres expected to experience a ‘worst case’ impact greater than 4 per cent
include Melton Mowbray (5.3 per cent) and Oakham (4.1 Per cent). In terms of other town
centres within South Kesteven, Bourne Town Centre is expected to experience trade
impacts of up to 2.9 per cent and Stamford Town Centre impacts of up to 3.5 per cent. Other
main destinations would experience impacts of less than 3 per cent, with Lincoln City
experiencing the highest potential level of trade impact at up to 2.8 per cent.

51



Copy of Table B from Addendum to the RIA — Summary of cumulative retail impacts, 2025

Aggregate Impact Impact Impact
(Worst assuming assuming assuming
Case) 25% less 30% less 50% less
Impact | ‘DOC’ Sales | ‘DOC’ Sales | ‘DOC’ Sales
2025 2025 2025 2025
% % % %
Zone 1
Grantham Town Centre 4.7 3.7 3.4 2.6
Zone 3
Bourne Town Centre 29 2.2 21 1.6
Sleaford Town Centre 3.3 2.6 24 1.8
Zone 4
Stamford Town Centre 3.5 2.7 2.6 1.9
Zone 5
Bingham Town Centre 2.2 1.7 1.6 1.2
Newark-on-Trent Town Centre 6.5 5.0 4.7 3.5
Zone 6
Melton Mowbray Town Centre 5.3 4.1 3.9 2.9
Zone 7
Oakham Town Centre 4.1 3.2 3.0 2.3
Uppingham Town Centre 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0
Zone 8
Lincoln City Centre 2.8 2.1 2.0 14
Zone 10
Market Deeping Town Centre 1.5 1.2 1.1 0.8
Peterborough City Centre 2.0 1.5 1.4 1.1
Zone 11
Huntingdon Town Centre 1.0 0.8 0.7 0.5
Zone 12
Corby Town Centre 1.2 0.9 0.8 0.6
Zone 13
Leicester City Centre 1.0 0.8 0.7 0.5
Zone 15
Nottingham City Centre 1.6 1.2 1.1 0.8
8.12 Representations on Impact

8.12.1 As already mentioned Carter Jonas (CJ) prepared their own impact assessment on behalf
of Newark and Sherwood District Council (NSDC), focussing on the impacts of the
development on Newark. This suggests the development would have higher trade impacts
on Newark Town Centre than the applicant’s revised impact assessment, including solus
impact of 5.4% and cumulative impacts of between 7.1% and 8.6% in 2022. The main
reason for these higher trade impacts is that CJ makes an allowance for uplift in the turnover
of the existing retail floorspace at the application site which adds additional retail turnover of
almost £24 million in 2022. The Council’s retail consultant has advised that if the additional
turnover included by CJ is removed they would expect that their model would indicate similar
levels of trade impact to the applicant’s revised assessment.

8.12.2 In order to limit the potential for the scenario modelled by CJ materialising (i.e. that bulky
goods are moved from the existing downtown store in to the proposed Downtown@Home
unit and the floorspace in the existing store being repurposed for the sale of non-bulky
goods) the Council has sought legal advice and been advised that this can be controlled
through a Section 106 planning obligation restricting the use of an area of floorspace in the
existing store equivalent to the sales area of the proposed Downtown@Home unit to bulky
goods sales only. This would mitigate some of the impact envisaged by Newark and
Sherwood District Council in that the existing area of floorspace used for bulky goods sales

52



8.12.3

8.12.4

8.12.5

8.12.6

8.12.7

8.12.8

in the existing store would be retained and could not be used for the sale of non-bulky goods
(A total area equivalent to 3,149 sqm).

The city of Lincoln Council and Peterborough City Council has also raised objections to the
proposed development on the grounds that it will impact on the vitality and viability of the
City Centres. The proposed development could result in Lincoln City experiencing a
potential level of trade impact up to 2.8 per cent and Peterborough City experiencing a trade
impact of up to 2.0 per cent. Itis considered that such levels of impact would not significantly
harm the vitality and viability of these centres.

Lichfields have objected to the proposed development on behalf of their client intu Properties
Plc who own and manage the intu Victoria Centre and intu Broadmarsh in Nottingham. They
have raised concerns that the applicants submitted retail impact assessment does not
consider the impact on existing committed planned investment in Nottingham City centre
(i.e. the intu Broadmarsh redevelopment and extension and the intu Victoria Centre
extension).

Council officers consider that the sequential assessment and retail impact assessment
submitted by the applicant have been undertaken in accordance with the requirements of
the NPPF. The Council’s Retail Consultant has specifically considered the comments
submitted by Lichfields and advised that it is not necessary for committed in-centre schemes
such as the Victoria and Broadmarsh Centre developments to be included within the
cumulative impact assessment set out in paragraph 89 of the NPPF and that such schemes
are expected to promote trade within, and healthy competition between, town centres. The
reason for this approach is that significant in-centre commitments will improve the turnover
of existing centres, clawing back trade from and diluting the impact of out-of-centre retail
destinations. If in-centre commitments were included in a cumulative impact assessment it
becomes difficult to determine between trade impacts that are subject to the relevant policy
tests and those that aren’t The Council’s retail consultant has indicated that this reflects the
approach to the assessment of cumulative impact undertaken in respect of the permitted
proposals for a designer outlet village at Mill Green, Cannock, which was accepted by the
Secretary of State when deciding not to call the application in for determination purposes.

The Councils consultant has also advised that they have considered the impacts of the
proposed development on the intu proposals under the terms of the first criterion of
paragraph 89 of the NPPF (impact of the proposal on existing, committed and planned public
and private investment in a centre or centres in the catchment area of the proposal) and
concluded that the application scheme would not give rise to significant adverse impacts.
This conclusion is reinforced by the fact that intu has confirmed that they are proceeding
with the implementation of the Broadmarsh scheme.

Buckminster Estates and Rioja Developments (the promoters of the Grantham Designer
Outlet Village (GDOV) at the King 31 site) have also submitted objections to the proposed
development. A full copy of the objections is available at appendix E, however the key
concerns can be summarised as follows:

1. Concerns over the validity of the applicants supporting retail impact assessment (RIA)
and in respect of the cumulative impacts of existing and proposed retail floorspace at
the Downtown site on town centre vitality and viability.

2. Concerns in respect of the impact of the proposed Downtown development on
investment within Grantham Town Centre.

3. Criticism of the design/format of the application scheme and the ability of the scheme to
deliver a ‘Tier 1’ designer outlet development.

4. Concerns over the scope of the planning obligations and conditions and the ability to
control the development if the application was approved.

Following concerns raised by the Council’s Retail consultant and the objections from

Buckminster and Rioja the applicants retail consultants have updated their analysis to
undertake additional retail impact sensitivity testing.

53



8.12.9 The objections from Buckminster suggest that there are two scenarios that require further
consideration. The first scenario suggests that the existing retail floorspace at the
application site, within the existing Downtown store, could be subdivided and used by a
range of different non-outlet retailers, thereby changing the overall nature of the Downtown
development and potentially increasing trade impacts on nearby town centres. It should
however be noted that there are currently no restrictions on the existing store and this
scenario could therefore currently occur under the existing planning consent at the site.

8.12.10

8.12.11

8.12.12

8.12.13

8.12.14

8.12.15

Officers have discussed the issue with the applicants and propose a number of appropriate
restrictions through a s106 agreement in order to control the ability of the applicants or
future occupiers of the existing store to subdivide the building in to smaller units or to
increase the proportion of floorspace used for the sale of non-bulky goods. On this basis,
the Council’s retail consultant has indicated that in their professional opinion this represents
a benefit over the extant position. Third party objectors to the development have suggested
the potential for the existing retail floorspace at the application site to be occupied by
alternative retailers should be modelled as part of the retail assessment. However the
Council’s retail consultant has indicated that, in their opinion, in the context of the extant
position, and, crucially the controls proposed such an assessment is unnecessary in
determining the acceptability of the proposals, and officers concur with this position.

The second scenario proposes that the existing retail floorspace at the application site
could be repurposed and used to provide additional outlet centre floorspace which would
be beyond that envisaged by the current application. The Council’s retail consultant has
advised that the potential for any such impact would be significantly restricted by the
proposed Section 106 obligation which would restrict the subdivision of the existing
floorspace so that no units of less than 929 sq.m could be created. There would also be
an obligation limiting the area of floorspace that could be used for the sale of non-bulky
comparison goods in the existing store. The Council’s retail consultant has indicated that
even if some of the existing retail floorspace was to be occupied by outlet retailers it is
unlikely that this would result in higher trade impacts on nearby town centres given that
such retailers would be expected to trade at lower sales densities and draw trade from a
wider area than full-price retail operators. The comparative position invited by the Applicant
is little different from the extant baseline therefore.

Additional Retail Impact Assessment Sensitivity Testing

Following concerns raised by the Council’s retail consultant and third parties, the applicants
have undertaken additional Retail Impact Assessment Sensitivity Testing. The RIA
Sensitivity Testing applies amended assumptions in relation to trade draw to the application
scheme. The additional testing considers the potential for a higher draw of 42.5% from the
primary catchment area and 50% from the secondary catchment area and 7.5% from
beyond the overall catchment area.

The results of the additional testing, utilising the revised assumptions identified in the above
paragraph were in a ‘worst case’ scenario, whereby the two designer outlet schemes draw
no trade from one another the RIA Sensitivity Testing indicates that the cumulative trade
impacts of the proposed development on Grantham Town Centre in 2025 would be -5.26%,
-5.72% for Melton Mowbray Town Centre and -6.79% for Newark Town Centre. In reality
it is implausible that there would be no trading interactions between the two outlet facilities
that could be developed at Grantham and the Council retail consultants have indicated that
a cumulative impact scenario whereby both designer outlet centres trade at 25% below
benchmark levels is far more realistic.

Taking account of the ‘worst case’ scenario even though it is highly unlikely that both outlet
developments would be constructed, operate at full capacity and have no trading impact
on one another it is still considered that the proposed development would not result in
significant adverse impacts in terms of the criteria set out in paragraph 89 of the NPPF and
would not significantly impact the vitality and viability of adjacent town centres, subject to
the control measures outlined in this report being imposed on any planning consent.

54



8.12.16

8.12.17

8.12.18

8.12.19

8.12.20

8.12.21

8.12.22

Concern has also been raised in relation to the design and layout of the proposed scheme
and the future relationship between the full price and outlet retail provision proposed at the
site. A key component of this argument is that the application scheme will not be attractive
to premium outlet operators due to its design and its proximity to the full —priced and middle-
market outlet retail offer currently provided by Downtown and Boundary Mills. Buckminster
and Rioja, promoting the King31 site, have therefore indicated that in their opinion the
proposed development would not be capable of operating as a ‘Tier 1’ designer outlet
centre that is capable of attracting the premium brands.

The applicant’s agent has responded along with Freeport Retail who are working in
partnership with Oldrids & Downtown to deliver the proposed development. They have
indicated that they are confident that they can deliver a scheme which will be attractive to
‘Tier 1’ retailers. Freeport have indicated that they have a proven record of delivering retail
outlet centres across Europe. Most recently The Village in Villefontaine, France which
opened in May 2018.

The applicant’s agent has also pointed out that the development at Cheshire Oaks sits
immediately adjacent to full price retail and has worked successfully.

The Council’s retail consultant has indicated that they have some sympathy with the view
of third party objectors that the delivery of two ‘Tier 1’ developments at Grantham would
not be a commercially viable proposition. However Rioja have acknowledged that ‘it is not
the function of the UK planning system to regulate market competition issues and that if
the two schemes were similar it could be considered right to grant permission for both and
‘let the market decide’. However Rioja go on to set out why the schemes should not be
considered comparable. Notwithstanding this, both the development proposed at the King
31 site and the development the subject of this application will require significant
investment to be implemented and investors will be aware of the planning restrictions
placed on both schemes. It is the Council’s retail consultant’s opinion that in reality only
one of the schemes is ever likely to be implemented, built and let and that it will be the
most commercially viable of the two proposals which is ultimately developed.

Notwithstanding this point both officers and the Council’s retail consultants are satisfied
that appropriate controls have been recommended to ensure that the proposed retail
development at the site would operate in the manner envisaged regardless of whether the
King 31 development is delivered.

With regard to the proposed controls, concern has been raised in relation to the proposed
‘no poaching clause’ which would form part of the S106 obligations. A ‘no poaching clause’
was imposed on the planning permission for the designer outlet village at the King 31 site.
This prevents any retailer present within Grantham Town Centre from occupying space
within the proposed development unless they commit to maintaining a Town Centre
presence whilst they occupy a retail unit on the King 31 site. In the case of this current
application it is proposed that the ‘no poaching’ clause will apply to the town centres at
Grantham, Newark and Balderton, and that the town centre retailers would only be able to
occupy space within the proposed development if they commit to maintaining a town centre
presence for at least five years. The clause would relate to both the existing retail building
and the proposed new DOC development.

Some of the objections have raised concerns about the proposed wording of this clause,
in particular the fact that it would be limited to a 5 year period. The applicant’s agent has
indicated that the proposed approach has been endorsed as lawful by recent planning
decisions and case law including the High Court decision in R (Skelmersdale) v West
Lancashire BC [2016] EWHC 109 (Admn) and the Scotch Corner Designer Outlet Village
decision of the Secretary of State. Given that similar worded restrictions, including the 5
year time period, have been used and upheld in law it is considered that the proposed
wording can be considered an acceptable mechanism for controlling the proposed
development, including the minimum five year time limit which is considered to be
proportionate and to act as a considerable deterrent to the relocation of existing town
centre retailers. The Council’s Retail Consultant has considered the use of a 5 year period

55



and in the context of this proposal considers that to be acceptable. It is therefore
considered that such a restriction should form part of the suite of planning controls and that
this should apply to both the existing floorspace as well as the proposed designer outlet
centre.

8.12.23 In addition to the above, the objection from Buckminster also included a legal opinion from

8.13

8.13.1

8.13.2

8.13.3

8.13.4

8.14

8.14.1

8.14.2

Bill Hicks QC in relation to the proposed application, to which the promoters have provided
advice from Richard Harwood QC. The Council’'s own legal advice has been sought which
has concluded that there is no in principle objection to the favourable determination of this
application. That determination is essentially based upon a series of planning judgments
which are discussed within this report. Moreover it is important to remember that there is a
commercial motivation behind the competing representations, in particular some degree of
caution has to be applied to the complaints of the operator of the consented scheme that
a rival scheme cannot be controlled to operate in a similar way. Officer’s view is that that
similar controls are proposed in both cases. Accordingly the counsel’s own legal advice is
that there is no legal impediment to the grant of permission in this case based upon the
representations founded upon Mr Hick’s opinion.

Conclusion on the Impact Assessment

The application has been assessed on the basis of the ‘worst case’ scenario in retail impact
terms where both the King31 and the Downtown designer outlet centres are constructed and
operated and sensitivity testing has also been carried out. This assessment has taken into
account the third party objections to the development and the additional information and
addendums provided by the applicant. Whilst there has been criticism of the submitted
supporting information the Council’s consultants and Officers are nonetheless satisfied that
a robust assessment has been undertaken.

Taking all of the above into account and the specialist advice provided by the Council’s retail
consultants PBA, Officers concluded that the proposal would not significantly harm the
vitality or viability of any existing retail centres. The proposed development would support
and enhance Grantham’s status as a sub-regional centre and growth point. The proposals
therefore comply with the requirements of the NPPF and Policy E2 of the adopted Core
Strategy.

In terms of the emerging local plan, Policy GR4 relates to Grantham Town Centre and
requires a sequential approach to the location of retail development and a retail impact
assessment for developments for main town centre uses outside of the town centre. In this
respect the emerging policy is similar to that of the current adopted policy.

Whilst it is unlikely that two large DOCs aimed at high-end retailers and brands in close
proximity would be commercially viable (it is likely that the market will deliver only one of the
schemes) nonetheless the Council is obliged to carry out the assessment on the basis of
both DOCs being fully operational and consider their cumulative effects, since that prospect
cannot be ruled out.

Socio-economic considerations

The applicant has submitted a Socio—Economic Impact Statement and a subsequent
Addendum Assessment in support of the application. The study considers the net social
and economic impacts of the proposed development, and specifically seeks to quantify the:

e Direct retail impact in terms of additional local retail jobs;

e Direct employment impact from new local jobs from other uses in the development;

e Indirect / wider social and economic impacts from the scheme; and

e Temporary construction jobs enabled through the scheme.

The Socio-Economic Impact Statement seeks to establish a baseline socio-economic

position for the local area. The main findings were:

56



8.14.3

8.14.4

8.14.5

8.14.6

8.14.7

8.15

8.15.1

e “South Kesteven’s predominant industry is wholesale and retail trade and repair of motor
vehicles and motorcycles;

e Wage levels for those living in South Kesteven are lower than those living in the East
Midlands or in Great Britain more generally;

¢ Those working in South Kesteven have lower wages than those who work in the Wider
Impact Area (North Kesteven District, Newark & Sherwood District, Rutland Unitary and
Melton Borough), the East Midlands and Great Britain;

e Unemployment in South Kesteven is lower than in the East Midlands and nationally;

e The number of people claiming work related benefits in South Kesteven is also lower
than both the East Midlands and the national average;

e Overall, South Kesteven’s population is less skilled than that of the East Midlands and
Great Britain; and

e A greater number of people are travelling out of South Kesteven to find work than are
travelling in.”

The applicant’s socio-economic report highlights the importance of construction jobs to the
national economy in terms of helping to drive the economic growth and improve productivity.
The report indicates that as construction employment is very mobile and often involves large
construction companies, it is likely that a large proportion of the construction job will be filled
by people outside of the local area (50%). The development is likely to generate 480
construction jobs. As a result the net local construction jobs per annum for the build period
would therefore be 240 over 2.5 years.

In terms of direct employment benefits it is estimated that the proposed development will
generate approximately 1,300 Gross Additional Full Time Equivalent (FTE) jobs. This
equates to 1,730 gross additional total jobs (i.e. full and part time). The report states that
Oldrid & Co have a demonstrable record of recruiting and retaining local employees
(currently 90% in this location). Given this record it is assumed that there will be 10%
leakage of the jobs outside of the district.

Taking the above into account and relevant displacement and multiplier effects the
Addendum Socio-Economic Impact Assessment indicates that the development would result
in an estimated net additional FTE jobs figure of 1,239 and a net additional total jobs figure
(full & part time) of 1,648 within South Kesteven.

In terms of wider benefits the report indicates that there is significant ‘leakage’ of spend to
DOCs outside of the Primary Catchment Area, including Bicester Village Outlet, East
Midlands Designer Outlet, Springfields Outlet Shopping Centre and York Designer Outlet .
The provision of a high quality DOC in Grantham would therefore facilitate competition with
other DOCs and help ‘clawback’ some of this spend. The report also indicates that Designer
Outlet Centres have a proven track record of attracting tourists and it is expected that the
application scheme will target the tourist market with its marketing mix. . Although no
specific data has been provided at this stage it is considered extremely likely that some
visitors will make linked trips to Grantham and other nearby towns and therefore helping to
support the local economy further by spending on the other attractions in the area.

The proposals also include a new Training Academy which aims to support the development
of local residents and businesses. The Training Academy will introduce opportunities for
further learning and career development and will be provided in association with local
educational establishments and business. Grantham College has confirmed that they have
been in discussion with the applicants and that they fully support the proposals. The Training
Academy would be secured via a planning obligation.

Conclusion on Socio-Economic considerations

The Council appointed AMION Consulting to undertake a review of the applicant’s Socio-
Economic Impact Statement and its Addendum. Amion have advised that overall the Socio-
Economic Impact Statement (October 2017) report combined with the Addendum Note
(March 2018) provides a reasonable and fair assessment of the potential benefits from the
proposed scheme.

57



8.15.2 Whilst it is difficult to definitively determine the likely socio-economic impacts of a
development of this nature it is considered that there are reasonable prospects that the
proposed scheme would provide the following socio-economic benefits:

8.16

8.16.1

8.16.2

8.16.3

8.16.4

8.16.5

a

Up to 240 net local temporary construction jobs per year over the 2.5 year construction
period

Up to 1,239 full time equivalent or 1,648 total (full & Part-time) local jobs

The opportunity to clawback spend currently ‘leaked’ to other Designer Outlet Centres
outside of the district

Increase tourism and visitor footfall to the local area

Enhance the image of Grantham as a retail, leisure and visitor destination

Provision of start-up office accommodation to support small businesses

Planning obligations for town centre improvements within Grantham

Educational links via the development of the Training Academy

Landscape and Visual Impact

Paragraph 127 of the NPPF states that planning policies and decisions should ensure
that developments:

) will function well and add to the overall quality of the area, not just for the short
term but over the lifetime of the development;

b) are visually attractive as a result of good architecture, layout and appropriate

and effective landscaping;

c) are sympathetic to local character and history, including the surrounding built

environment and landscape setting, while not preventing or discouraging
appropriate innovation or change (such as increased densities);

d) establish or maintain a strong sense of place, using the arrangement of streets,

e

spaces, building types and materials to create attractive, welcoming and
distinctive places to live, work and visit;

) optimise the potential of the site to accommodate and sustain an appropriate
amount and mix of development (including green and other public space) and
support local facilities and transport networks; and

f) create places that are safe, inclusive and accessible and which promote health

and well-being, with a high standard of amenity for existing and future users;
and where crime and disorder, and the fear of crime, do not undermine the
quality of life or community cohesion and resilience.

Paragraph 130 of the NPPF also states that permission should be refused for development
of poor design that fails to take the opportunities available for improving the character and
quality of an area and the way it functions, taking into account any local design standards
or style guides in plans or supplementary planning documents. Conversely, where the
design of a development accords with clear expectations in plan policies, design should
not be used by the decision-maker as a valid reason to object to development.

Policy EN1 of the adopted Core Strategy seeks to ensure that development proposals are
appropriate to the character of the area in which they are to be situated and sets out a list
of 14 criteria by which all development proposals are to be assessed against.

Chapter 8 of the supporting ES assesses the effects of the proposed development upon
the surrounding landscape and visual environment. The assessment notes that with regard
to the Council’'s Landscape Character Assessment (2007) the site lies on the boundary
between the Trent & Belvoir Vale LCA and the Grantham Scarps and Valleys LCA.

The Council’'s Landscape Character Assessment considers the sensitivity of the Trent &
Belvoir Vale LCA and states that:

58



8.16.6

8.16.7

8.16.8

8.16.9

“The landscape of the Trent and Belvoir Vale is medium to large in scale, with a simple
and sometimes weak landscape pattern. There are few woodlands, which ensures open
views are possible. Powerlines and the A1 ensure human influences. There are few
landscape features of intrinsic sensitivity.

Landscape sensitivity to new employment and residential proposals is likely to be
medium. Whilst the landscape itself contains relatively few sensitive features, there is
little structure to help assimilate new development. Woodlands and trees in the
landscape are typically associated with the settlement, so new development assimilated
within existing settlement edges, could be mitigated by appropriate landscape proposals
in keeping with the established character.”

The Council’s Landscape Character Assessment considers the sensitivity of the
Grantham Scarps and Valleys LCA stating the following:

“The Grantham Scarps and Valleys character area is a complex area influenced by the
surrounding character areas, and depending on the topography, landscape and human
influences. The landscape is generally small in scale, and areas of particular sensitivity
includes the historic Belton Park and the wooded and parkland slopes to the east of the
town. There are some areas closer to the edge of town, containing little of intrinsic
landscape interest that would offer the scope for development. New development and
associated landscape planting could soften some of the existing hard urban edges to the
town. Other areas are of medium sensitivity because of the landscape elements, visibility
or general character. These areas may offer some scope for development if sensitively
designed and mitigated. The plan at Figure 17 shows a broad area of sensitivity to new
employment and residential purposes. Sensitivity would range from low to high,
depending on the nature of the site, and the scale and type of the development proposal.
In general terms new development should avoid the higher valley slopes, and should not
establish new built development on the skyline.”

The application site is identified in the LCA as having a Low-Medium landscape
sensitivity for employment and residential development.

The proposed development would be located within an established area of development,
namely the A1 Triangle. The proposal would not extend beyond the built edges of the A1
Triangle and would not introduce any new features that are not already characteristic of
this area. Although this is only an outline application the application is accompanied by
parameter plans which show that the proposed development will be in scale and
character with the existing built form.

The ES notes that the construction phase of the development will result in some adverse
temporary effects upon the visual amenity of the area due to the movement of
construction traffic and associated works, together with a general disruptive immediate
environment leading to a loss of tranquillity. In terms of the effect of the construction
phase upon the landscape character of the area it is considered that the perceived
effects will be localised to the site and its immediate setting. It is considered that the
construction phase of the development will not significantly harm the character or
sensitivity of the surrounding area. The supporting ES does acknowledge that the
proposed construction works will give rise to some adverse effects upon the receiving
landscape and visual environment, however these will be localised and for a temporary
period.

8.16.10 The operational phase of the proposal would result in development located within an

established area of development, namely the A1 Triangle. The proposals would not
extend the prevailing built edges of the development in this area and would not introduce
any feature that are not already characteristic of the development. The site is located at
the bottom of the scarp slope that separates Grantham and Great Gonerby from the
wider vale to the north. The proposals will therefore be viewed within the context of
existing development and would not harm the prominent elevated landscape immediately
to the north of the settlements.

59



8.16.11 Conclusion on landscape and Visual Impact

8.16.12 The proposed development replaces existing built form and garden centre trade areas

8.17

8.17.1

8.17.2

8.17.3

8.17.4

with new contemporary built form and landscaped areas of public realm and parking.
Although this is an outline application with the final detail design matters reserved for
subsequent approval the parameter plans demonstrate that the scale and type of
development would not appear out of character with the existing industrial and
commercial development in the area. There are no significant landscape features of note
on the site currently and the proposed development would provide an opportunity for
improved landscaping across the site, which would help to soften the proposed built form.
Overall it is considered that the proposal will not result in significant harm to the landscape
character or visual environment and would provide opportunities for high quality design
solutions which could enhance the visual amenity of the area. The proposed
development would therefore comply with the requirements of the NPPF and those of
Policy EN1 of the Core Strategy.

Ecology

Paragraphs 170 to 183 of the NPPF provide guidance and advice on how local planning
authorities should consider conserving and enhancing the natural environment as part of
the plan making and decision making process. Paragraph 175 of the NPPF advises that
local planning authorities should aim to conserve and enhance biodiversity by applying the
following principles:

o if significant harm to biodiversity resulting from a development cannot be avoided
(through locating on an alternative site with less harmful impacts), adequately
mitigated, or, as a last resort, compensated for, then planning permission should be
refused;

e development on land within or outside a Site of Special Scientific Interest, and which
is likely to have an adverse effect on it (either individually or in combination with
other developments), should not normally be permitted. The only exception is where
the benefits of the development in the location proposed clearly outweigh both its
likely impact on the features of the site that make it of special scientific interest, and
any broader impacts on the national network of Sites of Special Scientific Interest;

o development resulting in the loss or deterioration of irreplaceable habitats (such as
ancient woodland and ancient or veteran trees) should be refused, unless there are
wholly exceptional reasons and a suitable compensation strategy exists; and

e development whose primary objective is to conserve or enhance biodiversity should
be supported; while opportunities to incorporate biodiversity improvements in and
around developments should be encouraged, especially where this can secure
measurable net gains for biodiversity.

Policy EN1 of the adopted Core Strategy relates to the protection and enhancement of the
character of the district and states that all development proposals and site allocations will
be assessed in relation to amongst other things biodiversity and ecological networks within
the landscape.

The submitted ES considers and assess the likely significant impacts of the development
on the environment in respect of ecology and nature conservation. The assessment has
confirmed that there is one statutory protected site within 2km of the development site.
Allington Meadows Site of Special Scientific Interest (SSSI), located approximately 1.53km
to the west of the site. No non-statutory sites were identified within the 2km radius search
area.

The application site is currently significantly developed and is occupied by the existing
Downtown Store and Garden Centre, a distribution centre and a significant area of
hardstanding used for car parking. There are a number of hedgerows running along the
site boundaries.

60



8.17.5

8.17.6

8.17.7

8.17.8

8.17.9

8.17.10

8.17.11

8.17.12

8.18

8.18.1

8.18.2

8.18.3

The ES indicates that a limited range of birds was observed during the survey. No Species
of Principal Importance for the conservation of biodiversity in England were recorded at the
site. It is however noted that there is a small risk of Species of Principal Importance
potentially breeding at the site boundaries e.g. dunnock or song thrush.

It was also noted that a range of common birds are likely to nest in areas of trees and
ornamental shrubs within the site and also potentially within the buildings, although the
buildings have been assessed as having negligible potential for nesting birds.

All of the built structures have been assessed as having negligible or zero potential to
support bat roosts. This is based on the absence of any features likely to support bat
roosts such as gaps at eaves or beneath roof tiles etc. All of the trees on the site were
also assessed as having negligible to zero potential to support bat roosts.

There was no evidence of badger activity observed at the site.

A total of ten water bodies have been identified within 500m of the site. The assessment
indicates that Great crested newts could potentially breed in six of the identified
waterbodies and small numbers of great crested newts could potentially occur within the
application site. The assessment does however note that given the amount of large
buildings on the site, the actively used car parks and extensive areas of hardstanding the
potential is significantly limited. Based the absence of previous records of great crested
newts within 500m of the site and the distance between the site and the waterbodies the
ES indicates that there is a low risk of great crested newts occurring within the site.

In order to mitigate the small potential for great crested newts being affected by the
proposed development it is recommended that a condition requiring further survey work to
be undertaken prior to any development taking place. If great crested newts were to be
found mitigation measure such as amphibian-proof fencing and pitfall trapping could then
be used under licence from Natural England to exclude the newts from the development
site.

Conclusion on Ecology

The submitted ES indicates that the proposed development is unlikely to result in any
significant adverse impact on the local ecology. Natural England has raised no objections
to the proposed development. The development will not result in any significant impact on
the local ecology and there will not be any significant cumulative impacts with other
development in the area. Subject to the inclusion of a condition being imposed to mitigate
the small potential for great crested newts to be found on the site it is considered that the
development would comply with the relevant guidance contained in the NPPF and the
requirements of policy EN1 of the Core Strategy.

Drainage

Section 14 of the NPPF (paragraphs 148-169) provides guidance on how planning can
help meet the challenge of climate change, flooding and coastal change. Paragraph 157
of the NPPF states that when determining any planning applications, local planning
authorities should ensure that flood risk is not increased elsewhere. Where appropriate,
applications should be supported by a site-specific flood-risk assessment.

Policy EN2 of the adopted Core Strategy indicates that planning permission will not
normally be granted for development, in areas identified as being at risk from flooding.

The ES is supported by a Flood Risk Assessment and Sustainable Drainage Statement
which assess the potential effects of the proposed development on water and drainage,
including flood risk. The assessments indicate that the whole of the site is located within
Flood Zone 1, and is considered to be at low risk from flooding. Much of the site is identified
to be at very low surface water flood risk, although there are areas of low to high risk across
the site, particularly along the western edge of the site.

61



8.18.4

8.18.5

8.18.6

8.18.7

8.18.8

8.18.9

8.19

8.19.1

8.20

8.20.1

The ES has identified that the proposed construction phase has the potential to result in
some moderate adverse impacts prior to any mitigation measures being implemented.
These are, however, considered to be temporary and short to medium in length. Some of
the potential impacts noted include compacting of the soil which can reduce infiltration
rates, suspended soils entering the water course, pollutants from construction vehicles
operating during the construction phase.

During the implementation phase and prior to any mitigation measures being implemented
it is considered that the increased impermeable surfacing has the potential to have a minor
adverse impact on the surface water runoff regime at the site. In order to mitigate these
issues the ES recommends that a Construction Environmental Management Plan (CEMP)
is prepared which sets out detailed methodologies and monitoring requirements to prevent
any adverse effects on the water environment. It is therefore recommended that the CEMP
is secured via a planning condition if this application is approved.

The submitted Sustainable Drainage Strategy states that as this is an outline application
an illustrative water strategy has been prepared to demonstrate that the necessary
drainage parameters can be accommodated within the development. It is proposed that a
30% reduction in the site’s runoff rates will be provided, reducing the rate at which water is
released into the wider catchment area. Water will be attenuated at the site prior to
discharge using Sustainable Drainage Systems with storage provided up to the 1 in 100
year plus climate change event. The applicants have indicated that permeable paving will
be used across the parking areas. In addition bio-retention tree pits may also be located
across the car park to add additional treatment, and amenity/ecological benefits.

Conclusion on Drainage

The Environment Agency, Anglian Water and the Lead Local Flood Authority have been
consulted on the application and advised that subject to the inclusion of conditions securing
detailed designs for the proposed surface and foul water drainage system they have no
objections to the proposed development.

Given the existing nature of the site and that the proposed surface water drainage scheme
would provide a betterment in limiting the runoff from the site, it is considered that the
development complies with the guidance within the NPPF and the requirements of policy
EN2 of the adopted Core Strategy.

Ground Conditions

A Phase | Ground Investigation has been submitted in support of the ES. The assessment
has concluded that the proposed development is unlikely to pose any significant risk of
significant harm to potential end users of the site or the controlled waters environment.
However there is potential for contamination to be present at the site. It is therefore
recommended that a Phase Il ground investigation is undertaken and that further monitoring
and risk assessments are undertaken at the detailed design stage. This can be controlled
via the imposition of a condition requiring a phase Il study to be undertaken prior to any
development commencing on site. Subject to a condition being attached to any consent it
is considered that the development is unlikely to result in any significant risk from ground
contamination.

Transport and Access

The NPPF states in paragraph 108 states that in assessing sites that may be allocated for
development in plans, or specific applications for development, it should be ensured that
appropriate opportunities to promote sustainable transport modes can be- or have been —
taken up, given the type of development and its location; safe and suitable access to the
site can be achieved for all users; and any significant impacts from the development on the
transport network (in terms of capacity and congestion), or on highway safety, can be cost
effectively mitigated to an acceptable degree.

62



8.20.2

8.20.3

8.20.4

8.20.5

8.20.6

8.20.7

8.20.8

8.20.9

8.20.10

8.20.11

Paragraph 109 states that development should only be prevented or refused on highways
grounds if there would be an unacceptable impact on highway safety, or the residual
cumulative impacts on the road network would be severe.

Paragraph 111 states that all developments which generate significant amounts of
movement should be required to provide a travel plan, and the application should be
support by a transport statement or transport assessment so that the likely impacts of the
proposal can be assessed.

The Environmental Statement submitted in support of the application includes a section on
Transport and Access and this has been prepared in conjunction with a Transport
Assessment and a subsequent Addendum and Technical Notes (from now on these
documents will be referred to cumulatively as the TA) undertaken by PTB Transport
Planning Ltd on behalf of the applicants.

The indicative master plan shows a total of 1,979 parking spaces on site. This includes a
four-level multi storey car park consisting of 1,020 parking spaces and 959 surface parking
spaces. 11 coach parking bays are also proposed within the site. Provision will also be
made for a new enhanced bus service between the site and Grantham Town Centre, cycle
spaces and provision of electric vehicle charging spaces.

The existing eastern access to the site is taken from Occupation Lane in the form of a ghost
island right turn. The proposed development will maintain this access. It is, however,
proposed to amend the layout of the junction so that priority is given to traffic movements
between Occupation Lane North and the site, with the southern section of Occupation Lane
giving way. The dominant flow at the junction will be in and out of the proposed
development site. As a result, the proposed improvements will assist the operation of the
junction and help ensure queues and delays do not occur on the highway network.

Palmer Road is accessed via Occupation Lane and currently provides access for delivery
vehicles to the existing garden centre and an adjacent industrial unit. It is proposed that
Palmer Road will still provide access for delivery vehicles as part of the new development.

The existing northern access which takes the form of a roundabout junction will remain as
is, with access to the site being available from the A1 southbound on-slip and Allington
Lane East. Egress from the site in this location will be available via Allington Lane East.
This entrance will also provide access to the service yards for the retail units located
towards the north of the site.

The submitted Transport Assessment (TA) assessed the capacity of the following
junctions:

e Eastern Access — Occupation Lane priority junction

e Northern Access — roundabout junction with Allington Lane East/Service station
access

Allington Lane East/B1174, left in, left out priority junction

Occupation Lane/B1174 roundabout junction

B1174/A1 southbound off-slip/on-slip roundabout junction

B1174/A1 northbound off-slip/on-slip roundabout junction

B1174/Belton Lane priority junction

The assessment of the highways impacts also considered the cumulative impact of other
proposed or committed developments in and around Grantham including the Spitalgate
Heath development - 3,700 dwellings, Poplar Farm - 1,800 dwellings, Manthorpe — 400
dwellings and the King31 DOV amongst others.

The TA indicates that the majority of the junctions would continue to operate within capacity

when the development traffic was added to the network in the assessment year of 2031.
Increase in delays and queues are predicted to be minimal and in most cases unlikely to

63



8.20.12

8.20.13

8.20.14

8.20.15

8.20.16

8.20.17

8.20.18

be perceptible to existing users of the junctions. With the exception of the B1174/Belton
Lane junction, the maximum increase in delay during any peak period was predicted on
Allington Lane East junction with the B1174, where an increase of 28 seconds per vehicle
was predicted. Itis generally considered that this will result in a negligible impact on driver
delay.

The B1174/Belton Lane Junction is located to the south of the site, just north of Great
Gonerby. The TA shows that this junction is already operating close to capacity. When
base traffic was growthed to a future assessment year of 2031, and committed
development traffic added to the network, the junction was predicted to operate well
beyond capacity even before the development traffic is added. When the proposed
development traffic was added this further increased the potential for queues and delays
at the junction. The TA indicates that during AM peak periods (08:00-9:00), it is predicted
that delays on Belton Lane would increase by 282 seconds per vehicle when development
traffic is added to the network (from 1424 seconds to 1706 seconds in 2031). This is
predominantly because the junction is already operating close to capacity.

In order to mitigate the impacts of the development on the B1174 junction an improvement
scheme in the form of a three-arm traffic signal junction is proposed. Following the
development, the proposed mitigation scheme would significantly reduce queues and
delays on the Belton Lane arm of the junction. The TA predicts the future AM peak delays
for the assessment year 2031 as 1,706 seconds per vehicle, when the development traffic
was added to the existing junction. However, it is predicted that the proposed mitigation
scheme will reduce the average waiting time to 31 seconds per vehicle.

The TA acknowledges that the proposed traffic signal scheme would require through traffic
on the B1174 to stop, in order to release traffic from Belton Lane and that this would result
in some dis-benefits in terms of delays to through traffic. However it considered that these
would be outweighed by the benefits of reducing queues and delays on Belton Lane. The
local highway authority has raised no objections to the proposed junction improvements
subject to them being secured via a planning condition.

In addition to the above, the A1/A52 eastern and western junctions were also assessed in
terms of traffic capacity. Both these junctions are proposed to be improved as part of the
requirements for the DOV on the King31 site approved under application S17/1262. The
applicants have had on-going discussions with Highways England with regard the capacity
of these junctions. The impact of this current application on these junctions needs to be
considered on its own and cumulatively with other development commitments.

Highways England has confirmed that they are satisfied that the proposed development
traffic can be accommodated within the A52/A1 eastern junction mitigation scheme as
proposed by the committed King31 DOV development approved under application
S17/1262. The proposed mitigation includes a traffic signal arrangement. A cumulative
assessment has been undertaken and demonstrates that the proposed Downtown DOC
will not have a material impact on the operation of the proposed junction. Highways
England has requested that if this application is approved a condition be attached to secure
the junction and traffic signal improvements.

The development is predicted to have an impact on the western A1/A52 junction and
therefore additional mitigation measures are proposed at this location. The mitigation takes
the form of a proposed three arm traffic signal junction. This would mitigate the cumulative
impact of the development at this junction. Highways England have confirmed that the
proposed scheme is considered acceptable and that it will mitigate the future impacts of
the proposed development.

As this is an outline application the applicants have provided a broad schedule of the
vehicles and the likely number of movements within the Environmental Statement. Given
the nature and scale of the site the TA indicates that it is unlikely that the volume of HGVs
arriving at the site in the construction period would exceed the volume in the operational
period and that if they did this would be for a limited period.

64



8.20.19

8.20.20

8.20.21

8.20.22

8.20.23

It is estimated that 20 to 100 construction employees will be on site at any one time during
the construction phase. The number of vehicles arriving and leaving on a daily basis will
be significantly lower than during the operational phase of the development. It is therefore
considered that the construction traffic is only likely to result in a temporary minor impact.

To reduce the impact of the construction phase it is recommended that if the development
is approved a condition should be attached requiring a Construction and Environmental
Management Plan (CEMP) to be submitted. The CEMP would include:

a) The overall strategy for managing environmental impacts which are likely to arise
during the construction phase;

b)  Management of construction traffic and access/haul routes and parking;

c)  Storage of plant and materials used in constructing the development;

d) A Site Waste Management Plan (SWMP) setting out a scheme for
sorting/recycling/disposing of waste from construction works;

e) A signage strategy for construction traffic.

f) The parking of site operatives and visitor's vehicles;

g) Loading and unloading of plant and materials;

h)  The erection and maintenance of security hoarding including decorative displays and
facilities for public viewing, where appropriate;

i) Wheel cleaning facilities;

j) Measures to control the emission of water pollution, sediment, dust and dirt during
construction;

k)  Working hours for earthworks and construction shall be restricted to between 07:00-
20:00 Mondays to Fridays, 08:00-18:00 Saturdays and Sunday / Bank Holiday
working unless pre-planned and agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority.

) Community liaison initiatives;

m)  No open fires.

n) Identification of the times when major items of plant and equipment are to be
transported to and from the site;

o) Identification of procedures for the notification and conveyance of indivisible ‘out of
gauge’ loads. This includes any necessary measures for the temporary protection
of carriageway surfaces; for the protection of statutory undertakers’ plant and
equipment; and for the temporary removal of street furniture;

p) Description of the methods of transport to be used by personnel to minimise overall
traffic impact on the corridor leading to the construction site;

gq) Proposals for communicating information to South Kesteven District Council,
Lincolnshire County Council and Highways England.

r) Details of any lighting to be used during the construction phase

The CEMP will therefore include a routing strategy for construction vehicles to ensure that
they arrive and depart via the A1, therefore minimising the potential impact on residential
areas.

Although this is an outline application the proposed masterplan illustrates that the
development would provide a total of 1,979 parking spaces. 959 would be surface spaces
and 1,020 spaces would be provided in a new multi storey car park across four levels.
Provision would also be made for 11 coach parking spaces, cycle storage and a new bus
stop facility would be provided to improve links to Grantham and the surrounding area. The
enhancements to the existing bus service would be secured via a S106 planning obligation.
The proposal also includes electric vehicle charging points.

A draft travel plan has been submitted with the application which seeks to help promote
sustainable modes of transport including car sharing initiatives, improved facilities to
promote cycling and walking, and promoting the use of public transport. Lincolnshire
County Council has been consulted on the draft travel plan and suggested some
amendments. The local highway authority has raised no objections to the proposed
development subject to the final details of the travel plan been secured via a Section 106
agreement.

65



8.20.24

8.20.25

8.20.26

8.20.27

8.20.28

8.20.29

8.20.30

A number of concerns have been raised relating to the impact of the development on the
road network and concerns that the development will result in a significant increase in
additional traffic running through the surrounding villages. The Council has consulted with
the Highways England and the local highway authority and they have both raised no
objections to the proposed development. The ES also proposes a comprehensive signing
strategy for the site on the A52/A1 and at the Moto Services roundabout in order to mitigate
any potential impacts of traffic using alternative routes through the neighbouring villages,
in particular Allington.

In relation to the potential impact on residential amenity from increase traffic the ES
indicates that the proposed development is likely to have a negligible impact.

The objection letters from Buckminster and Rioja raise concerns about the accuracy of the
Transport Assessment and its updates submitted in support of the application.
Buckminster have appointed Mayer Brown as highway consultant to review the application
and support their objections to the proposed development. There comments are set out in
appendix E. The key concerns can be summarised as follows:

1. The Environmental Assessment is significantly flawed as it does not demonstrate that
the period of greatest environmental impact has been assessed.

2. Baseline data for surrounding roads has not been collected in a typical “neutral” month.
Consequently the EA is based on potentially skewed data.

3. By assessing a future year of 2031, the EA fails to consider the year of greatest impact
(which would be the year of opening).

4. The “Grantham Designer Outlet Village” vehicle trip attraction has simply been copied
from the Rioja scheme for the Applicant’s transportation assessment without any
justification as to why this is appropriate.

5. The development will result in a significant shortfall in proposed parking at the site,
which will lead to overspill parking occurring on the surrounding highway.

6. It has not been demonstrated that the servicing provisions are adequate, which could
result in unsafe manoeuvring/loading of HGVs.

In response to the objections from Buckminster and Rioja the applicants provided
additional information to address the points raised above. Highways England and the Local
Highway Authority have raised no objections to the proposed development, subject to
conditions being attached to any consent. Highways England has confirmed that the base
line data has been collected in June 2017, which, in accordance with Dft's TAG Unit M1.2
— Data Sources and Surveys, represents a neutral month for data collection. Highways
England has also confirmed that the trip distribution used in the assessment is suitable and
appropriate for the purposes of assessing the development’s impact on the Strategic Road
Network. The supporting EIA and Addendums to it have been independently reviewed by
the Highway Authority, Highways England and the Council’s Consultants Barton Wilmore
all of which are satisfied with the Environmental Assessment. The site is currently used by
HGV’s and it is considered that a reserved matters application would be able to
accommodate for the safe manoeuvring and loading of HGVs. The proposed assessment
have taken account of relevant parking considerations and the Local Highway Authority is
satisfied with the proposed parking provision. Having considered each of the above points
therefore, none are considered to be well founded.

In addition the Local Highway Authority has confirmed that in their opinion the level of
parking proposed is appropriate for the mix of uses proposed at the site and that there can
be cross use of spaces. It is also considered that issues relating to service vehicle
movements can be suitably controlled at the reserved matters stage.

Conclusion on Transport and Access

In conclusion, taking into account the cumulative impacts of the development it is
considered that subject to the proposed mitigation measures being secured by way of
planning conditions and a S106 planning obligation the proposed development can be

66



8.21

8.21.1

8.21.2

8.21.3

8.214

8.21.5

considered acceptable in highway safety terms. Highways England and the local highway
authority have been consulted on the proposed development and the accompanying ES
and Transport Assessment and they have both raised no objections to the application. It
has been demonstrated that effects have been satisfactorily mitigated and that the residual
cumulative impacts on the road network arising from the development will not be severe
and as such the development complies with the requirements of the NPPF and policy SP3
of the Core Strategy.

Air Quality, Dust & Odour

The ES considers the impacts of the development on air quality in the area. An addendum
to the air quality assessment was produced in order to take account of the cumulative
impacts of the development taking into account the King31 DOV (S17/1262) and the
residential development of 480 dwellings approved at Manthorpe (S15/3189). The ES has
considered the Grantham Air Quality Management Area (AQMA) which is described as
‘Manthorpe Road, Wharf Road, High Street and London Road’. The proposed development
is located approximately 3.7km north-west of the AQMA. As such it is considered that there
is potential for vehicles travelling to and from the site to increase pollution levels in this
sensitive area.

The ES has concluded that during the construction phase of the proposed development
there is potential for air quality impacts as a result of dust emissions from the site. It is
considered that this can be suitably mitigated through the use of a condition requiring a
Construction and Environmental Management Plan to be approved and implemented.

The ES indicates that the proposed development will not have any significant impacts in
relation to air quality. However measures are proposed in order to help mitigate the potential
impacts for the development occurring due to road traffic exhaust emissions associated with
vehicles going to and from the site. The measures include the implementation of a Travel
Plan, improvements to public transport, walking and cycling including provision of secure
cycle parking and the provision of electric car charging points. In addition, it is also
recommended that conditions are attached in order to control odour abatements systems
installed into the proposed A3 units.

Conclusion on Air Quality, Dust & Odour

The Council’s Environmental Protection Team has raised no objections to the proposed
development. The development would comply with the requirements of policy EN1 of the
adopted Core Strategy it is therefore concluded that the development will not have a
significant detrimental impact on air quality or result in any significant adverse pollution from
dust or odours subject to the mitigation measures outlined above being secured via
conditions.

8.22 Noise and Vibration

8.22.1

8.22.2

8.22.3

The ES considered the potential for noise and vibration impacts to arise as a result of the
proposed development. The likely noise impacts from the development on nearby sensitive
receptors are likely to result from, changes in traffic flows on surrounding roads; on-site
commercial operational activities and fixed plant; and construction activities (including
vibration).

Given the separation distances between the proposed site and the nearest residential
property it is considered that the development will not result in any significant impacts
resulting from vibration and as such no specific mitigation measures are required.

Although this is an outline application with the final detailed design of the buildings reserved
for subsequent approval the noise assessment has indicated that some of the proposed
units will require acoustically upgraded glazing in order to achieve desired internal noise
levels. The noise assessment has also confirmed that no additional mitigation is required
with regard to road traffic noise increases affecting existing sensitive properties in the area.

67



8.22.4

8.22.5

8.23

8.23.1

8.23.2

8.23.3

8.23.4

8.23.5

8.23.6

Conclusion on Noise and Vibration

The submitted noise assessment has demonstrated that the proposed development will not
result in any significant adverse impact on adjacent sensitive receptors by way of noise or
vibration from the proposal. The Council’'s Environmental Protection Team has considered
the proposed application and supporting information and has raised no objections to the
proposed development. It is however considered appropriate to attach conditions to any
consent to ensure that suitable noise mitigation measures are implemented at the detailed
design stage. General noise mitigation measures could include locating noisier commercial
uses further from residential properties, restrictions on the operational hours, controls of
noise limits from plant and equipment and the installation of acoustic barriers and screening
if necessary. As already indicated above a condition requiring a Construction Environmental
Management Plan is recommended and this will ensure noise from the proposed
construction phase of the development is suitably mitigated. The proposals comply with the
requirements of policy EN1 of the Core Strategy.

Utilities Infrastructure & Waste

Chapter 15 of the supporting Environmental Statement considered the effects of the
proposed development in terms of existing utility infrastructure. The likely significant effects
associated with the construction phase of the proposed development are considered to be
temporary. The construction process is likely to give rise to a range of waste including from
demolition spoil, soils, packaging, and liquids such as dirty water and fuel. The applicants
have indicated that where possible materials arising from the demolition of buildings and
breaking up of hard surfaces would be recycled and reused on-site or alternatively
transferred to a licensed recycling facility. It is also intended to require the implementation
of a Site Waste Management Plan (SWMP) via a condition in order to ensure that waste
from the site is dealt with in accordance with best practice and relevant environmental
management systems. The SWMP would set out procedures to sort, reuse and recycle
construction waste helping to mitigate any impacts from the development.

Due to the size of the development Weston Power Distribution have confirmed in writing to
the applicant that reinforcement works will be required to the existing high voltage
infrastructure present along the site’s eastern boundary on Occupation Road, within the site
and along Palmer Road. A new substation will also be required on site to serve the proposed
development. Western Power Distribution estimate the costs of this work to be
approximately £86,829.12.

Cadent has been consulted and confirmed that there are Low or Medium pressure (below 2
bar) gas pipes and associated equipment within the vicinity of the site. They have confirmed
they have no objections to the proposed development.

The submitted ES indicates that 3.5km of off-site reinforcement works will be required to the
local clean water network. Anglian Water has estimated the total cost of these works at
approximately £634,000.00. A 225mm foul sewer runs across the centre of the site from
Palmer Road to the B1174. The indicative plans show that the site can be developed without
impacting on this sewer and as long as a suitable protection zone is provided the
development will not have any significant impact on the foul sewer.

Anglian Water has been consulted and advised that the existing waste water treatment
works have capacity to accommodate the proposed development. Although they have
raised some concerns about the flood risk and the proposed drainage strategy they have
confirmed that this can be controlled by way of conditions being attached to any consent in
order to ensure that there is suitable mitigation of surface water & foul water drainage from
the site. The Environment Agency and Lead Local Flood Authority and raised no objections
to the proposed arrangements.

Conclusion on Utilities Infrastructure & Waste

68



8.23.7

8.24

8.24.1

8.24.2

8.24.3

8.24.4

8.24.5

8.25

8.25.1

8.25.2

In conclusion it is considered that the proposed development will not result in any significant
adverse impacts on existing or proposed utilities infrastructure or waste subject to the
imposition of conditions to ensure that any impacts are suitably mitigated. The proposals
comply with the requirements of policy EN2 of the Core Strategy.

Minerals and Waste

The proposed development is located in close proximity to an existing waste site (Grantham
Waste Transfer Station - south of Occupation Road) which is safeguarded by Policy W8
(Safeguarding Waste Management Sites) of the Lincolnshire Minerals and Waste Local
Plan: Core Strategy and Development Management Policies, adopted June 2016.

Policy W8 states that the County Council will seek to safeguard existing and allocated waste
management facilities from redevelopment to a non-waste use and/or the encroachment of
incompatible development unless alternative provision in the vicinity can be made in
accordance with the development plan; or it can be demonstrated that there is no longer a
need for a waste facility at that location.

This safeguarded waste site also sits within a larger area of land allocated as a waste site
in Policy SL3 of the Lincolnshire Minerals and Waste Local Plan: Site Locations document,
adopted December 2017 (allocation reference WS17-SK Vantage Park, Gonerby Moor).
The Minerals and Waste Planning Policy Team have therefore requested that appropriate
consideration is given to the need to safeguard these existing and allocated waste sites in
line with the requirements of Policy W8.

Conclusion on Minerals and Waste

The applicant has demonstrated through the submission of additional information which has
been considered by the local minerals and waste authority that the proposed development
will not result in any adverse impact on the operations of the existing waste site or impact
on the wider site allocated under policy SL3. The local minerals and waste authority,
Lincolnshire County Council has confirmed that they have no objections to the proposed
development subject to conditions securing the implementation of noise mitigation
measures. Officers therefore considered that the proposed development will not prejudice
the operation of the adjacent waste site, subject to the imposition of conditions as requested
by the County Council.

Lighting

Section 15 of the NPPF deals with Conserving and Enhancing the Natural Environment.
Paragraph 180 of the NPPF states that planning policies and decisions should ensure that
new development is appropriate for its location taking into account the likely effects
(including cumulative effects) of pollution on health, living conditions and the natural
environment, as well as the potential sensitivity of the site or wider area to impacts that could
arise from the development. In doing so they should, amongst other things, limit the impact
of light pollution from artificial light on local amenity, intrinsically dark landscapes and nature
conservation.

Policy EN1 of the Core Strategy states that all development proposals will be assessed,
amongst other things in relation to any potential impacts resulting from light pollution. In the
absence of any other specifically relevant policy the applicants have also referred to Policy
SAP3 ‘Supporting Local Business in Local Service Centres’ which states that within, or on
the edge of, Local Service Centres proposals for the expansion of existing employment
development will be supported provided that the proposals meet all of the following criteria
(for the purpose of this section of the report, only the points relating to light and light pollution
have been listed):

e The proposed development will not negatively impact on existing neighbouring land uses
through, noise, traffic, light and pollution impacts.

69



8.25.3

8.25.4

8.25.5

8.25.6

8.25.7

8.25.8

8.26

8.26.1

8.26.2

Whilst the site cannot be considered to be on the edge of Great Gonerby for the purposes
of policy SAP3. The assessment does take into account all necessary material planning
considerations and in particular the requirements of policy EN1 of the Core Strategy, which
indicates that all development proposals will be assessed in relation to light pollution.

The proposed development will feature external lighting in order to ensure a suitable safe
environment for visitors and staff at night. A Light Impact Assessment has been submitted
to support the application and the ES, in order to ensure that the lighting from the proposed
development does not cause unacceptable impacts to nearby residential and non-residential
receptors. The baseline measurements indicate that the existing area is well lit with an
average after dark illuminance of 5.37 Lux on the perimeter. There are a number of
commercial and industrial units on Occupation Lane and Palmer Road which are already
well lit with a similar baseline lighting level to the site boundary.

As this is an outline application an indicative lighting scheme has been used to assess the
potential impacts from the development. The design uses lighting with 0% upward lighting
to minimise sky glow and promote a Dark Skies policy. A column height of 8 m was also
used for the assessment.

The applicants have modelled the likely impacts of an indicative lighting scheme and this
demonstrates that the light spillage from the development is predicted to be negligible at all
potentially sensitive receptor locations. Light increase due to spillage from the development
is considered to be minimal with a maximum increase of 3.48 Lux at measuring point 12
adjacent to Richmond House Furniture store to the south east of the site. This is due to the
proximity of the column mounted luminaires for the car park but this is not considered to be
a particularly sensitive location as there are only a few windows in the existing unit facing
the site and these would be illuminated during trading hours when the proposed lighting
would be in operation.

Conclusion on Lighting

The Council’s Environmental Protection Team has been consulted and raised no objections
to the proposed development. It has been demonstrated that the proposed development
will not result in any significant adverse impacts as a result of light pollution. The proposals
are therefore considered acceptable subject to the imposition of a condition requiring
detailed lighting plans to be submitted prior to any development taking place. Subject to the
imposition of conditions it is considered that the proposed development would comply with
the requirements of policy EN1 of the Core Strategy and that any potential light pollution
could be suitably mitigated such that the development would have a negligible effect on the
surrounding area.

Heritage

The Environmental Statement which accompanies the planning application contains a
section on the heritage impacts of the development. The application site does not contain
any heritage assets. However the surrounding villages do have designated Conservation
Areas and/or contain numerous Listed Buildings. There are also three Historic Parks and
Gardens within the study area. The assessment has therefore focused on the setting of
heritage assets in their wider surroundings and whether the proposed development will
affect how these assets are experienced (and therefore their heritage significance) as a
result of any changes to their setting.

When considering whether to grant planning permission for developments which affect a
listed building or its setting, Section 66 of the Planning (Listed Building and Conservation
Areas) Act 1990 requires the local planning authority to have special regard to the
desirability of preserving the building or its setting. Similarly Section 72 of the Act requires
special attention to be paid to the desirability of preserving or enhancing the character or
appearance of Conservation Areas.

70



8.26.3

8.26.4

8.26.5

8.26.6

8.26.7

8.26.8

8.26.9

Paragraph 193 of the NPPF states that when considering the impact of a proposed
development on the significance of a designated heritage asset, great weight should be
given to the asset’s conservation (and the more important the asset, the greater the weight
should be). This is irrespective of whether any potential harm amounts to substantial harm,
total loss or less than substantial harm to its significance.

Paragraph 195 of the NPPF states that where a proposed development will lead to
substantial harm to (or total loss of significance of) a designated heritage asset, local
planning authorities should refuse consent, unless it can be demonstrated that the
substantial harm or total loss is necessary to achieve substantial public benefits that
outweigh the harm or loss, or all of the following apply:

The nature of the heritage asset prevents all reasonable uses of the site; and

No viable use of the heritage asset itself can be found in the medium term through
appropriate marketing that will enable its conservation; and

Conservation by grant-funding or some form of not for profit, charitable or public ownership
is demonstrably not possible; and

The harm or loss is outweighed by the benefits of bringing the site back into use.

Paragraph 196 of the NPPF makes it clear that where development proposals will lead to
less than substantial harm to the significance of a designated heritage asset, the harm
should be weighed against the public benefits of the proposal.

Paragraph 197 of the NPPF indicates that the effect of an application on the significance
of non-designated heritage assets should also be taken into account when determining
planning applications. In weighing applications that directly or indirectly affect non-
designated heritage assets, a balanced judgement will be required having regard to the
scale of any harm or loss and the significance of the heritage asset.

In addition to the above requirements Policy EN1 of the Core Strategy establishes that all
applications should be considered in terms of their impact on 14 criteria including:

1. statutory, national and local designations of landscape features, including natural and
historic assets

2 local distinctiveness and sense of place

3 historic character, patterns and attributes of the landscape

4.  the layout and scale of buildings and designed spaces

5.  the quality and character of the built fabric and their settings

6 the condition of the landscape

7 biodiversity and ecological networks within the landscape

8 public access to and community value of the landscape

9. remoteness and tranquillity

10. visual intrusion

11. noise and light pollution

12. Conservation Area Appraisals and Village Design Statements, where these have
been adopted by the Council

13. impact on controlled waters

14. protection of existing open space (including allotments and public open space, and
open spaces important to the character, setting and separation of built-up areas)

The EIA Scoping Opinion for the development noted that there are no heritage assets in
the immediate vicinity of the site, but that there is potential for the development to impact
those in the wider area such as Belvoir Castle, St Peter’'s Church at Foston, and Allington
and Great Gonerby Conservation Areas. Having regard to the Scoping advice a study area
approximately 5km from the site was adopted, with Belvoir Castle identified as the only
heritage asset beyond the study area that is potentially affected by the proposed
development.

The analysis demonstrates that for all of the examined heritage assets, the proposed
development has no material adverse effect on their setting, and therefore none on their

71



significance. This is mainly on account of the fact that the identified heritage assets fall
well outside of the development’s zone of visual influence. The effect on the significance
of the examined heritage assets in therefore considered to be Neutral in all cases.

8.26.10 The analysis does identify a visual connection between the application site and the Grade

8.26.11

| listed Belvoir Castle, which is located approximately 9 km to the southwest of the site.
This is on account of the Castle’s hilltop location, making it a visible landmark across an
extensive area within the Vale of Belvoir. Notwithstanding this the application site forms a
very minor component within the panoramic views from the Castle and from vantage points
within its extensive grounds. The assessment notes that the redevelopment of the site is
unlikely to be a discernible change in the outlook and therefore concludes that the
proposed development will have a neutral impact on the significance of Belvoir Castle and
the Registered Park & Garden and that overall the proposed landscaping works could
result in a negligible positive impact overall.

Conclusion on Heritage

8.26.12 The Council’'s Conservation Officer and Historic England have raised no objections to the

8.27

8.271

8.27.2

8.27.3

8.27.4

8.27.5

8.27.6

proposed development. The application site is located within an existing employment area
and would be viewed alongside the existing industrial units and the A1. The development
will not result in any harm to the significance of nearby heritage assets and therefore
complies with all relevant statutory requirements, advice contained within the NPPF and
the requirements of Policy EN1 of the Core Strategy.

Residential Amenity

Section 12 of the NPPF set out how the governments approach to achieving well designed
places and states that the creation of high quality buildings and places is fundamental to
what the planning and development process should achieve. At a local level Policy EN1 of
the Core Strategy seeks to protect and enhance the character of the district and protect the
amenities of the occupiers of existing and proposed developments.

The site is located within an existing employment land allocation and has a long established
retail use. There are a number of large industrial warehouses adjacent to the site as well as
a petrol filling station and hotel. The A1 trunk road is also located directly to the west of the
site. There are three residential properties located adjacent to the application site boundary.
Shady Nook which is located on the eastern edge of the site just north of the Occupation
Lane access point, The Croft which is located to the north west of the roundabout junction
between the B1174 and Occupation Lane and Homelands which is located to the north of
the existing distribution centre accessed of Allington Lane East.

The site is already used for retail and distribution purposes and therefore already has a
significant number of visitors. The proposed development will however significantly increase
the number of visitors coming and going from the site. The submitted ES has demonstrated
that the increase in traffic movements will not result in any significant additional noise and
disturbance to the nearest properties.

Furthermore, as already detailed in this report the ES has demonstrated that any potential
impacts from the proposed development relating to lighting, noise, air pollution,
contamination and flood risk can all be suitably mitigated through the imposition of
conditions.

Conclusion on Residential Amenity

It is therefore concluded that the development will not result in any significant adverse
impacts on residential amenity and complies with the requirements of the NPPF and the
relevant policies contained in the Development Plan.

72



9.0

9.1

9.2

9.3

9.4

9.5

9.6

9.7

9.8

9.9

9.10

Proposed Section 106 Obligations

The Council’s adopted Planning Obligations SPD helps to ensure development proposals
make a positive contribution to sustainable development by providing social, economic and
environmental mitigation measures. The SPD seeks to ensure that contributions are
sought from development where there is a recognised need to mitigate the impact of the
proposal. Section 106 Planning Obligations must be in accordance with the Community
Infrastructure Regulations 2010 and the relevant test for planning obligations. Regulation
122 sets out the relevant tests and states that a planning obligation may only constitute a
reason for granting planning permission for the development if the obligations is:

a) Necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms;
b) Directly related to the development; and
c) Fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the development.

Policy SP4 of the Core Strategy states that the Council will enter into planning obligations
with developers to secure the provision of (or financial contributions towards) infrastructure
and community benefits which the council considers are necessary in conjunction with
development. The policy goes on to reiterate the planning obligation tests as set out in the
CIL Regulations.

The applicant’s submitted a list of draft S106 heads of terms as part of the application
submission and following the Council’'s assessment, the following obligations are
proposed:

Tourist Information and Visitor Centre — This will secure a 62 sgm unit on the site which
will be used to support tourism initiatives, help to promote town centre events and to
encourage tourists and visitors to extend their stay and visit Grantham town centre and the
surrounding area. This will help to secure some of the benefits of linked trips from visitors
coming to the development.

Pop-up Shop — A pop-up shop will be provided as part of the development in order to
enable Grantham town centre retailers to be showcased and help promote the retailers
within the town centre.

Improved Bus Service — The existing bus service to the site from Grantham town centre
will be enhanced by way of increased frequency with one service every 30mins during the
peak periods and one service every hour during off peak periods in order to provide
improved sustainable transport connections between the site and Grantham town centre.
This will provide improved sustainable public transport links between the site and the town
centre enabling visitors and staff to access the site without relying on the private motor
vehicle. This links in with the proposed Travel Plan details set out below.

Travel Plan — A detailed Travel Plan for both staff and visitors will be secured in order to
help promote sustainable modes of transport and reduce the dependency on the car. A
contribution of £1000 per annum would also be secured in order to ensure that the Travel
Plan is effectively monitored.

Directional Signage — A contribution of £30,000 will be made towards improving
directional signage and car park signage in the town centre. This will help to mitigate some
of the potential impacts on Grantham town centre by promoting linked trips and improving
signage facilities within the town centre.

Car Park Signage — A contribution of £150,000 is sought in order to provide improved live
car parking signs within 5 car parking sites within Grantham. This will help to improve
facilities in the centre helping to mitigate some of the impacts of the proposed development.

Tourism Initiatives — A contribution of £75,000 is required towards the promotion of
tourism activities within Grantham town centre.

73



9.11

9.12

9.13

9.14

9.15

9.16

9.17

9.18

10.0

10.1

10.2

Tourism Manager — A contribution of £75,000 towards the employment and functions of
the Grantham Town Centre tourism manager

Town Centre Improvements — A contribution of £150,000 towards Grantham town centre
improvements in order to help improve facilities and the public realm in the town centre.

A Retail Skills Academy —The provision of a retail skills academy on site or a contribution
of £65,000 in order to deliver learning and development programmes in association with
local educational establishments and businesses. This will help to secure socio-economic
benefits helping to address some of the skills issues within the district relating to the
development.

Occupancy Restrictions — The proposed S106 will also include an occupancy
requirements clause in order to ensure that the development takes the form of a ‘tier 1’ DOC
ensuring that the development is only occupied by high end retailers. This is a crucial
requirement as this is the basis on which the application has been assessed and is
necessary to ensure that the DOC development does not operate as a direct rival to the
town centre. A no poaching clause will also be required to ensure that no retail units are
occupied by a retailer which occupies a retail unit in Grantham town centre, Newark or
Balderton unless that retailer has submitted to the Local Planning Authority (and had
approved) a scheme which contains a binding commitment on the retailer to retaining their
presence as a retailer within that town centre. Such scheme shall require the retailer to
continue to operate from Grantham town centre, Newark or Balderton for a period of five
years.

Restrictions on the existing Downtown Store — In order to ensure that the existing store
continues to operate on a similar bases and in line with the way in which the impacts of
this development proposal have been assessed it is necessary to place controls on the
existing store. These include restrictions to ensure that it is not sub-divided into smaller
units and to prevent any significant increase in the proportion of floorspace that can be
used for the sale of non-bulky comparison goods. A no poaching clause similar to that
outlined above would also be required in relation to the existing store.

Appendix F set out the Council’s assessment of the measures proposed for the planning
obligation against the CIL Regulation 122 tests and should be read in conjunction with this
section of the report.

For the reasons set out in the appendix, it is considered appropriate and necessary to enter
into a S106 planning obligation in order to ensure that the proposed mitigation measures
of the proposed Designer Outlet Centre are secured and delivered.

The above required obligations are all considered to comply with the requirements of the
Community infrastructure Regulations 2010, in particular regulation 122 relating to the
relevant tests for securing obligations and regulation 123 which restricts the pooling of
obligations.

Conclusion and Planning Balance of the Principle of Development

Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 sets out the statutory
position for the determination of planning applications and requires that proposals are
determined in accordance with the development plan unless material considerations indicate
otherwise.

The development would be contrary to the requirements policy E1 of the 1995 local plan
which is still a saved policy. However saved policy E1 has been superseded in relation to
the application site by the publication and adoption of the South Kesteven Site Allocation
and Policies DPD (SAP) and cannot be viewed to be up to date. The Site Allocations and
Policies Plans show that employment allocation E1.1 of the 1995 Local Plan deleted and
replaced by Policy SAP5 (ExE LSC1) which now identifies the application site as part of a
wider locally important existing employment site, and precludes non-employment uses

74



10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7

10.8

within such areas unless certain criteria have been met. It is considered that whilst the
proposal complies with the general aims of the policy it is recognised that there is some
tension with its criteria, in particular the reduction in the overall supply and quality of
employment land and premises within the area, such that the policy is considered to be
breached. The application has been advertised as a departure to the development plan
given that tension.

Although the site is located outside of Grantham to the north of Great Gonerby at Gonerby
Moor it is considered to function as part of the Grantham economy and it is considered that
the development of a Designer Outlet Centre at the application site would help to support
and strengthen Grantham’s role as a Sub-Regional Centre. The development can therefore
be considered to comply with the wider aims of policy SP1 of the Core Strategy even though
the site is not located within or on the edge of the town itself.

With regard to policy SP3 of the core strategy which relates specifically to sustainable
integrated transport the supporting ES has demonstrated that the traffic impacts from the
proposal can be suitably mitigated through the use of conditions and a planning obligation.
A number of junction improvements will be undertaken as part of the development and a
Travel Plan will also be secured. Contributions will also be made to improve the signage
and car parking within and around Grantham Town Centre as well as to enhance the existing
bus service between the site and the town centre.

With regard to Policy EN1 of the adopted Core Strategy and taking into account the
information contained in the supporting ES it is considered that subject to appropriate
mitigation measures being secured through planning conditions, the proposed development
will not result in any significant adverse impacts on the visual amenity of the area, pollution
for light and noise or have any significant adverse impacts on the local ecology and heritage
assets.

The site is considered to be at low risk of flooding and subject to conditions the proposed
development is considered to be able to comply with the requirements of policy EN2 of the
core strategy relating to reducing the risk of flooding from developments.

With regard to Policy E1 of the core strategy and policy SAP5 of the SAP it is noted that
although the site is allocated for employment land the majority of the site has been used for
retail purposes for the last 20 years. The application complies with the primary requirements
of both policy E1 & SAP5 as it has been demonstrated that the redevelopment of the site
would not be detrimental to the overall supply and quality or employment land within the
district, albeit that it is judged that there is tension with some of the criteria of the policy.
Specifically it has not been demonstrated that the site is vacant and no longer appropriate
or viable as an employment allocation. The development would also result in a reduction in
the overall supply of employment land in the area.

It is however considered that the development will deliver wide economic regeneration
benefits to the site and surrounding area that outweigh any harm caused by the small
reduction in the overall supply of employment land within the district. The significant
benefits the scheme would deliver include the creation of up to 240 local temporary
construction jobs per year over the 2.5 year construction period; up to 1,239 full time
equivalent local jobs; the opportunity to clawback spend currently ‘leaked’ to other
Designer Outlet Centres outside of the district; increase tourism and visitor footfall in the
District by enhancing the image of Grantham as a retail, leisure and visitor destination;
provide start-up office accommodation to support small businesses; help to deliver
educational and skills improvements via the development of the Training Academy or the
through the provision of a contribution to support the delivery of a training scheme targeted
at assisting residents of the District to develop the skills and experience required to secure
a job or apprenticeship in the retail or fashion or leisure industry and finally provide
improvements to Grantham town centre as part of a comprehensive S106 planning
obligation.

75



10.9

10.10

10.11

10.12

11.0

12.0

12.1

12.2

13.0

13.1

13.2

In relation to policy E2 of the adopted core strategy which relates to retail development and
chapter 7 of the NPPF, the applicants have undertaken a detailed retail impact assessment
which has been independently reviewed by the Council’s professional retail consultants. A
detail sequential assessment looking at alternative sites has been undertaken and reviewed
and it is considered that there are no sequentially preferable site for the development. Itis
considered that the development would help to strengthen Grantham as a Sub-Regional
Centre.

The proposed development would be contrary to policies E1 and SAP5 as detailed above
and therefore represents a departure from the adopted development plan. Whilst the
departure is limited to the employment policy section of the plan it is still considered to be
contrary to the plan as a whole and in particular the criteria set out in policy E1 of the Core
Strategy and policy SAP5. However, it is considered that the significant benefits which arise
from the development identified at 10.8 above would nonetheless outweigh the policy
conflict (having regard to the balance of harm and benefits) and therefore it is recommended
that permission should be granted subject to the necessary referral to the Secretary of State.

In assessing this application and coming to these conclusions the Council has had regard
to the submitted Environmental Statement, associated appendices and addendums as
required by Regulation 3 and Regulation 26 of the Town and Country Planning
(Environmental Impact Assessment) Regulations 2017 and the information submitted is
considered acceptable in principle. The imposition of conditions and obligations will be
necessary to ensure that the environmental effects of the proposed development are
mitigated where necessary. The conditions are set out in the recommendation section of
this report.

In reaching this conclusion officers have also had regard to the requirements of the
Equalities Act 2010.

Crime and Disorder

It is considered that the proposal would not result in any significant crime and disorder
implications.

Human Rights Implications

Articles 6 (Rights to fair decision making) and Article 8 (Right to private family life and home)
of the Human Rights Act have been taken into account in making this recommendation.

It is considered that no relevant Article of that act will be breached.
Recommendation:

Defer to the Chairman or Vice-Chairman in consultation with the Head of Development
Management for approval subject to the provision of a S106 planning obligation in
accordance with the requirements set out within this report, final approval of the conditions
below and providing that the Secretary of State does not call the application in for
determination. Where the S106 planning obligation has not been provided prior to the
Committee, a period not exceeding six months after the date upon which the Secretary of
State has confirmed that the application will not be called in shall be set for the completion
of that obligation.

In the event that the S106 planning obligation has not been submitted within the six month
period and where, in the opinion of the Head of Development Management, there are no
extenuating circumstances which would justify a further extension of time, the related
planning application shall be refused planning permission for appropriate reason(s) on the
basis that the necessary criteria essential to make what would otherwise be unacceptable
development acceptable have not been forthcoming.

76



14.0

Proposed Conditions

Defined Terms Used in This Decision:

Tim

1

“‘Enabling Works" include surveying, environmental and hazardous substance
testing and sampling (including the making of trial boreholes, window sampling and
test pits in connection with such testing and sampling), soil tests, remediation works,
pegging out, tree protection, ecological survey and mitigation works, archaeological
investigation, demolition and removal of buildings and other structures, not otherwise
controlled by conditions.

“Retail Outlet Units” means any unit constructed within the area shown coloured pink
on the Land Use Parameter Plan (drawing Number 16-1007-(08)AZ-00009).

e Limit for Commencement

The development hereby permitted shall be commenced before the expiration of three
years from the date of this permission or two years from the approval of the last of the
reserved matters, whichever is the latter.

Reason: In order that the development is commenced in a timely manner, as set out in
Section 92 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended).

Details of the reserved matters set out below shall have been submitted to the Local
Planning Authority for approval within three years from the date of this permission:

i. layout;

ii. scale

iii. appearance
iv. landscaping

Approval of all reserved matters shall have been obtained from the Local Planning
Authority in writing before any development is commenced and the Development shall
be carried out in accordance with the reserved matters as approved.

Reason: To enable the Local Planning Authority to control the development in detail
and in order that the development is commenced in a timely manner, as set out in
Section 92 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended).

Approved Plans

3

The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in accordance with
the approved drawings and plans as set out below:

e 16-1007-(08)AZ-00001C - Location Plan

e 16-1007-(08)AZ-00002 - Existing Site Plan

e 16-1007-(08)AZ-00003A - Block Plan (in respect of the position of the access
only)

e 16-1007-(08)AZ-00004A - Masterplan (in respect of the position of the access

only)

16-1007-

16-1007-

16-1007-

16-1007-

08)AZ-00009 - Parameters Plan - Land Use
08)AZ-00010B - Parameters Plan - Building Heights
08)AZ-00011 - Parameters Plan - Primary Circulation
08)AZ-00012 - Parameters Plan - Landscaping

o~~~ A~

77



4.

Unless otherwise required by another condition of this permission.
Reason: To define the permission and for the avoidance of doubt.

The development hereby approved shall not be carried out until a Construction Phasing
Scheme has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

The development shall only be implemented in accordance with the approved
Construction Phasing Plans

Reason: In order to ensure that the construction phase of the development does not
have any significant adverse impact on the local environment or residential amenity, in
accordance with policy EN1 of the adopted South Kesteven Core Strategy 2010.

Before the Development is Commenced

5

No development hereby approved shall commence (other than Enabling Works) until
details of the materials to be used for the external surfaces of the buildings forming part
of the development have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority.

Reason: To ensure that the works are sympathetic to the visual amenities of the locality
and in accordance with Policy EN1 of the adopted South Kesteven Core Strategy (July
2010).

No development hereby approved shall commence (other than Enabling Works) until a
scheme detailing the external hard and soft landscaping and arboricultural works,
including planting, works to existing and retained trees and hedges, fencing, walls,
surface treatment and construction details, has been submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To ensure that the works are sympathetic to the site and surroundings, to
enhance the biodiversity of the development and in accordance with Policy EN1 of the
adopted South Kesteven Core Strategy (July 2010).

No development hereby approved shall commence (other than Enabling Works) until a
programme detailing the phasing and timing of the delivery of the approved hard and
soft landscaping works pursuant to Condition 6 has been submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To ensure that the works are sympathetic to the site and surroundings, to
enhance the biodiversity of the development and in accordance with Policy EN1 of the
adopted South Kesteven Core Strategy (July 2010).

No development hereby approved shall commence (other than Enabling Works) until
the signage strategy for the development including vehicular directional signage, has
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: In order to provide a cohesive sign provision within the site, in the interests of
visual amenity and in accordance with Policy EN1 of the adopted South Kesteven Core
Strategy (July 2010).

No development (other than Enabling Works) shall commence until a comprehensive
scheme for lighting of the external areas of the application site and proposed buildings

78



10

11

12

has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The
scheme shall include:

a) updated lighting impact assessment taking into account the detailed design
proposals;

b) details of lighting of and luminance from buildings, store windows, service areas,
car parks, under floor zones, signage and advertising boards;

c) Measures to minimise light pollution or obtrusive light external to the development;
and

d) Timetable of the implementation of the approved lighting.

Reason: In order to provide a cohesive lighting provision within the site, in the interests
of visual amenity and in accordance with Policy EN1 of the adopted South Kesteven
Core Strategy (July 2010).

The development hereby approved shall not commence until, details of tree and hedge
protection measures (in accordance with BS5837 (2012) Trees in Relation to Design,
Demolition and Construction-Recommendations) have been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To ensure adequate protection to retained trees and hedges and in
accordance with Policy EN1 of the adopted South Kesteven Core Strategy (July 2010).

The development hereby approved shall not commence (other than Enabling Works)
until details of the on-site public transport facilities and infrastructure have been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: In order to provide adequate infrastructure and facilities for public transport to
serve the development.

No Enabling Works shall take place until a Construction and Environmental
Management Plan (CEMP) has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority in relation to those Enabling Works. No development (other than
Enabling Works) shall take place under this planning permission until a CEMP has been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

The relevant CEMP shall include but not be limited to:

Enabling Works:

a) The overall strategy for managing environmental impacts which are likely to arise
during the construction phase;

b) Management of construction traffic and access/haul routes and parking to and from
the site, including monitoring and enforcement measures;

c) Location of contractors compounds and method of moving materials, plant and
equipment around the site;

d) A Site Waste Management Plan (SWMP) setting out a scheme for
sorting/recycling/disposing of waste from construction works; and

e) A signage strategy for construction traffic.

Construction (in addition to a) - e):

f) The parking of site operatives and visitor's vehicles;

g) Loading and unloading of plant and materials;

h) The erection and maintenance of security hoarding including decorative displays
and facilities for public viewing, where appropriate;

i)  Wheel cleaning facilities, including any other methods of prevention of mud being
carried onto the highway;

79



13

14.

15

j) Identification of the times when major items of plant and equipment are to be
transported to and from the site;

k) Identification of procedures for the notification and conveyance of indivisible ‘out of
gauge’ loads. This includes any necessary measures for the temporary protection
of carriageway surfaces; for the protection of statutory undertakers’ plant and
equipment; and for the temporary removal of street furniture;

[) Description of the methods of transport to be used by personnel to minimise overall
traffic impact on the road network leading to the construction site;

m) Proposals for communicating information to the local planning authority,
Lincolnshire County Council and Highways England.

n) Access and protection arrangements around the site for pedestrians, cyclists and
other road users during construction;

o) Details of any temporary traffic restrictions

p) Measures to control the emission of water pollution, sediment, dust and dirt during
construction;

q) details of a dust management plan setting out how dust will be controlled during
the construction phase of the development

r) Working hours for earthworks, demolition and construction shall be restricted to
between 07:00-18:00 Mondays to Fridays, 08:00-13:00 Saturdays and No Sunday
/ Bank Holiday working unless pre-planned and agreed in writing with the Local
Planning Authority.

s) Community liaison initiatives, including identification of a dedicated point of contact;

t) No open fires.

u) Details of any lighting to be used during the construction phase

v) Ecological restrictions and considerations including:

a. Any removal of trees, scrub or hedgerow shall not take place in the bird-
breeding season between March and August inclusive, unless a mitigation
scheme for the protection of bird-nesting habitats has been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

w) Drainage control measures including the use of oil interceptors and bunds;

X) Heights of storage areas for materials or equipment

Reason: To ensure the development is carried out to minimise the impact on the
environment.

No development shall commence until a foul water strategy has been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority to include details of works for the
disposal of foul water drainage.

Reason: To prevent flooding, pollution and detriment to public amenity through the
provision of suitable water infrastructure.

No drainage works shall commence until a surface water management strategy has
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. No hard-
standing areas shall be constructed until the works for the disposal of surface water
identified in the approved surface water management strategy have been carried out in
accordance with the surface water strategy approved by the Local Planning Authority].

Reason: To prevent environmental and amenity problems arising from flooding.
No part of the development hereby approved (other than the Enabling Works) shall
commence until details of the proposed play areas and a scheme for their ongoing

maintenance and management have been submitted to and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority.

80



16

17

18

19

Reason: In order to provide a cohesive plan for the play areas within the site, in the
interests of visual amenity and in accordance with Policy EN1 of the adopted South
Kesteven Core Strategy (July 2010).

No part of the development hereby approved (other than Enabling Works) shall
commence until details of crime prevention measures shall have been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: In order to minimise the risk of crime.

No part of the development hereby approved shall commence until a scheme relating
to the survey of the land for contamination has been submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall include:

i. A desk top study documenting all the previous and existing land uses of the site
and adjacent land;

i. A site investigation report assessing the ground conditions of the site and
incorporating chemical and gas analysis identified as appropriate by the desk top
study;

iii. A detailed scheme for remedial works and measures to be undertaken to avoid risk
from contaminants and/or gases when the site is developed and proposals for
future maintenance and monitoring; and

iv. The nomination of a competent person to oversee the implementation of the works.

Reason: Previous activities associated with this site may have caused, or had the
potential to cause, land contamination and to ensure that the proposed site
investigations and remediation will not cause pollution in the interests of the amenities
of the future residents and users of the development; and in accordance with Policy
EN1 of the adopted South Kesteven Core Strategy (July 2010) and national guidance
contained in the NPPF.

No part of the development hereby permitted shall commence until details of all
surface water drainage matters have been submitted to and approved in writing by
the Local Planning Authority in consultation with Highways England. The development
shall be carried out in accordance with the approved scheme.

The applicant should note that in accordance with paragraph 50 of Circular 02/2013,
no water run-off that may arise due to any change of use will be accepted into the
highway drainage systems, and there shall be no new connections into those systems
from third party development and drainage systems.

Reason: To ensure that the A1 and A52 Trunk Roads continue to serve their purpose
as part of a national system of routes for through traffic in accordance with Section
10(2) of the Highways Act 1980 by minimising disruption on the trunk road resulting
from traffic entering and emerging from the application site and in the interests of road
safety.

No part of the development hereby permitted shall commence until a Construction
Traffic Management Plan has been submitted to and approved in writing by the local
planning authority in consultation with Highways England. The development shall be
carried out in accordance with the approved plan.

Reason: To ensure that the A1 and A52 Trunk Roads continue to serve their purpose

as part of a national system of routes for through traffic in accordance with Section
10(2) of the Highways Act 1980 by minimising disruption on the trunk road resulting

81



20

21

22

23

from traffic entering and emerging from the application site and in the interests of road
safety.

No part of the development hereby permitted shall commence until details of the
boundary treatment adjacent to the A1 Trunk Road boundary have been submitted to
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority in consultation with Highways
England. The approved boundary treatment shall thereafter be constructed in
accordance with the approved plans, and maintained in perpetuity.

Reason: To ensure that the A1 and A52 Trunk Roads continue to serve their purpose
as part of a national system of routes for through traffic in accordance with Section
10(2) of the Highways Act 1980 by minimising disruption on the trunk road resulting
from traffic entering and emerging from the application site and in the interests of road
safety.

No part of the development hereby approved shall commence on site until a scheme
for protecting the proposed training centre and retail units from external noise has been
submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. Where acoustic
glazing is required, as identified in the accompanying Environmental Statement, precise
details of the proposed glazing shall be submitted as part of the scheme.

Reason: To ensure that the proposed development does not have a detrimental impact
on the future operations of adjacent industrial units and to protect the future occupiers
of the proposed buildings, in accordance with policy EN1 of the Core Strategy.

No part of the development hereby approved shall commence until further surveys
have been undertaken to investigate the potential for great crested newts to be
present on or in the vicinity of the site, in accordance with the recommended
mitigation measures set out in paragraphs 9.7.2 - 9.7.5 of the supporting
Environmental Statement October 2017 and such surveys have been submitted to
and approved by the Local Planning Authority. If the approved surveys confirm the
presence of great crested newts details of the proposed mitigation measures and the
timing for their implementation shall also be submitted to and approved in writing by
the local planning authority prior to the commencement of any development. The
agreed mitigation measures shall be implemented in accordance with the
implementation timetable approved by the local planning authority.

Reason: To protect the local wildlife in accordance with the requirements of the NPPF
and Policy EN1 of the adopted South Kesteven Core Strategy 2010.

Before the development hereby permitted is commenced, plans showing the existing
and proposed land levels of the site including [site sections, spot heights, contours and
the finished floor levels of all buildings] with reference to [neighbouring properties/an
off site datum point] shall have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority.

Reason: In the interests of the visual amenities of the area and in accordance with
Policy EN1 of the adopted South Kesteven Core Strategy (July 2010).

During Building Works

24

The tree and hedge protection measures approved by the Local Planning Authority
pursuant to Condition 10 shall be fully implemented before the construction of the
development and retained during the construction of the development.

82



25

26

Reason: To ensure that the trees and hedges to be retained are protected during
development, to enhance the biodiversity of the development and in accordance with
Policy EN1 of the adopted South Kesteven Core Strategy (July 2010).

The CEMP for the development approved by the Local Planning Authority pursuant to
Condition 12 shall be fully implemented and complied with throughout the Enabling
Works and construction of the development, as appropriate.

Reason: To ensure the development is carried out to minimise the impact on the
environment.

The arboricultural work forming part of the development shall be carried out fully in
accordance with the details approved by the Local Planning Authority pursuant to
Condition 6 including the approved timetable forming part thereof and to the standards
contained in BS 3998 Tree Work & BS 5837 Trees in Relation to Construction.

Reason: To ensure adequate management to retained trees and hedges and in
accordance with Policy EN1 of the adopted South Kesteven Core Strategy (July 2010).

Before the Development is Occupied

27

28

29

30

31

The development shall be carried out in accordance with the details of external surfaces
approved by the Local Planning Authority pursuant to Condition 5 before the use
commences.

Reason: To protect the visual amenities of the locality and in accordance with Policy
EN1 of the adopted South Kesteven Core Strategy (July 2010).

The development shall be carried out in accordance with the landscaping details
approved by the Local Planning Authority pursuant to Condition X.

Reason: To ensure that the works are sympathetic to the site and surroundings, to
enhance the biodiversity of the development and in accordance with Policy EN1 of the
adopted South Kesteven Core Strategy (July 2010).

The landscape works for the development approved by the local Planning Authority
pursuant to Condition 6 shall be carried out in accordance with the programme
approved by the Local Planning Authority pursuant to Condition 7.

Reason: To ensure that the works are sympathetic to the site and surroundings, to
enhance the biodiversity of the development and in accordance with Policy EN1 of the
adopted South Kesteven Core Strategy (July 2010).

The signage strategy for the development approved by the Local Planning Authority
pursuant to Condition 8 shall be fully implemented and delivered in accordance with the
approved details prior to the development being first brought into use and thereafter
shall be so maintained.

Reason: In order to provide a cohesive sign provision within the site, in the interests of
visual amenity and in accordance with Policy EN1 of the adopted South Kesteven Core
Strategy (July 2010).

No development shall be occupied until a scheme has been submitted to and
approved in writing by the local planning authority for a signage strategy to

83



32

33

34

35

36

37

discourage drivers from using Gonerby Lane and Allington Road. The approved
scheme shall be fully implemented either before the development is first brought into
use or in accordance with a phasing programme approved by the local planning
authority as part of the approved scheme.

Reason: To ensure safe access to the site and avoid excessive traffic through Allington
and Sedgebrook in the interests of residential amenity, convenience and safety.

The lighting scheme approved by the Local Planning Authority pursuant to Condition 9
shall be fully implemented and delivered in accordance with the approved details and
in accordance with the timetable approved by the Local Planning Authority as part of
that scheme and shall thereafter be so retained.

Reason: In order to provide a cohesive lighting provision within the site, in the interests
of visual amenity and in accordance with Policy EN1 of the adopted South Kesteven
Core Strategy (July 2010).

No part of the development shall be used or occupied until the works identified on
drawing number T17569/004 or any minor variation thereof as specified by the local
planning authority in conjunction with the local highway authority to improve the public
highway (by means of signalisation of Belton Lane/Newark Hill junction) have been
certified complete by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: In the interests of safety of the users of the public highway and safety of the
users of the site.

The on-site public transport facilities and infrastructure identified in the details approved
by the Local Planning Authority pursuant to Condition 11 shall be fully implemented and
delivered in accordance with the details approved by the Local Planning Authority
pursuant to Condition 11 prior to the use hereby approved first commencing and shall
thereafter be retained and maintained in accordance with the approved details.

Reason: In order to provide adequate infrastructure and facilities for public transport to
serve the development.

None of the buildings hereby approved shall be occupied or first brought into use until
works for the drainage of surface water have been fully implemented and delivered in
accordance with the details approved by the Local Planning Authority pursuant to
Condition 14 and shall be maintained thereafter.

Reason: To prevent flooding, pollution and detriment to public amenity through the
provision of suitable water infrastructure.

No buildings or units shall be occupied until the works for the disposal of foul water
drainage have been carried out in accordance with the foul water strategy approved by
the Local Planning Authority pursuant to condition 13. The approved foul water
drainage system shall be maintained thereafter in accordance with the approved
details.

Reason: To prevent flooding, pollution and detriment to public amenity through the
provision of suitable water infrastructure.

The proposed play area shall be laid out and delivered in accordance with the details
approved by the Local Planning Authority pursuant to Condition 15 prior to the first use

84



38

39

40

41

42

43

of any retail unit forming part of the development. The play area shall thereafter be
managed and maintained in accordance with the management and maintenance
scheme approved by the Local Planning Authority pursuant to Condition 15.

Reason: In order to provide a cohesive plan for the play areas within the site, in the
interests of visual amenity and in accordance with Policy EN1 of the adopted South
Kesteven Core Strategy (July 2010).

Prior to the first occupation of any unit forming part of the development a Landscape
and Environmental Management Plan (LEMP) for the management and maintenance
of landscaping, environmental and ecological features across the whole site shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: In order to ensure cohesive landscaping, environmental and ecological
features are managed in the interests of visual amenity and biodiversity and in
accordance with Policy EN1 of the adopted South Kesteven Core Strategy (July 2010).

The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied until the parking and servicing
areas forming part of the development including 1% electric car charging points as per
para. 7.3.2 of the Transport Assessment have been provided in accordance with a plan
to be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The parking
and servicing areas as approved shall be retained and shall always remain available
for those purposes.

Reason: In order to ensure the adequate provision of parking and servicing to serve the
development.

The training centre and retail units hereby approved shall not be occupied until the
noise mitigation measures approved by the Local Planning Authority in relation to
condition 21 above have been fully implemented.

Reason: To ensure that the proposed development does not have a detrimental impact
on the future operations of adjacent industrial units and to protect the future occupiers
of the proposed buildings, in accordance with policy EN1 of the Core Strategy.

The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied until a car park management
scheme has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
This management scheme shall include methods to control the operation of the car
parks including security, opening times and permitted duration of stay.

Reason: To ensure the satisfactory management of the parking for customers and staff
in the interests of highway safety.

No A3 unit hereby permitted shall first be brought into use until details relating to a
system for the extraction and filtration of fumes for that A3 unit have been submitted to
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority and the approved system for
that unit has been installed.

Reason: In the interests of amenity.

No building or unit hereby permitted shall first be brought into use until details of a waste
management plan for the operation of the development has been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The waste management plan shall
thereafter be implemented and the development shall be operated in accordance with
the approved plan.

85



44

45

46

Reason: To ensure adequate measures are in place to minimise the impact of waste
and in accordance with Policy EN1 of the adopted South Kesteven Core Strategy (July
2010).

Before any part of the development hereby permitted is occupied/brought into use, a
verification report confirming that remedial works identified in the scheme approved
pursuant to condition 17 have been completed shall have been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The report shall have been
submitted by the nominated competent person approved, as required by condition 17
above. The report shall include:

i. A complete record of remediation activities, and data collected as identified in the
remediation scheme, to support compliance with agreed remediation objectives;

ii. As built drawings of the implemented scheme;

iii. Photographs of the remediation works in progress; and

iv. Certificates demonstrating that imported and/or material left in situ is free from
contamination.

The scheme of remediation shall thereafter be maintained in accordance with the
approved scheme.

Reason: Previous activities associated with this site may have caused, or had the
potential to cause, land contamination and to ensure that the proposed site
investigations and remediation will not cause pollution in the interests of the amenities
of the future residents and users of the development; and in accordance with Policy
EN1 of the adopted South Kesteven Core Strategy (July 2010) and national guidance
contained in the NPPF.

No part of the development hereby permitted shall be first occupied or used until the
improvement works to the A1 / A52 Eastern Junction, as detailed on Systra Drawing
No. 106648-SK004 Rev. A have been fully implemented and open to traffic. The
approved scheme must comply with the requirements of the Design Manual for Roads
and Bridges, including those relating to road safety audit and Walking, Cycling, Horse-
Riding Assessment and Review.

Reason: To ensure that the A1 and A52 Trunk Roads continue to serve their purpose
as part of a national system of routes for through traffic in accordance with Section
10(2) of the Highways Act 1980 by minimising disruption on the trunk road resulting
from traffic entering and emerging from the application site and in the interests of road
safety.

No part of the development hereby permitted shall be first occupied or used until the
improvement works to the A1 / A52 Western Junction as shown in principle in PTB
Drawing Number T17569.102 Rev. B (or as amended by Road Safety Audit or
Detailed Design) have been fully completed and open to traffic. The approved
scheme must comply with the requirements of the Design Manual for Roads and
Bridges, including those relating to Road Safety Audit and Walking, Cycling and
Horse-Riding Assessment and Review procedures.

Reason: To ensure that the A1 and A52 Trunk Roads continue to serve their purpose

as part of a national system of routes for through traffic in accordance with Section
10(2) of the Highways Act 1980 by minimising disruption on the trunk road resulting

86



47

48

from traffic entering and emerging from the application site and in the interests of road
safety.

None of the buildings or units hereby approved shall be occupied until the existing
garden centre and distribution unit on that part of the application site shown in pink and
red on drawing 16-1007-(08)AZ-00009 have been demolished.

Reason: The application and supporting Environmental Statement have assessed the
impacts of the development on this basis.

Before any buildings hereby permitted are occupied/brought into use, the finished floor
levels for that building shall have been constructed in accordance with the approved
land levels details submitted in relation to condition 23.

Reason: In the interests of the visual amenities of the area and in accordance with
Policy EN1 of the adopted South Kesteven Core Strategy (July 2010).

Ongoing Conditions

49

The part of the development defined as the Retail-Outlet Units and shown coloured pink
on the Land Use Parameter Plan (drawing 16-1007-(08)AZ-00009) hereby approved shall
only be used and occupied in accordance with all of the following:

a) Notwithstanding the provisions of Class A1 of the Town and Country Planning (Use
Classes) Order 1987 (as amended) (or any Order revoking and re-enacting that
Order with or without modification) the Retail Outlet Units hereby approved shall be
used for specialist retailing as a Designer Outlet Centre with associated ancillary
facilities only and for no other purpose. For the purpose of this condition, specialist
retailing and Designer Outlet Centre means clearance stores operated by a)
manufacturers; b) retailers who do not directly manufacture but who either own their
own brand or retail branded goods; or c) the franchisees or licensees or stockists of
such manufacturers or retailers, in each case involving the retail sale of discounted
comparison goods, defined as previous seasons stock, run offs, over-runs, samples
of branded goods, goods produced for subsequently cancelled orders, market
testing lines, rejects, seconds, clearance goods and surplus stock and accessories.

b) In atleast 90% of the floorspace within the Retail Outlet Units that is used for sales
to members of the public, any goods offered for sale shall be priced at least 30%
below the recommended retail price (RRP) and such goods shall be limited to
discounted comparison goods, previous season's stock, run-offs, over-runs,
samples of branded goods, goods produced for subsequently cancelled orders,
market testing lines, rejects, seconds, clearance goods and surplus stock and
accessories.

c) Within 20 days of the anniversary of the opening of the Retail Outlet Units, if
requested by the Local Planning Authority, an annual report shall be submitted to
the Council providing information on the occupancy of all units within the Retail
Outlet Units part of the development, records of type of goods for sale for all Class
A1 units within the site, and compliance with 30% RRP discount pricing.

d) No Retail Outlet Unit hereby permitted shall be used for the primary retail sale of
garden products, computers and software and white goods and no unit hereby
permitted shall be occupied as a newsagent, chemists, travel agency, post office,
ticket agency (excluding the approved tourist information and visitor centre),
hairdressers, bank, or dry cleaners.

Reason: To define the permission and to ensure the retail offer accords with the offer
available in Designer Outlet Centres.

87



50

51

52

53

The maximum amounts of gross internal floor space for each use permitted by the
permission shall be limited as follows:

a) No more than 15,305 sq.m gross internal floor space within the application site is
to be used for Class A1 retail uses as part of the Retail Outlet Units ;

b) No more than 1,252 sq.m gross internal floor space within the application site is to
be used for Class A3 restaurant and café uses as part of the Retail Outlet Units;

c) No more than 1,147 sq.m gross internal floor space within the application site is to
be used for storage uses as part of the Retail Outlet Units

d) No more than 5,574 sq.m gross external floor space within the application site is to
be used for Class A1 retail uses as part of the large goods retail unit;

e) No more than 439 sqg.m gross external floor space within the application site is to
be used for Class D1 non-residential institutions uses;

f)  No more than 2,096 sq.m gross external floor space within the application site is to
be used for Class D2 assembly and leisure uses;

g) No more than 5,251 sq.m gross external floor space within the application site is to
be used for Class B1 office uses;

h) No more than 5,521 sq.m gross external floor space within the application site is to
be used as a garden centre, with no more than 1,393 sq.m gross external display
area; and

i) The remaining floor space shall only be used for the provision of toilet blocks,
storage, a Tourist Information & Visitor Centre and uses ancillary thereto.

Reason: To define the permission and to ensure the retail offer accords with the offer
available in Designer Outlet Centres.

No Retail Outlet Unit either as constructed pursuant to this permission or as a result of
any subsequent combination of units, shall exceed 1,200 sq.m gross internal floor
space (including any mezzanine floor space).

Reason: To define the extent of the permission and to control retail floorspace.

Notwithstanding the provisions of Class A1 of the Town and Country Planning (Use
Classes) Order 1987 (as amended) (or any Order revoking and re-enacting that Order
with or without modification):

(i) no building or part of any building hereby permitted shall be used for the sale of
convenience retail goods, other than confectionary and food and beverage related
gifts or within a restaurant or café for consumption on those premises; and

(i) no part of the garden centre shall be used for the sale of any convenience retail
goods save as permitted by condition 64

Reason: To define the extent of the permission and control the retail floorspace.

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (Use Classes) Order
1987 (as amended) or the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development) Order 2015 (as amended), or any subsequent Order revoking and re-
enacting those Orders, no additional mezzanine floors shall be created within the
development (other than as expressly permitted by this permission) and no part of the
development shall be used for any Class A2 (financial and professional services, other
than automated teller machines), Class A4 (drinking establishments) or Class A5 (hot
food takeaway) uses. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning
(General Permitted) Order 2015 (as amended) (or any subsequent Order revoking or

88



54

55

56

57

58

59

re-enacting that Order) following first occupation of the development no changes of use
shall occur.

Reason: To define the extent of the permission and control the retail floorspace.

The landscaping, environmental and ecological features across the whole site shall be
managed and maintained in accordance with the Landscape and Environmental
Management Plan approved by the Local Planning Authority pursuant to Condition 38.

Reason: In order to ensure cohesive landscaping, environmental and ecological
features are managed in the interests of visual amenity and biodiversity and in
accordance with Policy EN1 of the adopted South Kesteven Core Strategy (July 2010).

The car parks hereby permitted shall be operated in accordance with the car park
management scheme approved by the Local Planning Authority pursuant to Condition
41.

Reason: To ensure the satisfactory management of the parking for customers and staff,
in the interests of highway safety.

From their installation, the systems for the extraction and filtration of fumes from the A3
units hereby permitted shall be maintained in accordance with the details approved by
the Local Planning Authority pursuant to condition 42.

Reason: In the interests of amenity.

Any trees or plants which within a period of five years from the date of planting die, are
removed or become seriously damaged or diseased, shall be replaced in the following
planting season with others of similar size and species

Reason: In order to ensure cohesive landscaping, in the interests of visual amenity and
in accordance with Policy EN1 of the adopted South Kesteven Core Strategy (July
2010).

The A1 retail units hereby permitted shall not be open for business outside the following
hours:

Monday 9:30am — 7pm
Tuesday 9:30am — 7pm
Wednesday 9:30am — 7pm
Thursday 9:30am — 9pm
Friday 9:30am — 7pm
Saturday 9:00am — 6pm
Sunday and public holidays 10:00am — 4pm

In addition, notwithstanding the above, the A1 Retail Units hereby permitted will be able
to trade up to 10pm on no more than 12 occasions in any calendar year.

Reason: To define the extent of the permission and in the interests of amenity.
The opening hours of all A3 units hereby permitted within the area defined as the Retail
Outlet Units on drawing 16-1007-(08)AZ-00009 shall be limited to one hour before the
retail units hereby permitted open and one hour after closing of the retail units.

Reason: To define the extent of the permission and in the interests of amenity.

89



60

61

62

63.

The development shall not be occupied until the crime prevention measures approved
by the Local Planning Authority pursuant to condition 16 have been fully implemented
in accordance with the approved details. Thereafter such measures shall be so
maintained.

Reason: In order to minimise the risk of crime.

The operator of the retail floorspace hereby permitted shall maintain records of the
occasions in each calendar year on which extended A1 Retail Units opening hours up
to 10pm occurs and shall upon written request from the Local Planning Authority
produce these records for the previous 12 months for inspection within 2 calendar
weeks of the date of request.

Reason: To ensure compliance with the approved opening hours for the retail units.

The use of the large goods retail unit hereby approved shall not be used for the sale of
goods and services other than the following:

Core Large Goods Retail Goods and Services limited to:

Glassware; cutlery, table linens; cookshop; gifts; picture frames; clocks; decorative
accessories; wallpaper; paint; linens; bathroom accessories; rugs; fabrics; curtains and
cushions; blinds and poles; furniture; mirrors; beds and bedroom furniture; home
storage; lighting; large electrical items; audio and vision; IT and imaging; and small
electrical goods.

With the exception of seasonal goods, no more than 20% of the net indoor floorspace
(771 sgm) of the large goods retail unit shall be used for the display of Non-Core Large
Goods Retail Goods and Services.

Non-Core Large Goods Retail Goods and Services limited to:

Cleaning; stationery; seasonal goods; nursery goods (including nursery furniture,
prams, car seats and nursery related goods); toys; travel goods (including suitcases);
beauty stands; skincare and bathing products (excluding make-up and perfume).

An ancillary café to serve retail customers and for no other purpose, including any other
purpose within Class A1 of the Town and Country Planning (Use Classes) Order 1987
(as amended) or the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development)
Order 2015 (as amended), or any subsequent Order revoking and re-enacting those
Orders, and in any event no display/sale of any items not identified as Core or Non-
Core Large Goods Retail Goods and Services detailed above. There shall also be no
display or sale of any clothing, footwear, sporting goods or books other than by way of
generic internet sales not specifically referable to this store.

Reason: The justification for this large good retail unit is based only for the sale of the
above goods and the associated specific retail impact assessment

This consent does not confer approval of the indicative temporary garden centre

structure shown on the indicative phasing plans (Drawing 16-1007-(03) SK-00013), which will
require the submission of a separate standalone planning application.

90



64.

65.

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and as the impacts of such a structure have not
been considered as part of this application.

The garden centre and external display area to the garden centre hereby approved
shall only be used for the sale of the following goods and services:

Core Garden Centre Goods and Services limited to :

(i) Goods and services related to gardens and gardening; (ii) Horticultural products,
trees, plants, shrubs, house plants and flowers of any type; (iii) Garden equipment,
tools and accessories; (iv) Barbeques and their accessories; (v) Outdoor garden
furniture; (vi) Sheds, garden buildings and outdoor garden play equipment; (vii)
Fencing, trellis and landscaping materials; (viii) Conservatories; (ix) Conservatory
furniture, furnishing and accessories; (x) Swimming pools and associated equipment;
(xi) Aquatics, water garden equipment and their accessories; (xii) Books — including
gardening, leisure, hobby, travel, sports and coffee table books and other literature
other than fiction; (xiii) Soft furnishings; (xiv) Restaurant, coffee shop and children’s
play area

With the exception of seasonal goods, no more than 30% of the net indoor floorspace
(1292 sgm) of the Garden Centre shall be used for the display of Non-Core Garden
Centre Goods and Services.

Non-Core Garden Centre Goods and Services limited to:

(xv) Pictures, frames and prints; (xvi) Pets, pet accessories, pet care and advice; (xvii)
Hobbies, toys and crafts; (xviii) Baskets, wicker work and country crafts; (xix) seasonal
goods; (xx) China, glass and gifts; (xxi) Home table top items and kitchen accessories;
(xxii) Outdoor and country pursuits clothing, footwear and equipment e.g. fishing,
equestrian, hiking, climbing etc; (xxiii) Camping equipment and supplies; (xxiv) Clothing
and footwear; (xxv) Butchers, Delicatessen, Greengrocers, Bakers, Florists and
Confectionery.

and for no other purpose, including any other purpose within Class A1 of the Town and
Country Planning (Use Classes) Order 1987 (as amended) or the Town and Country
Planning (General Permitted Development) Order 2015 (as amended), or any
subsequent Order revoking and re-enacting those Orders,

Reason: To define the nature of the approval hereby granted, to control the nature and
extent of retail activities

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (Use Classes) Order

1987 (as amended) or the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted

Development) Order 2015 (as amended), or any subsequent Order revoking and re-

enacting those Orders:

(i) no unit hereby permitted shall be occupied as a cinema, bowling centre, music
and concert hall, bingo and dance hall, swimming bath or skating rink.

(i) the part of the application site shown coloured purple on the Land Use
Parameter Plan (drawing 16-1007-(08)AZ-00009) shall be used for indoor sports
and recreation, Gymnasiums, Training and Tourist information and for no other
purpose.

Reason: To define the nature of the approval hereby granted, to control the nature and
extent of the D2 uses.

91



66. The opening hours of the D2 unit hereby permitted shall be limited to one hour before

67.

the retail units hereby permitted open and one hour after closing of the retail units.
Reason: To define the extent of the permission and in the interests of amenity.

No Part of the development shall be used or occupied until the works as shown in
principle on drawing number XX to amended the priority of the junction between the
access to the site and Occupation Road (or as amended by detailed design) have been
certified complete by the Local Planning Authority.

Reasons: To ensure that the access to the development is provided in accordance with
the details submitted as part of the Environmental Statement, in accordance with policy
SP3 of the South Kesteven Core Strategy 2010 and the requirements of the National
Planning Policy Framework.

Standard Notes(s) to Applicant:

1.

In reaching the decision the Council has worked with the applicant in a positive and
proactive manner by determining the application without undue delay. As such it is
considered that the decision is in accordance with paras 38 of the National Planning
Policy Framework.

The highway improvement works referred to in the above condition are required to
be carried out by means of a legal agreement between the County Council as
Highway authority and the landowner.

The developer’s attention is drawn to the attached comments from Cadent in relation to the
location of on-site apparatus.

The developer’s attention is drawn to the attached comments from Lincolnshire Police

Anglian Water has assets close to or crossing this site or there are assets subject to
an adoption agreement. Therefore the site layout should take this into account and
accommodate those assets within either prospectively adoptable highways or public
open space. If this is not practicable then the sewers will need to be diverted at the
developers cost under Section 185 of the Water Industry Act 1991. or, in the case of
apparatus under an adoption agreement, liaise with the owners of the apparatus. It
should be noted that the diversion works should normally be completed before
development can commence.

An application to discharge trade effluent must be made to Anglian Water and must
have been obtained before any discharge of trade effluent can be made to the public
sewer.

Anglian Water recommends that petrol / oil interceptors be fitted in all car
parking/washing/repair facilities. Failure to enforce the effective use of such facilities
could result in pollution of the local watercourse and may constitute an offence.

Anglian Water also recommends the installation of a properly maintained fat traps
on all catering establishments. Failure to do so may result in this and other properties
suffering blocked drains, sewage flooding and consequential environmental and
amenity impact and may also constitute an offence under section 111 of the Water
Industry Act 1991.

92



NEWARK &
SHERWOOD

3 DISTRICT COUNCIL

South Kesteven District Council
Development Management
Council Offices

St Peters Hill

Appendix A — Comments from Newark & Sherwood District Council

Castle House
Great North Road
Mewark
MNottinghamshire
NG24 1BY

www. newark-sherwooddc.gov.uk

Telephone: 01636 650 000
Email: planning@nsdc.info
Your ref: 517/2155

Our ref: 17/02120/NPA

Grantham

Sent via email to:
planning@southkesteven.gov.uk

30 May 2018

Dear Mr Johnson,

Motification of Application

Proposal: Qutline planning permission for the erection of a Designer Outlet Centre
of up to 20,479 sgm (GEA) of floor space comprising retail units (A1)
restaurants and cafes (A3) and storage. Additional large goods retail
(5,574 sgm GEA) garden centre (5,521s5qm GEA) and external display area
for garden centre (1,393 sgm) tourst information and wisitor centre,
training acaderny, leisure unit and offices including high-tech hub/start-up
offices. Demaolition of existing garden centre and sales area and existing
warehouse. Improvements to existing Downtown Grantham Store
elevations. Reconfigured car-parking and provision of new multi storey
car park. Increased coach parking., Access improvements, drainage
works, hard and soft landscaping and all ancillary works. All matters
reserved with the exception of access.

Address: Downtown Garden Centre Old Great North Road Great Gonerby Lincolnshire

I refer to the above consultation received by this Authority on 16" November 2017 in
relation to the above application. Please find below the formal response from NSDC in
relation to the above application being considered by your authority at Downtown
Grantham.

(i) Strong objection to the proposed development at Downtown Garden Centre

(i) Formally request attendance by both an Officer and elected Member to speak at
South Kesteven District Council’s Planning Committee to set out the reasons Newark and
Sherwood District Council are objecting to the scheme (due to the retail impact on Newark
town centre as per advice set out by Carter Jonas as retall consultant to Newark and
Sherwood District Council).

PROSPERITY |  PEOPLI PLACE PUBLIC SERVICE

93



Background to Newark and Sherwood District Council’s (NSDC) objection:

Following the granting of the consent of the King 31 application on Tollemache Road to the
south of Grantham NSDC issued a holding objection to the pending Downtown application
until such time as Council's retail consultant (Carter lonas) and colleagues within planning
policy could review the submitted information. It was considered that as a standalone
application the proposed development would not result in a significant adverse impact on
the vitality of the District Centre subject to the imposition of a condition similar to that
proposed as part of the recent Thoreshy Colliery scheme, The condition relating to retention
of retailers in district centres has been the subject of a legal challenge (Skelmersdale Limited
Partnership v West Lancashire Borough Council Case No: C1/2016/0625) and was judged to
be lawful by Lord Justice Sales and Lord Justice Briggs.

However, at the NSDC planning committee meeting on g May 2018, following the receipt
of further advice following publication of the Planning Committee, Officers advised that an
objection be raised to the proposed development given that the previous lack of objection
as detailed within the Committee Agenda was based on the application as a standalone
proposal and did not take a view on cumulative harm. The previous no objection subject to
condition recommendation from CJ was stipulated on the basis that the market would be
unable to support the implementation of the King 31 scheme and the proposal at Downtown
given the similarity in the retail offers being proposed. The Officer view presented to
Committee was that the Downtown scheme must be considered cumulatively with that of
the already approved King 31 scheme. A recommendation of ohjection to the proposed
development was therefore detailed by Officer’s to Members and for clarity the minutes of
this meeting are appended below.

You will note Members resolved to raise a strong formal objection to the proposed
development raising concern that cumulatively the Downtown proposal with that of the
recently approved King 31 development to the south of Grantham could have a significant
adverse impact on the retail vitality of the Newark District Centre and would therefore fail to
accord with paragraph 27 of the NPPF.

You have already been forwarded all supporting assessment documentation produced on
our behalf by Carter lonas and as detailed above NSDC formally request that one of its
elected Members and an Officer be invited to attend and speak at the upcoming SKDC
planning committee meeting when this item is heard. We would be grateful for your written
confirmation of acceptance to this request at the earliest opportunity and prior to the
application being determined. We as a Council will also be writing to our local MP
requesting that the application be called in for determination by the Secretary of State.

| trust you will take the above comments into consideration when assessing the application.

Yours sincerely

Matt Lamb
Business Manager
Growth and Regeneration

94



AGREED {unanimously] that:

{1 Strong objection be placed in writing to South Kesteven District Council; and

(ii) attendance at South Kesteven District Council both an Officer and elected Member to
speak at their Planning Committee against the scheme due to the retail impact on Newark
town centre as per advice set out by Carter Jonas = Retail Consultant as detailed in the late
items schedule.

95



Appendix B — Comments from Peterborough City Council

PETERBOROUGH
Telephone: 01733 453410
Email: planningcontrol@peterborough.gov.uk M
Case Officer:  Mrs C Murphy CITY COUNCIL
Our Ref: 18/00495/CONSUL ) _
Your Ref: S17/2155 Planning Services

Sand Martin House

Justin Johnson Bittern Way
South Kesteven District Council Fletton Quays
Council Offices Peterborough
St Peter's Hill PE2 8TY
Grantham
Lincolnshire Peterborough Direct: 01733 747474
NG31 6PZ

5 December 2018

Dear SirfMadam

Planning enquiry

Proposal: Outline planning permission for the erection of a Designer Outlet Centre of up to
20 479sgm (GEA) of floorspace comprising retail units (A1), restaurants and
cafes (A3), and storage. Additional large goods retail (5,574 sgm GEA), garden
centre (5,521 sgm GEA) and extemal display area for garden centre (1,393 sgm),
tourist information and visitor centre, training academy, leisure unit and offices
including high-tech hub/start-up offices. Demalition of existing garden centre and
sales area and existing warehouse. Improvements to existing Downtown
Grantham store elevations. Reconfigured car parking and provision of new multi-
starey car park. Increased coach parking. Access improvements, drainage waorks,
hard and soft landscaping and all ancillary works. All matters reserved with the
exception of access.

Site address: Downtown Garden Centre Old Great North Road, Great Gonerby Lincolnshire

Further to your enquiry received on 16 November 2018, in respect of the above, the Local Planning
Authority makes the following comments:

With respect to the revised neighbour authority consultation, the Local Planning Authority do not
raise any additional objections, however the premise of the onginal objection is maintained as set
out below. This is in the context of the revised NPPF (published July 2018) and progress also
being made on the provision of further retail planned development within Peterborough City
Centre.

Peterborough City Council object to this proposal, as it would have an impact on the viability
Peterborough City Centre, and could have an impact on future proposals for the City Centre
redevelopment allocated in the Local Plan.

Paragraph 89 of the revised NPPF (2018) is considered to be relevant, this states ... when
assessing applications for retail [and] leisure __. outside of town centres . Local Planning
Authorities should require an __. assessment of ___ the impact of the proposal on existing, committed
and planned public and private investment in a centre or centres in the catchment area of the
proposal’. This would include Peterborough.

The retaill impact report acknowledges that the proposal would have impact on the Peterborough
City Centre (categorised within Zone 10 of the secondary catchment area) and that 6.5% (£5.5m)
of the trade draw would come from Peterborough. Although it may be small when compared with
fotal expenditure, it is only an estimation and due to the size and range of goods sold along with
free parking this impact would be an underestimation in our view.

96



This proposal would also likely have an impact on the North Westgate Opportunity Area, which has
been allocated in the Peterborough Local Plan. The Council recently granted planning permission
on 30th November 2018 for a mixed use development on this site to include up to 3,500m2 of new
retail floorspace. The proposal at Downtown would put North Westgate Opportunity Area at greater
risk of not being implemented as some of the available expenditure would be diverted away from

the City Centre to this development. This would be contrary to the NPPF objectives of putting city
centres first.

There may be other environmental and traffic related issues that may arise as a result of this
proposal, however this is for your determination as the Local Planning Authority, and we make no
comments on these issues.

| trust that the above advice is of use however should you have any further queries, please do not
hesitate to contact me on the details shown at the top of this letter.

Yours faithfully

Mrs C Murphy
Senior Development Management Officer

97



Appendix C — Comments from City of Lincoln

HERE L CITY OF Z
‘ ' 3’ n CG n Directorate of Communities & Environment

COUNCIL Simon Walters MBA, ACIS, MCMI
City Hall, Beaurmont Fee,
Linceln, LN1 1DD
Telephone: (01522) 881188
Facsimile: (01522) 567934

Mr. J. Johnson Website: www lincoln.gov.uk

South Kesteven District Council Minicom: (01522) 873693 - Reception
Council Offices, 5t, Pater's Hill,

Grantham

Lincolnshire Kieron Manning is dealing with this matter
MNG31 6PZ. E-mail: kieron.manning@lincoln.gov.uk

Direct Line: (01522) 873551
Date; 30 November 2017

Dear Sir,

Planning Application Consultation Response in Connection with Application
References S17M1262 and S17/2155 for Designer Outlet Villages [ Centres,
Grantham

Initially we would like to note that City of Lincoln Council, as the Local Planning
Authority (the LPA), did not receive nofification of the proposals for the Grantham
Designer Outlet Village (S17/1262) and we only became aware of that application
given the consultation issued for the competing application at Downtown (S17/2155).

Our response will therefore reflect upon both applications for Designer Outlet Villages
(DOV) and consider their impact upon Lincoln.

Impact of the Proposals

Although we believe it is guestionable whether the development of either site would
promote the sustainable growth of Grantham, we have greater concern that the
proposals would likely lead to unsustainable retail trading in the sub-region, contrary
to the wider aims of the Framework to achieve social, environmental and economic
sustainability.

Furthermora, given the rural nature of the County of Lincolnshire and the reliance upon
private vehicles for travel, residents of the County travel further to access facilities and
services, including opportunities for shopping. This is evidenced within the Retail
Impact Assessments for both applications, as there is significant spend on retailing by
people travelling upwards of 60 minutes. Taking Lincoln as a point, 55% of the trade
drawn by the centre is from within a 30-80minute drive time, which includes the
Primary and Secondary Catchment Areas for both sites, Indeed, 18.8% of comparison
goods spend is from the PCA and 3.2% from SCA for the southern DOV site.

The fact that shoppers are willing to travel within and beyond the County to access
retailing was also evidenced through the work undertaken in relation to the Retail

98



Consequently, we would suggest that your authority should consider the cumulative
impact of both schemes upon the basis that they are both granted permission.
Similarly, you are strongly advised to liaise with the Planning casework Service to
establish whether the Secretary of State would need to call-in the applications for
determination.

Finally, we have clearly highlighted concerns regarding retail trading but are equally
aware that one of the proposals may prevail. With that in mind, if your authority is
minded to grant planning permission for one of the proposals, we would suggest that
this should be for amended proposals for Downtown. This stems from the fact that
those proposals would be in connection with similar development and would be more
sustainable in general terms than the development to the south of Grantham.

We trust that the above is of assistance to you in your consideration of the applications
and look forward lo hearing your views regarding our observations and concems.

Yours sincerely,

Kieron Manning
Planning Manager

99



Appendix D - Letters from Lichfields

Date: 30 April 2018
Our ref: 11923/PW/BE/1582346av1
Your ref: S17/2155

Dear Mr Johnson

Proposed Designer Outlet
SAD (LPA Ret oo mmmdﬂu-tﬁnrﬂ:lmd,ﬂcan

mhiﬂdudmmmmmmwhmhmmmm
mhh&hﬂumhmﬂlmﬁhdqhﬂumup mdmmmtdlm,:;;h;
mdhhﬂwdmﬂﬂ.ﬂu“hm and manages 17 prime regional
shopping centres including intu Victoria Centre and intu Broadmarsh in ottingham eity centre
and intu Derby in Derby city centre. y ol

Background
mumdmmwmmmmmmn
November 2017). After reviewing the application documentation submitted Cushman & Wakefield,
behalf of Oldrid & Co. Ltd, Lichfields raised the following concerns: y i o
1 m—mdmhpqduummwmmww
mhmmmmmmwm extension
intu Victoria Centre extension); "~ —
2 mmmmmwmmmmmhwh
m&ummmmmummmhmm
“mt&vﬁﬁynﬂvﬁhﬂhdmum&umwu&um

MHMMMMWMM&-H{HMMHMJhmM
the retsil elements of the proposed development. The applicant responded to these comments by way of an
addendum to the Retail Impact Analysis, prepared by Cushman & Wakefield (March 2018).

We nmummmmmmmmmmum
evidence,/ correspondence.
Committed Development

Despite the applicant's contention that the approach to committed developments was confirmed
appropriate by both the Counecil and PBA, ihmmmmmmﬁ:’m-

Ragistares in England Mo, Z7TEILE
Mapulates by the RICS

100



developments are planned investments and material considerations that must be incduded within the
cumilative impact assessment. The National Planning Policy Guidance confirms that applications for main
town centre uses outside of town centres should ensure that they are in the best locations to support the
vitality and vibrancy of town centres, and that no likely significant adverse impacts on existing town centres
arise. Whilst we acknowledge that town centre schemes are not required to produce an impact assessment,
proposals for main town centre uses outside of defined centres are required to produce an impact assessment
if they are over a locally set threshold (if there is no locally set threshold, the default threshold is 2,500 sqm).
As part of this impact assessment (and is the case here), the impact on existing committed development and
planned investment within town centres must therefore be taken into consideration.

As outlined previously, intu is currently in advanced stages of implementing the intu Broadmarsh
redevelopment and has appointed a contractor. Application(s) to discharge the pre<commencement of
development conditions are currently being prepared (ooe has been discharged). The impact assessment
must therefore be revised to take account of both the committed intu Victoria Centre and intu Broadmarsh
developments, as these are important material considerations. Consideration must also be given to any other
town centre schemes which have not been included as part of the assessment.

Please can you confirm how the Council intends to consider these issues? A robust Retail Impact Assessment

is erucial and will allow for the impact of the proposed development to be properly assessed, and may
prevent the need for a call-in inquiry to consider wider regional issues.

Proposed Conditions

We note the applicant's confirmation that the applicant would, in principle, agree to our suggested
conditions (as confirmed in the letter prepared by Cushman & Wakefield, dated 17 January 2018). We
reiterate that the Council must include these conditions on any fortheoming decision to ensure the
development is implemented in sccordance with that described in the application, and to ensure that
development does not adversely impact on the vitality and viahdlity of Nottingham or Derby city centres or
other centres.

Please contact me or my colleague, Peter Wilks, should you have any queries on the above or wish to discuss
the representations in more detail.

Yours sincerely

Beth Evans
Senior Planner

101



14 Regent's Wharf 0207837 4477
All Saints Street london@lichfields.uk
London NI SRL lichfields.uk

Justin Johnson

Planning Department
Development Management
St Peters Hill

Grantham

Lincolnshire

NG31 6PZ

Date: 14 December 2018
Our ref: 11923/01/PW/16874718v1
Your ref:

Dear Mr Johnson

Proposed Designer Outlet Village, Downtown, Old Great North Road, NG3=2
2AB (LPA Ref. S17/2155)

On behalf of our client, intu Properties Ple (intu), we write in relation to the above application. As you are
aware, intu is the leading company in the UK specialising in the ownership and management of UK shopping
centres and in the development of retail and mixed-use schemes. Intu owns and manages 17 prime regional
shopping centres in the UK, including intu Victoria Centre and intu Broadmarsh in Nottingham city centre
and intu Derby in Derby city centre.

‘We previously submitted representations relating to this application and, on 22 November 2018, we received
notification that the applicants for the Downtown garden centre Designer Outlet Village (DOV) in South
Kesteven submitted further information. Upon reviewing the new letter, for an on behalf of Fisher German
LLP, and the additional Retail Impact Sensitivity Testing note, we would like to reiterate our position.

Committed Development

The applicant maintains the position set out in our RIA and RIA Addendum on the likely catchment draws
assumed in the original retail impact analysis, given the predicted trade draw of the proposed Tier 1 designer
outlet centre (DOC). Therefore, the specific impacts on intu’s assets have been considered separately.

As outlined previously, intu Broadmarsh and intu Vietoria Centre are clearly material considerations that
should be included in the cumulative impact assessment.

Both are committed developments with planning permission intu Broadmarsh redevelopment (ref.
15/00950/PFUL3) and the intu Victoria Centre extension (ref. 11/01859/PFUL3). Intu is currently in the
advanced stages of implementing the intu Broadmarsh redevelopment with pre-commencement conditions
having been discharged and work on site commencing this month.

Consideration must also be given to any other town centre schemes which have not been included as part of
the assessment.

Registered in England No. 2778116
Regulated by the RICS

102



Proposed conditions

We note the applicant’s confirmation that the applicant would, in principle, agree to our suggested
conditions (as confirmed in the letter prepared by Cushman & Wakefield, dated 17 January 2018). The
additional letter (dated 14 November 2008) from the agent, sets out a list of 13 retail conditions on the
proposed development covering the whole application site, large goods retailing, permitted development
rights, pricing, leisure uses, a no poaching clause for Grantham, Newark and Balderton centres, and
prevention of subdivisions. The letter states that the conditions have been agreed through consultation and
negotiation and informed by previous letters of representation.

‘We therefore reiterate that these conditions must be carried through to the committes report and the Council
must include these conditions on any forthcoming decision to ensure the development is implemented in
accordance with that described in the application, and to ensure that development does not adversely impact
on the vitality and viability of Nottingham or Derby city centres or other contres.

Please contact me or my colleague, Peter Wilks, should vou have any queries on the above or wish to discuss
the representations in more detail.

Yours sincerely

103



Appendix E - Letters from Rioja and Buckminster

IOJA'

| DEVELOPMENTS |

1%t October 2018

South Kesteven District Council Planning Department
St Peters Hill

Grantham

NG316PZ

FAQ: Sylvia Bland and Justin Johnson

Dear Mrs Bland and Mr Johnson,

Reference: $17/2155. Downtown Grantham Designer Outlet. Qutline planning permission for the
erection of a Designer Outlet Centre of up to 20,479 sqm (GEA) of floorspace comprising retail units
(A1), restaurants and cafes (A3), and storage. Additional large goods retail (5,574 sqm GEA), garden
centre (5,521 sgm GEA) and external display area for garden centre (1,393 sgm), tourist information
and visitor centre, training academy, leisure unit and offices including high-tech hub/start-up
offices.

On hehalf of Rioja Developments Ltd., | write to object formally to the Oldrids outline planning
application for the Downtown Grantham Designer Outlet (DGDO).

As you know, Rioja are the promoter and developer behind the Grantham Designer Outlet Village
(GDOV) that was proposed on Buckminster’'s land south of the town, which was granted planning
permission in March 2018 under planning reference S17/1262.

A parallel objection is being submitted by our development partner, Buckminster. Buckminster’s
objection is based mostly on grounds relating to the damage the Downtown GDO will do to the vitality
of Grantham town centre. Our representations concentrate on the real-world reality of why granting
permission to the Downtown GDO would be bad for Grantham and the wider area.

This representation sets out why the application should be refused. In summary:

. Grantham would benefit form a Tier 1 Outlet Village scheme being built.

. The GDOV would be a Tier 1 Outlet; the Downtown GDO could never hecome a Tier 1 Outlet
for the reasons given.

. Why planning assessment of the two different schemes by SKDC needs to be different.

. Granting permission to the Downtown GDO would at best result in Grantham not securing the

benefits of a Tier 1 Outlet Village on either site and at worst, if the Downtown scheme hybrid
‘non-Tier 1’ scheme was built, the town centre, already struggling, would be severely
impacted.

In preparing this representation we have taken the advice of both FSP and CACI. FSP and CACI and are
widely recognised in the UK and Europe as the leading retail research advisors and are used by all the
major Operators of Tier 1 Outlet schemes. Both specialise in Designer Outlet catchment and viability
research and are respected by retail brands and developers alike. We enclose both their reports as
appendices. This letter is based on their findings and the opinions of our professional team.

RI0JA DEVELOPMENTS LTD
The Barn, Little Mount Farm, Benhall Mill Road, Tunbridge Wells, Kent, TN2 5JW,

Tel: +44(0)20 7629 0088 or 01732 442045
Rioja Developments Ltd. Incorporated in England and Wales. Ref: in England. No. 3889011. Reg. Office: 94A London Road, Sevenoaks, Kent, TN13 1LP

104



Why Grantham needs a Tier 1 Designer Outlet Village.

1. There is no firm definition of what a Tier 1 Designer Outlet Village (DOV) is in the UK, however
it is generally accepted that DOV’'s in the UK are separated into 5 Tiers by their catchment
areas, quality of brand line up, percentage split of tourist visitors and their achieved sales. The
attached report (Appendix 1) by the Outlet village retail experts FSP explains how the Tiering
system works. See the introductory paragraphs on page 1 of Appendix 1.

2. A Tier 1 Outlet, such as Cheshire Oaks or Gunwharf Quays, has a national draw and a
catchment area of a 90-minute drive time.

3. A Tier 1 Outlet does not rely on a more local draw, which is important in Grantham’s case as
the 30-minute drive time catchment area is way below average for a Tier 1 scheme.

4. ATier 1 Outlet would be very good for Grantham because of the reasons set out in the officer’s
report on the GDOV application:

. 11.6 There would be many environmental, social and economic benefits of the
proposal, including:

. A relatively sustainable location on the edge of Grantham;

. Substantial investment in the District;

. New employment opportunities;

. Strengthen Grantham’s role as a sub-regional centre;

. Provide enhanced links to the town centre with an estimated 10% of the possible 3.5
million visitors to DOV carrying out limited trips to other attractions in the District;

. Boost the perception of Grantham;

. Help to reduce retail expenditure leakage to other settlements.

5. The importance of any Outlet Village in Grantham being a Tier 1 scheme was also

acknowledged in the officers” report on the GDOV application. Quotes from the officers’

report on the GDOV application $17/1262 — my underlining:

. 1.4 The applicants indicate that the proposal would be a Tier 1 DOV which would
create a distinctive, compelling and high order offer which would attract shoppers
from a 30-60-minute drive zone and heyond. A Tier 1 facility would attract upscale
brands (such as Hugo Boss, Polo Ralph Lauren and Armani Bose). As such it would
potentially attract visitors from beyond Grantham’s current catchment and create the
opportunity for linked new visitor trips to the local and wider area.

. 8.3.8 ... The applicant states that a smaller site than this would be unlikely to be able
to accommodate a Tier 1 designer outlet centre and would not meet their commercial
objectives.

. 8.4.20 The submissions place strong reliance upon the distinctive retail offering of a

Tier 1 DOV which differs significantly from conventional town and city offerings. It is
considered the NPPF test has been met. Nonetheless it is important that conditions
and terms of any planning obligation are such as to ensure that the character of the
use will result in the form of development which has been assessed.

. 10.5 The Rioja application is promoted as a Tier 1 DOV which seeks to function as an
outlet centre for designer brands and premium retail operators. It includes the
provision of a hotel under Phase 2. The Downtown application promotes a mix of
outlet (20,479 sqm) and non- outlet (or ‘full price’) retail floorspace
(Downtown@Home 5,574 sqm and Garden Centre 5,521 sqm). It states that the outlet
centre would consist of high-end retailers and brands not available in nearby town

Ri0JA DEVELOPMENTS LTD
The Barn, Little Mount Farm, Benhall Mill Road, Tunbridge Wells, Kent, TN2 51W/,

Tel: +44(0)20 7629 0088 or 01732 442045
Rioja Developments Ltd. Incorporated in England and Wales. Ref: in England. No. 3889011. Reg. Office: 94A London Road, Sevenoaks, Kent, TN13 1LP

105



centres. Whilst outside the red line of the application, the existing Downtown retail
floorspace (19,500 sqm) would be retained and is located adjacent to the proposed
outlet village development. It also includes leisure uses.

. 10.6 The Council’s retail advisors have advised that the Rioja development would not
have a significant adverse impact on Grantham town centre on the basis that the
development will be controlled by way of planning obligation to sure that it operates
in the manner described by the applicant ie. as a Tier 1 DOV. In respect of the
Downtown application, the Council’s retail advisors have not had the opportunity to
fully assess the likely impacts of the proposals, however, their initial view is that
further justification is required of the nature of the outlet village given that the
scheme proposes an expansion of mid-market retail offer of the existing retail
facilities that adjoin the site and that, once fully implemented, the majority of the
retail floorspace making up the combined retail destination would be used by mid-
market retailers for the sale of ‘full price’ items. If the Downtown proposal was not to
be a Tier 1 DOV it is anticipated that it would have a greater potential impact on the
town centre.

6. It is clear that a Tier 1 Outlet Village in Grantham would be a good thing for the town and the
district for the reasons set out by the officers in their report on the GDOV application in point
11.6.and referred to in para 4 of this letter. None of the retailers and brands who would
occupy a Tier 1 scheme would ever come to Grantham town centre normally. They do not
locate in market towns. The planning conditions and Sec 106 terms for the GDOV ensure that
only a certain class of retailer can occupy the shops at the GDOV.

7. It follows that anything less than a Tier 1 scheme would be bad for the town centre as the
type of retailers, being of a lower quality, would compete with the town centre where they
should otherwise be properly located. This representation sets out clearly the reasons why
the Downtown project could never achieve a Tier 1 status. If the Downtown scheme were to
go ahead, and we have our doubts, it would be at best be a Tier 3/2 project and only be
attractive to retailers and brands that should be in the town centre. Such retailers have a much
smaller catchment area than Tier 1 retailers and would compete not only with Grantham town
centre but also other nearby towns such as Newark.

Why the GDOV will be a Tier 1 Outlet and why the Downtown GDO could never become a Tier 1

Outlet.

8. The attached FSP report sets out clearly why the Downtown scheme could never become a
Tier 1 facility. In summary:
Conclusion

In order to accommodate an outlet, centre at a very constrained site and maintain access to
Downtown / Boundary Mill, the proposed plans for Gonerby Moor incorporate a number of
significant layout and operational compromises. These will reduce the ability to manage the
destination to greatest effect, severely limit the attractiveness of the site to upscale brands,
diminish the customer experience, undermine likely trading performance and discourage
linked trips to Grantham town centre. It is FSP's view that the proposals for Downtown
Grantham Designer Outlet are dated, ill-conceived and severely limited to the point that it is
highly unlikely that the site can incorporate the Tier 1 or Tier 2 outlet centre.

Given that it is essential for an outlet centre in Grantham to draw from well beyond 30
minutes’ drive, the current plans for Downtown Grantham Designer Outlet are not realistically
capable of achieving the upscale offer necessary, while at the same time limiting

RioJA DEVELOPMENTS LTD
The Barn, Little Mount Farm, Benhall Mill Road, Tunbridge Wells, Kent, TN2 5JW,

Tel: +44(0)J20 7629 0088 or 01732 442045
Rioja Developments Ltd. Incorporated in England and Wales. Ref: in England. No. 3889011. Reg. Office: 94A London Road, Sevenoaks, Kent, TN13 1LP

106



cannibalisation and generating significant spin off trips into Grantham town centre. Capacity
for outlet floor space within 60 minutes of Grantham is finite and if planning consent is given
to for two rival schemes, the resulting built floor space will outstrip occupier demand,
undermine viability and severely damage future prospects for Grantham town centre.

9. We and our professional team have studied the Downtown application carefully. There is a
lack of understanding of what is required to make a commercially successful DOV (Tier 1 or
otherwise). Their application documents have clearly been put together in a hurry by
plagiarising our own GDOV application even down to the repetition of the GDOV application’s
typographical errors. In addition, and crucial to note, their application does not refer to any
specific Outlet retail catchment analysis commissioned by them; it does mention the same
numbers we put in our application, which were taken from the catchment research and
analysis we commissioned especially for GDOV. Itis unheard of in the UK Outlet sector in the
last 30 years that anyone would propose an Outlet scheme without first having a recognised
specialist agency (there are only two or three) carry out such detailed research, because
anyone with an interest in the success of the scheme (retailers, investors and Operators)
demand to see this research before they will agree to become involved with the project.

10. The planning statement submitted with the Downtown GDO states: The company are again
looking to innovate once more, in partnership with Freeport Retail, to create a unique mix of
full price and outlet shopping and deliver a superb ‘one-of-a-kind” shopping experience.
However, the unique aspect of their plans (i.e. full price and Outlet at the same destination)
is the very reason that it cannot achieve Tier 1 status, as premium brands will spurn the idea
of having an Outlet next to a full price offer. It is also a reason why the Officers should
treat the two schemes very differently.

11. We are unsure of Freeport Retail’s role and function but their association with the Downtown
GDO project is another reason it will not be a Tier 1 scheme. Freeport Retail is not a developer
of Qutlet villages. ‘Freeport Leisure PIc’ used to develop Tier 2 and 3 schemes in the UK in the
1980’s and 90's (such as at 132 near Castleford and at Stoke and Fleetwood) but it is no longer
an active direct developer, or Operator. Freeport UK is an Outlet village consultancy
organisation, operating mainly in Europe. Quote from their website: “In 2011 Freeport Retail
was established as a management company to provide outlet development, asset
management and operations expertise to the Freeport outlets and to third party investors and
developers.” The Freeport Outlet schemes that were built have now all been sold and re-
branded to move them away from the downmarket connotations of the Freeport name.

12. A key criterion for the successful development of a Tier 1 Outlet village would be to have an
experienced Operator of Tier 1 schemes hehind the project, such as McArthur Glen, as they
are very specialist types of development, where the premium retail brands they are targeting
hold such an Operator in high regard and are attracted to the scheme by their association.

13. In contrast the GDOV scheme can become a Tier 1 facility because:
. It is a totally new build; a purpose designed scheme served by a new access off the A1
with good links to Grantham main line train station.
. The site is a ‘blank sheet of paper’ with no major constraints on its layout and design.
It does not have to compromise its design because of existing building on site or
neighbours.
. As a specialist developer of Designer Outlets of some 35 years’ standing with wide

experience in the UK and Europe, having played an important role in the very
inception of the concept of Designer Outlets in the UK, and having developed several

Ri0JA DEVELOPMENTS LTD
The Barn, Little Mount Farm, Benhall Mill Road, Tunbridge Wells, Kent, TN2 51w,

Tel: +44(0)20 7629 0088 or 01732 442045
Rioja Developments Ltd. Incorporated in England and Wales. Ref: in England. No. 3889011. Reg. Office: 94A London Road, Sevenoaks, Kent, TN13 1LP

107



Outlets for Operators of Tier 1 schemes, such as McArthur Glen, Rioja Developments
is uniquely, placed to understand the issues at play here and put a scheme together
that attracts the best Operator and brands to ensure a Tier 1 scheme.

. Rioja have already been in discussions with Operators and brands and the idea of
GDOV has been well-received.
. Buckminster and Rioja have commissioned the top retail research companies and specialist
Outlet consultants to assess the commercial viability of a Tier 1 Outlet at the GDOV location.
. We have commissioned architects, designers and consultants, all specialising in Outlets, to

make sure that the design of GDOV is fit for the purpose of a Tier 1 DOV in terms of aesthetic
appeal, unit sizes, car parking, access, landscaping, security, sustainability and food &
beverage provision.

Planning assessment of the two schemes.

14. The two competing schemes are similar in the simplest terms in that they are both proposed
to be designer Outlet villages. However, closer examination reveals their form and function
are very different. As such, the planning assessment carried out by SKDC of the two
applications should be tailored accordingly. It would not be correct in planning terms to assess
both schemes in the same way as they are different. The principle difference being the
Downtown scheme would be a hybrid scheme as it would be adjacent to the existing
Downtown retail floorspace (19,500 sqm) which would continue to trade as it is today. As this
floorspace has an open Al planning consent, enabling full price retail, the Downtown scheme
taken as a whole would therefore not be bound by the same restrictions as the GDOV scheme.

Thus, the operation of the whole scheme and the perception by retailers, visitors and
Operators would be very different to how a Tier 1 Outlet would be perceived, all of which
strongly suggests that should be assessed differently in planning terms.

15. The council’s consultant, PBA assessed the GDOV application and we understand PBA have
carried out a similar exercise for the Downtown GDO. Outlet villages are a rare form of
development within the UK. There are only 43 in total throughout the country and only some
are Tier 1 schemes, such as York and Cheshire Oaks. It is important to note that not all schemes
can be Tier 1, even with the best design and Operator. The crucial factor is the location of the
scheme and the ability to attract those brands that will enable the draw from a wider visitor
catchment. We have done the research to prove that GDOV is capable of this, but the same
research tells us that Downtown GDO’s location is so compromised as to be unlikely to achieve
Tier 1 or even Tier 2 status. Specialists in the field are rare and it could be that PBA may not
have the detailed experience to assess the differences between the two projects. To apply
exactly the same assessment to both projects would not be the correct way forward as the
two projects proposed are very different for the reasons set out by FSP in Appendix 1.

16. The Downtown GDO will not achieve Tier 1 status hecause of the reasons set out in the FSP
report attached as appendix 1. Therefore, its retail impact should be assessed by the Council
and PBA differently from the GDOV scheme. This assessment should take into account and

consider:

. The presence of some 19,500 sqm of unrestricted retail space (Downtown and
Boundary Mill discount superstore) that will remain trading.

. What effect the presence of this existing unrestricted retail space will have on the
likelihood of Tier 1 premium hrands being attracted to the new Outlet village space

. As luxury and premium brands are unlikely to want to go to an Outlet next to

Downtown with its existing Boundary Mill discount operation, which is also next to a

RI0JA DEVELOPMENTS LTD
The Barn, Little Mount Farm, Benhall Mill Road, Tunbridge Wells, Kent, TN2 5]W,

Tel: +44(0)20 7629 0088 or 01732 442045
Rioja Developments Ltd. Incorporated in England and Wales. Ref: in England. No. 3889011. Reg. Office: 94A London Road, Sevenoaks, Kent, TN13 1LP

108



waste transfer station, motorway services and several industrial units, what brands
are likely to be attracted to that location with its low rents, rates (compared with the
town centre) and free parking and how will this impact on the wider Grantham retail
economy?

17. From the work we have done, the conclusion has been reached that the Downtown GDO will
not attract premium brands and that IF the space is developed (but see below) there will be
significant pressure on SKDC to lower the bar on the quality of tenants who can occupy the
new space which will lead to potential new Grantham retailers locating in the new Downtown
space rather than the town centre because of the lower rent, rates and free car parking. Over
time the existing Grantham retailers will be tempted too, resulting in the vitality of the town
centre, already under stress, suffering further.

What may happen if both schemes are granted planning permission?

18. We acknowledge that it is not the function of the UK planning system to regulate market
competition issues and that if the two schemes were similar it could be considered right to
grant permission for both and ‘let the market decide’.

19. However, for the reasons explained in this representation and the attached appendices the
two schemes are not similar (i.e. the GDOV could become a Tier 1 Outlet whist the Downtown
GDO location could not achieve this status and probably not even Tier 2) and therefore their
planning assessment must be treated differently.

20. The motivation of the applicants for the two projects is relevant for any real-world assessment

of what may happen if both schemes are permitted:

. Rioja /Buckminster GDOV. Buckminster have been insistent since the inception of the
GDOV project, throughout the early process of viability studies and retail research,
and throughout the planning process, that the GDOV development must be
complementary to, and not competitive with, Grantham Town Centre. Buckminster
are a long-standing retail investor in the town and therefore cannot conceive nor
condone any project that would be detrimental to the town centre retail vitality.

When the concept of a Tier 1 Designer Outlet Village was mooted at the GDOV site,
they and we spent significant time and investment on specialist Outlet retail research
to be certain that this project would be of clear benefit to Grantham town centre
retailers and the wider local economy. Therefore, GODV was predicated not just on
the basis of its own success as a retail destination but also on the benefits that it would
bring to the wider Grantham area and to Grantham retailers through an increase in
visitors to the town.

. Oldrids’ Downtown GDO. In Oldrids objection (dated 7th December 2017) to the
GDOV planning application, referring to the effect GDOV would have on their existing
Downtown Discount Store operation, stated: “Having a further out-of-town retail
destination alongside ourselves and Grantham town centre will create 3 major
destinations, which will dilute customers and put additional jobs at risk.” Oldrids
have, as far as we are aware, no investments in the town centre and no commercial
reasons fo see it protected. Oldrids saw the GDOV as a threat to their existing
operation, hence their formal objection to the GDOV scheme was mainly commercial
and therefore not upheld on planning grounds. For Oldrids, maintaining the status
quo that existed prior to GDOV gaining planning consent and continuing to trade the
existing Downtown and Boundary Mills discount superstore as they have done in the
past, would be an acceptable outcome. In fact, we wonder if Downtown are serious

Ri0JA DEVELOPMENTS LTD
The Barn, Little Mount Farm, Benhall Mill Road, Tunbridge Wells, Kent, TN2 51W,

Tel: +44(0)20 7629 0088 or 01732 442045
Rioja Developments Ltd. Incorporated in England and Wales. Ref: in England. No. 3889011. Reg. Office: 94A London Road, Sevenoaks, Kent, TN13 1LP

109



in their intention to develop a DOV or whether they are merely fighting a rear-guard
action to prevent the development of what they (not understanding how Outlets
really work in the retail market) incorrectly see as a competitor (GDOV). Their plans
are so out of touch with what is required for a Tier 1 Outlet’s success that we don't
suspect they really intend to try to make it work. Instead, we believe there is a strong
possibility they intend to gain planning consent and not construct anything. They aim
only to act like a competitor to GDOV in the market during our activities to secure a
leading Operator and top brand retailers. This will “spoil’ the market for any Tier 1
Outlet in Grantham, thus allowing the status quo to continue. This strategy could
hinder our efforts to promote GDOV. We believe this would be a flagrant and cynical
manipulation of the planning regulations for protection of their own existing
commercial interests.

21. Rioja Developments are developing the UK's most recent Tier 1 Qutlet village at Cannock. We
know from this and the several other major schemes we have delivered throughout the UK
and Europe that for any Tier 1 scheme to go ahead there are two key elements:

. The right location (in terms of visibility, accessibility and visitor catchment) to
stimulate demand from premium branded retailers. For a Tier 1 scheme the likes of
Polo, Ralph Lauren, Hugo Boss, etc. have to be willing to commit to come to the
scheme.

. The interest of such brands due to the location will attract a major Operator; funding
will follow, and the scheme can be built.

22. Following the grant of permission for the GDOV, talks have continued with the retailers and
funders of the GDOV project. Those talks have gone well but the retailers are now aware of
the competing scheme at Downtown GDO and have told us that they want to ‘wait and see
what happens with the two schemes. One can understand that the uncertainty of the two
schemes and the much-publicised current issues with major retailers such as House of Fraser
store closures causes this unwillingness to commit. If both schemes are consented, then this
uncertainty will continue, and, in all likelihood, no new Outlet village will be built in Grantham
and the benefits of the GDOV will not flow.

23. Appendix 2 attached is a report by CACI, who are an eminent retail research company with a
specialisation in Designer Outlet Village location strategy and viability, who have worked with
all the major Outlet developers and Operators in the UK, Europe and further afield, as well as
with many of the brands that occupy Outlets. The CACI report addresses the issues of two
Outlet villages being consented in Grantham. The main conclusions of that report are:

. Premium brands are unlikely to locate in both centres based on cannibalisation of the
same shoppers from each scheme’s catchment. It is therefore recommended that
only one top tier outlet centre is required and will be able to fully cater for the demand
in the area.

. The characteristically wide pull of outlet centres demonstrates the need to ensure
GDOV secures key premium anchor tenants (such as Ralph Lauren, Hugo Boss,
Burberry), in order to maximise the draw of the centre and facilitate the widest
geographical reach. Downtown Qutlet is unlikely to secure such tenants due to
limitations of their site providing a less desirable physical environment.

. Two large outlets in such close proximity will create greater competition for the mass
market brands. With these brands forming a key part of an outlet centre’s turnover,
it is crucial to provide a strong mix of relevant mass market brands, which could be at
risk given the proximity of Downtown Outlet.

RI0JA DEVELOPMENTS LTD
The Barn, Little Mount Farm, Benhall Mill Road, Tunbridge Wells, Kent, TN2 SJW,

Tel: +44(0)20 7629 0088 or 01732 442045
Rioja Developments Ltd. Incorporated in England and Wales. Ref: in England. No. 3889011. Reg. Office: 94A London Road, Sevenoaks, Kent, TN13 1LP

110



. The GDOV greenfield site allows the potential to create a modern, upscale designer
outlet, with proposed architectural designs incorporating social spaces for shoppers
and the opportunity to create an exciting place to shop. In contrast, Downtown Outlet
faces limitations from its site and existing neighbours (i.e. car park restrictions,
warehouses and waste transfer station). This establishes a stronger draw for top
brands to locate within the GDOV scheme, ultimately creating a greater commercial
opportunity compared to that at Downtown Outlet.

. The information in this report shows that there is not room for two schemes of this
nature within Grantham, and if both schemes are given consent there would be a
negative impact for GDOV, Downtown Qutlet and Grantham town centre. The
development plans at GDOV cater for the sustainability and success of the town
centre, while also creating a larger tourist trade for the area, making it is the most
favourable choice for the area. In contrast, Downtown Outlet is maore likely to
compete with the town centre offer based on its likelihood of attracting a more mass-
market brand mix, especially given the open A1 planning consent at Downtown.

24. We know from experience that when there are two Designer Outlet projects proposed in such
close proximity, the viability of both is at serious risk. Moreover, our experience tells us that
when two such developments happen at the same time, as could be the case here, the
increased effort necessary to attract brands as tenants at the same time the other scheme is
doing the same, is likely to consign them both to failure, or at the very minimum, failure in
becoming Tier 1 schemes. This is not just our opinion, there are real life examples where
schemes have actually failed due to competition that was not taken into account by local
authorities in issuing of planning consents, leading to significant problems for local retail
economies. In Appendix 1, FSP cite actual examples of this. In particular we would like to draw
your attention to what happened with two projects in Northern Ireland, which after the
launch of both in 2005, neither could gain a competitive advantage with the result that brands
were split between the two centres and both schemes quickly ended up in receiver’s hands.
This tells us that the actions of the market are not always able to find a solution and therefore,
local authorities’ planning influence is essential to ensure the protection of the local retail
market and wider economy.

25. Outlet retail developments uniquely draw from much larger visitor catchment areas than the
normal retail stores that can be found on the high street, where customers are traditionally
drawn from the locality.

26. Top quality retailers in an OV are required to sell their products at a discount. These products
need to come from existing stores, so they need fewer Outlets than full price stores; perhaps
only one Outlet shop to ten full price stores. Many brands, (especially those in the premium
and luxury segments that are essential to create a Tier 1 scheme) only choose to be in Outlet
locations that have a wide geographical spread so as not to compete with each other or with
their full price stores. So, a premium brand has perhaps only 6 or 8 Outlet stores in the UK.
All of this means that they are very choosy about the Outlet schemes they decide to locate in.

27. As they are so choosy about location, given that they will choose (at best) only one scheme
from the two here, why would luxury and premium brands want to go to an Outlet next to
Downtown with its existing Boundary Mill discount operation? Such brands are looking for
bespoke, architecturally beautiful schemes, desighed on a human scale that create an
attractive atmosphere and a sense of place, for which their customers will be willing to drive
for up to 90 minutes and enjoy shopping as a leisure activity. This perfectly describes what
we at Rioja have created before for such Outlet Operators as McArthur Glen and other

Ri0JA DEVELOPMENTS LTD
The Barn, Little Mount Farm, Benhall Mill Road, Tunbridge Wells, Kent, TN2 5JW,

Tel: +44(0)20 7629 0088 or 01732 442045
Rioja Developments Lid. Incorporated in England and Wales. Ref: in England. No. 3889011. Reg. Office: 94A London Road, Sevenoaks, Kent, TN13 1LP

111



premium Operators and it describes what we will create at GDOV. it does not describe what
currently happens in a normal Boundary Mill nor at the Downtown store which, according to
their application, will stay open, next to the proposed new Outlet development at Gonertry
Moor. Premium brands, with images that are carefully and expensively built up over many
years, will not want to risk being in a development that is next to a waste transfer station,
motorway services and several industrial units.

8. The Downtown GDO development, if consented, would put both Outlét developments at
significant risk of not being developed. The beneéfits of Grantham having a Tier 1 scheme
outlined in para 4 above would not occur and the district will lose some 3.5 million visitors a
yean.

Reasons for Refusal,

29, From Rioja’s point of view as industry experts, we are left with only two possible conclusions
for the real intentions of Downtown. Either they are disingenuously trying to manipulate the
planning process as a rear-guard action to protect their existing Downtown operation from
what they incorrectly view as a competitor; or they are so naive that they think they can
promote and build their proposed new Outlet development, in competition with GDOV, not
realising they are likely to harm themselves and GDOV and doom Grantham town centre and
the surrounding area to economic failure,

0. As we have demonstrated, there are high stakes involved for both of the developers, for
Grantham town centre and for the wider area. Therefore, we urge you to consider all of the
above aspects in your deliberations and recommend that the Downtown Outlet planning
application is rejected by the members,

1. The parallel representation you will have received from Buckminster objecting to the
Downtown Outlet application includes an opinion from a senior and experienced retail and
planning QC. That opinion sets out the planning reasons why the application should be
refused. In short: The Downtown application should be refused because the scheme, if
implemented would be a direct rival to Grantham Town Centre, contrary 1o the aims of Policy
E2 of the adopted Core Strategy. The proposed scheme would result in significant and long-
term adverse impacts on the Town Centre. The vitality and viability of the weak and vulnerable
Town Centre, investor confidence, and its much-needed enhancement will be significantly
adversely affected. There would be no additional benefits to justify the significant adverse

impact.

The Downtown proposals are not in compliance with Policy E2 of the Core Strategy or the policies of
the NPPF that seek to ensure the vitality of town centres; the application should be refused.

Yours sincerely.

GILES MEMBREY BSc (HONS)
Managing Director

112



Downtown Grantham Designer Outlet
Assessment of Outlet Proposal

Introduction

Oldrid Group has brought forward plans to develop Downtown Grantham Designer Qutlet at
Gonerby Moor, ¢.3.5 miles north of Grantham town centre. As Europe’s leading independent
experts on outlet centre trading performance, FSP has be asked by Rioja Developments and
Buckminster Estate to review the site.

FSP has previously reviewed the opportunity for outlet shopping in Grantham and found that
while there is an adequate population of 3.4m within 60 minutes, the population density
within 30 minutes is very low. As a result the inner catchment has less than half the average
30 minute population found at UK outlet centres, indicating that it will be critical that large
numbers of visitors from the 30-60 minute drive zone (and beyond) are attracted for an outlet
centre in Grantham to be successful.

There are 43 major outlet centres (with a gross lettable area in excess of 50,000ft2) in the
UK. These have a total area of 6.7m ftZ and produced total sales of c. £2bn in 2017. Within
these major outlet centres, there are marked differences in the retail offer, brand line up,
visitor composition, catchment draw and sales density performance. This has led outlet
industry practitioners to use the 5 tier hierarchical categorisation below to describe the
significance of different sites.

Re'all Illx
Em Catehment m SsiesBensy Smple Qecupie ‘

40% international tourists, 20%

Bicester Village 3 hours + e ists, 40% I >E£1000/ sgft  Burbury. Prada. Gucci

- . . 10% international tourists, 40% -
1 Cheshire Oaks. Gunwharf Quays National 80 minutes N t5, 50%. Premium >EB00/ sqft Polo Ralph Lauren, Boss. Bose

40% domestic tourists, 80%

2 Clarks Village, Gloucester Quays Regional 80 minutes . Upper Middle =400 /sgft  Nike. Hobbs, Radley, Jaeger
3 The Galleria, Junction 32 Caunty 45minutes 20 domestic tounsts, 80% g, >£200/sqRt  M&S. Gap. Christy. Next
4 Affinity Devon, Chatham Dockside  District 30 minutes m“l"“ mestio toursts., 0% | werMidle  <€200/sgR  Poundland, Roman, The Works

In a tier of it's own, Bicester Village is unique the UK. The luxury brands required to reach
the attractiveness for international visitors and level of trading performance at Bicester
Village are in very short supply as their high profile means that they have limited excess
stock inventory. It is very unlikely that there can be a second outlet village of the quality of
Bicester Village in the UK.

Given the need for an extended catchment, FSP believes that Grantham requires a scheme
of Tier 1 or Tier 2 quality. It should be noted that all outlet centres mature in brand quality,
price positioning and performance over time, so that Tier 1 schemes tend to start out at Tier
2 quality and Tier 2 schemes tend to start out at Tier 3 quality. In Grantham’s case, targeting
a Tier 2 scheme at maturity would carry a significant risk that the limited Tier 3 draw at
opening (45 minutes) would result in poor initial trading performance which then becomes
chronic due to negative brand perceptions.

Additionaly, more midscale Tier 3 schemes such as Junction 32 or Lakeside Village are
occupied by everyday high street brands such as Clarks, M&S and Next. This type of offer is
more akin to a discount high street than a designer outlet centre and will not only increase
the likelihood and scale of cannibalisation of retail sales in Grantham town centre through
direct competition but will also reduce the potential to relet vacant shop units.

Given the above concerns, FSP believes that the only realistic option for developing a
successful outlet centre in Grantham is a Tier 1 outlet centre. FSP has therefore reviewed

113




the Qutline Planning Application for Downtown Grantham Designer Outlet on the basis of its
suitability for this goal.

FSP’s observations are as follows;

Location

M The location of the proposed Downtown Grantham Designer Qutlet at Gonerby Moor to
the north of Grantham is 57 minutes drive from East Midlands Designer Outlet. Whilst
the practice is illegal, it is likely that McArthurGlen (the operator) will try to pressurise
brands not to lease space at the Grantham site. It is also likely that the investor at East
Midlands Designer Outlet (Aviva Investors) will seek to prevent McArthurGlen from
operating the site at Gonerby Moor. [f successful, this opposition would limit the quality
of brands at Gonerby Moor, leading to a more midscale Tier 3 outlet centre and average
performance.

Access

B Access to the eastern car park at the proposed site from the A1 / B1174 (Newark Hill)
is via a single carriageway which is shared with HGV traffic to Grantham Distribution
Park and Mota's service area. While not unprecedented, the mixing of large numbers
of private cars and Heavy Goods Vehicles, pariculatly on Occupation Road and Palmer
Road is less than ideal and likely to result in conflicts. Visitors arriving vis Occupation
Road will pass a number of large distribution warehouses. These are not condusive or
complimenry to upscale shopping, will undermine the sense of arrival at the site and will
limit the attractiveness of the site to quality brands

B Access to the western car park at the proposed site is via an unnamed access road
which skirts the northern boundary of the site and enters the western carpark at the rear
(northern entrance) to the existing Downtown / Boundary Mill

B Designer outlet shoppers will need to navigate around the existing Downtown /
Boundary Mill building, following a single two way route which is likely to be
congested with vehicles maneouvering to park.

M The existing Downtown / Boundary Mill building will not create a quality sense of
arrival

B The road connection from Gonerby Moor to Grantham town centre (Gonerby Road /
Great Gonerby High Street) is narrow and has a number of commercial, social and
community facilities fronting it e.g. Grantham Tennis Club, St Sebastian's school, plus
20 and 30 mph speed restrictions in place. These activities slow traffic, raise concerns
about user conflicts and make the journey into Grantham town centre less convenient.
These issues are likely to discourage spin off trips form the outlet centre into Grantham
town centre

B Unlike Bicester Village or Gunwharf Quays, the proposed railway station at Downtown
Grantham Designer Outlet is not on the mainline to London but on the west to east line
from Nottingham to Boston. Visitors from London will be required to break their journey
at Grantham station to transfer to a local service to Gonerby Moor. This transfer will
add to the journey time from London and is likely to discourage visitors

B The pedestrian access route from the proposed railway station to the proposed outlet
centre runs between two industrial units and through the eastern surface car park.
Visitors will be required to cross Occupation Road between Palmer Road and the B1174
roundabout (which will be carrying freight traffic and cars for the multistorey car park)
and the route through the east car park /coach park does not appear to be segregated.
This is not appropriate for an upscale designer outlet offer

B The proposals include a Park & Ride facility adjacent to the proposaed railway station.
The route to the outlet centre will involve crossing Occupation Road and negotiating the
east surface car park / coach park. This route will reduce use of the designer outlet
centre by mobility impared groups

114



Adjacencies

The Downtown / Boundary Mill building, Moto Service Station and Travelodge are of a
functional and dated design, which will not support the image presented by the majority
of upscale outlet brands. 80% of new outlet centres are designed as stand alone
villages in order to maintain the quality of the environment in a way which supports
brands

Brake Bros Ltd Distribution Warehouse and DLS Plastics factory are adjacent to the
proposed development and not suitable neighbours for an upscale outlet centre. The
building are industrial in design and unlikely to attract upscale, lifestyle brands. Further
to this, the adjacent 10 acre site (Grantham Distribution Park) was sold in Sept 2015
and has detailed planning consent for a single distribution building of 215,000 ft* (19,974
m?2). Once built, this will create additional HGV traffic at Gonerby Moor

The Downtown department store has a relatievely midscale proposition which will not
compliment upscale outlet brands. There is a similar site at Sterling Mills in Scotland
where the outlet centre is adjacent to a very well known furniture store. While the
adjacent department store brings some footfall to the site, cross fertilisation of visits is
relatively limited and the outlet centre has not managed to achieve anything more than
a midscale proposition.

Boundary Mill itself has a discount offer which incorporates a number of midscale
brands under one roof. The operational model, quality of stock and presentation of
brands is very different to a designer outlet centre (FSP classify Boundary Mill as a Tier
3 outlet operator) and is likely to undermine the quality proposition. Most outlet brands
expect exclusivity in selling their merchandise and while Boundary Mill is a very effective
operator, it's presence is likely to act as a disincentive for the type of high end quality
outlet brands required at a Tier 1 or Tier 2 designer outlet centre. The presence of TK
Maxx which has a similar discounted brand proposition to Boundary Mill, has been
raised as an disincentive by several upscale brands during leasing discussions at The
Galleria and Junction One (Antrim).

Site Layout

Gonerby Moor visitors will be confronted with a multistorey car park at the entry to the
site. This is unlikely to be particularly attractive to consumers or upscale brands and
will undermine the sense of arrival

The ‘L-shape’ site at Gonerby Moor is deeply compromised by the need to maintain
access to Downtown in the north western corner. This arrangement suggests potential
conflicts between users accessing different parts of the site (e.g. the proposed leisure
and Downtown department store) and is not appropriate for a Tier 1 or Tier 2 designer
outlet centre environment

Outlet Design

The pedestrian circuit at Gonerby Moor lacks design detail and visual appeal. This is
reminiscent of early functional outlet centre designs and its poor quality will be of less
appeal to both affluent shoppers and more upscale brands

The courtyard parking arrangement in the South Zone has largely been abandoned by
outlet designers as it fails to encourange cross use of activities. The eastern end of the
central car park at Cheshire Oaks and the northern end of the central car park at Ashford
Designer Outlet for example, have gradually been infilled with shops to create a ‘village’
atmosphere

The presence of leisure boxes and the retail terrace fronting the A1 is reminiscent of the
failed Junction One outlet centre at Antrim, Northern Ireland. The functional nature of
this site was only suitable for more midscale brands such as Marks & Spencer and Next
and the site is in the process of being decommissioned as an outlet centre. Occupiers
were reluctant to populate the terrace at Junction One because of its isolation from the

115




core outlet area, suggesting that the terrace at Downtown Grantham will only attract low
quality, Tier 3 and Tier 4 occupiers

B The design for Gonerby Moor is compromised by a substantial break in the retail circuit,
with the smaller orphaned northern section of the site. Given that traffic will be sharing
the break with pedestrians, this is likely to attract much less footfall than the main section
to the south. McArthurGlen have struggled with similar disconnected circuits at Swindon
(the North Mall used to be separated by a part time service road), Cheshire Oaks and
Troyes (Phase 2 is separated by a feeder road). In all cases this separation has
significantly challenged leasing activity, undermined the positioning of the retail mix and
severely reduced trading performance

M It is wholly inappropriate for pedestrian and vehicals to share traffic in this manner —
The layout is very dated and not found at the most recent generation of outlet centres
and likely to discourage Tier 1 and Tier 2 outlet brands. Itis FSP’s belief that this design
is wholly inappropriate for a modern outlet village and the northern section would be
very difficult to let

Operations
B The outlet centre circuit will be bisected by the access road to Downtown / South Zone.
The potential mixing of shoppers with children and traffic is a major safety concern and
is not appropriate for a designer outlet centre

B Given the additional activities proposed at Gonerby Moor (Downtown, leisure, Boundary
Mill etc.), 2,000 parking spaces may well be inadequate. Sites with extended offers
tend to encourage longer dwell times and lower turnover of spaces

B Given the co-location of the proposed outlet centre with the Downtown department
store, Boundary Mill and the Garden Centre, it is unlikely that the entire Gonerby Moor
site can be managed by a single entity. This lack of co-ordination will limit the outlet
centre operator’s effectiveness and undermine trading performance

B The configuration of the site is unlikely to attract a top tier operator. As 50% of the
population of upscale outlet shops at European outlet centres are found at the sites
operated by Value Retail, McArthurGlen, Via Outlets or Neinver (which account for 50%
of UK outlet centre sales and 55% of all European outlet centre sales), this is essential
in achieving the upscale offer and extensive catchment draw required to make an outlet
centre in Grantham viable. In particular, top tier operators are not likely to respond
positively to the poorly integrated activities on site, compromised access, inappropriate
adjacencies, bisected outlet offer and presence of Downtown and Boundary Mill

Commercial Impact

The above assessment suggests that Downtown Grantham Designer Outlet will incorporate a
combination of dated design, poor adjacencies and eclectic mix of incoherent activities which
is unlikely to appeal to the more upscale brands necessary for Grantham.to attract visitors
from beyond 45 minutes drive. Itis FSP’s opinion that if the proposals for Downtown Grantham
Designer Outlet were enacted, the resulting development would be no better than an
underperforming Tier 3 outlet centre. This outcome would create a number of significant
problems for Grantham town centre;

B There is insufficient capacity for two outlet centres to co-exist at Grantham. Trading UK
outlet centres typically have 75 residents for every square metre of outlet centre floor
space within 60 minutes drive. With 25,000m?already consented at Grantham OV (King
31 site) Grantham will have 50 residents for every metre of outlet centre space within
80 minutes. An additional 25,000m?2 at the Downtown site would reduce available
capacity to just 38 residents for every metre of outlet centre space within 60 minutes,
half of the national capacity ratio. At this level of provision sales performance at both
sites would be significantly compromised and both schemes would not be commercially
viable.

116



M Allowing both schemes to progress in competition will confuse brands. While some will
opt for one site ahead of the other, some will chose to wait until the winning site is clear
while others will seek to gain financial advantage by exploiting the available leasing
incentives. Two rival projects in Denmark (at Billund and Kolding) for example have
failed to attract sufficient brands to justify construction

B Allowing both schemes to progress concurrently will be to the detriment of Grantham
town centre and will compromise viability;

B The provision ratio of 38 residents for every square metre within 60 minutes of
Grantham (assuming both Downtown Grantham Designer Outlet and Grantham
Outlet Village progress) is only marginally better than the level in Northern
Ireland, where two rival schemes have competed since 2005. In this case, neither
scheme was able to gain a competitive advantage over the other, upscale brands
and shoppers were spit between the sites and both fell into administration.
Today, both schemes are under the ownership of Tristan Capital partners who
are progressing the more suitable outlet scheme at The Boulevard (previously
known as The Qutlet) at Banbridge as the Province's outlet destination, while the
more mixeduse site at Junction One at Antrim is repositioned as a discount retail
park

B Gunwharf Quays and Whiteley Village in Hampshire are 10 miles apart. After 10
years of direct competition, In 2011, the owner of Whiteley Village recognised
that Gunwharf Quays had become the pre-eminant outlet destination for the
region and chose to use the A1 consent to redevelop Whiteley into a full price
district centre. Now attracting ¢.8 million visits per annum and with an average
visit frequency of 45 visits per year, the direct impact of Whilteley Shopping
Centre on competing towns such as Fareham and Southampton has been
significant

B FSP believes that Grantham Designer Village is the only credible proposal to
establish a true designer outlet village at Grantham. Given that aspirational
brands and leading operators will also recognise this, Downtown Grantham
Designer Qutlet is likely to struggle for occupiers and will potentially be forced to
adopt a more midscale tenant mix (if the scheme progresses at all). In this
scenario, the site's existing open A1 consent could be used to attract tenants
from Grantham town centre (or tenants who would otherwise have taken space
in the town centre) on the basis of lower rents, lower rates and free parking. Even
those midscale brands which are new to Grantham would compete directly with
the existing offer in the town centre, resulting in irreparable harm

Conclusion

In order to accommodate an outlet centre at a very constrained site and maintain access to
Downtown / Boundary Mill, the proposed plans for Gonerby Moor incorporate a number of
significant layout and operational compromises. These will reduce the ability to manage the
destination to greatest effect, severely limit the attractiveness of the site to upscale brands,
diminish the customer experience, undermine likely trading performance and discourage linked
trips to Grantham town centre. It is FSP’s view that the proposals for Downtown Grantham
Designer Qutlet are dated, ill conceived and severly limited to the point that it is highly unlikely
that the site can incorporate the Tier 1 or Tier 2 outlet centre.

Given that it is essential for an outlet centre in Grantham to draw from well beyond 30 minutes
drive, the current plans for Downtown Grantham Designer Outlet are not realistically capable of
achiving the upscale offer necessary, while at the same time limiting canibalisation and
generating significant spin of trips into Grantham town centre. Capacity for outlet floor space
within 60 minutes of Grantham is finite and if planning consent is given to for two rival schemes,
the resulting built floor space will outstrip occupier demand, undermine viability and severely
damage future prospects for Grantham town centre.

FSP September 2018

FSP RETAIL BUSINESS CONSULTANTS

117



DESIGNER
OUTLET

DESIGNER
QUTLET

|

DOWNTOWN
GRANTHAM

- GRANTHAM

Downtown Grantham Designer Outlet Site Plan

118



S0UBPYUOD W ensswwo] | 120 | 8T0T DYI9

uv.A.- %ﬁg d_”.___.rwhﬁ.u:: 7 %

¥

Juapisald a0 jueynsuo)
lied ueq Jaudway eineq

810 Joquaidas

A9VTIIA 1374N0 43ANDISIA NVHLINVYYD

Lﬁt EE_.LK, _m

).

il

119



20uzpyue) ul epswwed | 120 | 8102 DYI9

~

DD

"SUDI1EI0] |1B33] OET JBA0 SAS/AINS +000°009 10 S5BQEIEP 5,10WD UD
paseq JSWNsSU0d 3N 8yl Jo mala paluspadaldun ue sapimold pue Apnis
Y2JESSES 2JJUSI-Ul SA5USYSIdWOD 150W 34T 51 SNOISNIWIQ 43dJOHS =

"BAJE 8] Ul PUBLUSP JO |8A8] 8l PUE SSWSYDS
Bunadwos jo uonEI0] BY] XIW $,313UB7 YIES 1O SSBUSANIEINE a3yl
104 SIUN023E 3] “AJIUNOCD 8Y1 SSOIDE SUOIIBUIISSP |IB184 000 ¥ J8A0 10}

Inoineyaq Jeddoys pue spasu Jawolsng
SJUSWIY2ED S3UlEP eyl [2pow ANARIE N S,10%D 51 LNIIALOO4 TIVLIY =

‘sanuad 1apno Jo a8ps|mouy padxa s,|0vD uo paseq sisA|eue asueulopad
‘1001 DV DUE JUSLIYDIED ‘JUBWISSISSE 815 454 8Y3 Jo malaal B apiactd (im Hodss siyL

*,
L

“¥Z0OE ul Suimo||ol 7 eseyd Jo uonajdwod yum ‘TZOoz Ul usdo o1 pajnpayos
51 T 8seyd ‘doys o1 s2e|d Suiyoxa ue Suileals ‘ssiniea) [EIUSWUOIAUS

- pasueyus Ylim sijuso 131no 3__m_...w. ..._W_S B I3AlIRD ||IM 2WUsyos 2y
Jm.mpl—lmz_EMUDm 5 f.___—_._n__ﬁm OH

*,
L

gaseyd oma
Ul palaalap aq [|Im yaiym suun Suisled pue 118l gET Jaao Suipiaold Cy Cbs
000'0LT 48n0 Jo away3s |euoidal e s1 (AQdD) a8e|a 1213N0 Jaudisag Weyluelg

*,
L

alejpaapine jaulisap

WY H 1N ¥ 3 9
183N0 umolumog Jo Juswdojaaap pasodold ayl Junodoe ojul Fuiyel
D ‘aBe|n 18an0 JauBisaq weyjueln Joj uoissiwgns Suiuue|d syl 1o MBIAISAD UE
D “ apinoud o1 sjuswdojanaq eloy pue Jajsulwyong Ag pajontisul ueaq sey [2vD

*,
LH

NOILONAOYULNI

120



— SJUpYUOD Ul [epsFwwed | 122 | 8T0T 12v0E

E3ep Juudiocy pElay (v Swsn,

"BaJE 2Y3 Ul puELWap 243 4o} 12182 AjInj 01
2|qe 2q |im pue paiinbai s| 213u22 32)3n0 4213 doj auo Ajuo
JEY] PRPUSLILLODR] 2104212Y3 S| 3] "JUIWIYIIED 5, IWIYIS
yoea woJiy siaddoys awes ay3 jo uolesijeqiuued o}

INP $243UP2 Yioq Ul 2320] 03 A|@Ijun U SPUBIQ WNIWd

"}511 1€ Wweylueln 1o} suonesidse yimolas ind ol

Al2¥1| 51 2WaY2s 12[INO UMOIUMEQ 24} 10) Juasuod ‘Ajuwxoid

0] ang ,juawydled paywi| Apealje ue Suidjddns-1ano aq

pinom Aljwxoid 250|2 Yans uj s33]1N0 om] Sujaey 1B SMOYS
13[INQ UMOLUMO(] PUB AQJD JO SIUILWIYIIED U] JO deI3n0 3]

24q1[E SIY3 JO uoneUNSIP
B USI|qe1Sa 0} JSPI0 Ul p3puawWwiodal aq pjnom (s133nQ
BIA ‘J2AUIBN ‘U3|D INYUIY2IA S Yyans) Jojesado 123 dol i

EVITER]
12[1n0 3|easdn ue jo meip Suonls e Suipinoad Ag ‘playe Jaynny
wioly siaddoys up mesp 01 AQQD 10} pa3au 3yl sIYSIYSBIY syl

‘(senuazisno
¥ o uonendod a8e1ane ay) jjey ueyl ssa|) SwWIBALP SNUIL
O€ uiyum Apsusp uoljeindod mo| Alan B paijijuspl aABY 454

3 wuzgony ooy oo e Sy

& puncy

0 L SN B e 3pRceSde

FAR R IR GO LD B LIRS

WD 0L | GZ g SN0

01

WUR ] PSRN B ) ST

FEER

e et

"L 10T B SSSTRRE P

e

P =0 o P P ey e
Lo

R

i [+ [} ]

S [ - VRG]
sum 0 - uvoiea ||
g o - v ||

T g - o e, [

SR [ - O LRy

U 1 - NO] DRy

BRI LR @

ADnwBpE g

pEayaieD

UAMOIUMOC] % SPUIPIO i

BT0Z 21epdn 3ouURWIOLR
B WUSWY1R) 454 Juudiood 1B13E 12D (FuUnos

ANVINEA INJINHOL1YD

121



FJuapyuo] W esEwwod | 122 | 8T0T 12¥09

Eep Juudiood ey [y Suisn,,
Elep suosuswg seddoys [DyD Susn,

bl

'yoead |eaiydesdoad 1sapim ayy 23ell|12e}
pue 313Ua2 3Y3 JO MEIP 3] as|WINEW 03 Japio ul ‘(Aiaging
‘ssog 02ny ‘usineq ydjey se yons) sjueusy Joyoue wniwaad

A2y s24n23s AOQD 2UNSUR 0} PAI3U 2] SIJRIISUOLUIP SIY] &

«+ B2IE JUSLLIYD1ED ISPIM B LLIO1J SIOHSIA MEIP [[IM XIW JUBUS]
wnjwauad 210w B Yym 121100 UB ‘SUCIIBUSIP [IB124 13410
01 paledwod meip 125uU0ns B SBY 3J1U30 13[IN0 U 3[IYAR

‘eale Sulpunolns
3Y1 uo ulells asea 03 uollsasuod |e20| pue Alljiqissanoe
aY1 JunooJe olul uayel aney pue ‘uoisinoad Suped
Jo sawnjon Y31y Joj paiaied Apealje aney suejd Juswdojanag
“JUSWY21ED SPIM B 3AI3S 0] UOI1BI0| 3|GRIIS3P B AQQD
ewW TV 2y1 eln All|IqIssa20e pue syul| podsuesy Suonsay| «

“Juawyoied pajendod

Aj2sieds e uj j1e131 Jo adAy siy1 Suipiaoud jo spjauaqg syl

Buiysysiy *,suoneunssp |1e3ad Jaylo o} patedwod Aeme
1sayun} woly s1addoys 10eille 0] 3|ge 24. S3UIUID IBANY %

wpdiood 1813y 2D ‘suoisuzwg Jaddoys 10D :3aanos _ ,—%U
i) D13y
BNUI)
Buiddoys
jedpelzy  yied Suiddoys uma] uj e euciSay  Wied AUNSIF]  13[AN0 USIYsEY
o
g
or <
3
91 T T ©
oz &
e
sz
og

sajnuiw g7 fo aunjanlp a36pi3AD UD YIM ‘SUolIDUIISIP [ID}3 13Y]0
0} paipdwod DaID JUWYIIDD 15apim Yyl wolf ul siaddoys ind sa13u33 13]100

4NOIAVHIE 43ddOHS

122



20UBPLUOD Wl [eRsawwo) | 122 | 8TOZ 1DVIE

Q suoisuz g Jaddoys |y (23unos 7 g
12[INQ uoilysed | yied ie1=y 12N [ruciEay yed Suddoys m aua) Suiddoys ume] u)m
doys 00w doys dn Azooug duj Suisieny  3uiddoys
Azooug Bl waqoo YD uidougyainn 9%l S Suwsied yoinp -dog supnoy  Ag Buissed  swi) Suipuads 18vseq 10 2Ins1E MODUIA o Aeqg Big
- %0
g_._g.._ ST s n - _____. _
£ %1
%S
o
X8 %0T
at RIT
%ST
=0T
%08
- L %5
%0T %19 6T %08

o e

...O.U
pa1asoding
*313u33 burddoys umog-ul jouoippoa}

p 03 s13ffip oy3 1affo pupig o yym ‘aapds Buiygadr pup Buypadde up 1aAyap 0] paau ay3 5323( a1 1ayny siyy “aapuad buiddoys umol-ur up o3 paiodwod sUoissiWw
uanup buuainy / ainsia] fo suorpodoad raybiy osip aup aiay} apym “dug ino Aog big p bunanpuod aq o} Ajaxi aiow yanw ain 243ua2 3ano up Bunysia siaddoys

pa7 22USIUSAUDY pa7 uoneunsaqg

SNOISSIW 43ddOHS

123



Foupyue) uEeEwwed | 122 | 8T0Z 1IDYIe

BeA)

o]

ADQ Weyluelsy suoisuawig Jaddoys |2y 3unosg
Elep sumsuswg Jeddoys Dy Swisn,

*1@3nQ umolumoq jo Ajwixoid ayl uans ysii 1B aq p|Nod Ydlym ‘spuelq 1@)JeLW SSeLW JueA3|al jo Xiw Suoils e apinoid o] [e12NID
s1 31 12A0UIN S,243U22 32|3n0 ue Jed Asy e Sulwloy spueiq asayl Yl 'spuelq 13)JeW ssew 2y} Joj uoninadwod saiea.d s) alayl jey;

Suiueaw ‘asjuad [enpialpul Yaea e 1ajjo 3yl jo YyiSuauays ay) a1n|ip [im Ajwixoad asoja yons ul s33|3no asie] omi SulAey JO 3 nsal By

-uM_.E 1y ssejduns @ 13uno
" e SN
unspisfyi) __ po
VIQANVd \r_;_a_==__ Blﬂ
AREIMENN - ._” - *\*
AHHIETNN ) M .msau

SHOM 13YHIIN

e
AHMHASI M1 E E

31S0DV1 % NEGIERIIE

0T0d AWWOL

LISy lAoTy L3iLnag 08 OONHK

INVIAYV SSOd

« ulod 2oud Jamo)| e 1e spuelaq Aepluana

Y 28e3ua 0] suaddoys moj|e A3y se S2.3U3D SSOIJE S3)BI UOISI3AUDD [IB)3l
1say8iy ay1 Supuauadxa ‘saujuad 19[Ino wniwsalad 104 swodul o ¥201paq 3yl ale
Aay1 ‘|es1o0f Jo sianup 1528.1e| aY] 3¢ Jou ABLW SpURIQ WESIISUIBLW 35341 3|IYM <

‘Juawagedua 1aysiy Sunowoud ‘siaddoys 10} Ayunpoddo |ielal 3|gissadoe

210W J3J0 YoIym ‘spuelq 1ayiew ssew jo uoipodoad ySiy e si s1y) apisduoly
"awlaAup Suo] Ajjeansiia10e1eY2 11941 S13)1N0 SUIAIS ‘p|a1Je JaYLIn) Wol) }sa1au)
gunesauad pue Joj uljjanel] yuom 1340 ajqedisap e yum siaddoys Suipinoid
'S313U30 13[INO0 10) MEIP UIBLW 3Y] S3aYsi|qelsa spuelq wniwaud A3y Jo uonoa|jod y «

"B3JE 9YJ 01 S11USD UMO] WEBLIUBIG
10} $11J9Uaq J13A0-55010 3Y] JOU 3WaY2s T 431] e Jo sujauaq ayl Sulq o1 a|ge

2 10U ||IM }Nsal B SE pue ‘A0 JO $5900N5 31 31n|Ip 01 A[2y1] 51 S1331eW JoUSIA
pUB JUBU3] SLWWES 3Y] Ul S3WSYIS Ylog Jo 20ua)sixa ay] -, sdul |enuauadxs anjea
1ays1y ‘w=anbayy ssa) asoyl Apueunwopaud — suoissiw Jaddoys Je|iwis uo aue oym
S101I5IA 05| 1Nq ‘Sp|oyasnoy IWes a1yl Sulnas 2g Ajuo 10U ||IM S311U30 13|1N0 Y109

‘Aynwixouad 3s0)2 yons ul spueiq pajedydnp Joj pasu
B SABL| 10U [|IM SIUSWYIILD §,13[IN0 UMOIUMO(] pPUB 5, AQQD ulyim siaddoys «

SININIYINDIY YIddOHS

124



- IIUSPLUCT Wl [eswwo)] | 120 | 8T0Z IDV2E T T
L ADQ WRYIURID ‘JUSWISSISSe 3USs 454 120 20unog 7 g

E3ep suorsuzwiq s2ddoys 1w Fwisn,
"1I2[3IN0 uMmolumoq e jeyi o3 pasedwod
AO0AdD 1e Ajlunuoddo [erpsawwod Ja3es.s e Suijestd Aj@jewnyn ‘ewsayas
243 UlYyHM 2320] 03 spueaq doj Joj mesp J23uodls e sapinoad siy ]l a3ls Y3
Suusus uaym |enLlIE Jo asuas Suodls e 91e81d 01 Ajlunuoddo ayy pue suaddoys
Jo} seoeds |e1oos Suizesodiooul suSisep [einidaiydie yum ‘1@|3no Jausisap
2|easdn ‘uiapouw e ajeaJd o} |el3uaiod Suouls sapinodd a3s AQQD 243 ‘Iseijuod Ag

-1olesado 121} doy e o3 Suideinoosip

3q [|1m pue 313u30 13)3In0 3|easdn do) e J0j JUSWUOIIAUS 3|geJISSp B 31B3.D 10U Op Y21ym —

(Buip|ing [N umoluMo ‘Uollels a21AUaS 010 ‘e8pojanel | ) sSulp|ing pajep ‘jeuoauny Aq
paJnoqySiau os|e si 1] “24q1|eI SIY] JO 2413 13]IN0 U 10} sunoqydiau 3|qeunsun a4e Yyaiym
‘uoiels J3ysuel] S1seM B pue slun asnoyasem s81e| om] 0] Juadelpe s 13)1N0 UMOIUMO(]

*

« Sownl yead Buunp Aje1oadsa ‘spsia winial 1312p pue siaddoys 1sBuowe suollenosse
anijedau ajesud ||im 3s e Sulislus uo uollsaiuod pue ‘uoijeun]sap ielal e Suisooyd usym siaddoys 1o} 1suueq pue saaup Asy e yjoq st Supyed
de7) "21E11 AOH Yum padeys si pue quod 1xa/Adlus 3j3uis e BIA 51 553208 — JuawaEuene Supped Jed 3jqelisap $59| B SEY 12[IN0 UMOIUMOQ] s

*

‘s1addoys 1s8uowe asuewopad |[B1aA0 PUB 3LWBYDS 3yl Jo 1oedw ayl sanpal AjJuedjiusis [|im 253yl o 1y Suiyoe] uolesado
dol e Suunoaas pue spueiq Aay Suiloeine Jo aaueyd Jaysiy e SuINE ‘Aeme JaYLIN) SHS AQQD "52J1U32 Ylog Ul 21e20] 01 A|2j1jun 3. SJUBU3] JOYIUE
Aay 1eY1 Suueaw I3)INQ UMOIUMO(] JO SWIFDALIP 33NUIW Qg B UIYIM 51 13]3InQ JauSisaq spuelpiy 1587 5,ua|ounyuydly uaamiaq Apwixold ay] «

¥

'55300nNs 10} s10adsoud sy Supueyus Ajjesls ‘usjounyuUyaN se yons uojelado
13no Buipes| e oeine o} [euajod syl sey (AOAD) TE Sury 3jiym ‘a)gepnsun 3ajnQ umojumo( Je udisap pasodoud ayy puly pjnom siojesado
Janndo] -s13u32 33)In0 3|e2sdn U Jo USISIP UISPOW 3Y] J0J 3|QELNS U0W S| AQJD 18 3Us plaYua=is syl 1eyl sapnpuod podal 454 3y «

o h

TVILN3L1Od 31IS -HOOW AgH4INOD SA T€ ONIA

125



32UapYuo’] ul [epswwe] | 122 | 8TOZ 12V2@ T T
gT0T 21epdn 2oURWIOPR 7 WUBWYIIE] 454 ‘FEpapmouy |JY0 32unos _ g

"BI005 JUNOISIP UAMOIWMO] S Upe Jueus) Sunsiea ue aie [y Juepunog,,

o]

‘weyiuess ul jieyas SulSSnays ay3 Joj pedwi aaesau e Sulaey 213U32 UMO] BAIJEUISL|E UEB 3W0234 p|N0d 3)is 3y} Ysid
jueayiudis e 03 Suipea| ‘243u32 umo) ay3 woly Aeme spueiq mesp Aj|njssa2ons Aew 32nQ umoiumoq ‘Sunjied 234y pue sjual samo| Sulayo
u| "213u22 uMo} weyjuess uiym Suinesado Apealje aie oym 3soy] SE YINs spuelq 13)JEW SSEW 210w peipe o3 |yl st 3 ‘{(umojumoq pue

[Il Adepunog wouy) uoiinadwod a3eIpaLUW] BY) pUE J|3s31 311S 33 JO SWI3] Ul UOI3Ed0| 3|qelIsap ss3] e Sulpinoad 32]3nQ umoumog Y +

‘uoleunsap 1a3jino suipes)
E 3]1E310 0] JuaWyaled ayl uiyum Aylunpioddo ayy jo yiBualls ay) Sunjensuowsap ‘(a1eys 1aydew %£) N 241 ul si2ino ajeasdn a31e| 10} aselane ayl
anoqe Ajpuesyiusis st siyl *(z aseyd Jo Auaniap syl Jale 96 01 BuimouS) 948 JO a1eYs 133 JeW B 3A3IYIE ||IM AQJD 1Yl s121paid |SpoLL 313U30 183IN0 S,d5d

‘Yyum 28eBua o1 siaddoys 10} aoeds Supyau) pue Supejal ‘ajes e Sujleald ‘palaniap aJe saoeds Jjgnd pue JuawuolIAud

Ayjenb e Suunsua Aq siy Joj s131ed uSisap awayds ay] "pI21e JaYLIN} Wol) SI0YSIA 253y SUInas 10 [BIONID 3 [[IM 3JIU3D 13[IN0 3] 1B JUSLIUOIIAUS
|eaisAyd pue sayo pueiq ‘Aj|iqissadIe 3y | “siapuads |euonippe o 133Jew e aunided 03 JU3WYdled s A0QD s1500q siy] -Ajjenuue wpp/ F Ajdeau yuom 3q
01 pa1ipaid 's151N03 31153Wop wolj 3duewnopad Suois 218111984 |IM AOJD UIYHM Pa1BI0| 33140 1514N03 B PUB SUOIIIEIIIE 151UN03 Agieau Jo Aelie uy &

‘uolaulsal Jadoud ou yum 20eds aye] 0] 211U30 UMO] U]

Wwolj spuelq 3|qeua ‘(AQQD 18 21jun) [|Im yarym a1is umolumo(g ay3 3e Juasuod Sujuued Ty uado s a1ay) se ‘ase Apuaund Aay) se ajesado 01 anuuod
[|IM $31035 UMOIUMOQ JUa1INd 3yl pue || Auepunog 1ey) paajueiens Jou si ) "(1ayo unodsip i Adepunog Suilsixa ue 0} 1xau 13]3IN0 UB Ul 31820 0}
Aj@y1jun a1e spuelq wniwald "a°1) 19343 |1 Auepunog ayy uans Jayo wniwaid e poddns ued 1a)INQ UMOIUMO(] JO UOIIRIOD] 3Y] 1BYY Aj3Ijun OS[B S1 1|

‘B3R J3PIM Y1 J0 5520005 31 10J 221042 3|gEIISIP 210LW 3] S1 5141 1BY] PapUILLILLIOIaL g pinom 1l ‘sueld aUs 3|geuns 150w 3yl Sulney AQJO

Yum “ease ayl u Supielsado pjnoys awayas 121100 4311 dol suo Ajuo 1eyl Sujoiojulal ‘WEeYIUeIS) Ulyllm S2J1U32 13[IN0 OM] JO 30U2151X3 3yl Ag paljw|
3q ||1Mm s1y1 o 1oedw ay] "Sunno suo ul AQQJD pUe a131usd umol 3yl Sunisia Jo pooylay paseasoul yum duy ajAis ino Aep Sig, B U NSIA 0] SISLINOY

ansawop SuiBeinoous ‘Aeme Jaypung wou) Suljjanen) siaddoys asoy) o] |eadde ||1m AQOD pUE 311U32 UMO] WEYIUEID usamlaq Juswadedua Bunowold «

"uoi8al Japim ay3 Woly 1s3131ul [1e3al 21ejnwis o} Suidjay pue 3|qelISap 210W 3|OYMm B Se paJe
ay3 Supjew ‘yauaq s,AQQ9 01 3om |im Juawdojanap Sulialed pue BLUSUID MaU B JO $3))1] 241 YIIM 211U32 UMO] WEYIURIS UlyHM 1210 Su|Sealou] uy

SY010Vv4 1v201

S4010V4 TVNYH11Xd

126



B

3oUapyYUS] Ul [EDsRWWY | 122 | 8T0Z 12V08 R
2107 23epdn 23UBULIOUR 7§ JULWYIIE] 454 ‘|J¥D 224n05 7 %

‘sassaulsng Suunogqysdiau pue

awayos Sunsixa ayl Agq pasudwod Ajineay st 13jInQ umolumog Jo Aujenb pue

3|eas ay1l a|iym ‘uawdo|anap ayodsaq e a1eald o] Ayunpoddo siy) sapinoad

AOQQD 1B 215 24| "24IU2 JUNoIs|p Fulls|Xa Ue 0] UO[lIpPe Ue 1ou ‘}ing
asodind a1e 1eY] ‘sawayds mau AjaAISN|IX3 1SOW|E 2B SALWAYIS ID[IN0 T 131 «»

"JUSWIYI1ED 341 Ulyum siuawaanbal |euoial pue |B20|
junoooe ojul Supjel ‘}2ano ajeasdn Suipea)] e 1anjap o1 38pajmouy Adisnpul
pue [e20] JUBA3|3) 3yl saplacdd ADQD pulyaq siaupied JO UoIIBUIGqWIOD SIY| «s

"weyjueln
Jo ss3200ns pue Aljigeulelsns ay3y Suunsus Joj Aypiqisuodsal pue asusuadxs
[e20] S 433sUlWRong yum paulquod adoun3 pue yn inoysnoay) suonesado
12)1n0 Funsxa Jo 23p3|MouUy SNSUIIXS UD pPaseq ‘uolleullsap 12ane anbun
B 318242 0] J2Yy12801 Supjiom aue Ja1sujunong pue sjuswdojanag eloly

“LTOE — ¥TOE U=22Mml=2q J=n0Udng
Ul 25e=212Ul %k T+ m:_”—m:m:_u:.__m_u \m...__h_._._Lr_u 51 1=234ELWU 12)1IN0 UOCIYSEL YN 2yl <=

SHOLIV4 AYLSNANI 43dIM

SH01OV4 TVNY31Xd

127



2JUspYUO] W ensRwwae) | 122 | 8T0Z 1DV0e

& oo IV

“umolumoq 1e Juasuod uluued Ty uado ayl uamd Ajje1oadsa KW puelq 133JeLW SSELW 3J0W

e Suiioeiie Jo pooyayl] 511 U0 paseq 13440 313Uad umol 3yl yiim a1adwod o1 Ajayl| 210w S1 13[IN0 UMOIUMO(] “ISEIUOD U "BalE 313 10J 3010Yd
a|qeanoney 1sow ayl si J Supjew ‘eale ayl Joj apel) 1sunol 1asie| e Suileald os|e ajiym ‘311U UMaol 3] Jo Ss323Nns pue Ajljigeulelsns 3yl 1oj
12182 AQD 1e sue|d JuawdojaAsp 3y 211U UMO] LUBYILEID PUB 13|1NQ UMolumoq ‘AQJ9D 4o} 1oeduw) anjedau e ag pjnom 31311 Juasuod
uanig a1e s3WaYIS Y1o0q I pUe ‘Weyluels) ulylim sunleu siyl Jo $aWsyds oMl 10) Wood Jou s 313yl 18yl smoys Hodal siyy ul uonewopul ay |

“12)1nQ umolumod 1e eyl o3 patedwod A0do 1e Aunuoddo eiswwod 1a1e3a.8 e Sulleald Aja1ewyn ‘SWayas ayl uiylim 31ed0|

0} spueiq doy 1o} meap 1a5uoJls e saYsI|qelsa siy] -(uo1iels Jajsuel} 31Sem pue sasnoyalem ‘suol}oulsal yied 1eod -a°1) sunoqysiau Bunsixa
pue 31IS S} WOJ} SUDIIE}ILWI| S30B) 13[IN0D UuMmolumog] ‘Isesjuod u| “doys o1 2oe|d Sunioxs ue 31ea10 o] Ayunuoddo ay) pue suaddoys Joj saoeds
|e1dos Sunesodioaul sudisap |einiaayyale pasodoid yum 1aano Jaudisap a|easdn ‘ulapowl e 332313 0} |elualod Ayl smoj|e a)s playuaaad ay |

“13[IN0 UMoIUMO(
10 Aywixoad ay3 uaniS ¥suU 18 3g PINO YIIYM ‘SpUBIg 123JBL SSEL JUBAS|2] JO X1w Suoils e apiaoid 0 |BIINJD 51 31 JA0UING §,213U32 19]1N0 Ue
ved Aay e Sulwio) spuelq asayl YU “SpPUBI 12Jew ssew ayl Joj uoinadwod 1a1eals aieasn [jim Aywixoad asop yons ul s19ino a81e| om]

se yons) sjueual Joyoue wnjwaid A3y 531N235 AQJD 2INsUS 03 Pa3U 3] S3IEIISUOLWISP $313U3I 13[IN0 Jo |Ind apim Ajjeansiialoeleyd ay|

“Juawiuoinua [eaisAyd ajqesisap ss3| e Sulpiaoad 311s 11911 JO SUOIIEIILI| O3 3NpP SIUBUS] YINs 2un23s 0} Aj3y1jun s112)anQ
umolumoq "yoeau [eaiydesSoa8 1sapim 243 2181|198} PUB 241U32 3Y) JO MEIP 33 IsIWIXewW 0} JapJo ul ‘(Aaqung ‘ssog o8nH ‘uaune] ydjey

"B3JE 2] Ul pUBLWISP 3Y1 10} 1312 Ajjnj 01 3|ge 2q ||IMm pue paainbaid si 2J1u32 13)3N0 4313 dol 3uo AjuD 1Byl PaPUILILLIODaI 210)313Y)
51 3] "JUSWILYDIED §,2WaYds Yaea woly siaddoys awes 3y Jo UOIESI|BGIUUED UD Paseq $3J3Ua2 Yloq Ul 31830] 03 A[ayIjun 218 Spuelq Wwniwald

SNOISNTONOD

128



SJUBpLUCD Ul EEwwed | 130 | 8T0T 1DVI9

‘uodas siyl Jo uolielaadiaiul InoA Yyum Uoaauunoa ul Jo wol) Bulsue jaasosmoly sso] Aue 1o) 3|gel| 2q 10U [|BYS

PRUWIT (DY "PRPN|IX2 24 s21iueliem paljdul Jaylo (e ssiueilem 21113 Jog 1daox3 sumop Jo dn Sulpunod/siolla |2211511835 Jo sHW| 2yl 01 1a3lgns
2q (2) Jofpue ‘sajdwes wWoJuy paaUap S21BWIIS2 UO paseq elep uieluod (q) ‘1ovD Ag 334y Jou2 3q o] paaiuelend jou aue pue elep Aued paiyl jofpue
sjgpow an101paad Jo Buniseaaso) uisn ped o ajoym ul paieald 2q (e) Aew 1Y papwin 12vD Ag paijddns elep puE uoIIBEWIOLUI SUIEIUOD Lodal s1yl

[OVO

OVD

129



@

BUCKMINSTER

Cur Ref: SGWEJH
RECEIVED

9 1DEC 2018

207 Decambe- 2018

eyELOPMENT MANAGEMENT
Dear Mrs Bland and Mr Johnson De

Further Objection to Oldrids/Downtown Planning Application for a Designer Outlet Village
Planning Apglication Reference -517/ 2155

Further to the response you have received from the applicant in respect of our initial objection (dated 1%
October 2018 we comment as follows:

Retail Impact & the Effect on Grantham Town Canire

We are very concemed about the lack of regard Downtown and their advisors, Fisher German, have had
to the impact concems raised by SKDC and ouwrselves They have ignored and not addressed the
fundamental and valid planning concerns that have been raised, we believe this is because they are

unable to satisfy proper scrutiny of the retail impacts of their scheme.
To recap the issus:

Paragraph 4.4 of the Council's inteim Position Staternert states that “it is important for the Council to
ensure that if planning permission is granted that the retsil uses on the whole of the site, including
the existing retail units, would not adversely impact the iown centre” (our emphasis).

A very valid concemn raised by SKDC was that following development, reconfiguration of the new and
existing units would allow unrestricled retad sales from the esdsting Downtown unit which could
“adversely impact the vitality and viability of Grantham and other nearby town canires”,

The reality of the impact of the prososal is clear in SKDC's approach - the proposal will impact vitality
and viability ol Grantham and other Jown centres — are there any controls that might prevent this?

Downtown has not argued that the Council's underlying concerns on impacts are not well founded or
gevere. Instead, Downlown seeks to offer controls that it says will avoid those impacts. In doing 8o,
Downtown recognises that those impacts would otherwise occur. These controls are expressed in its
document 'Dosntown Grantham Development Proposals — Executive summany”. We believe these are
wholly inadequate and will be ineffective

Together with our advisors, we have considered that document and we raised our continuing and
gubstantial concerns in our response dated 1 Oclober 2018, thal Downtown hed once again nof
addressed the fundamental impact points.

130



We raised two scenarios that would have devastating impacts on Grantham town centre, and other
cemres, notwithstanding the conirods suggested by Downtown. Downfown's bizarre response to this is
that it does not consider that we hawe seen the controls they have suggested, which is self-evidently
wrong. Once again, Downtown has ignored the impact isswes raised and has still not wndertaken an
impact assessment of those two scenanios for SKDC fo consider.

We have asked for dlarification from SKDC if the type and level of conirols have changed from that
proposed in "Dowriown Grantham Development Propozals — Executive summany, We have nol received
a response and assume that no further controls are suggested. If there are, we need full sight of these
and should be gven sufficient time to make appropriate comments for SKDC to take into account.

We believe that Downtown has not addressed the impact points raised by SKDC and curselves for a
good reason: that is because Downtown i unable to demonstrate that the fundamental town centre
impacts will not arise, Even to the exient to which Downtown may be able to address the paints, it only
has a temporary 5 year effect, following which the full impact of the proposals will bear down upon
Grantham and cther town centres = SKDC appears to recognise this, SKDC is custodian of the social,
economic, and environmental health and weifare of Grantham for many years to come - nat just for the
next five years as Downlown's resporse suggests.

Under these circumstances, it is not possible for SKDC to be satisfied that Downtown hag demonstrated
that ifs proposal iz not likely o have significant adverss impact on Grantham and other town centres,
whether within or beyond the suggested five year period of control.

On this "5 year control point’, Fisher German's response of 14 Novemnber 2018 once again highlights
that no measure of control has been sstablished = on page 2 they make it clear that the scheme that
might commit a ~efailer to the town centre for 5 years is yet o be drawn wp. It clarfies that the retailer
can go to Downiown as soon as it is open, but must retain a town centre presence for 5 years - what
sort of presence is not established, it could be a token presence. Fishar German propose that the details
of this control will not be established until after any planming permission is granted, and may of course
contain any manner of exemptions. SKDC just cannot make a judgement as to whether controls are
effactive without knowing what the fine detail of the controls are. In any event, whatever controls may
axist, they fall away after § years and the town centre will be unable to defend itself.

Downtown makes reference to decisions that it says help support the case for a temporary 5 vear control
over town centre users — they cite Scolch Comer and Colchester. What they fail to draw to the Council's
atbention is the important dissimilarty tetween the circumstances of those schemas and their own,

In Scotch Corner, the Secretary of State considered that “Darfinglon Town Cendre remaing in good
health wath & high level of witality and viabilify (our emphasis), and wouwld nal be al matenal rsk from

compelition from the designer autiet cerfre, parficulady given the imited ovenlap of the lype of goods to
ba zoid” (para 15).

Continued .....

131



Continoed ..., 3

It is under those circumsiancas that @ § year restricion might be sppropriate. That s smply mot the case
in respect of existing Dosnbown buiding where there is complete ovarlap with Grantham fown cantre on
the comparscn goods (hal can be ssld. GO0V is also resiricled in perpelulty, rather than far & years

I Cedchasber, the Irspector considarsd that = the wsw of the Cofcheater Reded Business Associanion
Wi Mhal e Fowt Canlre was “a shriving o with o superk shopping amendy”. Morecear, the 2018
Ratad Shudy. which was prapared ta infarm the Council's emerging development plan, identilies sewaral
features of the Town Centre that demonssrabe a healhy condre. These include a good diversity of uses, a
declifing vacency rale, good retailes representation, pood ndependent relaber offer, strang commarcial
rents and stacke yields. good pedestrien flows, and & peasant shoppng ervinonment. The inspactor
concluded thal this is not an ading centre at a crossroads (para 12,410

The Inspector alse concluded:

“indead, the present good fealth of the Town Cenre 8 demomsimated by meeslment of ower £700m
diving tha Weame of s sppfcatian, ncluding FPenwicks’ E30m nvestmant i thew sfore on High Streel
Privmrark’s anfry info Colchesier wily T5 mew sfone, fbe former BHS, now gpen”® (para 12.4.17)

And given tha haalth of tha town cantre... “Evan if the ‘worst cass’ of an aniicipaied 14.0% impact is
accepied, givean the curen! health of the Town Canlre [ Jonsider thad the proposal would not cousa 8

sigrifcant sdwarse impact” (para 12.4.25).

Thase healihy lown cenre scenarios 9o nol apply lo Grartham, which is siruggling, and reliance on the
& yvear rastriciizn will not protect a tosn lke Grantham. Downlown = edbar going to compete cpenly and
urifairdy with 4% of Grantham's fown cenire comparison mfail floor space | our previous representation
ponbed oul that the unresticted Noor space at Dowmown equales to 40% af the existing floor space in
Gramtham icem canire,), or accommodate 40% of that flow space aither bafore or after 5 years, We do
nod congider that Grantham sl surieas this

We say once again = these impacis have not been assessed by the applicant, despite SKDC s reguest
far hern fo do so and despie our s bstantial concarns, This must be becauwse the oulcome of such an
gssEEsMant waukl be to llustrate the danger 1o the town centra that the Dowrlown scheme poses.

As 8 subatanial lown cenbre redad space owner and inveator, Buckmimnsier axpect SKDC bo requine
Dipwntown to clearly prove their casa — so far they have damonstrably falled 1o do so0. As such, SKDC
should refuse the applicalion (in accordance with para 9C of The Mational Plamning Policy Framework
of the bass thal Oownbown hes been unable to establsh thal the propasal iz nod lRely b have a
significant adverse impact on fewn cantre vitality and viabilty

Planning Policy

Employment Falicy

Sinca the 199% Lacal Plan, the Dowrtawn site has been albcated for industrialbusinessiamployment
Continued .....

132



Continued ..., 4

uses — prmatily B1, B2 and BE u=es. The adopled Core Sirabegy idenlified ihe sie for Indusdrial
Devedopment and clarified that that satail was not an ampleymant ganarsting development as tar as kcal
plan policy is concered (para 6.16) The S#e Allocalion and Policies DPD identified the site for
Employment peneraling uses, once again specifically excuding retall (para 5.4.2), In the emerging Reg
1% local plan the sie is alocated =5 an edsting ampoyment site (R3) which policy E3 seeks o
‘profectad (o ensune sordinued provesion ol locally imporiaal empioyment opporunibies. Propasals for tha
re-development of these sifes, owsle of employment geseraling uses wil be resisfed” OF nate, Policy
E1 {identifying Stratagic Employment Sites) and E2 (dantifiing Employment Allocations) stabe that
employment generaling uses ocutside B-uses may be appropriate on those sibes — this however
speciically 0028 not apply 10 Dawrown s Generty Mooe site allacated under E3 [Profection of Existing
Emplaymant sites) — tha protection of that site for B1, B2 and B8 & clear. This i reinfonced by the
Emplayrmean Land Sludy 2015 which identfies Sonarby Moear as a significant rural indusinial estate for
BieBE2 and BE uses.

FParagraph 283 of the Reg 19 Local Plan states that refail development can be mncluded under tha
definitian of Ezonamic Devalopmenl, provided that there ane no sulflalile o appropriste allbcated sies,
nor any in the buill up amea of existing satlemants. However, this only ralates to sitas under polcy E7
(Other Emplowment Praposals) and specifically nod 1o Downbown. Even if it &id, the approved Grantham
DA is also clearly & suitable and eppropriafe sikbe which i3 to be subsumed info the setilerment of
Gramharn = Downtown would fad thes policy test

Redevelopmest of the Downtown 518 for mainly retel development i therafare contrary to local plan
esanamiciEmpiaymeant policy and should be refused

Retaw palicy

The National Flanfing Pobcy Framewark (The Framework) stabes that where a refail proposal is likaly 1o
have & significant adverse mpact o0 bown candre vilalty and sabiity, including local consumer chaice
and trade, pladning permission shodld be refused. For the reascns we outline abowe, Downbown has
besn unable to demonairate this, and therefore fails this paicy el

The Regulation 19 Local plan recognises that planning perméssion exisis for the Grantham Designer
Cutlat Vilage at King 31. There ia nothing in the wording of local plan policy GR4: Grartharm Town
Cenirg Policy Fatail which specifically supports Downdowm's proposal,

An cibjectve o the Local plan = te ensure Grantham’s rok as ihe Sub-Regional Centre (s sirengihaned
through significant hausing and ampayment growth — lecal policy E3 saaks fo probact the Downtawn aita
to help meet that employment corfrisution.  The GDOV pemission at King 31 i considered by SKDG to
b= a ‘game-changar’ that further suppons the sub-regional rele. Dowrton's proposel would alsa be a
game-changer sadly for different reasons. N will create confusion in the market place and undarminag
the ability of GDOW o parfarm the Impartant rale which SEDC hes granted planning permissan for, and
undarmirg Grantham's abilty b anhance its sub-regional mis.

Continued .....

133



Continued .... 5

Diceasbawri suggesis thal there is room in Grantham for two Designer Ouilet Vilages = it s clearly WYIng
on this point. as Rioja have clarfied in their Octaber submissions. Downbown says thal there s room for
two planning permissions, and let the markat decide whick one comes forward. The point raised by
Dawrilown abouk campetilion is a redhering = o suggest that a refusal would simply ba an act to stifle
competiion s nonsenss. A refusal wil ba exercising proper slanning contral on praper planning grounds
fo ensure that &l the benefits of GDOW are delvered o Grantham and the District, and that the
Dowridown sile conlinues 1o perform its eslablished | indestrial’'employment role in accordance with
planning policy. Tha expansion of Grantham bo the south wil bring GDOV and nearby new employment
allacations into the urban area of Grantham, whilst Dowmtown will remain in rurad solation.

The Downtown progosal conflicts with planning policy and should be refused, based an

1. Pobcy E3: Protection of Existing Employment Sites for B1, B2 and B8 uses

2 Ratail policy in the Fremmeawork - Downbawn has not demonatrated thal the proposal will nat have
sagnificant adverse impacts:

3. 0 owill adversely affect ihe ablity of GDOW to fulfi the recognised funclion of being a ‘game
changar supporing the stated local plan cbjective of strengihening Gramham's sub-regional
Frake.

Lal B i

Dawrtown's further submisskon also cludes an opinion of Richard Harwood OC daled 13 November
2018. That opinion purparts 1o address the concams set out N the opinion of William Hicks Q5 which we
proveded wilh our submisgion b the Coundl en 1 Oclober 2018, Howeaswer, it is our view, and the view of
owr legal advisors, that the opinion of Richard Harwood Q2 does mat tackls the maues raised in our
submission 1o the Council, nor does it attempd to do s0. Insizad, snd presumably under instnuctans that
are migplaced, Mr Harwood's opinion Tocusses on grounds ‘or challenge - stating that he has reviewad
the Downicwn application and "l da) rof ses sny basals for fudclal review” {paragraph §).

This conclusion is of course entirely premature, given the there is not yet & Councl decision which

could be subjec: to challeanga. The oomion of Mr Hicks, on the other hand, focusses on reasong for

refusal af the Doenbawn application. Mr Hicks cancludes thal the development proposed by Dowrriown s
bealy to lead to unacceptable impacts on the town centre which should lead fo its refusal, that any

:ﬂtilinn to grart planning permission on the curent impact assessment matanal would be senously
gasad.

The opinicns, therefore, are dealing with different matters one mafler which is present (the extant
Downtown appleaton and the Councifs consideration af it), and the second which is yet o ocour (the
Council's deterrination of the applcation). Our sarious coacarns about the ssgnificant impacts of the
Downilown proposal — as s&t oud in the apmion of Williaem Hicks Q0 and the other matenial that we hawe
submitted fto tha Council — therefore stand and remain 1o be acknowledged or addressed by Downiown
and its advisors

134



Highraa

In addition fo our concems arcund fhe patential impact on Grantham Tawn Cenbre, we hasve also had
Mayer Brown review the eriginal inforrmation submitled by Downlown's ralfic consultans FTE. n our
submisslon to the Councll dated the 1% Octobar 2018, we made the case that there ware senous issues
with PTE's traffic assessmant of the Downtown scheme in terms of the lased meihadalogy and the
assessed outpuss

Dcrantown/PTE et out in thair documrent dated 137 Nov 218 a response to the poirls made by bayer
Brown, Mayer Brown have reviewed this second PTE report and haswe concludged thaf the matiens
origirally raized have atil ol been addressad.

For sase of reference all lhree documents ane altached under the Mie. Mayer Brown highways (ssues
with Downfown sppication. 5-17-2188 December F0718 pdf

As a summary of Mayer Brown's (MB) second lechnical note dabad T Decembar 20418,

. MEB make the sirong case thaf DownlowndPTE have slill nol addnesasd the fundamental isaue
that nol 2nough car parking has been provided in the Downbown scheme; this will result in car
parking an the sumounding puldic highways which wil cause congeston and safety ssuas,

" The issve arises because the Dowrlown scheme incudes new oul of town affices. As the
Downicwn area is nol wall semmed by public iranspon, office users will have 10 use thair cars o

by wanzerk.

. El:u.nﬂum have used other offce schemes alsewhers in e counry 1o banchmank the amourd af
office tips bo the site amd car parking ikat will be required. Those ofhar banchmarked schemes
ara nod comgarable fo tha Downtown site as they am for schemes that have much bether pubic
transpar inks and lie within far denser urban erdiraremenls. For example they benchmark (he
Downtown office car paking need with schames within the bul up aress of Leeds and
Manchester. Figure 1 of tha latast MB technical now graphically shows the different [ocations,
PTE are simply not comparing Ble with lke.

. This shortage of car parking will cause a senous problem on a nommal weakday, and the situation
will ba vaorse at weakands i tha office users are a zall cenbre or some Technology, Media and
Telecam (TMT) uses which waid ardinarily operate it weskends.

. There ame also polental proslems with how the scheme will be sarviced in iemms of dalivaries.
There is insufficient space for turming and loading/unlaading of vehicles an sile,

. There are alsa techrical issues wilh the Environmerial Impact Assssasment (ElA) Parods which
rieans Fal the ELA s incomplate.

To conclude these is clear and compel ing evidence that

. Thiara is B significant shortfall 5 the parking aranganents within the Downlawn propesals which
will lead 1o overspill parking oceurring on the surrounding highways (in the order of sevaral

Continued ...

135



hundred care). This is likely to prejudice the free flow of traffic and highway safety for all road
usars, and is @ wary Serous Concarm.

] It has not been demonstrated that the sarvicing provisions are adeguale, which could lead ko
inappropriate and unsafe manceusingficading of heavy goods wehiclas.

Far thase teo reasons the schema would contravensa para 108 of e new MPPF:

1048, Developmenf ahauld only be prevenied or reflused on highways grounds F e would be an
wiaccapfable mpact? on highway safafy, o the residial cumuiahive Mpachs an e e aelwoek
WOl be Sevens.

The Downbown scheme should be refused on tha basis that it (8 not in compliance with para 109 of ihe
maw NFPF.

Cendusion

A5 local landownars and inwesions, with a long history ol slewardship, we conlinue bo reiteraie that the
Downtown application submission is daficant, particulady in reletion 1o retsll Fngact. The proposal &s
also demanstrably contrary 1o lecal plan and rational palicy as set oud in the NPPF; there are no othar
benafits that might cutwaigh this which are not alesdy being deliversd threugh GDOV.

Whether Downbown does or does nal sulbmil futher mabarial, this will net avesride fundamental retail and
policy flaws fo thesr scheme. In our view, and in the vew of ow advisors, Souih Kesieven Disirict
Councl has md aplion cihar than be refuse planning permission in accordance with the proper applcation
of Section 38(5) of the Planning and Compulsary Punchasa Act 2004,

Yiours sincarely

STEPHEN VICKERS
Maraging Director

Mirs 5 Bland & Mr J Johnsan
Planning Departrmsant

Sauth Kesteven Dstrict Council
Councll Offices

31 Pefer's Hil

GRANTHAM

Lincoinshire, MG31 6FE

136



Technical Note

11

13

15

1.6

Introduction

This Technical Mote has 2een prepared by Mayer Brown on behalf of Buckminster Trust
Eslate in respect of an application made by Oldid & Co, Lid for a Designer Ouflat Centra
to tha north of Grantham at Great Gonearty.

This nole considers the Technical Mote prepared by PTE entitied “Response 1o Various
Obvections™ (dated 13/11/18) within which they attermpt to address some significant
oblzctions submitted in respect of the development proposals.

FTS's Movember 2018 Technical Note fails to adiress some fundamental matters which, if
remain unresolved, have the potential to resalt in significant safety and operational issues
in tarms of highways and fransportation which coJld negatively impact the local community
and those using the bocal highway network.

This note sets cut the remaining concams redsting to the application, which principally
revalve around parking provision and office trip atraction/parking demand.

Parking Provision —= Weskends vs Waekday

Paragraph 3.34 of the PTB Technical Note conclides that the critical period to consider in
terma of parking demand fallz on a Salurday, based on consideration solaly of retal parking
darand.

No jpropar considaration Is given to the likely demand for the office parking on a weekday
whizh, when accountad for, may indicate that theweekday parking demand constiules the
crilizal period for considerabion, This is potentialy a significant oversight. &s set out laler
I this nabe, the nalional census identifies a heavy reliance on the use of a private motor car
for amployees n the vidniy of the developrment sile.,

Additionally, PTE diamisa any effects of office parking on a weekend (para 3.3.5) which
would consequently preciade any Bi(a) uses al the site such as a call centre or some
Technology, Media and Telecom (TMT) uses whizh would ordinarily operate at weekends,

137



1.8

1.4

1.11

1.14

1.17

Consaquently, efther the applicant's consullant needs 1o undertake a robust assessment,
o any permission would need o restrict the ue of the office elemant to weekdays only.
The latter would slill need 1o be subject 1o an azsesement of weekday demand, which has
naf been underaken.

Cffice - Parking Demand & Trip Rates.

The PTE assesament relating io the office development ulilises the TRICS datasets. While
TRICS is one tool for estimating trips to developments, application and manipulation of data
from tha program must be dane while exercising appropriate professional judgamant.

The TRICS data contained within the PTE Transport Assessment utilise the subcategory
“Bugsiness Park”, and include sies across the country in Dorset, Manchester, Lancashire,
Nettinghamshire and Wast Yorkshire. The maority of sites wilised in the assessment ane
“wehicle only® surveys, and therefore do not provide any multi-modal data o give an
Indication of how reliant staff mambers ara on their vehicles bo gel 1o work,

Without exception, the sampls sites ulilised frem the TRICS datasets are located within
conskderably built-up arsas, with many of the siles benefitting from nearby excallent bus,
rail and tram infrastructure which stall benefit from when commuting.

The Downtown site is located in isolalion to any such public transport infrastructura and
ghafi will eanmequantly b hesily reliant on the private motor car. This is in stark contrast
to the sample silez used by PTB in their assesament of the office alament of the
cevelopment and, cons=quently could provide a significant under-estimate of the level of
werhicle brips 1o the proposed site.

fas seb oul in our earier Technical Mote, T0% of employees who work in this location iravel
12 work by car, These are site-specific data which are based on employees who actually
t-avel to the area surrounding the development slte. This is a directly relevant statistic, far
more &0 than any travel statisfics for sites in Manchester of Leeds for example.

The scale of the 79% figure reflacts the inaccessibility of the development site by non-car
modes.

A5 PTB have not provicesd any miilti-medal data for the office element of the proposals, itis
not possible to vakidate teir work,

I is suspected that, given the locations of the samples sites used from TRICS, PTE have
significantly under-estimated the level of car trps to the office element and, consequently,
significantly under-estimated tha likely parking darmand

In ordar to aid the reader, this concem is presented graphically at Flgure 1 of this report,
which clearly shows how the proposed site location is significantly different 1o the sample
sites usad in the applicant’s assessment.

138



1.22

1.23

1.24

1.25

It therefore remans a significant concern that (hene has been an under-estimation of vehicle
trips and parking to the development progosals and, consequently, there could be overspill
parking or additional congestion arising from the developrment, which has nol been
cangidered

Servicing

It iz nated that the servicing is a reserve matter.

It remaing a concamm that insulficient space is reserved for tuming and loading/unkading of
vehicles on site.

Vithan making such a provision it k= likely that the built farm of the developmant wil nead to
b amanded, which may result in the development being catside any envelopes agreed at
the oulline stage.

The absence of any tracking results in a high risk the parameters sst by the outline
permission will need 1o b: amended.

El Assessment Periocs

It s noted that PTE confimned that the assessment periods have been agraed with the local
highway authority for tha TA. [PTE Technical Note para 3.5.6), These are not in questicn;
The concam is with the absence of conaideration of when the grealest envronmental impact
otturs which should be considered within the ElA chapter.

Ay Emvironmental Impast Assessmant is required to demonstrate that it has conssdered
the period of grestes! impact'changs.

Tre application continues to fall short of demonstrating consideration of the period of
greatest change and |s therefore incomplete,

139



Correiugian

1.26 There remain some significant concenns relating to the under-estimation of traffic Rows and
paking demand for the proposed dewvelopmant, in addition to concems thal the
Ermironmental Impacts heve not baan fully considered.

127 As aresult, thare could be significant highway safety and congestion consequences on the
local network as a resull of the proposals,

Author: Alez Philpott
Date: 6" Dacember 2018

140



CC-E2-5-01 Coverarcal Poed Pooi, Dorset: B4 DHU

- -
WAl Bl Rl P, Lk, W Yieisherg L5 SO0

- II ..
LI Fiarvigatioe, Wy, Fenion, Lancashire FRD 17

[
GM1] 8-04 Sabron Pk, Didher, Mercheser OUS 84T

CHLE-B-1Y Do S, e, G Marwsber MTE WS

141

AT AG-B-01 Park Lana, Hotimgham HEE BOW

i -

[
orid Pacaa Earpanscn

CETOL T

i |



=
3

BUCKMINSTER

Our Reference: SGV/EJH/1898
1%t October 2018

Dear Mrs Bland and Mr Johnson

Reference: $17/2155. Downtown Grantham Designer Outlet. Outline planning permission for the
erection of a Designer Outlet Centre of up to 20,479 sqm (GEA) of floorspace comprising retail
units (A1), restaurants and cafes (A3), and storage. Additional large goods retail (5,574 sqm
GEA), garden centre (5,521 sqm GEA) and external display area for garden centre (1,393 sqm),
tourist information and visitor centre, training academy, leisure unit and offices including high-
tech hub/start-up offices.

Introduction

As significant owners and investors in Grantham Town Centre for over a century we would wish to state
our strong objection to the planning application reference S17/2155 submitted by Oldrid & Co Ltd for an
outlet retail scheme at their site at Great Gonerby, Grantham.

Our principal concern arises from the threat that the redeveloped Downtown site will pose to a fragile
Town Centre that is only just beginning to show the first tentative signs of recovery after a very long
period of malaise. The existence of the Downtown operation at Great Gonerby has caused significant
diversion of traditional town centre retail custom since their store was originally opened in 1989, and the
potential blend of retail that their proposals would allow on their site will be too compelling for Grantham
Town Centre to compete with. Irrespective of how the applicant says the scheme will operate the District
Council are required to assess how it could operate, and that has not been done. As you will note from
the detail of this letter, and the supporting correspondence from a senior and experienced retail and
planning QC, planning permission should be refused - any decision to grant planning permission in this
instance will be flawed and consequently open to further legal challenge.

The necessity to effectively and completely restrict the ability of the applicant to trade-down the entirety
of their operation was something that we (together with our partner Rioja) worked closely with South
Kesteven District Council to achieve in respect of the consented Grantham Designer Outlet Village
scheme adjacent to the A1 at the King 31 site. We recognised that the proposals needed to ensure that
any customers visiting the site were additional to those already utilising the Town Centre and that this
protection was enforceable in perpetuity. Given the very limited nature of the restrictions offered by the
applicant in the Oldrid application together with the five year limit on those restrictions it is also clear that
they will be ineffectual in achieving this protection to the Town Centre. Crucially, we would also point to
the two schemes being assessed against different bar heights. It is categorically incorrect to assess the
two schemes as being the same, or even similar, given the existing retail operation that will persist at the
Downtown site after the grant of a planning consent. The council's approach to the application would be
fundamentally flawed if it is based on the false proposition that it is a similar, alternative proposal to the
approved GDOV at King 31.

Grange Farmyard, Main Street, Buckminster, Grantham, NG33 5SD
f t: 01476 860471 |e: enquiries@buckminster.co.uk | w: buckminster.co.uk
Buckminster Management Ltd | Reg No: 1533749 Reg Office: 71 Queen Victoria Street, London EC4V 4BE

142



Downtown — Impact on Grantham Town Centre

It is very clear that the full retail impact of the Downtown proposal has not been assessed by the
applicant nor the Local Planning Authority (SKDC).

At paragraph 4.4 of the Council's Interim Position Statement, it is clearly explained to the applicant that
the impact upon the town of the existing floorspace of the Downtown unit, as well as the proposed new
Outlet Village, should be assessed. Part of the reason for this is that the way the new retail destination
operates could change the existing Downtown unit's operation significantly, with consequential
significant impacts on the Town Centre. This needs to be assessed.

However, the addendum Retail Impact Assessment prepared on behalf of Downtown ignores this point
and SKDC's request. The Impact Assessment requested by the Council has not been undertaken and
therefore the full implications of the development have not been expressed nor assessed. The applicant,
realising that there would be a significant impact, has instead sought to second guess the results of a
proper assessment by suggesting a few restrictions in their document ‘Downtown Grantham
Development Proposals — Executive Summary’, as follows:

No convenience (food) retailing

No sub-division of internal floorspace below 10,000 sq. ft.

Any town centre retailers wishing to locate at Downtown will need to retain a presence in the
town centre, however that requirement falls away after 5 years

This approach by the applicant recognises that impacts will arise and need to be mitigated. However,
three important aspects arise:

1. The full retail impact of the combined proposal has simply not been undertaken;

2. The applicant considers it appropriate to control the existing Downtown retail floorspace, very
clearly because otherwise it would have unacceptable impacts (as yet undetermined),

3. The ‘restrictions’ suggested by the applicant will not safeguard the town centre, as

demonstrated below.

To illustrate the extent of potential impacts, we consider below two scenarios that are entirely possible
under the Downtown proposal — neither of which have been assessed by the applicant or the Council.

Impact Scenario 1

In this first scenario, retailers such as Next can instantly relocate to Downtown (existing building),
retaining a minimal presence or concession within another town centre store eg to allow for pick-up and
collection of goods ordered online. Other retailers can similarly relocate (as long as they retain a token
town centre presence) all benefitting from the knowledge that after five years their token presence in a
town centre is no longer required. Even if they are required to retain a meaningful presence that still only
lasts five years, which is meaningless and ineffective timescale restriction for the future of Grantham
town centre.

143



Although the sub-division to units of no less than 10,000 sq. ft. is proposed, Downtown's existing trading
format is not constrained by unit size because it currently operates on a large scale and open plan retail
offer without such subdivisions. Therefore, large units of no less than 10,000 could just replicate this
trading format — amalgamating, for example, town centre shoe retailers into a ‘Concessions Shoe unit’' —
and similarly for clothes, jewellery, music, furniture, clothes, fashion, watches etc. There could also be a
town centre services unit containing bank and building society facilities, hairdressers, travel agents and
any other forms of town centre use

The restriction on the size of the unit will not therefore affect the way that Downtown could operate. The
restrictions offer was made by Downtown with the full knowledge that this generally applies to retail
warehouse restrictions, not to the trading format proposed in this application.

The significance of this transfer of trade from the town centre to Downtown is highlighted by the
percentage of existing town centre comparison retailers who could relocate. Under the proposal, in the
order of 15,432 sq.m of unrestricted comparison floorspace will be made available in the existing
Downtown store. This compares to 34,588 sqm of comparison floorspace in Grantham Town Centre
(GOAD Town Centre Report June 2014). In other words, 45% of the comparison floorspace trading in
Grantham town centre could locate within Downtown, and after 5 years have no further regard to any
presence in the town centre whatsoever.

Even if it were argued that retailers would not relocate in the first 5 years, other competitors could take
advantage of Downtown and compete with town centre traders on an unfair basis — eg free car parking
and significantly reduced rents and rates. This has not been assessed.

It is precisely this form of impact which SKDC and their retail advisers PBA require to be addressed.
The applicant has not done so. The implications of this are severe and significant.

Impact Scenario 2

In this scenario, there is nathing to stop Downtown from using its existing retail unit as additional cutlet
centre floorspace. Moreover, that floorspace is not controlled at all in terms of the level of operation that
can take place and so the controls that are in place on the approved Grantham Designer Cutlet Village
would not apply to the existing Downtown unit. The Downtown proposal is significantly smaller than
Grantham DOV (GDOV is 33k sq. m and Downtown are proposing 20.4k sg. m) and will not achieve the
critical mass required for a tier 1 operation — this has been highlighted by the Council's retail advisers
PBA. To bring that critical mass, the outlet would need to link into the existing floorspace and trade
without tenant quality restrictions as an extension area.

The impact of this scenario has also not been considered by the applicant nor SKDC.

It is anticipated that once understood by Newark and Sherwood District Council, Lincoln City Council and
Peterborough City Council, their concerns about cumulative impact on their relevant city centres will be
further exacerbated.

The retail impact assessment is deficient in another significant respect. PBA has stated that a more
robust assessment of trade draw should be applied — they consider 42.4% should be applied to the

144



Primary Catchment Area, 50% to the Secondary calchment area (the remaining 7.5% from outside those
areas). Downtown has refused to assess their proposal on this basis, instead persisting with their own

In light of the above South Kesteven District Council would be running the risk of legal challenge were
they to grant the application. Instead we, as a concerned Town Cenire owners and investor, would
suggest that SKDC | that the full impact of the proposal, as requested by them in their position
statement on the advice of PBA, is actually undertaken. In the absence of any such assessment then
SKDC should refuse the application on the grounds that the impact on Grantham fown centre will be
severe and will likely perpetuate and even hasten the continuing demise of an important element of the
town's @conomic, social and cultural future.

Whilst our principal concern relates to the Town Centre it should also be noted that there are other emrors
and anomalies in the Downtown application. These include:

+ There are serious issues with the traffic assessment submitted in support of the application both
in terms of the methodology used (which is flawed) and the assessed outputs. These are outlined
in the supporting attachment from Mayer Brown.

* A number of the submissions that form part of the Downlown applicalion use data and oulputs
copied across from the Grantham Designer Oullet Village (GDOV) application despite the fact
that a number of these are required to have been independently assessed by the applicant. This
points towards a lack of due process, care and diligence in compiling the application, a clear
example of which is that a significant part of their Environmental Statement is a direct copy of that
contained within the GDOV, including the duplication of a speling emor and a regulatory
referance thal was incomact as the relevant legislation had been reviewed in the time between
the two applications. Downtown's planning statement also draws heavily from and copies our
own planning statement, again replicating paragraphs word for word. As an exampile we would
refer you to the planning policy conclusions (see their paragraph 5.8 and our paragraph 7.63). It
is a blatant copy and it is lelling of the paucity of understanding of the proposal even within the
Downtown's own professional team.

We would reiterate our considered view that South Kesteven District Council do not have the required
information to enable them to compatently consider the Downlown application, less still to do so with an
officars’ recommendation that it be approved.

Yours faithfully

STEPHEN VICKERS
Managing Director

145



Enc: Note — William Hicks QC
Note — Mayer Brown

South Kesteven District Council
Planning Department

FAQO: Sylvia Bland and Justin Johnson
St Peters Hill

GRANTHAM

Lincolnshire

NG31 6PZ

146



Planning Application for an Outlet Centre at Downtown

I am asked by Buckminster to confirm in writing the advice that | have previously given that
the grant of permission for Downtown is likely to lead to unacceptable impacts on the Town
Centre which should lead to its refusal.

An important preliminary point is that the assessment of impact is not primarily a
mathematical exercise. The key part of an assessment of impact is the judgement as to the
way in which the proposed development is likely to operate, trade, and be perceived by
customers, retailers and investors. The use of figures can then help in understanding the likely
effects. However, the usefulness of figures is dependent on the underlying judgements,

1 shall start by dealing with the way in which the King 31 Proposal {(which has planning
permission) will operate, then consider how Downtown would operate in the absence of King
31, and finally consider the position if both were permitted.

King 31:

The King 31 Permission is for a high-quality tier 1 DOC. The key elements are a sufficient
critical mass of retail units selling high quality goods at reduced prices, and controlled to
prevent ordinary retail. It will be a self-contained high-quality retail development of a very
different kind from the Town Centre.

The size and quality are important to enable the development to draw customers from the
large catchment area which it is designed to serve. There is a gap for one such Tier 1 DOC in
the Grantham area. The wide draw means that the impact of the trade draw will be diffuse,
and maximises the number of new customers attracted to Grantham.

Comprehensive controls and the quality of the retailing will ensure that the whole
development operates as a very different and complementary retail offer to that provided in
the Town Centre. It will minimise impact on the Town Centre, attract customers from a wide
catchment area who would not otherwise visit Grantham, and maximise the potential for
linked trips to the Town Centre.

Although the Town Centre is weak and vulnerable to impact, the high-quality complementary
nature of the King 31 development means that the adverse impact will be small and that will
be outweighed by the benefits including the potential for new linked trips.

Downtown:
The Downtown proposal (even in the absence of King 31} will not provide a high-quality Tier
1 DOC complementary to the Town Centre:

a. Itistoo small.
b. The centre as a whole will include a substantial amount of unrestricted retail,

147



it will be of lower quality because of the existing adjacent retail which will be
perceived as part of the same centre.

it will be of lower guality because of its design including its onsite circulation and
parking.

it will not attract the necessary critical mass of top tier retailers.

The apparent association with Freeport supports the conclusion that it will not be Tier
1.

it will have a less extensive catchment and rely more on the same catchment (and
spending) as the Town Centre.

It will be perceived and operate as an alternative centre to the Town Centre for
significant numbers of trips. (It will include unrestricted retail, bulky goods retailing?,
leisure, and restaurants).

9. The solus impact of Downtown will be significantly more adverse than that of King 31. In terms
of trade withdrawal:

a.

It will be of lower quality (more comparable to, and therefore more competitive with,
the town centre);

It will have a more concentrated draw (more comparable to that of the town Centre,
and therefore more competitive);

There will be additional impact as a result of increased turnover of the uncontrolied
existing retail floorspace {both from existing retailers and from new retailers attracted
to the uncontrolled space);

It will be perceived as a direct competitor with the Town Centre by customers and
retailers.

It will reduce the footfall in the Town Centre.

It will reduce the already limited retailer demand for the town centre.

10. The solus trade diversion (without considering investment) Is likely to have a significant
adverse impact. As the NPPG advises: “... in areas where there are high levels of vacancy and
limited retailer demand, even very modest trade diversion from a new development may lead
to a significant adverse impact.”

11. The Downton proposal would (even in the absence of the King 31 permission) have a
significant adverse impact on investment in the Town Centre:

a.

Trade withdrawal, loss of footfall, and reduced retailer demand will adversely affect
the success of existing investment.

Trade withdrawal, loss of footfall, reduced retailer demand and the existence of an
alternative competing centre will adversely affect investors views as to future footfall,
turnover and retailer demand and therefore investor confidence and planned
investrment.

The Town Centre is weak and badly needs investment. Any adverse impact on
investment will be significant.

12. The imposition of conditions will not make the impact acceptable. Even if their drafting were
to be improved they cannot be drafted to prevent adverse impact due to trade draw by the

! Bulky goods can contribute to impact on the TC by taking trade / retailers from in centre or edge of centre
bulky goods retailers.

148



13.

14.

15;

16.

17.

new retailers in the new development and the additional turnover of uncontrolled retailers in
the existing retail space. They will not prevent new retailers moving to the existing space
rather than the Town Centre and they will not prevent vacancies remaining unfilled.

A key factor for investors is their view of future turnovers and retailer demand and the
potential for growth. Whatever the conditions imposed the existence of such a competing
centre will have a serious adverse effect on investor confidence in the longer-term potential
of the Town Centre and make it more difficult to enhance the Town Centre by attracting /
retaining retailers and investment.

Cumulative;

The grant of a second permission in addition to the King 31 consent will:

a. Be likely to reduce the quality of one or both of the proposals. In particular the
existence of the King 31 permission is likely to further reduce the quality of retail at
Downtown, which will exacerbate the adverse impacts referred to ahove.

b. Lead to a greater direct trade draw impact on a weak and vulnerable Town Centre,

c. At best not significantly increase the overall benefits and is likely to significantly
reduce them, given that the benefits of a true high-quality Tier 1 DOC are already
secured by the King 31 consent.

d. Cause significant uncertainty for retailers and investors. It will exacerbate the solus

" adverse effect of Downtown on investor confidence in the Town Centre. (it is also
likely to delay and may threaten the implementation of King 31 and undermine the
positive effect on the Town Centre.)

Inadequacy of current impact assessment:

The current impact work is not based on a correct analysis of the way in which the proposed
development is likely to operate, trade, and be perceived by customers, retailers and
investors. In particular it fails to deal or deal adeq uately with:

a. The effects of the existing uncontrolled retail at the site.

b. The physical relationship of the new development and its access and parking with the

existing development.

¢. Thetikely lower quality development that will result.

d. The effects of these matters on the pattern of trade draw.

e. The effect on investment confidence.

f.  The cumulative effect of 2 permissions, including the effect on investor confidence.
Little weight can therefore be attached to the conclusions of the current impact work provided
by the applicants.

The highways assessment is not based on an appropriate impact assessment. Basing the
highways assessment on a more realistic assessment of trade draw is likely to lead to

significant changes to that assessment, pa rticularly in relation to distribution.

Any decision to grant based on the current impact material would be seriously flawed.

149



18

18,

20.

21,

Conclusions:

The benefits of a high-quality DOC at Grantham will be achieved by the King 31 development
which already has permission. The strictly controlled and high-quality specialist nature of the
King 31 development, and the conditions and agreement associated with it will mean that
there will be significant benefits which will cutweigh any direct impact. King 31 will be
perceived as a high-quality specialist outlet complementary to the Town Centre in accordance
with the aim of Policy E2 of the Core Strategy. Investor confidence in the Town Centre will be
achieved and the vitality and viability of the Town Centre will be able to be enhanced.

lunderstand that the Downtown applicants have argued that the fact that their proposal wili
be immediately adjacent to existing retail and other development is an advantage. In fact, it
is a very significant disadvantage as set out above. The nature of the retailing at Downtown
will result in greater direct impact and it will be perceived as a direct rival to the Town Centre
contrary to the aims of Policy E2. The grant of permission for the Downtown proposal as well
would result in significantly greater and long-term adverse impacts on the Town Centre. The
vitality and viability of the weak and vulnerable centre, investor confidence, and its much-
needed enhancement will be significantly adversely affected.

The grant of permission for the Downton proposal in addition to the permission already
granted for King 31 would not bring significant additional benefits. it would reduce the
benefits for the Town Centre and the existence of two such permissions would be likely to
further adversely affect investor confidence. There would be no additional benefits such as
would justify the additional significant adverse impact,

A refusal based on significant adverse impact is clearly justified.

William Hicks Q.C.
Landmark Chambers,

180 Fleet Street EC4A 2HG

28™ September 2018

150



m3

mayer brown

Buckminster Trust Estate
Downtown Grantham, Great Gonerby

Transport Submission Review — Non Technical Summary

Non-Technical Summary

Introduction

1.1 This Non-Technical Summary has been prepared on behalf of Rioja Developments Ltd in
respect of an application made by Oldrid & Co, Ltd for a Designer Outlet Centre to the north
of Grantham at Great Gonerby. Ref -S17/ 2155

1.2 This note summarises the findings of a review of the transport submissions made in respect
of the above application. The full review attached considers:
o Chapter 12 of the Environmental Statement entitled “Transport & Access”, prepared
by PTB Transport Planning Limited (PTB); and
e Transport Assessment dated October 2017 by PTB.

Summary

¢« The Environmental Assessment is significantly flawed insomuch as it does not
demonstrate that the period of greatest environmental impact has been assessed.
Consequently, the scheme could lead to significant environmental impacts beyond that
identified in the report, to the detriment of all road users and surrounding sensitive
receptors.

»  Baseline data for the surrounding roads has not been collected in a typical “neutral’
month. Consequently the Environmental Assessment is based on potentially skewed
data and any conclusions drawn could be incorrect.

s By assessing a future year of 2031, the environmental assessment fails to consider the
year of greatest impact (which would be the year of opening), which is against good
practice. Consequently, the impacts identified in the Environmental Assessment are
understated and the scheme therefore may give rise to unacceptable environmental
impacts, which would require mitigation.

e  The "Grantham Designer Outlet Village” vehicle trip attraction has simply been copied
for this assessment. No justification has been provided as to why this may be
appropriate and could be leading to erroneous traffic figures being used in the
assessments, undermining the conclusions reached.

GranthamDOV Page 1

151



mayer brown

Buckminster Trust Estate

Downtown Grantham, Great Gonerby

Transport Submission Review = Non Technical Summary

Author: Alec

It has been demonstrated in our technical review that there would be a significant
shortfall in proposed parking at the site, which will lead to overspill parking occurring
on the surrounding highway (in the order of several hundred cars). This is likely to
prejudice the free flow of traffic and highway safety for all road users and is a very
serious concern.

It has not been demenstrated that the servicing provisions are adequate, which could
lead to inappropriate and unsafe manoeuvring/loading of heavy goods vehicles.

A number of the points raised above are fundamental to the conclusions being reached
by the applicant. Consequently, it has not been demonstrated satisfactorily that the
scheme will not result in significant impacts on the surrounding roads, including
congestion, parking and highways safety impacts.

All the above points should be addressed in an addendum report to be submitted by

the applicant.

Philpott

Date: 8" August 2018

GranthamDOV

Page 2

152



Technical Note

T

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

1.7

Introduction

This Technical Note has been prepared on behalf of Rioja Developments in respect of an
application made by Oldrid & Co, Ltd for a Designer Outlet Centre to the north of Grantham
at Great Gonerby.

This note considers the following submissions:

¢ Chapter 12 of the Environmental Statement entitled “Transport & Access”, prepared
by PTB Transport Planning Limited (PTB); and

e Transport Assessment dated October 2017 by PTB.
Chapter 12 of the Environmental Statement “Transport & Access”

Assessment Periods

The assessment presented broadly follows the requirements of the IEA Guidelines for the

Environmental Assessment of Road Traffic.

However, there is one significant departure from the guidelines which results in the
assessment being incomplete and, consequently, means that the conclusions cannot be

relied upon.
Paragraph 12.1.3 of the chapter states:

“In general, this ES Chapter considers impacts across the day as a whaole rather
than a focus on highway peak hours unless considering topics which are
particularly relevant to highway peak hours such as driver defay.”

The IEA guidelines identify at paragraph 3.8:

“While it may be valuable to know the environmental impact of a development at the
peak hour traffic levels, it is likely that the greatest environmental impacts may occur at
other times. For instance, where a development attracts a constant volume of traffic
throughout the day, the greatest perceived increase in noise is likely to occur when
existing traffic is light. Similarly, the greatest impact of traffic on pedestrians may occur

when schools close in mid-afternoon.”

The document goes on to state at paragraph 3.9:

‘For many impacts, such as noise or severance, it is considered that average or total

daily traffic flows provide insufficient information for any real understanding of the

153



1.8

1.9

1.10

environmental effects, and the analysis needs to be presented for much more specific

time periods.”

While it is acknowledged that driver delay has been considered within the submission for

highway peak hours, the assessment is fundamentally flawed for the following reasons:

¢ ltis folly to assume that the highway peak periods are when the greatest environmental
impact will occur in terms of driver delay. It is entirely possible that the greatest impact
[in terms of delay] of the development may occur outside of the normal highway peaks.
This has not been considered.

o  Furthermore, by not considering the period [i.e. hour] of greatest impact for the other
environmental effects, the assessment could be significantly underestimating the

effects of the development an the local area.

The assessor needs to demonstrate that the periods of greatest environmental impact have

been considered for each of the effects being reviewed.
Without such clarity, the findings of the chapter may not be relied upon.

General Comments

Baseline Dala

The baseline traffic data was collected in late June 2017. The IEA guidelines require
baseline data to be collected in a neutral month. It is widely documented in Government

standards that April/May/Sept/Oct are neutral months.

The assessor should clarify why their data is a suitable baseline to work with as an incorrect

baseline will prejudice any assessment work undertaken.

154



113

1.20

Assessment Year
The IEA guidelines state at paragraph 3.13;

“....This may involve looking at a period some time in the future when traffic from the
development is added to traffic flows on the surrounding network which has itself
increased due to natural traffic growth. Such a situation clearly presents the critical
traffic pattern, but the natural increase in traffic will generally have the effect of diluting
the environmental impact of a development. The greatest environmental change will
generally be when the development traffic is at the largest proportion of the total
flow...... It is therefore recommended that the environmental assessment should be
undertaken at the year of opening of the development of the first full year of its
operation. For phased developments, it may be necessary to consider the first year of

each phase.”

Chapter 12 considers a future year scenario of 2031, with the documents stating “This wouid
ensure the development is fully built out and established and allows for background traffic
growth on the network” [para 12.5.6].

The year of opening is stated as being 2019 in the Transport Assessment Addendum.

If the year of assessment is beyond the year of opening (which it appears to be), it will not
have considered the period of greatest environmental impact and is therefore not in
accordance with the IEA guidelines. Consequently, it is likely that the assessment

underestimates the environmental effects of the scheme.

Development Traffic Flows

It is noted that the visitor attraction assessment work associated with the Downtown Outlet
Village is based on the same figures as that presented for the Grantham Designer Qutlet

Village, being 3 %2 million visitors per year.

The Grantham Designer Outlet Village assessment work was based on a detailed retail
impact assessment to inform the likely visitor attraction. It has not been made clear in the
transport documents submitted that the same retail impact assessment would hold true for

the Downtown application.

If the assumption made on visitor attraction is not valid, all of the transport assessment work

will be flawed.

Chapter 12 - Conclusion

As set out above, there are some significant omissions in the Transport & Access chapter
of the Environmental Statement which render the conclusions of the assessment potentially

seriously flawed.

155



1.21

1.22

1.23

1.24

1.25

1.26

127

1.28

1.29

Until the assessor addresses the points made above, no reliance can be placed on the

findings of their work.
Transport Assessment

As set out above, there is some question over the validity of the trip attraction to the
Downtown application, which needs to be clarified. With this in mind, no detailed review of
the modelling work has been undertaken until such a time that the traffic flows are proven

to be reliable.

Notwithstanding that issue, this section of the Note considers a significant and blatant
shortfall of the submission, being the level of proposed parking, as set out below.

Parking Demand & Provision

The Transport Assessment (TA) correctly identifies (at para 4.3.3) that the levels of parking
for developments of this nature should be considered on a case by case basis to avoid the

overspill of parking on surrounding roads.

However, the TA offers no assessment of parking provision to demonstrate that sufficient

space is provide to avoid any detriment to the local highway network arising from overspill.

The proposals comprise the following:

¢ Designer Outlet Village 220,435sqft
¢ Big Box/White Goods 60,000sqft

s Garden Centre 74,430 sqft

o Leisure 22,560sqft

e Tourist Centre 670sqft

s Training Academy 4,730sqft

s Offices 56,530sqft

e Parking provision 1,979 spaces

The scheme also retains the existing Downtown /Boundary Mill building, which the above

parking provision serves

The Downtown application make assertions that, in traffic terms, the Outlet Village element
of their development is directly comparable to the submissions made in respect of the
Grantham Designer Outlet Village (GDoV).

Taking this assertion at face value, it would not be unreasonable to assume that the parking
demand for the Outlet village element of the Downtown application would be similar to that
projected for the GDoV.

156



1.30

1.32

1.33

1.34

1.35

1.36

1.37

1.39

1.40

1.41

1.42

The GDoV permission includes the provision of 1,730 car parking spaces, which was
demonstrated to be the minimum required to facilitate operation of the site while maintaining
10% spare reserve for circulation in the car parks, which is good practice.

The Downtown application therefore provides an additional 249 car parking spaces to cater

for the non-Outlet village elements of the development.

Taking the proposed office element of the Downtown application (56,530sqft/5,252sqm),
employment densities for B1(a) developments sit in the region of 1 person per 8sqm and

13sgm (reference Employment Density Guide 3" Edition).

Consequently, it would not be unreasonable to assume that there would be between 403
and 656 people employed on site just by the office element of the proposals.

The National Census identifies that 79% of people who work in this area travel to work as

a driver of a car or van.

Consequently, there would be a demand arising from the office employees for between 318

and 518 car parking spaces on site.

This demand alone significantly exceeds the 249 parking spaces set out above that the
development proposals include to cater for the non-Outlet Village elements.

Once the Big Box, Garden Centre, leisure, Training Academy and existing Boundary Mill
parking demands are taken into account, the shortfall will significantly increase with
potentially dire consequences.

While it is accepted that there will be an element of cross-visitation between the

development components proposed, it is inconceivable that it will be significant enough to
render the proposed parking provision sufficient.

Consequently, it is considered that the proposals fail to demonstrate sufficient parking is
proposed on site to cater for likely demand and, indeed, the provision is likely to fall
significantly short of the future demand.

Servicing

It was not possible to identify any swept path analysis within the Transport Assessment to

demonstrate that suitable servicing arrangements were being promoted.

The applicant should ensure there is sufficient loading space and manoeuvring to cater for

the proposals.

Conclusion — Transport Assessment

As a result of the above findings, the proposals are likely to result in overspill parking
consequently prejudicing the free flow of traffic, road safety and local amenity.

157



143  The applicant should address this issue as a matter of pricrity.

Author: Alec Philpott
Date: 23rd May 2018

158



Appendix F - S.106 Planning Obligations

159



09T

106 item

Purpose

Detail

Reg 122
assessment -
necessary to make
the development
acceptable

Reg 122
assessment -
directly related to
the development

Reg 122
assessment - fairly
and reasonably
related in scale and
kind

Trigger

Provision of a
Training
Academy on
site or a
contribution to
support the
delivery of a
training
scheme
targeted at
assisting
residents of
the District to
develop the
skills and
experience
required to
secure a job or
apprenticeship
in the retail or
fashion or
leisure
industry

Provision of a
Training
Academy will
help expand the
number of local
residents with
relevant skills
helping to
mitigate the
pressure on the
local labour
market and help
to address
unemployment
levels and skills
issues
especially those
between the
ages 18 and 24.

Provision of a
Training Academy or
funding of a training
package in
conjunction with
Grantham College or
another training
provider.

If the Training
Academy is not
provided funding of
£65,000 with payment
spread over three
years with first
payment due 12
months from
commencement of
the development or
such other time limit
as may be agreed
with the Council (the
end date).

The obligation
accords with SKDC's
planning obligations
supplementary
planning documents
("SPD") (2012),
Policy E1 —
employment and
development and
Policy E2 — town
centre and retail
development of
SKDC's adopted

Core Strategy (2010).

The contribution
accords with relevant
development plan
policies together with
the NPPF including
para 80 (supporting
economic growth
through the planning
system).

The obligation will
provide the
opportunity for
learners to develop
the skills and
experience needed to
secure a job or
apprenticeship in the
retail, fashion or
leisure industry, and
is in compliance with
the planning
obligations SPD. ltis
intended that the
obligation would
assist local residents
to develop the skills
required to take
advantage of
employment
opportunities at the
DOC and stimulate
the take up of
apprenticeships by
DOC retail and
leisure tenants.

The obligation is fairly
and reasonably
related in scale and
kind to the
development because
it secures an
appropriate level of
contribution towards
skills and learning in
proportion to the level
of employment
opportunities likely to
be generated by the
DOC and staffing
requirements,

and the obligation
will play its part in
meeting policy
objectives such as
those in policy E1 —
employment and
development

Provision of the
Training Academy
within 12 months of
occupation of the
retail units or a
financial contribution
of £65,000 payable

£21,450 12 months
from commencement
of development or
such other time as
agreed with the
Council (the end
date),

£21,450 on or before
the first anniversary
of the end date
£22,100 on or before
the third anniversary
of the end date.

Town Centre
improvements
to encourage

Encourage
linked trips by
visitors to the

Initiatives delivered
directly by the
development

The proposal will
impact on the town
centre. The proposal

The proposal will
impact on the town
centre. The proposal

The initiatives are
fairly and reasonably
related in scale and




191

linked trips

DOC to visit and
spend in the
town centre.

(a) Provision of
minimum 62 sq.
metres within the
DOC Tourist and
Visitor Information
Centre for the
purposes of
supporting tourism
initiatives, to promote
town centre events
and to encourage
tourists and visitors to
extend their stay and
visit Grantham town
centre and the
surrounding area. To
be provided for the
duration of the
development in
accordance with a
scheme approved by
the Local Planning
Authority.

(b) A dedicated "pop
up shop" (minimum
size 90 sq. metres
gross internal area) or
similar display area
for the purposes of
showcasing
Grantham town
centre retailers and
Grantham events etc.
on a rotating basis.
To be provided for the
duration of the
development in
accordance with a
scheme approved by
the Local Planning
Authority.

is also considered to
have wider benefits. It
is proposed to
mitigate the impacts
and secure the wider
benefits of linked trips
through the identified
package of
measures.

The SKDC Core
Strategy adopted in
2010 has

Objective 9 to
"Maintain and
enhance the vitality
and viability of the
principal retail areas
of Grantham,
Stamford, Bourne and
Market Deeping by
concentrating new
retail development
within the town
centres and ensuring
that such schemes
meet an identified
retail need."

The adopted Core
Strategy (2010)
acknowledges in
6.2.6 that Grantham
town centre "currently
presents a
fragmented offer,
underperforms and is
in need of
improvement to
ensure increased
footfall and better
services for local
people."

will attract a large
number of visitors to
the DOC. ltis
intended that a
proportion of them will
also visit and spend
in Grantham Town
centre and thus
increase its footfall
allowing existing
retailers to provide
better services to
local people. Further,
the measures will
provide the
opportunity for
promoting the town
centre to achieve the
intended benefits of
linked trips.

kind to the Grantham
DOC. The
development will
impact on the town
centre and the
measures are
required in order to
achieve the identified
benefits from linked
tripsin a
proportionate
manner.

Scheme to be
approved before
occupation of the
development.
Ongoing requirement
to deliver obligation

Scheme to be
approved before
occupation

Ongoing requirement
to deliver obligation




29T

(c) requirement to
submit a scheme for
the delivery of
improvements to the
existing Bus Service
between the
Development and the
Town Centre to the
District Council for
approval prior to the
Occupation of the
Development, where
the details of such
scheme shall include
the following:

The proposed
timetable for the
improved Bus
Services, which shall
operate at a minimum
frequency of:

(i) One service every
30 minutes during the
peak am and pm
periods

(i) One service every
60 minutes during the
off peak periods

The proposed route
of the Bus Service,
which shall link the
Development with
Grantham Town
Centre (peak services
and off peak
services).

A requirement for Bus
Service Security to
ensure that in the

Policy E2: Town
Centre And Retail
Development states
that: "The town
centres of Grantham,
Stamford, Bourne and
the Deepings will be
strengthened and
regenerated and uses
and activities which
sustain and improve
their vitality and
viability will be
supported.”

Policy SP3:
Sustainable
Integrated Transport
sets out a range of
measures to
encourage the
creation of a
sustainable, modern
transport network
including: securing
travel plans and
promoting and
assisting journeys by
public transport.

Some of the major
benefits of the DOC
scheme rely upon
creating linked trips to
Grantham centre.

In order to achieve
the increased visitor
footfall some of the
issues that currently
deter visitors from
visiting the town
centre need to be

Scheme to be
approved before
occupation of the
development.

Improvements to the
Bus service to be
secured before
occupation of first unit




€91

event that the
enhanced Bus
Service is not fully
delivered the Council
can call upon the
security as
appropriate to help
secure the bus
service

Initiatives delivered
by the Local
Authority using
funding secured from
the development
(total financial
contributions of
£480,000 to be paid
for the purposes set
out in the table
below).

(a) £30,000 towards
improvements to car
parking signage and
directions in
Grantham town
centre to facilitate
linked trips by car. To
be paid 12 months
after start on site.

addressed.

The initiatives accord
with SKDC's planning
obligations
supplementary
planning documents
(2012), namely:
Paragraph 1.2.3
which lists possible
initiatives (page 5);
Table1b:
Contributions
Threshold Guide
(Commercial) (page
12), 1.9.1 (page 13)
and paragraph 2.3.31
(page 42).

Scheme to be
approved before
occupation

Ongoing requirement
to deliver obligation

12 months from
commencement of
development and in
any event prior to first
occupation




Vo1

(b) £150,000
contribution towards
Town Centre live car
parking availability
interactive signage at
five car parking sites
including installation
and maintenance
costs. To be paid 12
months after start on
site.

12 months from
commencement of
development and in
any event prior to first
occupation

(c) £75,000 towards
promoting activities
aimed at tourists
within the town centre
(events, festivals,
markets etc).

First occupation

(d) £150,000 towards
other physical
improvements to
make Grantham town
centre more attractive
as a linked
destination (eg
pedestrian way
finding signage,
public realm
improvements,
improvements to the
railway station, the
shop front
improvement
scheme,
improvements to
attractions within the
town centre such as
signage for heritage
assets etc).

First occupation




Q9T

(e) £75,000
contribution towards
the town centre
tourism manager
given number of
visitors to district as
result of DOC.

First occupation

Travel Plan

In considering
development
proposals within
the District,
SKDC will
ensure that the
objectives of the
most recent
local transport
plan for
Lincolnshire are
met.

Objective 4 of
the SKDC Core
Strategy
adopted in 2010
"seeks to
improve
accessibility to
jobs, houses
and services,
and to reduce
traffic growth, by
ensuring choice
to use public
transport, walk
or cycle, for as
many journeys
as possible."

Implement the Travel
Plan. Comply with
ongoing requirements
as to implementation
of measures,
monitoring and
periodic review.

Ongoing future target
of 10% reduction in
car travel over a 5
year period.

The delivery of a
Travel Plan is
necessary to accord
with SKDC'’s planning
obligations SPD
(2012) and Policy
SP3: 'Sustainable
Integrated Transport'
of the 2010 adopted
Core Strategy.

The implementation
of a Travel Plan for
the DOC is required
to meet the Councils
aims to encourage
the creation of a
sustainable, modern
transport network
across the district by
promoting and
assisting journeys by
public transport,
cycling, mobility aids
and walking, by
making them
accessible, safe,
convenient and as
attractive as possible.

The Travel Plan will
contain measures
specifically related to
the development. It
will encourage staff to
consider alternative
modes of transport to
travel to and from the
DOC, in order to meet
targets in reducing
the need to travel by
motor car.

Planned measures
are to be
implemented which
are to be monitored
against the agreed
targets.

The Travel Plan has
been prepared to
specifically relate to
the scale and form of
development and the
measures are
prepared to minimise
the transport impact
of the development.

To be implemented
from commencement
of development




99T

Occupancy
requirements
for Class A1
retail units

Controls on
occupancy of
the Class A1
retail units to
ensure that the
development
operates as a
Designer Outlet
Centre only and
is occupied by
permitted
retailers with
appropriate
controls relating
to those retailers
who occupy
space in
identified
centres and thus
reduce adverse
impacts on
those town
centre.

The occupancy
requirements would
be as follows:

(a) No Class A1 unit
shall be occupied
other than by a
permitted retailer or
an “acceptable
retailer”. A permitted
retailer will be a
retailer / brand on a
list to be agreed. The
list will be generated
by reference to the
Javelin Group
Venuescore Rankings
to ensure they are
suitable for a high
end tier one outlet
village. The restriction
will allow for the list of
potential occupiers to
be reviewed subject
to the LPA’s approval
where specific criteria
are met.

In addition to the
criteria at (a):

(b) No Class A1 unit
shall be occupied by
a permitted retailer
which occupies a
retail unit in
Grantham town
centre, Newark or
Balderton as at the
date of the section

To ensure high end
occupiers as
proposed by the
application which do
not directly compete
with existing town
centre retailers and to
control retail
occupiers of the
development, without
which, retailers who
are currently located
in the identified town
centre could relocate
to the outlet village
resulting in an
adverse effect on the
vitality and viability of
the town centre.

This restriction on the
type of retailer who
can occupy the new
retail units at the
outlet village only
relates to the outlet
village itself.

Without this
restriction on the
occupiers there would
be a risk that current
retailers in the town
centre would relocate
to the outlet village
resulting in an
adverse effect on the
town centre. A
mechanism for review
will form part of the
obligation




9T

106 agreement; as at
the date of the
intended occupation;
or within a period six
months prior to the
intended date of
occupation unless
that permitted retailer
has entered into a
scheme which
contains a binding
commitment on the
retailer to retaining
their presence as a
retailer within that
town centre has been
submitted to and
approved by the
Local Planning
Authority. Such
scheme shall require
the retailer to
continue to operate
from Grantham town
centre, Newark or
Balderton for a period
of five years from
when that binding
commitment is
approved or if later
occupation.

The occupancy
restrictions above
would not apply to the
proposed "pop up
shop" in the
development.

The obligation will
include monitoring
arrangements to
ensure the obligation
can be enforced.




89T

Restrictions on
the existing
Downtown
Store

1. Restrict the
existing
floorspace in
order to prevent
any significant
increase in the
proportion of
floorspace that
can be used for
the sale of non-
bulky goods

2. Prevent use
of floorspace for
convenience
retail goods

3. Control
users/occupiers
of the existing
Downtown store
in the same way
as the control on
uses of the
proposed DOC
through the “no
poaching”
obligation at
limb (b) above
(Occupancy
requirements for

A total area
equivalent to 3,149
sgm of the existing
floorspace in the
Downtown/ Boundary
Mill building shall be
restricted to use only
for the sale of bulky
goods and
homeware, restaurant
or storage uses.

None of the
floorspace shall be
used for convenience
retail goods

The occupiers shall
be controlled as per
limb (b) above
(Occupancy
requirements for
Class A1 retail units)

To ensure that the
existing store
operates at it
currently does in line
with the Retail Impact
Assessment
submitted in support
of this planning
application.

To ensure that the
area of bulky goods
floorspace released
as part of the
approval of the new
@Home store is not
used for the sale of
other non-bulky
comparison goods
which could result in
a greater adverse
impact on Grantham
Town Centre

To ensure that the
operation of the
proposed
development and the
existing store do not
adversely impact the
vitality and viability of
nearby town centres
in accordance with
the requirements of
the NPPF and Policy
E2 of the Core
Strategy

The restricted
floorspace relates
directly to the area
currently available in
the existing store and
being used for the
sale of bulk goods.

The proposed
development will
operate in conjunction
with the existing retail
operations on site.
This obligation is
required in order to
ensure that the
combined existing
and proposed
development does
not impact on the
vitality and viability of
nearby centres.

The obligation is fairly
and reasonably
related in scale and
kind to the
development because
the restricted
floorspace only
relates to the existing
floorspace available
in the existing store
and currently used for
the sale of bulk
goods.

The obligation is fairly
and reasonably
related in scale and
kind to the
development because
it only seeks to avoid
direct competition
with existing town
centre locations.

On first occupation of
any new retail
premises within the
Development.




69T

Class A1 retail
units).

Prevent any
future
subdivision of
the existing
Downtown /
Boundary Mill
store into
smaller retail
units

Restrict any
future
subdivision of
the existing
store in order to
protect the
vitality and
viability of
Grantham,
Newark and
Balderton
Centres

Restrict any future
subdivision of the
existing store so that
no retail unit within
the building can be
less than 929 sqm in
size.

To ensure that the
operation of the
proposed
development and the
existing store do not
adversely impact the
vitality and viability of
nearby town centres
in accordance with
the requirements of
the NPPF and Policy
E2 of the Core
Strategy

The proposed
development will
operate in conjunction
with the existing retail
operations on site.
This obligation is
required in order to
ensure that the
combined existing
and proposed
development does
not impact on the
vitality and viability of
nearby centres.

The obligation is fairly
and reasonably
related in scale and
kind to the
development because
it only seeks to avoid
direct competition for
smaller retail units
which would be better
located within existing
town centre locations.

On completion of the
S106 agreement




Existing Site Plan

LL_ = A — —
ﬂ/}‘ﬁff/ d /f?qf— e &;

Indicative Master Plan

_ EE

o=

——

170



Parameters Plan — Land Use

i
-t

LSO SR B |

MOTES
Site Parameter Zones

| Parking
[ 1 Retai - Qutlet Units

[N Retal - Garden Centre | Big Bos Units
[  Leizure | Training

Business Hub / Offices

lllustrative Images

OLDRIDS DOWNTOWN - DGDO

BRADKERF
BIG BOX RETAIL AND GARDEN CENTRE ) '

171



OLDRIDS DOWNTOWN - DGDO

BRODKERFL
DOWNTOWN afrchitects

OLDRIDS DOWNTOWN - DGDO

BRODKERFLYT
aArchirects

VIEW FROM EAST CAR PARK

L2l

172



OLDRIDS DOWNTOWN - DGDO

BRADKERFL
architects

VIEW FROM A1 SOUTHBOUND

173



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 5b

PJ S18/2171 Target Decision Date:24th January 2019
Extension of Time Date:

Committee Date:5th February 2019

Applicant Grantham Community Heritage Association C/o Grantham

Museum St. Peter's Hill Grantham Lincs

Agent

Proposal Installation of statue, plinth and paved surround.

Location Land At St Peter's Hill Grantham

Application Type Full Planning Permission

Parish(es) Grantham

Reason for Referral to
Committee

At the request of Clir Baxter on the grounds of dominant and
oppressive environment, government policy, visual
appearance, highway safety, traffic, effect on Listed Building
and Conservation Area, layout and density of building, design,
appearance and materials contrary to Policy EN1.

Recommendation

Approved conditionally

Report Author

Phil Jordan - Development Management Planner
01476 406080 Ext: 6074
p.jordan@southkesteven.gov.uk

Report Reviewed By

Phil Moore — Principal Planning Officer
01476 406080 Ext: 6461
p.moore@southkesteven.gov.uk

Key Issues

¢ Impact on heritage assets and character of the area
o Crime and disorder implications
¢ Impact on protected trees

Technical Documents Submitted with the Application

o Heritage Impact Assessment
e Arboricultural Report

175



Boundary

Application




1.0

Description of site

1.1 The application site is within the grassed area at St. Peter's Hill which is identified in
the Grantham Conservation Area Appraisal as the Civic Centre Character Area of
Grantham. As well as being within the designated Conservation Area the site is within
the setting of the Grade Il Listed Guildhall. There are already two statues (both Grade
Il Listed) on the green, one of Sir Isaac Newton and the other of the Hon. Frederick
James Tollemache, a nineteenth century politician who was a Member of Parliament
for Grantham. There are a number of trees on St. Peter's Hill that are subject of Tree
Preservation Orders.

2.0 Description of proposal

2.1 The application proposes the installation of a bronze statue of Baroness Thatcher, the
Grantham born and educated, first female Prime Minister of Great Britain and Northern
Ireland. The proposed statue, including a polished granite plinth and paved surround,
would have an overall height of 6.4m which would be of a similar height to the
Tollemache statue but lower than that of Newton. The plinth would occupy a space of
2m x 2m (measured from plan) and be 3.24m in height, and the paved surround would
be 5m x 5m (measured from plan). It would occupy a position roughly mid-way between
the two existing statues, facing westwards. The proposed position of the statue has
been amended following the arboricultural survey to take account of the future growth
potential of the surrounding trees. The amended position is approximately 2m north of
the originally proposed position.

3.0 Relevant History

3.1 No relevant planning history

4.0 Policy Considerations

4.1 National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)

Section 7 - Ensuring the vitality of town centres

Section 12 - Achieving well-designed places

Section 16 - Conserving and enhancing the historic environment
Section 9 - Promoting sustainable transport

4.2 South Kesteven District Council Core Strategy
Policy EN1 - Protection and Enhancement

4.3 Submission Draft Local Plan
(policies which are accorded some weight)

SD2 Principles of Sustainable Development in South Kesteven
ENG6 The Historic Environment

5.0 SKDC Corporate Priorities

5.1 Growth — a growing population and a growing economy creates jobs, secures
infrastructure and attracts investment.

6.0 Representations Received

Historic England Does not fall under Historic England's relevant statutory

provisions.

177



Arboricultural Consultant
(SKDC)

Heritage Lincolnshire

Crime Prevention Design
Advisor

Historic Buildings Advisor
(SKDC)

Requested a tree impact assessment be carried out.

Based on documentary evidence, St Peter's chapel and the
Eleanor cross are located in this area; recent archaeological
survey has indicated the remains of possible structures at St
Peter's Hill and therefore it is considered that there is
potential for archaeological remains to be impacted. Advice
is for archaeological excavation, in advance of development,
to allow any deposits present at the site to be investigated
and recorded.

Lincolnshire Police do not have any objections to the
application.

It is generally considered that in respect of local sentiment
we would not suggest that there is any significant threat to
the installation of the statue locally.

In general there remains a motivated far-left movement
across the UK (though not so much in Lincolnshire) who may
be committed to public activism. Margaret Thatcher does
however maintain an element of emblematic significance to
many on the left and the passage of time does seem to have
diminished that intensity of feeling.

However it still remains that there is a possibility any public
statue of 'Baroness Thatcher' would be a likely target for
politically motivated vandals.

Recommend that the statue is positioned on a sufficiently
high plinth that is designed to ensure that there are no
adjacent features or climbing aids that would allow
desecration or damage of the statue.

The proposed location benefits from significant daily activity
and natural surveillance from surrounding buildings and
businesses which in itself would provide monitoring of the
statue.

Recommend that the statue is subject to adequate formal
surveillance by the Town CCTV, commensurate with
adequate lighting and that routine pruning and cutting back
of adjacent trees and shrubbery forms part of any
maintenance programme.

Recommend that a technical assessment is carried out to
ensure that coverage is sufficient for both prevention and
meets the standards required for evidential purposes.

St. Peter's Hill is identified in the Grantham Conservation
Area Appraisal as the Civic Centre Character Area of the
town and as such is arguably the most appropriate location
for a statue of such a notable figure. The proposed statue will
not have an adverse impact on the setting of nearby

178



7.0

7.1

8.0

8.1

8.1.1

8.1.2

designated heritage assets nor on the character and
appearance of the Conservation Area.

Representations as a Result of Publicity

This application has been advertised in accordance with the Council's Statement of
Community Involvement and 25 letters of representation have been received. 7 are in
support, 17 are against the proposal and 1 is neutral. The points raised can be
summarised as follows:

Against:

1. Divisive figure due to political career and policies

2. Potential for crime and disorder including vandalism

3. Public cost implications of installation and on-going maintenance
4. Design out of keeping with character of the area

5. Impact on trees

6. Increased traffic to town centre

7. Dominant and oppressive due to scale, design and nature of statue
8. Negative impact on setting of listed building and conservation area
9. Loss of open space and public amenity

10. Visually intrusive

Support:

1. Appropriate location for statue to commemorate the first female Prime Minister

2. Enhancement to the character of the area and complimentary to the existing
statues

3. Increase in visitors and enhancement to Grantham's tourist offer

Neutral

1. Question of cost implications for on-going maintenance

Evaluation

Principle of development

Para 85 of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) states that planning
decisions should support the role that town centres play at the heart of local
communities, by taking a positive approach to their growth, management and
adaptation.

Core Strategy Policy EN1 relates to the protection and enhancement of the character
of the district and states that:

'All development must be appropriate to the character and significant natural, historic
and cultural attributes and features of the landscape within which it is situated, and
contribute to its conservation, enhancement or restoration'.

Submission Draft Local Plan Policy SD2 sets out the principles of sustainable

development including reference to enhancing the District’s cultural and heritage
assets.

179



8.1.4

8.1.5

8.2

8.2.1

8.2.2

8.2.3

Similarly, para 127 of the NPPF states that planning decisions should ensure that
developments:

a) will function well and add to the overall quality of the area, not just for the short
term but over the lifetime of the development;

b) are visually attractive as a result of good architecture, layout and appropriate and
effective landscaping;

c) are sympathetic to local character and history, including the surrounding built
environment and landscape setting, while not preventing or discouraging
appropriate innovation or change (such as increased densities);

c) establish or maintain a strong sense of place, using the arrangement of streets,
spaces, building types and materials to create attractive, welcoming and
distinctive places to live, work and visit;

d) optimise the potential of the site to accommodate and sustain an appropriate
amount and mix of development (including green and other public space) and
support local facilities and transport networks; and

e) create places that are safe, inclusive and accessible and which promote health
and well-being, with a high standard of amenity for existing and future users; and
where crime and disorder, and the fear of crime, do not undermine the quality of
life or community cohesion and resilience.

As the proposed statue would occupy a small area of existing open space, there
would be only minor impacts on the way in which the open space currently functions.
In this instance the proposed development is relatively small scale and the principle
of installing a commemorative statue within the civic space in the town centre is
acceptable and appropriate for the surrounding context in accordance with Core
Strategy Policy EN1 and the NPPF (section 7 and 12), subject to detailed
considerations set out in the remainder of the report.

Impact on Heritage Assets and the Character of the Area

Section 66 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990
requires the Local Planning Authority to pay special regard to the desirability of
preserving listed buildings and their setting. Section 72 of the same Act requires
decision makers, with respect to any buildings or other land in a conservation area to
pay special attention to the desirability of preserving or enhancing the character or
appearance of that area.

The importance of considering the impact of new development on the significance of

designated heritage assets is expressed in section 16 of the NPPF. Paragraph 194 of
the NPPF advises that the significance of designated heritage assets can be harmed

or lost through alterations or development within their setting. Submission Draft Local
Plan Policy EN6 seeks to protect and enhance existing heritage assets.

In assessing the potential impact of the scale and proposed materials of the statue
and plinth on the setting of the Grade Il listed Guildhall, existing statues and the
Grantham Conservation Area it is considered that the scale of the proposed statue is
broadly in-line with the two existing statues and sited so as not to detract from these
existing monuments. The Council's Conservation Officer has been consulted and
notes the Civic Centre Character Area of the town (as defined in the Conservation
Area Appraisal) is arguably the most appropriate location for a statue of a public
figure. Their expert opinion is also that the proposed statue would not have an
adverse impact on the setting of nearby designated heritage assets nor on the
character and appearance of the Conservation Area.

180



8.2.4

8.3

8.3.1

8.4

8.4.1

8.5

8.5.1

9.0

9.1

9.2

9.3

A condition has been included that requires the submission of the materials of the
proposed plinth and paved surround materials before any installation works are
commenced. This would ensure the proposal is appropriate for the context and does
not result in any harm to the character of the area or the setting of the nearby
designated heritage assets in accordance with the above legislation and policies.

Impact on trees

An arboricultural impact assessment has been submitted that demonstrates the
proposed statue, plinth and paved surround would have no significant impact on the
surrounding trees on St. Peter's Hill that are subject of preservation orders. However,
following this assessment the proposed position of the statue was moved
approximately 2m north to take account of the future growth potential of the
surrounding trees. A condition has also been included that would ensure tree
protection measures are taken during construction to prevent any damage to the
protected trees.

Highway and traffic

Concern has been raised that the proposal would lead to an increase in traffic to
Grantham town centre. Although the statue has potential to attract more visitors to
the town centre, the impact on additional traffic would not be significant enough to
warrant refusal of planning permission as the impact on the road network would not
be considered severe. In this respect the proposal is in accordance with section 9 of
the NPPF.

Other matters

The potential public costs of installing and maintaining the statue have been raised
as a concern. The applicant has confirmed that the cost of the statue and its
installation would be privately funded. The future maintenance arrangements have
yet to be confirmed, however the maintenance requirements of the statue would be
minor and the costs associated with any potential damage to the statue are not a
material planning consideration.

Crime and Disorder

The divisive nature of Baroness Thatcher due to her political career and policy legacy
and the potential for this to result in vandalism has been raised as a concern. A
threat assessment has been carried out by Lincolnshire Police who consider there is
a possibility any public statue of Baroness Thatcher could be a target for politically
motivated vandals. Lincolnshire Police's Crime Prevention Officer has not objected to
the proposal but they have recommended the statue is placed on a sufficiently high
plinth and is sited in a location that benefits from good natural surveillance as well as
lighting and CCTV.

The proposed statue would be positioned on a 3.2m plinth and sited in a prominent
location in the town centre which benefits from natural surveillance and street
lighting. The Council's CCTV service have confirmed that the proposed location of
the statue has limited CCTV coverage with the closest operational camera being
located near Boots on the High Street.

On balance, although there is some limited potential for vandalism, the proposed

siting of the statue in a well-used and well overlooked public space in the town
centre, together with its position on a suitably high plinth would ensure that the

181



10.0

10.1

11.0

12.0

chances of problems of this nature are minimised. Therefore there would not be
sufficient justification for refusal of planning permission on these grounds.

Human Rights Implications

Article 6 (Right to a fair decision making) and Article 8 (Right to private family life and
home) of the Human Rights Act have been taken into account in making a
recommendation. It is considered that no relevant Article of the act will be breached.

Conclusion

In conclusion, this proposal is appropriate for the surrounding historic town centre
context and would not lead to any unacceptable crime and disorder impacts or
impacts on protected trees. The proposal is in accordance with Core Strategy Policy
EN1, Submission Draft Local Plan Policies SD2 and EN6 and guidance contained in
the National Planning Policy Framework, specifically Sections 7, 9, 12 and 16. There
are no material planning considerations that indicate a decision should be otherwise
and the proposal is therefore recommended for approval, subject to conditions.

RECOMMENDATION: that the development is Approved/Allowed subject to the
following conditions

Time Limit for Commencement

1

App
2

The development hereby permitted shall be commenced before the expiration of three
years from the date of this permission.

Reason: In order that the development is commenced in a timely manner, as set out in
Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended).

roved Plans

The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following
list of approved plans:

i. Drawing no. 18052/01A received 21st January 2019
ii. Drawing no. 18052/02A received 21st January 2019
i Drawing no. 18052/03C received 21st January 2019

Unless otherwise required by another condition of this permission.

Reason: To define the permission and for the avoidance of doubt.

Before Development Commences

3

Before the development hereby permitted is commenced, a written scheme of
archaeological investigation shall have been submitted to and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority.

Reason: In order to provide a reasonable opportunity to record the history of the site and
in accordance with Policy EN1 of the adopted South Kesteven Core Strategy (July
2010) and Paragraph 199 of the NPPF.

The archaeological investigations shall also have been completed in accordance with
the approved details before development commences.

182



Reason: In order to provide a reasonable opportunity to record the history of the site and
in accordance with Policy EN1 of the adopted South Kesteven Core Strategy (July
2010) and Paragraph 199 of the NPPF.

During Building Works

5

Before any of the works to install the plinth and paved surround hereby permitted are
begun, samples of the materials of the plinth and paved surround shall have been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To ensure a satisfactory appearance to the development and in accordance
with Policy EN1 of the adopted South Kesteven Core Strategy (July 2010).

The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following
list of approved arboricultural assessment details:

- Tree protection plan received 23rd January 2019
- Arboricultural Implications Assessment and Method Statement received 23rd January

2019

Reason: Trees play an important role in retaining the character and should be protected
in the interests of visual amenity in accordance with the requirements of Policy EN1 o
the South Kesteven Core Strategy.

Before the Development is Occupied

7 Before any part of the development hereby permitted is brought into use, the paved

surround and plinth shall have been completed in accordance with the approved details.

Reason: To ensure a satisfactory appearance to the development and in accordance
with Policy EN1 of the adopted South Kesteven Core Strategy (July 2010).

Standard Note(s) to Applicant:

1

In reaching the decision the Council has worked with the applicant in a positive and
proactive manner by determining the application without undue delay. As such it is
considered that the decision is in accordance with paras 38 of the National Planning
Policy Framework.

183



Location Plan

Proposed plans

ERNEONA  Gonbe pooig s SRR

BRONZE STATUE of BARDNESS THATCHER >t ST. PETER'S HILL, GRANTHAM

PROPOSALS

7 Scale s stated@A2
DrawingNo:  18052/03C OCTOSER 2018

184



Agenda Item 5c

SHELLY S18/1979 Target Decision Date:19th December 2018
Committee Date: 5 February 2019
Applicant Mrs D Lang, Balmont House NG32 3RX
Agent Jonathan Metcalfe Am2architects Suite 2 Navigation Business
Centre NEWARK NG244TS
Proposal Conversion of existing Barn to single dwelling, erection of
new hay barn and stable block and paddocks
Location Brandon Barn Hall Road Brandon Lincolnshire NG32 2AT
Application Type Full Planning Permission
Parish(es) Hough On The Hill Parish Council

Reason for Referral to
Committee

Councillor Bob Sampson has called in the application on the
grounds that the proposal would be:

1. Outside the built boundary of the village

2. In conflict with the development plan, especially the policies of
the Neighbourhood Plan

3. Sited in close proximity to an existing dwelling causing an
adverse impact on residential amenity

Recommendation

That the application is:- approved conditionally

Report Author

Shelly Delderfield - Planning Officer
01476 406080 Ext: 6446
shelly.delderfield@southkesteven.gov.uk

Report Reviewed By

Sylvia Bland - Head of Development Management
01476 406080 Ext: 6388
S.Bland@southkesteven.gov.uk

Key Issues

¢ Impact on the fabric of the unlisted heritage asset
e Impact on the character of the area
¢ Impact on the occupiers of neighbouring properties

185



98T




1.0

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

1.6

1.7

1.8

1.9

Description of site and proposal

The site is located to the north-easterly edge of Brandon and is accessed via a private drive to
the east of Hall Road. Brandon is a civil parish of Hough-on-the-Hill, Lincolnshire.

This application proposes the conversion and extension of a 19th century outbuilding/carthouse.
The barn is a brick/stone and pantile disused farm building. The building is not listed but by virtue
of its vernacular design and historic interest is a non-designated heritage asset. It has been
identified as a building of note within the Hough-on-the-Hill Neighbourhood Plan.

The outbuilding/carthouse is situated to the south-west of a field largely delineated by mature
trees, hedgerows and fencing which forms the plot to which this application is subject. The plot
lies to the north-eastern edge of Brandon and is believed to have originally formed part of a wider
cluster of farm buildings within Brandon. A public footpath runs to the north of the plot and is
separated by mature trees and hedgerow along the boundary perimeter.

This proposal follows a previously withdrawn application that has since been revised following
that withdrawal.

The proposal seeks to insert new extensions to the barn to enable its conversion. The new
elements will comprise of the following

The projecting cubist element to the front elevation of the barn measures approximately 4.1m x
1.0m comprising of metal alloy cladding and a single ply membrane flat roof to the flat cube
shaped addition.

The lean to extension to the southern elevation measuring approximately 9.9m x 5.4m is
proposed to be constructed using grey timber cladding and a single ply membrane shallow
pitched roof with black chippings. The extension features two windows and two glazed door
openings. Timber cladding is proposed to the rear extension (southern elevation).

The side extension (eastern elevation) measuring approximately 3.3m x 5.3m allows for the
original building to dominate with the original stone visible from the outside. The extension is
proposed to comprise of materials to match the existing stone/brickwork.

The majority of the roof of the barn will comprise of clay pan tiles whilst the southern and eastern
extension areas will be constructed using a single ply membrane. Grey aluminium windows and
doors are proposed to be used for the openings of the barn.

The barn will have a maximum ridge height of approximately 5.5m which is contained within the
existing barn.

The residential curtilage is outlined as the area within the immediate setting of the barn to the
north and south with the remainder of the site proposed to form part of a hay/storage barn,
stables and paddocks.

The proposed hay/storage block measures approximately 6.5m x 9m with a ridge height of 4.99m
and the stable block measures approximately 5.2m x 7.9m with a ridge height of 3.7m. The
building is proposed to comprise of grey vertical timber cladding and metal alloy cladding with a
wooden door and external staircase leading to the first floor having a maximum ridge height of
4.99m.

187



2.0 Relevant History

Reference Proposal Decision Date

S05/1640 Barn conversion to residential dwelling Refused 31/01/2006
S99/0751 Conversion of barn to dwelling Refused 12/10/1999
S99/1314 Conversion of barn to dwelling Refused 15/02/2000

3.0 Policy Considerations

3.1 National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)
Section 9 - Promoting sustainable transport
Section 16 - Conserving and enhancing the historic environment
Hough on the Hill Neighbourhood Development Plan
Section 5 - Delivering a sufficient supply of homes
Section 12 - Achieving well-designed places

3.2 South Kesteven District Council Core Strategy
Policy EN1 - Protection and Enhancement
Policy H1 - Residential Development
Policy SP1 - Spatial Strategy
Policy SP2 - Sustainable Communities

3.3 Submission Draft Local Plan
(policies which are accorded some weight)
SD1 Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development
SD2 Principles of Sustainable Development in South Kesteven
ID2 Transport and Strategic Transport Infrastructure
ENG6 The Historic Environment

3.4 Neighbourhood Plan
Hough on the Hill Neighbourhood Development Plan

4.0 SKDC Corporate Priorities

4.1 Growth — a growing population and a growing economy creates jobs, secures infrastructure and
attracts investment.

5.0 Representations Received

South  Kesteven District Public Footpath No. 1 is located to the north of the

Council Footpaths Officer development site. From the plans submitted it appears to be
situated just outside of the proposed development site
boundary, although care should be taken during development
at the site that the footpath is not obstructed in any way.

Lincolnshire County Council It is expected that there will be no encroachment, either
- Footpaths Officers permanent or temporary, onto the rights of way as a result of
the proposal

Historic Buildings Advisor The current application includes an additional survey report

(SKDC) from the structural engineer which has established that no
underpinning will be required with no major rebuilding
necessary for the conversion works. This is sufficient
evidence to show that the proposal is in accordance with
policy SP1.

In design terms the proposed alterations and proposed cubist

element are a positive addition providing an interesting visual
juxtaposition between the old and new. Having inspected the

188



building on site, the principal king post roof structure is in
remarkably good condition, and contributes strongly towards
the significance of the barn as a non-designated heritage
asset that can be retained and better revealed within the
conversion works.

Whilst there are some new interventions, the original
character of the barn remains largely intact and the
conversion will help to ensure the long term future of the
building.

The floor area of the barn has been reduced, with the
introduction of a shallow pitched roof, and the height of the
haybarn and storage has been reduced which is more
appropriate to the historic context, and subordinate to the
existing principle barn.

The colour finish of the cladding sample provided is
sufficiently muted not to have any impact upon views into the
site and is fitting for the rural context.

Setting the glazing back behind the existing upright beams
better reveals the existing historic features of the building and
is a welcome addition.

LCC Highways & SuDS No objections (informative provided)
Support

Parish Council One Councillor has no objection to this application but two
object on the following grounds:

The design proposal still indicates wood cladding of the south
extension which is out of keeping with the stone and brick
construction of the C19 barn.

Although the applicant has reduced the overall size of the
extensions, the total additional floor space still appears to
exceed the guideline of 40 per cent increase to the original.

It is however noted that the applicant has brought the plans
more in line with the Neighbourhood Plan by changing to a
gently sloping roof on the larger of the two extensions. It is
also noted that the applicant has attempted to make the
stable block more appropriate to its surrounding by reducing
its size.

Upper Witham Internal The Board has no comments on this application.
Drainage Board

6.0 Representations as a Result of Publicity

6.1 This application has been advertised in accordance with the Council's Statement of Community
Involvement and 22 letters of representation have been received. The points raised can be
summarised as follows:

1. Development on this site would extend the village boundaries

2. Brandon has no sewerage system and believe that there is no further capacity for additional
dwellings

3. Size of development would dominate the landscape and have a detrimental effect on the

189



6.2

7.0

7.1

711

landscape

~NOo O~

. No mention of owl that was known to roost in existing barn

. Concern regarding footpaths and access around the village

. Detrimental effect on setting of Old Hall, rear access is restricted

. Character of development does not fall within Neighbourhood Plan, is at odds with local

vernacular
8. Loss of wildlife habitat
9. Concerns regarding overlooking to the southern elevation

10.
11.

12.
13.
14.

15.
16.
17.
18.
19.
20.
21.
22.
23.

The rear extension goes against the grain of the existing building

The metal alloy clad box like roof extension is out of character with the existing scale, form
and character of the existing building

Substantial extensions are inappropriate

Proposal is contrary to SP1 and EN1 of the Core Strategy

Proposed hay barn/stable building is very large and will be prominent and visible from public
footpath

Proposed materials - glass/metal cladding is inappropriate and not in keeping with Brandon
Reference to previous refusals for conversion to dwelling

Sewage Disposal/Drainage problems

Vehicular access cannot cope with any more traffic/access for fire brigade

Proposed design is not in keeping with Brandon

Loss of privacy

Noise and odour concerns

Storage and Hay Barn seem oversized

Would affect my property and fail sunlight/daylight test

1 letter of support has been received

1.

The revised plans show a pitched roof extension to the south. This is of a gentle slope and
will still leave good visibility of the original barn pantiles. This compromise is aesthetically and
functionally effective. Note there is a minimum slope for pantiles to drain; as such this new
roof needs to be of a different material. The natural and dark colours proposed will not draw
attention to the roof. A number of properties in Brandon have used modern bright red pantile.
This application has significantly reduced the footprint and do not now detract from the barn
itself.

This is reminiscent of The Old Hall Barn northern end, where a similar extension was added
at a lower roof line. | believe that the architect has considered local style and form of these
buildings. In addition, Rowan Cottage has been extended twice, first roofing open pens and a
further wing in recent years.

The application has reduced the size of the barn and hay barn/stable block and consider it is
in keeping with the historic use of the paddocks

The size of the barn is similar to the new garage to the west of Old Hall. Many buildings within
Brandon have erected outbuildings. The aesthetic of the proposed barn and stables will be
preferable to temporary buildings

Evaluation

Principle of the use

The site is located in open countryside outside the built up part of the village and Policy SP1 of

the

Adopted Core Strategy states that in the countryside development will be restricted.

Proposals will only be considered acceptable if they are sites for:

B. agriculture, forestry or equine development

F. conversions of buildings provided that the existing building(s):

contribute to the character & appearance of the local area by virtue of their historic,
traditional or vernacular form;
are in sound structural condition; and

190



712

7.2

7.2.1

7.2.2

7.2.3

724

7.2.5

7.2.6

7.2.7

- are suitable for conversion without substantial alteration, extension or rebuilding, and that
the works to be undertaken do not detract from the character of the building(s) or their
setting

Submission Draft Local Plan Policy SD2 seeks to ensure that new development accords with the
principles of sustainable development including the conversion of buildings. In paragraph 79 of
the NPPF it states that Local Planning Authorities should avoid the development of new isolated
homes in the countryside unless there are special circumstances such as where the development
would represent the optimal viable use of a heritage asset, would re-use redundant or disused
buildings and enhance its immediate setting.

It is considered that the proposal for the barn conversion is acceptable in principle and in
accordance with the criteria set out in section F of Policy SP1 as it seeks to convert an unlisted
heritage asset in order to provide a long term use of the building. The structural survey submitted
to demonstrate the existing building is capable of conversion is considered to meet the criteria set
out in Policy SP1 as it indicates that the building does not require any underpinning or any major
rebuilding works necessary for its conversion. It is also considered that the proposed extensions
to convert the building are not so substantial that they exceed the test. Compliance with criteria F
in terms of the impact on the character of the building and its setting is considered later in the
report. The proposal seeks to use a large part of the site for equine development which will
comprise of a hay/storage and stable block and three paddock areas which meets criteria B of
Policy SP1.

Impact of the use on the character of the area

Policy HoH1 of the Hough-on-the-Hill Neighbourhood Plan supports development which accords
with SP1 of the Core Strategy (2010) where it maximises opportunities to protect and enrich the
landscape and built setting of the villages and their environs as defined within the Landscape
Assessment (October 2013).

The Landscape Assessment set out in the Neighbourhood Plan states that extensions should be
sympathetic, set-back and subordinate and in keeping with general character of the village. Roof
pitches should be in harmony with the original palette for the village although exemptions would
be made for innovative, contemporary solutions that successfully integrate modern architectural
design. Natural roof tiles are encouraged i.e. slates, pantiles, plain tiles. In addition, wildlife
features are encouraged as well as consideration being given to vehicle arrangements and key
views to which this application is one identified within the adopted plan.

Policy HoH2 of the adopted Neighbourhood Plan state that new development should be
sympathetic to the existing form, scale and character of its location and be appropriate to its rural
context. Development should respond to both the built and natural environment.

Policy HOH4 of the Neighbourhood Plan states that development which would result in the loss of
all or part of a heritage asset will not be supported unless it can be demonstrated that the public
benefits would outweigh the harm caused.

Policy HOH11 of the Neighbourhood Plan states that development should be supported where it
would maintain features which define the character and setting of the Parish, as set out in the
Landscape Assessment. In particular, development which would impact on views into and out of
the village should demonstrate these features have been sensitively and appropriately
considered and incorporated and/or mitigated as necessary.

Policy EN1 of the of the Adopted Core Strategy states that development must be appropriate to
the character and significant natural, historic and cultural attributes and features of the landscape
within which it is situated, and contribute to its conservation, enhancement or restoration.

Submission Draft Local Plan Policy EN6 seeks to protect and enhance heritage assets within the
District.

191



7.2.8 Paragraph 127 of the NPPF states that planning policies and considerations should ensure
developments are sympathetic to local character and history, including the surrounding built
environment and landscape setting, while not preventing or discouraging appropriate innovation
or change.

7.2.9 Paragraph 192 of the NPPF states that Local Planning Authorities should take account of the
desirability of sustaining and enhancing the significance of heritage assets and put them to viable
uses consistent with their conservation and making a positive contribution to local character and
distinctiveness.

7.2.10 The site currently comprises of the redundant barn and paddock area believed to have been
used most recently for pasture and reflects the rural character of Brandon and its historic use.

7.2.11 The proposed alterations to the unlisted heritage asset have been amended slightly following
consultation with the conservation officer and the Council's urban design officer so as to better
reveal elements of the barn to the front elevation. This will result in setting the glazing back
behind the existing upright beams which is welcomed by the conservation officer. It is considered
that the proposal allows for the original barn to be seen and understood whilst balancing this with
more contemporary add-ons so as to enable the long term use of the building. Each element of
the proposed alterations to the barn are described in more detail below.

7.2.12 Whilst the projecting element to the northern elevation dominates and blocks from sight the end
brick pier it does allow views of the original roof structure/beams and therefore on balance is
considered to be an acceptable element of the proposed conversion. A sample of the proposed
alloy cladding has been viewed by the conservation officer who is satisfied that the proposed
materials are in keeping with the unlisted heritage asset and in the context of the wider setting to
which the barn find itself.

7.2.13 The side extension to the eastern elevation differs in its approach as the other two add on
features are much more contemporary in their design whereas this element seeks to use stone
and roof tiles to match the existing structure. However, the openness of the design and blend of
both old and new are considered to be acceptable subject to conditions.

7.2.14 The lean to extension features two windows and two glazed door openings and has been
amended so as to include a pitched roof to reflect the Hough-on-the-Hill Neighbourhood Plan.
Whilst this proposed new element is contemporary in its design it is considered that this new
extension is acceptable and is readable within the historic context of the original
outbuilding/cartshed. The proposed materials are considered to be acceptable and an
appropriate reflection of both the historic and more contemporary elements of the building.

7.2.15 ltis considered that the proposed hay/storage and stable area as well as much of the plot for use
as horse paddocks would be in keeping with the rural character and appearance of the
surrounding amenity. The ridge height and palette of materials have been addressed so as to be
visibility subservient to the unlisted heritage asset. Whilst the building is not strictly in keeping
with the materials palette of residential buildings in the area it is considered that this is no less
appropriate due to the proposed use. The choice of materials is a reflection of the equine use
which is being proposed in a similar way that any agricultural building would be different to
building a structure for residential use. The proposal is considered to be compatible with the
previous use of the land which is believed to have been for pasture.

7.2.16 In summary it is considered that whilst the proposal does include alterations to the unlisted
heritage asset, these alterations on balance allow for the long term use and ultimately the
conservation of an unlisted heritage asset. The contemporary design and materials palette is
considered to be acceptable and in keeping with the character and appearance of Brandon. It is
therefore considered that the choice of materials offers a contemporary feel that can effectively
integrate the old and new elements whilst not detracting from the character and appearance of
the area or having a negative impact upon the neighbouring properties. It is therefore considered
that the proposal is in accordance with Core Strategy Policy EN1, Submission Draft Local Plan
Policy EN6 and Policies HOH1, HOH2 and HOH11 of the Hough on the Hill Neighbourhood Plan.

192



7.3

7.3.1

7.3.2

7.4

7.4.1

7.4.2

743

8.0

8.1

9.0

9.1

9.2

10.0

10.1

10.2

Impact of the proposal upon neighbouring properties

The lean-to extension to the southern elevation of the barn is proposed to be over 23 metres from
the nearest property and therefore it is considered that there will be no negative impact in terms
of overlooking to the neighbouring properties.

The proposed hay/storage barn and stables is of simple design and reflects the equestrian use of
the building and surrounding land to the east as paddocks. The building will be approximately
15.5m away from the nearest dwelling which is located to the west of the site and lies opposite
the track used to gain access to the proposed dwelling. The ridge height is proposed to be 4.99m
and therefore it is considered that the proposed design and scale of the building will not pose an
adverse effect upon the neighbouring properties.

Highway issues

Policy HOH15 of the Neighbourhood Plan states that new development should wherever possible
ensure that access to existing permissive rights of way are maintained.

The proposed development would be accessed via an existing track that runs along the northern
boundary of the site. It is considered that the access would not have a negative impact on the
highway and provide adequate parking. LCC Highways and SuDS have raised no objections to
the proposal. It is therefore considered that the proposal is in accordance with section 9 of the
NPPF.

It is noted that concerns have been raised about a legal dispute over access to neighbouring
properties however the constraints mapping indicates that the public right of way is not affected in
this instance and therefore the issues appear to be a civil matter and not a planning matter
between the interested parties.

Crime and Disorder

It is considered that the proposal would not result in any significant crime and disorder
implications.

Human Rights Implications

Articles 6 (Rights to fair decision making) and Article 8 (Right to private family life and home) of
the Human Rights Act have been taken into account in making this recommendation.

It is considered that no relevant Article of that act will be breached.
Conclusion

The principle of the conversion is considered acceptable as the building is of historical
significance to the character and appearance of the local area and its conversion would result in
its long term conservation and use. In addition, a new building is proposed to create a
hay/storage and horse stables block within the plot thus reducing the overall residential curtilage.

It is considered that the proposed hay/storage and stables block will not detract from the
important views in and out of the village of Brandon as identified within the Landscape
Assessment of the adopted Hough on the Hill Neighbourhood Plan. The proposed equine use of
the buildings and land is considered to be in keeping with the rural character and appearance of
the area. The proposal in its entirety offers a long term use of the unlisted heritage asset for
residential purposes alongside the use of the majority of the plot for the welfare of horses that
graze in the three paddock areas.

193



10.3

11.0

It is therefore considered that the proposal is acceptable and in accordance with para. 192 of the
NPPF, Policies HoH1, HoH2 and HoH11 of the adopted Hough on the Hill Neighbourhood Plan,
Policy SP1 and EN1 of the Core Strategy (2010). It is recommended that the proposal is
approved, subject to conditions.

RECOMMENDATION: that the development is Approved subject to the following
conditions

Time Limit for Commencement

1

App
2

The development hereby permitted shall be commenced before the expiration of three years from
the date of this permission.

Reason: In order that the development is commenced in a timely manner, as set out in Section 91 of
the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended).

roved Plans

The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following list of
approved plans:

Drawing No. 0396-AM2-GP-LP Location Plan

Drawing No. 0396-AM2-GP-SP Site Plan

Drawing No. 0396-AM2-DP-CP Design Proposal
Drawing No. 0396-AM2-GP-DP Distances Plan

Drawing No. 0396-AM2-PFP-1 Proposed GF

Drawing No. 0396-AM2-PFP-1 Proposed FF

Drawing No. 0396-AM2-PFP-2 Proposed Roof Plan
Drawing No. 0396-AM2-PEP-1 Proposed Elevations
Drawing No. 0396-AM2-PEP-2 Proposed Elevations
Drawing No. 0396-AM2-PSP Proposed Section

Drawing No. 0396-AM2-PSP Proposed Plan Section
Drawing No. 0396-AM2-P3DS1 Proposed 3D Sections
Drawing No. 0396-AM2-PSFP1 Proposed Hay Barn & Stable Floor Plans
Drawing No. 0396-AM2-PSEP-1

Drawing No. 0396-AM2-PSEP-2

Drawing No. 0396-AM2-PS3DS-1 3D Sections

Drawing No. 0396-AM2-PSEP Proposed Site Elevations
Drawing No. 0396-AM2-PV-1 Material Palette

Unless otherwise required by another condition of this permission.

Reason: To define the permission and for the avoidance of doubt.

Before the Development is Commenced

3

Before any of the works to the extension on the eastern elevations of the building(s) hereby
permitted are begun, samples of the materials (including colour of any render, paintwork or
colourwash) to be used in the construction of the external surfaces shall have been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To ensure a satisfactory appearance to the development and in accordance with Policy
EN1 of the adopted South Kesteven Core Strategy (July 2010).

Before the works to provide the boundary treatments hereby permitted are commenced, a plan

indicating the heights, positions, design, materials and type of boundary treatment to be erected
shall have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

194



Reason: To provide a satisfactory appearance to any boundary treatments and by screening rear
gardens from public view, in the interests of the privacy and amenity of the occupants of the
proposed dwellings and in accordance with Policy EN1 of the adopted South Kesteven Core
Strategy (July 2010).

Before the installation of any of the new external windows and/or doors hereby consented, full
details of all proposed joinery works for those windows/doors, including 1:20 sample elevations and
1:1 joinery profiles, shall have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority.

Reason: To ensure the satisfactory preservation of the building and in accordance with Policy EN1
of the adopted South Kesteven Core Strategy (July 2010).

Before the development hereby permitted is commenced, a written scheme of archaeological
investigation shall have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: In order to provide a reasonable opportunity to record the history of the site and in
accordance with Policy EN1 of the adopted South Kesteven Core Strategy (July 2010) and
Paragraph 199 of the NPPF.

Before the development hereby permitted is commenced, a scheme for the treatment of surface and
foul water drainage shall have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority.

Reason: To ensure the provision of satisfactory surface and foul water drainage is provided in
accordance with Policy EN2 of the adopted South Kesteven Core Strategy (July 2010).

During Building Works

8

10

11

12

The external joinery works hereby permitted shall be constructed of wood with no trickle vents and
retained as such thereafter.

Reason: To ensure the satisfactory preservation of the character of the building and in accordance
with Policy EN1 of the adopted South Kesteven Core Strategy (July 2010)

The development shall be carried out in accordance with the recommendations set out in the
Protected Species & Bat Survey Report (received 24 October 2018.

Reason: To ensure that the conversion works to the existing barn are carried out in a way that
minimises the impact on local wildlife found in the area.

Prior to the commencement of any works of demolition and rebuilding authorised by this permission,
the person/s undertaking the works shall take such measures as may be necessary to secure the
stability of the parts of the buildings, or adjacent buildings, which are to be retained.

Reason: To ensure the preservation of the building is considered to be worthy of retention and
conversion to an alternative use because of its importance as an examples of traditional buildings
that make an important contribution to the distinctiveness of the District.

The roof lights to be installed in the building shall be of a 'conservation' type, details of which shall
be submitted to the Local Planning Authority prior to installation. Only such details as may be
approved in writing shall be used in the approved works of conversion.

Reason: To ensure that the type of rooflight installed is in-keeping with the character and
appearance of the building being converted.

Before any part of the development hereby permitted is occupied, a plan clearly outlining the
residential curtilage shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority.

195



13

14

Reason: To ensure that the residential curtilage is restricted so as to preserve the character and
appearance of the local amenity in accordance with Policy EN1 of the Core Strategy.

Before the rainwater goods are installed details shall be submitted to the local planning authority of
the type of rainwater goods to be installed on the building/s and the means of fixing the goods to the
building. Only such type of rainwater goods and fixings as may be approved writing shall be used
on the building.

Reason: To ensure that the type of rainwater goods and their means of being secured to the building
are appropriate for the context. Only such type rainwater goods and fixings as may be approved in
writing shall be installed on the building.

Before the development hereby permitted is commenced, details of hard landscaping works shall
have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Details shall
include:

i. means of enclosure including fencing details within the site
Reason: Hard and soft landscaping and tree planting make an important contribution to the

development and its assimilation with its surroundings and in accordance with Policy EN1 of the
adopted South Kesteven Core Strategy (July 2010).

Before the Development is Occupied

15

16

17

18

19

The archaeological investigations shall be completed in accordance with the approved Written
Scheme of Investigations.

Reason: In order to provide a reasonable opportunity to record the history of the site and in
accordance with Policy EN1 of the adopted South Kesteven Core Strategy (July 2010) and
Paragraph 199 of the NPPF.

Before any part of the development hereby permitted is brought into use, the external surfaces shall
have been completed in accordance with the approved details.

Reason: To ensure a satisfactory appearance to the development and in accordance with Policy
EN1 of the adopted South Kesteven Core Strategy (July 2010).

Before any part of the development hereby permitted is brought into use, the works to provide the
surface and foul water drainage shall have been completed in accordance with the approved details.

Reason: To ensure the provision of satisfactory surface and foul water drainage is provided in
accordance with Policy EN2 of the adopted South Kesteven Core Strategy (July 2010).

Before any part of the development hereby permitted is brought into use, the works to provide the
boundary treatments shall have been completed in accordance with the approved boundary
treatment scheme.

Reason: To provide a satisfactory appearance to any boundary treatments and by screening rear
gardens from public view, in the interests of the privacy and amenity of the occupants of the
proposed dwellings and in accordance with Policy EN1 of the adopted South Kesteven Core
Strategy (July 2010).

Before any part of the development hereby permitted is brought into use, all hard landscape works
shall have been carried out in accordance with the approved hard landscaping details.

Reason: Hard landscaping and tree planting make an important contribution to the development and

its assimilation with its surroundings and in accordance with Policy EN1 of the adopted South
Kesteven Core Strategy (July 2010).

196



20

21

Before the part of the building being altered is first brought into use, the joinery works for all windows
and doors shall have been completed in accordance with the approved joinery details.

Reason: To ensure the satisfactory preservation of the building and in accordance with Policy EN1
of the adopted South Kesteven Core Strategy (July 2010).

Before any part of the development hereby permitted is brought into use, all rainwater goods shall
have been carried out in accordance with the approved details.

Reason: To ensure that the type of rainwater goods and their means of being secured to the building
are appropriate for the context. Only such type rainwater goods and fixings as may be approved in
writing shall be installed on the building.

Ongoing Conditions

22

23

24

25

Notwithstanding the provisions of Schedule 2, Part 1, Class A of the Town and Country Planning
(General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any order revoking or re-enacting that
Order with or without modification), no enlargement, improvement or other alteration to the property
other than those expressly authorised by this permission shall be carried out without Planning
Permission first having been granted by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To safeguard the amenities of the occupiers of nearby properties.

Notwithstanding the provisions of Schedule 2, Part 1, Classes A, B & C of the Town and Country
Planning (General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any order revoking or re-
enacting that Order with or without modification), no window, dormer window, rooflight or other shall
be inserted into any elevation of the property other than those expressly authorised by this
permission without Planning Permission first having been granted by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To safeguard the amenities of the occupiers of nearby properties.

No chimneys or flues shall be installed on the building other than those shown on the approved
drawings without the express consent of the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To ensure that any additional chimneys and/or flues do not compromise the character or
appearance of the building.

The development shall be carried out strictly in accordance with the approved plans which outline
the residential curtilage.

Reason: So as to restrict the residential curtilage to a defined area so as to preserve the character
and appearance of the local amenity in accordance with Policy EN1 of the Core Strategy.

Standard Note(s) to Applicant:

1

Consideration should be given to the storage and disposal of horse manure.

Whilst the regulations as set down by the Environment Protection Act 1990 apply to commercial
premises consideration should be given to applying the same standards as this will help to prevent
pollution of the environment and public nuisance.

Please contact the Lincolnshire County Council Streetworks and Permitting Team on 01522 782070
to discuss any proposed statutory utility connections and any other works which will be required
within the public highway in association with the development permitted under this consent. This will
enable Lincolnshire County Council to assist in the coordination and timings of these works.

197



Block Plan

Gate to paddocks

Old Hall
Barn Ridge Barn | ~—___--====¢

Proposed hay barn & storage

|

! HardStanding to Tack and
/ |_ } Wash Horses

Gatemrmroroioionm-—oo e e e— = =

1
Existing Fence and I, Paddock 1
Shrubbery renew if necessary. ' 1
|
Gravel Drive r“‘=— -
! TTe-
P ) Proposed ion~ T~ = _
Refuse Area Afala / / 5310'I Highlightedinred ~ ~ " ==<__
Old Hall ~ Cretses &
Site boundary T // o [ PatioAra
Privacy sl ’.-‘ Ha | I
prop /Farm
i
:r Existing Fence to be Paddock 2
aded
Brandune Cotta L
g The Courfyard J-~~-. r-
Existing Hedges e
Paddock 3

Block Plan (zoomed in view)

m

Stables

|
I HardStanding to Tack and
Wash Horses

- e E e =T

Proposed extension

Highlighted in red

B I

L
=
=
L=

1
——

*+— Patio Area

/Hall
FFarm

j i timer Doamem bm bn

198



Barn conversion -Existing floor plan

(0335-AMZ-EFR-1

Ground Floor Roof
1:100 1:100

Barn Conversion — Existing Elevations

e Level1

2400

" (()imu_mli Fk::n_rl
South West
1:100 1:100

199



Barn Conversion — Proposed Ground Floor Plan

ToTT T T

MNaw window (Sea shost
D305-AMZ-1T0T)

Mow RYWF (300 shoat

ome M timbar stairs (S0 sheal
AMZ-1401/1402) 395-4M,

o; 2-1103)

1.32m
N 5640 N
1 1
¥ B 5 3 o g—
——e. Naw astaresion wialls finsh
in Timbar cladding {Sed
O3B5-AM2-1008;
Baadroom
Baarom

Rear Extension Block Reduced in Dapth by

de Extension
Reduced in
Width by
374m

5310

Kiichan - Living spaca

e

£00

-

Ramav past [ fasbi

Nonw brick pher to match adsting
Maw audansicn wals Snished i

siona matching i austing
Now tramed glass door (556

sheet 036E-AM2-1T0H)

Partly capossd wal bo salisty planning
(Boa shect 03IS-AM2-1101)

Barn Conversion — Proposed First Floor Plan

Parpst upsand o maich
cladding

alls

Single piy roof wih biack chippings on
Iop  due b5 low pRch

200



Barn Conversion — Proposed Elevations 1

Hew e oaf o Hiew winciow {See shest
mach exsting D396-AMZ-1701)

www.am2arch

e First Floor 2
2400 2

‘Sutabie musting e 1o
bam raat. FReplacement

e re-umest on main
s 1o match exesting

e Ground Floor
0 |

North RAL 016
1:100

‘Stane 1o maich
existing

e First Floor
2400

cadang

4089

e Ground Floor
1]

East R
1:100

D ot scaie from craming. AM2
aimensicns abtained by measuri|
o rellance should be placed on
pven, It = the responsibility of th{
speCinCally from the authar or By
The sizing of all structural and so

et a0y cagang
malch exstng

Hew extemal door (See
shest 0356 AMZ-1702)

Barn Conversion — Proposed Elevations 2

e First Floor
2400

e Ground Floor
0

South
1:100

New exterior doar (See Miew winciow See sheet
‘shest 0386.AM21703) [

396 AIZ170%)

Camposte fasci, cokour
ey RALTOIE

e First Floor
2400

New windaw (See sheel
0386-AMZ-1702)

e Ground Floor
o

West
1:100

Metal aly clacding

Do not scale from crawing
@mensions abtained by mel
e rellance should be place

201



Hay Barn and Stables — Floor Plans

PROPOSED HAY BARN & STABLE FLOOR PLANS
[396-AMZ-PSFP-|

BRANDON BARN, HOUGH ON THE HILL, BRANDO

New hung gutter fo be
composts RAL TG (See
sheet D396-AM2-1403)

g J
Barn Width reduced to |

07, 5200 | o
1 i
o
|
Loase box
000
wash tack (see
}306-AM2-1403) e
ok aogy Timber cladding (See
Loase b sheet QFS0-AMZ-1007) -
110 000
FWF (Ses shast
rnsa ———t - — |
[] Proposed Walls
Hay bam wi: siorage above
Upper siorage
Space o House Tracior Bam Length
‘associated machinenyt Hay| Reduced to
= 1 om
i |
8
6000 |
1 +
|
|
— B styke tmber door
|
J
L
Mrry o — H
14HH [ 3
il IERIRAA
. } L [l

Mictal alicy cladding (So=
sheet (350-AM2-1000)

O
[

Do pat scale from drawing. AMZ Lid acce;

Hay Barn and Stables — Elevations 1

TOUT ARE TOCT T

archity

RV and
Qutiering colourest

um2

arn & Stable South
1100

B
1

WWW

Bam Height Gy vertical amber cladding

Reduced to
4.99m

ew skylghts (sce
shest D356-AM2-1008) l

@ First Floor
2400

IS

e Ground Floor
0

l

Mew b siyie mber daar {
siding}

Metas oy casang
refiect local

Precegents

Barn & Stable West
1:100

access

Mo

m

e First Floor
2400

Ground Floor

N el st 00O

Bamn height Reduced as much as
pessible but still to allow door for

mhny
i

&

1]

Mew exteror metal statase
{see sheet D356-AMZ-1104)

Metal aoy cadding fo
reflect bozal
Precedents

202



Hay Barn and Stables — Elevations 2

WP and
outemg cooursn
RAL 7018
— 4
Bam
i Height
} | Reduced to
o
] 4.90m
e
|
—
Ground Floor L
e_u *
Grey vertical b clacdirg Metal sty ciacsing i New exterior metal starcase
etect ocal (se sheet 0390 AME 1104)
Fracederts

Barn & Stable East
1

:100
First Floor M
2400 | |
e Ground Floor I |

o

Meal aaoy ciannng i
refiect ncal

Frecedents

specinc:
The sizi

203



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 5d

PJ S18/1561 Target Decision Date:15th October 2018
Extension of Time Date:28th February 2019
Committee Date:5th February 2019
Applicant Mr Matthew Wilkinson Lincolnshire Co-operative Limited
Stanley Bett House 15-23 Tentercroft Street Lincoln LN5 7DB
Agent Mr Sam Winton framework 3 Marine Studios Burton Waters
Lincoln LN1 2WN
Proposal Erection of a single storey convenience store
Location Land At Hanbury Avenue Grantham NG31 7GQ
Application Type Full Planning Permission
Parish(es) Grantham

Reason for Referral to

At the request of Clir A Stokes for concerns in relation to

Committee design, highway safety and impact on the character and
appearance of the area

Approved conditionally

Phil Jordan - Development Management Planner
01476 406080 Ext: 6074
p.jordan@southkesteven.gov.uk

Phil Moore - Development Management Planner

01476 406080 Ext: 6461

p.moore@southkesteven.gov.uk

Recommendation
Report Author

Report Checked By

Key Issues

Principle of development

Retail considerations

Highway considerations

Impact on the character of the area
Design

Technical Documents Submitted with the Application

Transport Assessment
Arboricultural Impact Assessment
Noise Assessment

Surface Water Drainage Strategy
Contamination Survey

Design and Access Statement

205



90¢

Key

[ ]

Application
Boundary




1.0 Description of site

1.1 The application site is located towards the south of Grantham in a predominantly
residential area. To the north of the site is a recently constructed care home, to south
on the opposite side of Springfield Road is a mixture of residential houses and
apartments of traditional design and a care home with a more contemporary
appearance. To the east is a residential development under construction (approved by
S17/2082) and to the west are commercial buildings including the Maltings and some
takeaway units on the corner with Harlaxton Road.

2.0 Description of proposal

2.1 Planning permission is sought for the erection of a single storey convenience store
which is understood to be intended for occupation by the Co-Op. The proposed retail
unit would provide approximately 280 sgm of ground floor retail space and includes
provision of 20 car parking spaces of which 2 are designated for accessible parking.
The proposed unit would be of a traditional design and constructed from red facing
bricks with grey slate effect tiles. The building would be L shaped approximately 21m
x 21m on the south and east elevations and set-back between 7m and 10m from
Springfield Road. Pedestrian access is proposed off Springfield Road and vehicular
access would be via Hanbury Avenue and Arlington Gardens to the north of the car
park.

2.2 It is noted the original scheme was amended to provide enhanced landscaping details
which include two new trees to be planted to the front of the store in addition to the six
trees to be retained. A new hedge is also proposed with some additional planting to
help screen the close boarded fence to the front of the unit.

3.0 Relevant History

Reference Proposal Decision Date
S17/2082 Construction of 46 affordable homes Approved 26/04/2018
including roads, footpaths and Conditionally

associated infrastructure.
4.0 Policy Considerations

41 National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)
Section 12 - Achieving well-designed places
Section 7 - Ensuring the vitality of town centres
Section 9 - Promoting sustainable transport

4.2 South Kesteven District Council Core Strategy
Policy E2 - Retail Development
Policy EN1 - Protection and Enhancement
Policy EN2 - Reduce the Risk of Flooding
Policy SP1 - Spatial Strategy

4.3 Submission Draft Local Plan
(policies which are accorded some weight)
SD1 Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development
SD2 Principles of Sustainable Development in South Kesteven
GR4 Grantham Town Centre Policy
ID2 Transport and Strategic Transport Infrastructure

207



5.0 SKDC Corporate Priorities

5.1 Growth — a growing population and a growing economy creates jobs, secures
infrastructure and attracts investment.

6.0 Representations Received

LCC Highways & SuDS Does not wish to restrict the grant of permission.
Support

Environmental  Protection In respect of land contamination, the recommendations in the
Services (SKDC) Phase | & Il Geo Environmental Assessment should be
implemented.

Regarding noise, the recommendations in the noise report
should be conditioned as well as consideration of potential
noise from deliveries.

Upper Witham Internal No comments
Drainage Board

Arboricultural Consultant Recommend requiring by condition a tree protection scheme

(SKDC) including tree protection plan and the submission of a no dig
methodology for installing hard surfaces inside the RPA's of
the retained trees.

Crime Prevention Design Lincolnshire Police have no objections to this application.

Advisor Suggest consideration of the following as the area has
experienced some anti-social behaviour and relatively low
level criminality:

- Maximise opportunities for natural surveillance

- Avoid low dwarf walls that can be used for ad hoc seating
and the provision of public seating that can become a point
of congregation

- Include a suitable level of external lighting

- Landscaping should not impede the opportunity for natural
surveillance and must avoid the creation of areas of
concealment

- Suitable provision of an intruder alarm and CCTV

- Any ATM should include its own alarm, CCTV and be
located in a highly visible position

7.0 Representations as a Result of Publicity

7.1 This application has been advertised in accordance with the Council's Statement of
Community Involvement and no letters of representation have been received.

8.0 Evaluation

8.1 Principle of the development

8.1.1 Core Strategy Policy SP1 states the majority of all new development should be
focused upon Grantham to support and strengthen its role as a Sub-Regional Centre.

208



8.1.2

8.1.3

8.2

8.2.1

8.2.2

8.2.3

8.2.4

8.3

8.3.1

Submission Draft Local Plan Policies SD1 and SD2 seek to promote sustainable
development in South Kesteven.

Core Strategy Policy E2 and Submission Draft Local Plan Policy GR4 seek to
support the existing town centre of Grantham through the focus of new retail
development towards the defined town centre. The policy identifies that where
proposals cannot be located in the town centre, a sequential approach should be
applied, taking into consideration the requirements of the latest Retail Needs Study.
The policy does not however identify a threshold above which the sequential test
should be applied.

Para 89 provides a default threshold is 2,500 sgm of gross floorspace for applying
the sequential approach where there is no locally set threshold for new retail
development. The Council has set the local threshold to be 1,000 sgm. As the
proposal is for 280 sgm of new retail space then it is below the local threshold for
new retail development and a sequential approach is not required.

The development of a small convenience store on brownfield land within a residential
area in Grantham is therefore acceptable in principle, in accordance with Core
Strategy policies SP1 and E2 and Submission Draft Local Plan Policies SD1 and
SD2; subject to the detailed considerations set out in the remainder of the report.

Design and impact on the form and character of the area

Core Strategy Policy EN1 requires development to be appropriate for its context.
Further, para 127 of the NPPF provides that planning policies and decisions should
ensure that developments are sympathetic to local character and history, including
the surrounding built environment and landscape setting, while not preventing or
discouraging appropriate innovation or change.

The predominant material type in the area is red bricks and plain tile roofs, although
there are some example of more contemporary buildings in the vicinity of the
development site. To the front of the site along Springfield Road is a series of
mature, protected trees that provide an attractive frontage to the site. The site itself is
currently vacant, except for the north of the site which provides five parking spaces
for the care home.

The proposed building would be of a traditional appearance and constructed of red
bricks and grey slate effect tiles. The existing mature trees along Springfield Road
are to be retained and proposal includes an enhanced landscaping scheme to the
frontage of the store and perimeter of the car park. The erection of a new retail store
along Springfield Road would provide an active frontage that could be viewed from
both directions along the main road.

Taking the above into account, the proposal is acceptable in terms of design and the
impact on the character and appearance of the area, and would provide a visual
enhancement to this currently vacant site in accordance with CS policy EN1 and
NPPF section 12.

Impact on the neighbouring properties

Para 127 of the NPPF states planning decisions should create places with a high
standard of amenity for existing and future users. By virtue of the design and
orientation of the building there would be no unacceptable impact from loss of light,
overlooking or dominance of outlook on the residential amenities of the occupiers of

209



8.3.2

8.3.3

8.4

8.4.1

8.4.2

8.5

8.5.1

8.5.2

8.6

8.6.1

8.7

8.7.1

adjacent properties (including those approved and under construction). The closest
properties being constructed are to the east of the building which is not proposed to
have any external plant and would be separated by a 1.8m close boarded fence.

In addition, conditions requiring details of type/location of external plant/equipment
(which has been shown indicatively on the west elevation) as well as restricting hours
of opening and deliveries have been attached as recommended by the Council's
Environmental Protection service to ensure that noise and disturbance is kept to
appropriate levels in this generally residential area.

In this respect the proposal is in accordance with section 12 of the NPPF.

Highway issues

Para 109 of the NPPF states that development should only be prevented or refused
on highways grounds if there would be an unacceptable impact on highway safety, or
the residual cumulative impacts on the road network would be severe.

Vehicular access would be via Hanbury Avenue and Arlington Gardens to the north
of the car park. Although the scheme would result in the loss of five parking spaces
that currently serve the care home to the north, the residual level of car parking for
both the care home and proposed convenience store in considered to be of an
acceptable level for this sustainable location. The proposal would not have a severe
impact on the road network or lead to unacceptable highway safety issues. The
Highway Authority have made no objection to the proposal. In this respect the
proposal accords with CS policy SP3 and NPPF section 9.

Drainage

Core Strategy Policy EN2 read together with NPPF section 14 seeks to reduce the
risk of flooding from new development proposals.

Drainage details have been submitted that show the surface water to be managed
through a soakaway. The Lead Local Flood Authority have made no objection to
these proposals. These details are considered to be acceptable and in accordance
with Core Strategy Policy EN2, Submission Draft Local Plan Policy ID2 and NPPF
section 14.

Contaminated land

A Phase | & Il Geo-Environmental Assessment was carried out on the land to assess
the potential for contaminated land. The survey did find the presence of asbestos
which is thought to be linked to the previous use of the land as allotments. In order to
mitigate the risks to future users of the site, it was recommended that a simple cover
system of 150mm clean topsoil material to be placed in areas of proposed soft
landscaping. The recommendations in the report have been included as a condition.

Preservation of trees

There are protected trees along the front of the site adjacent with Springfield Road. In
order to ensure protection of these trees during construction, the Council's tree
consultant has recommended that a tree protection scheme including a tree
protection plan and a no dig methodology for installing hard surfaces inside the root

210



9.0

9.1

9.2

9.3

10.0

10.1

11.0

12.0

protection areas of the retained trees is submitted and this has been included as a
condition.

Crime and Disorder

Lincolnshire Police have confirmed they have no objections to the proposal.
However, they suggested consideration of a number of design elements of the
scheme to help reduce the risk of crime and anti-social behaviour (ASB) as the area
has experienced some ASB and low level criminality in the past.

In response to these points, the proposed store is of a good design that would help
reduce any opportunities for crime and ASB. The store includes glazed doors and
windows to the west and south elevations that would face the car park and small
open space off Springfield Road. This would provide a good level of natural
surveillance of these areas. Likewise, the landscaping scheme is designed in such a
way so as not to impede the opportunity for natural surveillance or create concealed
areas.

The applicant has confirmed the proposal does not include an external ATM and any
ATM would be sited inside the store in a secure location. A condition requiring further
details of external lighting and CCTV has been included to further reduce the risk of
any crime and ASB that may arise from the proposal.

Human Rights Implications

Articles 6 (Rights to fair decision making) and Article 8 (Right to private family life and
home) of the Human Rights Act have been taken into account in making this
recommendation. It is considered that no relevant Article of that act will be breached.

Conclusion

A proposed convenience store at this location is acceptable in principle and the
design of the building would it is appropriate for the surrounding context. The
proposal accords with the Core Strategy Policies SP1, SP3, EN1, EN2 and E2;
Submission Draft Local Plan Policies SD1, SD2, GR4, ID2 and the NPPF (sections 7,
9, 12 and 14) and therefore recommended for approval, subject to conditions.

RECOMMENDATION: that the development is Approved/Allowed subject to the
following conditions

Time Limit for Commencement

1

The development hereby permitted shall be commenced before the expiration of three
years from the date of this permission.

Reason: In order that the development is commenced in a timely manner, as set out in
Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended).

Approved Plans

2 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following

list of approved plans:

J1712(08) 03 Rev E received 24th January 2019
J1712(08) 04 Rev E received 24th January 2019

211



ii. J1712(08) 05 Rev C received 11th January 2019
iv. J1712(08) 06 Rev C received 11th January 2019
V. J1712(08) 07 Rev B received 11th January 2019
Vi. J1712(08) 13 Rev B received 11th January 2019
vii.  J1712(08) 14 received 11th January 2019

vii.  5787/100 Rev P2 received 20th August 2018

Unless otherwise required by another condition of this permission.
Reason: To define the permission and for the avoidance of doubt.
Before the Development is Commenced

3 Before the development hereby permitted is commenced, details of tree protection
measures to protect all existing trees shown on the approved plan during construction
shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The
development shall be implemented in strict accordance with the approved tree protection
measures.

Reason: To prevent unnecessary damage to existing trees and in accordance with Policy
EN1 of the adopted South Kesteven Core Strategy (July 2010).

During Building Works

4 The development hereby approved shall be carried out in accordance with the
recommendations contained within the following reports:

- S & D Garritt Noise Impact Assessment received 27th September 2018

Reason: To ensure that the amenity of neighbouring properties is not compromised and
to comply with Core Strategy policy EN1.

5 Notwithstanding the submitted details on drawing J1712(08) 14, before any of the works
on the external elevations for the building(s) hereby permitted are begun, samples of the
materials (including colour of any render, paintwork or colourwash) to be used in the
construction of the external surfaces shall have been submitted to and approved in writing
by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To ensure a satisfactory appearance to the development and in accordance with
Policy EN1 of the adopted South Kesteven Core Strategy (July 2010).

6 A 'no dig' construction method shall be used for installing all hard surfaces that fall within
the root protection areas of retained trees shown on the approved drawing J1712(08) 04
Rev D received 11th January 2019. No development within these areas shall take place
until details of such a construction method have been submitted to and approved in writing
by the local planning authority. Development shall be carried out in accordance with the
approved details.

Reason: To prevent unnecessary damage to existing trees and in accordance with Policy
EN1 of the adopted South Kesteven Core Strategy (July 2010).

212



7

The development hereby approved shall be carried out in accordance with the
recommendations contained within the following reports:

- EPS Phase | & Il Geo-Environmental Assessment received 20th August 2018

Reason: To ensure that the proposed development not cause pollution in the interests of
the amenities of the future residents and users of the development; and in accordance
with Policy EN1 of the adopted South Kesteven Core Strategy (July 2010) and national
guidance contained in the NPPF (Section 15).

Before installation of any external plant, final details of the position, type, external
appearance, noise emissions and shall have been submitted to and approved in writing
by the local planning authority.

Reason: To ensure a satisfactory development and to ensure that neighbours' residential
amenity is adequately protected and to comply with Core Strategy policy EN1.

Before installation of any external lighting and CCTV, final details of the position, type,
external appearance and lux levels shall have been submitted to and approved in writing
by the local planning authority.

Reason: To ensure that neighbours' residential amenity is adequately protected and in
the interests of crime prevention.

Before the Development is Occupied

10 Before any part of the development hereby permitted is occupied/brought into use, the

11

12

works to provide the boundary treatments shall have been completed in accordance with
the approved boundary treatment scheme on approved drawings J1712(08) 04 Rev D
and J1712(08) 13 Rev B received 11th January 2019.

Reason: To provide a satisfactory appearance to any boundary treatments and by
screening rear gardens from public view, in the interests of the privacy and amenity of the
occupants of the proposed dwellings and in accordance with Policy EN1 of the adopted
South Kesteven Core Strategy (July 2010).

Before the end of the first planting/seeding season following the occupation/first use of
any part of the development hereby permitted, all soft landscape works shall have been
carried out in accordance with the approved soft landscaping details on approved drawing
J1712(08) 04 Rev D received 11th January 2019.

Reason: Soft landscaping and tree planting make an important contribution to the
development and its assimilation with its surroundings and in accordance with Policy EN1
of the adopted South Kesteven Core Strategy (July 2010).

Prior to the premises being brought into use, a Delivery Management Plan shall have
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To ensure that the amenity of neighbouring properties is not compromised and
to comply with Core Strategy policy EN1.

213



13

14

15

16

Before any part of the development hereby permitted is occupied/brought into use, the
works to provide the surface water drainage shall have been completed in accordance
with the approved details on drawing 5787/100 Rev P2 received 20th August 2018.

Reason: To ensure the provision of satisfactory surface water drainage is provided in
accordance with Policy EN2 of the adopted South Kesteven Core Strategy (July 2010).

Before any part of the development hereby permitted is occupied/brought into use, the
external surfaces shall have been completed in accordance with the approved details.

Reason: To ensure a satisfactory appearance to the development and in accordance with
Policy EN1 of the adopted South Kesteven Core Strategy (July 2010).

Before any part of the development hereby permitted is brought into use, any external
plant shall have been completed in accordance with the approved details.

Reason: To ensure neighbour's residential amenities are protected and to ensure a
satisfactory appearance to the development and in accordance with Policy EN1 of the
adopted South Kesteven Core Strategy (July 2010).

Before any part of the development hereby permitted is brought into use, any external
lighting and CCTYV shall have been completed in accordance with the approved details.

Reason: To ensure that neighbours' residential amenity is adequately protected and in
the interests of crime prevention.

Ongoing Conditions

17

18

19

Deliveries and associated activities shall be carried out in accordance with the delivery
management plan as approved unless the Local Planning Authority give written consent
to a variation.

Reason: To ensure that the amenity of neighbouring properties is not compromised and
to comply with Core Strategy policy EN1.

The premises shall not be open for customers other than between the hours 07:00hrs -
22:00hrs unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: Operation of the use outside these hours would result in unacceptable levels of
noise nuisance to local residents.

Within a period of five years from the first occupation of the development hereby
permitted, any trees or plants provided as part of the approved soft landscaping scheme,
die or become, in the opinion of the Local Planning Authority, seriously damaged or
defective, shall be replaced in the first planting season following any such loss with a
specimen of the same size and species as was approved in condition above unless
otherwise agreed by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To ensure the provision, establishment and maintenance of a reasonable
standard of landscape in accordance with the approved designs.

214



20 The arrangements shown on the approved plan J1712(08) 04 Rev D received 11th

January 2019 for the parking/turning/loading/unloading of vehicles shall be available at all
times when the premises are in use.

Reason: To allow vehicle to park and turn within the site and leave in forward gear and to
reduce any additional on street parking in the interests of highway safety.

Standard Note(s) to Applicant:

1

In reaching the decision the Council has worked with the applicant in a positive and
proactive manner by determining the application without undue delay. As such it is
considered that the decision is in accordance with paras 38 of the National Planning Policy
Framework.

215



Location Plan

Block plan

JAY ABNENYH

[P —

Froposed
AR LINGTOM GARDENS Yehigular
s §

RED UME INDICATES
SUBJECT HTE

2198 im?
02193 Ha

<At teiner
WERICIE MANCILVER.

[

COMVENENCE STORE
SALES AREA
Flerd

AT

T

216



Elevations

Proposed Side Elevation to Springfield Road

Proposed Front Elevation to Springfield Road (sccle 1:50) PLANNING ISSUE —— .
o we 1 us 32 s a4 as s e
= —

Floor plan and elevations

Proposed Front Elevation (scae 1:100)

I T

Proposed Roof Plan Proposed Side Elevation

™
pisd
i

i

Proposed Ground Floor Plan
[scale 1100}
IS .

217



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 5e

MJB S18/2265 Target Decision Date:7th February 2019
Committee Date:5th February 2019
Applicant Mr & Mrs Morgan White Farm Cottage 16 Pond Street Harlaxton
NG32 1HW
Agent Mr Mark Crowther Verve Architecture 23 Winchilsea Avenue
Newark On Trent NG24 4AD
Proposal Single storey glazed link extension, including conversion of
attached outbuildings and addition of roof lights
Location White Farm Cottage 16 Pond Street Harlaxton NG32 1HW
Application Type Householder
Parish(es) Harlaxton Parish Council

Reason for Referral to
Committee

The applicant works for the Council.

Recommendation

That the application is:- Approved conditionally

Report Author

Miranda Beavers - Assistant Planning Officer
01476 406080 Ext: 6302
m.beavers@southkesteven.gov.uk

Report Reviewed By

Sylvia Bland - Head of Development Management
01476 406080 Ext: 6388
S.Bland@southkesteven.gov.uk

Key Issues

e Impact on the character and appearance of the area
e Impact on the neighbours' residential amenities

e Highway issues

219



0cc

/\9 ™ PR o E

Ruin

g o

Key

e Harlaxton C of E
ymary School

F

D Application
Boundary



1.0 Description of site

1.1 The existing property is a large detached two storey dwellinghouse which has a white render
finish and tiled roof. The dwelling occupies a prominent position at the junction of Pond Street,
Church Street and Rectory Lane. The site falls within the Harlaxton Conservation Area.

2.0 Description of proposal

2.1 The proposed works include the erection of a glazed link extension to form an entrance hall
positioned between the main house and a garage and external store. Other external alterations
include the addition of rooflights and patio doors to the existing east facing elevation and the
replacement of west facing garage doors with new wider electrically operated roller shutter
opening. Internal alterations which do not require planning permission include the conversion of
attached outbuildings into a family room and study/home office.

3.0 Relevant History

3.1 No relevant planning history

4.0 Policy Considerations

4.1 National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)
Section 12 - Achieving well-designed places
Section 16 - Conserving and enhancing the historic environment

4.2 South Kesteven District Council Core Strategy
Policy EN1 - Protection and Enhancement

4.3 Submission Draft Local Plan
(policies which are accorded some weight)
SD1 Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development
SD2 Principles of Sustainable Development in South Kesteven
ENG6 The Historic Environment

5.0 SKDC Corporate Priorities

51 Growth — a growing population and a growing economy creates jobs, secures infrastructure and
attracts investment.

6.0 Representations Received

Parish Council Harlaxton Parish Council has no objection to this application.

LCC Highways & SuDS No adverse comments received.
Support

Historic Buildings Advisor White Farm Cottage 16 Pond Street is located in a prominent
(SKDC) position within the Harlaxton Conservation Area.

Whilst there are no objections the extensions and glass link, it
is recommended that the number of rooflights are reduced to
ensure the roofscape is more in keeping with the historic
context. A suggestion would be that two can be removed fairly
easily, one from above each of the double doors whilst still
providing sufficient and comfortable levels of light.

221



7.0

7.1

8.0

8.1

8.1.1

8.1.2

8.1.5

8.2

8.2.1

8.3

8.3.1

Representations as a Result of Publicity

This application has been advertised in accordance with the Council's Statement of Community
Involvement and no letters of representation have been received.

Evaluation

Impact on the character and appearance of the area

The Local Planning Authority is required to ensure that with respect to any buildings or other land
in a conservation area, special attention shall be paid to the desirability of preserving or
enhancing the character or appearance of that area, through the Planning (Listed Buildings and
Conservation Areas) Act 1990 at Section 72.

Furthermore, the importance of considering the impact of development on the significance of
designated heritage assets is expressed in the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF). The
NPPF advises that development and alterations to designated assets and their settings can
cause harm. These policies ensure the protection and enhancement of the historic buildings and
environments. Proposals that preserve those elements of the setting that make a positive
contribution to or better reveal the significance should be treated favourably.

Core Strategy Policy EN1 and Submission Draft Policy EN6 seek to ensure the protection and
enhancement of heritage assets.

The host dwelling occupies a prominent position at the junction of Pond Street, Church Street
and Rectory Lane. Due to its location at the junction the side elevation forms a highly visible
element of the townscape along Pond Street. The proposed glazed link extension would form a
small glazed link between the main house and the existing garage and external store. Although
the new link extension would be visible from the streetscene it would be set back from the street
frontage by approximately 13m, would be small in size and would not be visually intrusive within
the street scene. The Conservation Officer expressed some concerns regarding the number of
rooflights that are proposed to be inserted into the east facing elevation. Therefore to ensure that
the roofscape remains in keeping with the surrounding historical context it is suggested that the
proposed number of rooflights be reduced from 7 to 5. The agent has been contacted to request
this minor amendment to the proposal. At the time of writing this report, a response is still
awaited.

By virtue of the design, scale and materials to be used, the proposal would be in keeping with the
host dwelling, streetscene and surrounding context. The development would not cause harm to
the Harlaxton Conservation Area in accordance with the NPPF Sections 12, NPPF Section 16
and Policy EN1 of the South Kesteven Core Strategy.

Impact on the neighbours' residential amenities

The impact on the neighbours' residential amenities was taken into consideration when
determining this application and due the position of the proposed extension between the main
house and existing garage and other minor alterations it is not considered that there would be
any form of overlooking, loss of privacy or over dominance as a result. Taking into account the
nature of the proposal, small scale, and adequate separation distances, it is considered that there
would be no unacceptable adverse impact on the residential amenities of the occupiers of
adjacent properties in accordance with the NPPF Section 12, and Policy EN1 of the South
Kesteven Core Strategy.

Highway issues

The proposal would result in adequate access, parking and turning facilities and would not have
an unacceptable adverse impact on highway safety in accordance with the NPPF Section 9.

222



9.0 Crime and Disorder

9.1 It is considered that the proposal would not result in any significant crime and disorder
implications.

10.0 Human Rights Implications

10.1  Articles 6 (Rights to fair decision making) and Article 8 (Right to private family life and home) of
the Human Rights Act have been taken into account in making this recommendation. It is
considered that no relevant Article of that act will be breached.

11.0 Conclusion

11.1  Taking the above into account, it is considered that the proposal is appropriate for its context and
is in accordance with the NPPF (Sections 9, 12 and 16) and Policy EN1 of the South Kesteven
Core Strategy

12.0 RECOMMENDATION: that the development is Approved subject to the following
conditions

Time Limit for Commencement

1 The development hereby permitted shall be commenced before the expiration of three years from
the date of this permission.

Reason: In order that the development is commenced in a timely manner, as set out in Section 91 of
the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended).

Approved Plans

2 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following list of
approved plans:

i. Drawing No.18039.04 Rev C, Proposed Elevations, received 7 December 2018
ii. Drawing No.18039.03 Rev B, Proposed Ground Floor Plan/Block Plan - Layout 1, received 7
December 2018
Unless otherwise required by another condition of this permission.
Reason: To define the permission and for the avoidance of doubt.

Before the Development is Occupied

3 Before any part of the development hereby permitted is occupied/brought into use, the external
elevations shall have been completed using only the materials stated in the planning application

forms and plans unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To ensure a satisfactory appearance to the development and in accordance with Policy
EN1 of the adopted South Kesteven Core Strategy (July 2010).

Standard Note(s) to Applicant:

1 Inreaching the decision the Council has worked with the applicant in a positive and proactive
manner by determining the application without undue delay. As such it is considered that the
decision is in accordance with paras 38 of the National Planning Policy Framework.

2 You are advised that the application site falls within an area affected by Radon. You are asked to

contact the Council's Building Control section (telephone number 03330 038132) to ascertain the
level of protection required and whether a geological assessment is necessary.

223



lll oﬂé@ﬁ%wﬁtuﬁ W, Liconos rumier 100022432
S
|

—

£

224



Existing Elevations

225



Proposed Elevations

pelrr

Cagge g T A i L i | O

Block Plan
e Rt {scale 1:500)

226



	Agenda
	4 Minutes of the meeting held on 15 January 2019
	5a Application S17/2155
	5b Application S18/2171
	5c Application S18/1979
	5d Application S18/1561
	5e Application S18/2265

